
 

 

 
 
 
 

Charity Trustee Sub-
Committee 
 
Tuesday 21 March 2023 at 4.30 pm 
 
To be held in the Town Hall, 
Pinstone Street, Sheffield, S1 2HH 
 
The Press and Public are Welcome to Attend 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Membership 
  

Councillor Bryan Lodge  
Councillor Richard Williams  
Councillor Douglas Johnson  
Councillor Dawn Dale  
Councillor Julie Grocutt  
 

 
 

Public Document Pack



 

 

 

PUBLIC ACCESS TO THE MEETING 
 
The following functions are within the remit of Community, Parks and Leisure Policy 
Committee: 
 
·       Communities 

• o   Community Development 
• o   Cohesion and Migration 
• o   Community Safety 
• o   Youth Services 

·       Parks, Leisure and Libraries 
• o   Sport, physical activity and leisure facilities 
• o   Parks and Woodlands (including non-highway trees) 
• o   Allotments 
• o   Ecology 
• o   Bereavement Services 
• o   Libraries 

·       Voluntary Sector 
• Voluntary Sector Liaison 
• Voluntary Sector Grants, including Grant Aid 
• Strategic lead on relationships and development with the Voluntary, 

Community and Faith Sector, building capacity and sustainability in the 
sector 

 
Meetings are chaired by Councillor Richard Williams.   
 
A copy of the agenda and reports is available on the Council’s website at 
www.sheffield.gov.uk . You may not be allowed to see some reports because they 
contain confidential information. These items are usually marked * on the agenda. 
Members of the public have the right to ask questions or submit petitions to Policy 
Committee meetings and recording is allowed under the direction of the Chair. 
Please see the Council’s webpage or contact Democratic Services for further 
information regarding public questions and petitions and details of the Council’s 
protocol on audio/visual recording and photography at council meetings.  
 
Policy Committee meetings are normally open to the public but sometimes the 
Committee may have to discuss an item in private. If this happens, you will be asked 
to leave. Any private items are normally left until last on the agenda.  
 
Meetings of the Policy Committee have to be held as physical meetings. If you would 
like to attend the meeting, please report to an Attendant in the Foyer at the Town 
Hall where you will be directed to the meeting room.  However, it would be 
appreciated if you could register to attend, in advance of the meeting, by 
emailing committee@sheffield.gov.uk, as this will assist with the management of 
attendance at the meeting. The meeting rooms in the Town Hall have a limited 
capacity. We are unable to guarantee entrance to the meeting room for observers, 
as priority will be given to registered speakers and those that have registered to 
attend.  

http://www.sheffield.gov.uk/
https://democracy.sheffield.gov.uk/uuCoverPage.aspx?bcr=1
mailto:committee@sheffield.gov.uk


 

 

 
Alternatively, you can observe the meeting remotely by clicking on the ‘view the 
webcast’ link provided on the meeting page of the website. 
 
If you wish to attend a meeting and ask a question or present a petition, you must 
submit the question/petition in writing by 9.00 a.m. at least 2 clear working days in 
advance of the date of the meeting, by email to the following address: 
committee@sheffield.gov.uk.  
 
In order to ensure safe access and to protect all attendees, you will be 
recommended to wear a face covering (unless you have an exemption) at all times 
within the venue. Please do not attend the meeting if you have COVID-19 symptoms. 
It is also recommended that you undertake a Covid-19 Rapid Lateral Flow Test 
within two days of the meeting.   
 
If you require any further information please email committee@sheffield.gov.uk. 
 

FACILITIES 
 
There are public toilets available, with wheelchair access, on the ground floor of the 
Town Hall. Induction loop facilities are available in meeting rooms. Access for people 
with mobility difficulties can be obtained through the ramp on the side to the main 
Town Hall entrance. 
 

https://democracy.sheffield.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
mailto:committee@sheffield.gov.uk
mailto:committee@sheffield.gov.uk


 

 

 
CHARITY TRUSTEE SUB-COMMITTEE AGENDA 

21 MARCH 2023 
 

Order of Business 
  
1.   Welcome and Housekeeping  
 The Chair to welcome attendees to the meeting and outline 

basic housekeeping and fire safety arrangements. 
 

 

 
2.   Apologies for Absence  
  
3.   Exclusion of Press and Public  
 To identify items where resolutions may be moved to 

exclude the press and public 
 

 

 
4.   Declarations of Interest (Pages 5 - 8) 
 Members to declare any interests they have in the business 

to be considered at the meeting 
 

 

 
5.   Minutes of Previous Meeting (Pages 9 - 12) 
 To approve the minutes of the last meeting of the Sub-

Committee held on 26 January, 2023. 
 

 

 
6.   Public Questions and Petitions  
 To receive any questions or petitions from members of the 

public 
 

 

 
7.   Parks Tennis Procurement and Hillsborough Activity 

Hub 
(Pages 13 - 220) 

 Report of the Executive Director, Operational Services 
 

 
 
8.   Charity Accounts (Pages 221 - 

430) 
 Report of Director of Finance and Commercial Services 

 
 

 
 *(NOTE: Appendices 3, 4, 8, 10 and 11 to the report at 

item 7 in the above agenda are not available to the 
public and press because they contain exempt 
information described in paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A 
to the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended) 

 

 
 



 1 

ADVICE TO MEMBERS ON DECLARING INTERESTS AT MEETINGS 
 
If you are present at a meeting of the Council, of its Policy Committees, or of any 
committee, sub-committee, joint committee, or joint sub-committee of the authority, 
and you have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest (DPI) relating to any business that 
will be considered at the meeting, you must not:  
 
• participate in any discussion of the business at the meeting, or if you become 

aware of your Disclosable Pecuniary Interest during the meeting, participate 
further in any discussion of the business, or  

• participate in any vote or further vote taken on the matter at the meeting.  

These prohibitions apply to any form of participation, including speaking as a 
member of the public. 

You must: 
 
• leave the room (in accordance with the Members’ Code of Conduct) 
• make a verbal declaration of the existence and nature of any DPI at any 

meeting at which you are present at which an item of business which affects or 
relates to the subject matter of that interest is under consideration, at or before 
the consideration of the item of business or as soon as the interest becomes 
apparent. 

• declare it to the meeting and notify the Council’s Monitoring Officer within 28 
days, if the DPI is not already registered. 

 
If you have any of the following pecuniary interests, they are your disclosable 
pecuniary interests under the new national rules. You have a pecuniary interest if 
you, or your spouse or civil partner, have a pecuniary interest.  
 
• Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit or gain, 

which you, or your spouse or civil partner undertakes. 
 

• Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from your 
council or authority) made or provided within the relevant period* in respect of 
any expenses incurred by you in carrying out duties as a member, or towards 
your election expenses. This includes any payment or financial benefit from a 
trade union within the meaning of the Trade Union and Labour Relations 
(Consolidation) Act 1992.  
 
*The relevant period is the 12 months ending on the day when you tell the 
Monitoring Officer about your disclosable pecuniary interests. 

 
• Any contract which is made between you, or your spouse or your civil partner (or 

a body in which you, or your spouse or your civil partner, has a beneficial 
interest) and your council or authority –  
 
- under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be 

executed; and  
- which has not been fully discharged. 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



 2 

 
• Any beneficial interest in land which you, or your spouse or your civil partner, 

have and which is within the area of your council or authority. 
 
• Any licence (alone or jointly with others) which you, or your spouse or your civil 

partner, holds to occupy land in the area of your council or authority for a month 
or longer. 
 

• Any tenancy where (to your knowledge) – 
- the landlord is your council or authority; and  
- the tenant is a body in which you, or your spouse or your civil partner, has a 

beneficial interest. 
 
• Any beneficial interest which you, or your spouse or your civil partner has in 

securities of a body where -  
 

(a)  that body (to your knowledge) has a place of business or land in the area of 
your council or authority; and  
 

(b)  either - 
- the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one 

hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body; or  
- if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total nominal 

value of the shares of any one class in which you, or your spouse or your 
civil partner, has a beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the total 
issued share capital of that class. 

If you attend a meeting at which any item of business is to be considered and you 
are aware that you have a personal interest in the matter which does not amount to 
a DPI, you must make verbal declaration of the existence and nature of that interest 
at or before the consideration of the item of business or as soon as the interest 
becomes apparent. You should leave the room if your continued presence is 
incompatible with the 7 Principles of Public Life (selflessness; integrity; objectivity; 
accountability; openness; honesty; and leadership).  

You have a personal interest where – 

• a decision in relation to that business might reasonably be regarded as affecting 
the well-being or financial standing (including interests in land and easements 
over land) of you or a member of your family or a person or an organisation with 
whom you have a close association to a greater extent than it would affect the 
majority of the Council Tax payers, ratepayers or inhabitants of the ward or 
electoral area for which you have been elected or otherwise of the Authority’s 
administrative area, or 
 

• it relates to or is likely to affect any of the interests that are defined as DPIs but 
are in respect of a member of your family (other than a partner) or a person with 
whom you have a close association. 

 

Page 6



 3 

Guidance on declarations of interest, incorporating regulations published by the 
Government in relation to Disclosable Pecuniary Interests, has been circulated to 
you previously. 
 
You should identify any potential interest you may have relating to business to be 
considered at the meeting. This will help you and anyone that you ask for advice to 
fully consider all the circumstances before deciding what action you should take. 
 
In certain circumstances the Council may grant a dispensation to permit a Member 
to take part in the business of the Authority even if the member has a Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interest relating to that business.  

To obtain a dispensation, you must write to the Monitoring Officer at least 48 hours 
before the meeting in question, explaining why a dispensation is sought and 
desirable, and specifying the period of time for which it is sought.  The Monitoring 
Officer may consult with the Independent Person or the Council’s Standards 
Committee in relation to a request for dispensation. 

Further advice can be obtained from David Hollis, Interim Director of Legal and 
Governance by emailing david.hollis@sheffield.gov.uk. 
 
 

Page 7

mailto:david.hollis@sheffield.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8



S H E F F I E L D    C I T Y     C O U N C I L 
 

Charity Trustee Sub-Committee 
 

Meeting held 26 January 2023 
 
PRESENT: Councillors Bryan Lodge (Chair), Richard Williams (Deputy Chair), 

Douglas Johnson (Group Spokesperson), Julie Grocutt and Paul Wood 
(Substitute Member) 
 

 
  
1.   
 

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

1.1 Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Dawn Dale. 
  

1.2 Councillor Paul Wood acted as substitute for Councillor Dawn Dale. 
  
2.   
 

EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 

2.1 It was noted that the appendix 1 and 2 to item 7 on the agenda are not 
available to the public or press because they contains exempt information. If 
Members wish to discuss the information in the appendices, the Committee 
will ask the members of the public and press to kindly leave for that part of 
the meeting and the webcast will be paused. 

  
3.   
 

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

3.1 There were no declarations of interest. 
  
4.   
 

MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING 
 

4.1 The minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 25 October 2022 were 
approved as a correct record. 
 

4.2 Officers agreed to confirm if Oxley Park should be featured in the list of 
charity sites in the City. 

  
5.   
 

PUBLIC QUESTIONS AND PETITIONS 
 

5.1 There were no public questions or petitions. 
  
6.   
 

THE CENTRE IN THE PARK CAFE, NORFOLK PARK HERITAGE PARK 
 

6.1 The Executive Director, Operational Services submitted a report seeking the 
approval of the Charity Sub Committee acting as Charity Trustee of Norfolk Park 
(Registered Charity Number 1040354) (“the Charity”) to the following proposals: 
 
1. to declare Norfolk Park Cafe (“the Property”) surplus to the requirements of the 
Charity; and 
 
2. to grant a new lease of the Property to Julie Collins and Kelsey Booth on the 

Page 9

Agenda Item 5



Meeting of the Charity Trustee Sub-Committee 26.01.2023 

Page 2 of 3 
 

terms set out in the Appendices to this report after consideration of the contents of 
the Qualified Surveyor’s Report and satisfying itself that the proposed terms are 
the best that can be reasonably obtained in the circumstances. 

  
6.2 RESOLVED: That Charity Trustee Sub-Committee:- 

 
 1. approves the lease of the subject property to the new tenant and the offer of an 

interim tenancy at will, based on the terms set out in this report; and 
 
2. on consideration of the commercial terms and the Qualified Surveyor’s 
Report (set out in attached Appendices), agrees that the Trustees are 
satisfied that the proposed terms are the best that can be reasonably 
obtained in the circumstances. 
 
(NOTE: The result of the vote on the resolution was FOR - 4 Members; AGAINST 
- 1 Member.  In voting against the resolution Councillor Johnson indicated that he 
was supportive of the offer of a tenancy at will).   

  
6.3 Reasons for Decision 
  
6.3.1 The proposal to grant a further lease of this café facility: 

 
• safeguards the café facility at Norfolk Park for the short term 
• secures a significantly increased income stream by way of rent and contribution 
to running costs of the CITP 
• enhances the attractiveness of the park as a valuable asset for use by the 
community 
• enables the demised property to be occupied for the purposes of the charitable 
objects of the Charity 
• Complies with the provisos contained within the power granted to the Trustee by 
the Scheme and with the statutory provisions contained within the Act and further 
with the requirements of the Charity Commission. 

  
6.4 Alternatives Considered and Rejected 
  
6.4.1 It is considered that there are no realistic options here given that the café will 

reside within the existing CITP building. 
 
  
7.   
 

ROSE GARDEN CAFÉ BUILDING, GRAVES PARK VERBAL UPDATE 
 

7.1 The Head of Facilities Management gave a verbal update in respect of the Rose 
Garden Café Building, Graves Park.   
 
He confirmed that, following close work with the operator, it had been agreed that 
the cafe could re-open as a take-away with limited seating.  The café had re-
opened just before Christmas. A report on the results of the Council’s survey of the 
building would be produced shortly and submitted to a future meeting of this Sub-
Committee.  The Friends group had commissioned their own survey and a 
meeting between officers and the Friends group was planned for 24 February to 

Page 10



Meeting of the Charity Trustee Sub-Committee 26.01.2023 

Page 3 of 3 
 

discuss the surveys findings.  
 
The Sub-Committee noted the update. 

  

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 12



 

Policy Committee Report                                                        April 2022 

 

 
 

Report to Policy Committee - 
 
Author/Lead Officer of Report: Jo Pearce – 
Service Manager 
 
Email:  jo.pearce@sheffield.gov.uk 

 
Report of: 
 

Lisa Firth, Director of Parks, Leisure and Libraries  

Report to: 
 

Charity Trustee Sub Committee Policy Committee  

Date of Decision: 
 

21 March 2023 

Subject: Sheffield Parks Tennis Procurement 
 
 

 
Has an Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) been undertaken? Yes X No   
 
If YES, what EIA reference number has it been given?   (Insert reference number) 

Has appropriate consultation taken place? Yes X No   
 
Has a Climate Impact Assessment (CIA) been undertaken? Yes X No   
 
 
Does the report contain confidential or exempt information? Yes Y No   
 
If YES, give details as to whether the exemption applies to the full report / part of the 
report and/or appendices and complete below:- 
 
Exemption applies to the following appendices; 
 
Appendix 3 - Courtside Design CAD visuals - CLOSED 
Appendix 4 – Financial Summary – CLOSED 
Appendix 8 – Proposed Lease Terms – CLOSED 
Appendix 10 - QSR Report - CLOSED  
Appendix 11 – Confidential Legal Report – CLOSED 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Purpose of Report: 
 
To report back with recommendations on the contract award following the conclusion of 
the procurement for a preferred provider to manage Sheffield’s parks tennis programme, 
which in addition to the existing tennis court management includes the addition of an 
Activity Hub to the model, to provide additional financial security to the programme and 
further increase health and wellbeing outcomes. 
 
To gain approval for any associated disposals of land which may be necessary, and for 
officers to be authorised to obtain any consents or approvals required and to be further 
authorised to publish any notices required under the Local Government Act 1972 and the 
Charities Act 2011;  

Page 13

Agenda Item 7



 

Page 2 of 17 

 
To gain approval for the proposed City Council funding contribution of up to £180,000 (of 
prudential borrowing) towards the development of the Activity Hub at Hillsborough Park; 
and the allocation of Section 106 funds of up to £183,000 for the development of the multi-
use games facilities at Hillsborough Park, as described in the report. 
 

 
Recommendations: 
 
The Charity Trustee Sub Committee Policy Committee is recommended to: 
 

1. Note and endorse the contents of the report 
2. Approve the award of the contract to the preferred supplier 
3. Approve the use of the Prudential Borrowing and Section 106 money to support the 

project. 
4. To authorise the giving of notices under the Local Government Act 1972 and the 

Charities Act 2011 prior to the disposal of any of the properties required for the 
delivery of the project 

5. Subject to the outcome of recommendation 4, to approve the grant of leases of the 
properties referred to in the body of the report to the preferred supplier on the 
terms set out in the Appendices to this report after consideration of the contents of 
the Qualified Surveyor’s Report and satisfying itself that the proposed terms are 
the best that can be reasonably obtained in the circumstances.  

 
 
Background Papers: 
 
Parks Tennis Procurement: Sheffield City Council - Decision - Parks Tennis 
Procurement 
 
Appendix 1 – Operating Specification 
Appendix 2 - Performance Specification 
Appendix 3 - Courtside Design CAD visuals - CLOSED 
Appendix 4 – Financial Summary - CLOSED 
Appendix 5 – Sheffield Company Parent Guarantee 
Appendix 6 – Grant Funding Agreement Terms 
Appendix 7 – Draft Lease Agreement 
Appendix 8 – Proposed Lease Terms – CLOSED 
Appendix 9 – Consultation Insight 
Appendix 10 - QSR Report - CLOSED  
Appendix 11 – Confidential Legal Report – CLOSED 
Appendix 12 – Site Plans 
Appendix 13 – Performance Insight 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 14

https://democracy.sheffield.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID=3069
https://democracy.sheffield.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID=3069


 

Page 3 of 17 

Lead Officer to complete:- 
 

Finance:  Kerry Darlow 

Legal:  David Sellars  

Equalities & Consultation: Annemarie Johnston 

1 I have consulted the relevant departments 
in respect of any relevant implications 
indicated on the Statutory and Council 
Policy Checklist, and comments have 
been incorporated / additional forms 
completed / EIA completed, where 
required. 

Climate:  Jessica Ricks 

 Legal, financial/commercial and equalities implications must be included within the report and 
the name of the officer consulted must be included above. 

2 SLB member who approved 
submission: 

Ajman Ali, Executive Director – Operational 
Services 

3 Committee Chair consulted:  Cllr Brian Lodge, Chair of the Charity Trustee Sub 
Policy Committee 

4 I confirm that all necessary approval has been obtained in respect of the implications indicated 
on the Statutory and Council Policy Checklist and that the report has been approved for 
submission to the Committee by the SLB member indicated at 2.  In addition, any additional 
forms have been completed and signed off as required at 1.  

 Lead Officer Name: 
Jo Pearce 

Job Title:  
Service Manager, Business & Partnerships (Parks 
& Countryside Service) 

 

 Date: 9 March 2023 

 
  

Page 15



 

Page 4 of 17 

  
1. PROPOSAL  
  
1.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Background 
 
A report was taken to the Cooperative Executive in April 2022.  The purpose of the 
report was to gain approval to go out to tender for a Sheffield Parks Tennis provider 
to develop and manage a new Activity Hub at Hillsborough Park, manage the 
existing 6 Parks Tennis sites and manage 2 new Parks Tennis court sites when 
these are developed.  The report outlined the key benefits of the project on the basis 
that the introduction of an Activity Hub at Hillsborough Park would provide a 
financially sustainable solution to the city-wide parks tennis programme and the 
enhancement of the existing parks tennis programme would lead to greater health 
outcomes for a wider audience. 
 
The Co-operative Executive resolved to approve the proposed commissioning of a 
partner to further develop, manage and sustain the Parks Tennis Programme Hub 
and Spoke Model, and; 
 

• Delegated authority to the Director of Culture and Environment, in 
consultation with the Director of Legal and Governance and the Director of 
Finance and Commercial Services, to approve the procurement strategy; 

  
• Require the Director of Culture and Environment to undertake the 

procurement, and to report back, at the conclusion of the procurement, with 
recommendations on: 
a.    the award of the contract; and 
b.    any associated disposal of land which may be necessary, and any 

consents or approvals required; and the proposed City Council funding 
contribution of up to £180,000 (of prudential borrowing) towards the 
development of the Activity Hub at Hillsborough Park; and the allocation 
of Section 106 funds of up to £183,000 for the development of the 
facilities at Hillsborough Park, as described in the report. 

 
Development and Tennis Proposals 
 
As part of the procurement and tender process the Council has developed both an 
Operating and Performance specification for the Activity Hub build and spokes 
Tennis Concession arrangements these can be found in Appendix 1 and Appendix 2. 
The specifications were developed following significant consultation and ongoing 
stakeholder engagement. 
 
The development is required to comply with all statutory and regulatory 
requirements, such as: 
 

• Planning Permission 
• Building Regulations 
• Health and Safety 
• Environmental and Sustainability considerations 
• CDM 2015 including Designers Risk Assessment 

 

Page 16



 

Page 5 of 17 

 
1.2.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
The scope of the Activity Hub project is to deliver: A high-quality multi sports activity 
hub focused around:  
 

• Development of the Multi Use Games Area (MUGA) and Tennis Courts   
• A Catering/ Kiosk Opportunity  
• Wider recreational facilities  
• An accessible toilet for Park use.  
• Ongoing maintenance, servicing and lifecycle requirements  

 
Specific performance outputs highlighted were: 
 

• One Resurfaced and redesigned multi-use games area (for football, 
basketball, tennis, netball and more) with low-spill LED lighting.  

• Provide a minimum of three full-sized resurfaced and remarked tennis courts 
with low-spill LED lighting on 8m posts.  Padel Tennis to be strongly 
considered.  

• One new catering facility created with associated accessible toilets and 
kitchen subject to planning and building regulations permission which will 
need to be sought for this building.  

• The delivery of wider and diverse activities 
 
Rigorous and national standards for the site and development were set for: 
 

• The Tennis Court upgrade 
• Provision for wider activities including but not limited to football, basketball, 

netball and Padel tennis 
• Provision for the accommodation on site including the Café, kitchen and 

stores, toilets and waste recycling requirements 
• Fencing around the MUGA and required access provisions 
• Low spill, efficient LED Lighting  
• Sports benching 
• Drainage and site Grounds Maintenance requirements 
• Performance specification for the build including but not limited to thermal 

performance, a minimum 100-year lifespan and acoustic performance 
• Upgrade to Park infrastructure including Tarmac footpaths 

 
The bidder has proposed the following design at the hub see (closed) Appendix 3 
Hillsborough CAD visuals, appended, the final design will be dependent on planning 
requirements. 
 
The full Performance Specification can be found at Appendix 2. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 17



 

Page 6 of 17 

1.2.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Spokes Tennis and MUGA Operating Concession specification 
 
The Operating Specification (see Appendix 1) provides the detail of the Council’s 
requirements in the following areas: 

1. Introduction 
2. Activity Hub requirements  
3. Building and External Development Performance Standards 
4. Pricing Requirements including free to use MUGA 
5. Programming Requirements 
6. Bookings Policy and Booking Systems 
7. Customer Service Requirements 
8. Marketing and Promotion 
9. Stakeholder Engagement 
10. Maintenance Obligations 
11. Staffing Requirements 
12. Health and Safety 
13. Major Incidents 
14. Reporting Requirements & Contract Management 

 
The Concession project scope includes: 
 
• Make improvements to the tennis facilities 

o tennis court improvements on a minimum of three courts to The Lawn 
Tennis Association (LTA) and Sport England (SE) standards  

o introduction of efficient low spill LED lighting  
o Meet the LTA specification for community use  
o Work with other partners on the site to deliver pre-existing and new on-site 

events such as Tramlines and concerts etc. 
o Consider viability of introducing padel tennis in the Activity Hub 

 
• Carry out a full upgrade and resurfacing to the multi-use games area 

 
• Surfacing and lining appropriate for football, basketball, tennis, netball and other 

activities, designed within LTA, SE and Football Foundation (FF) guidelines. 
MUGA line marking to include a range of sports as per Sport England Guidance.   

 
• Create accessible welfare facilities, to be suitable for the number of anticipated 

daily visitors based on the overall proposal. A minimum provision should include 
one accessible female and one accessible male toilet.  
 

• Create accessible catering facilities providing a variety of food and beverage 
menu options, including special dietary choices, and to be able to accommodate 
the number of anticipated daily visitors. Both indoor and outdoor seating should 
be made available to customers. 
 

• Create a hub of recreational activities which will cater to a range of audiences, 
with both a paid for and free to use offer. 
 

• Ensure gate entry points to the multi-use games area and tennis courts are 
accessible for adapted bikes. 

 

Page 18



 

Page 7 of 17 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1.2.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

• Ensure the activity hub, connects coherently with the ‘Pump Track facility’ 
adjacent to the hub to facilitate access by Cycling for All users, pedestrians and 
cyclists. 
 

• Ensure the activity hub enables the services and operations offered by Cycling 
for All, which currently provides their main service offer from the existing multi-
use games area space.    
 

• Cycle parking to be provided. 
 
• Information/signage proposal to assist use and navigation of the park for 

members of the public.  
 

Customer Pricing requirements 
 
• The Operator is to comply with the Council’s Pricing Policy Requirements 

detailing maximum pricing; 

TENNIS AND MUGA NON-CARD 
HOLDERS 

PLUS CARD loyalty 
scheme 

(All players must have a 
Plus Card) 

CASUAL COURT HIRE 
 
Per hour, per court (not per 
person) 
Adult 
Junior 
COACHING 
Per hour, per person 
Adult 
Junior 

 
 
 
 
£6.00 
£3.00 
 
 
£5.00 
£4.00 

 
 
 
 
£4.20 
£2.10 
 
 
£3.50 
£2.80 

 
Courts free at all times 

 
Concord Park 

 
Courts free to use at specific 
times as determined by the 
Council 

 
High Hazels Park 
Hollinsend Park 
Ecclesfield 

 
MUGA 

 
Free to use at all times 

        

• All price increases shall be agreed in writing with the Council in advance of any 
price increases being implemented.  The Council will retain absolute discretion on 
all prices. 

 
• The Operator can offer a loyalty/membership, such as the Sheffield Plus Card 

scheme, as part of their pricing policy, however, pay and play prices must also be 
offered. The Provider can offer pricing promotions to encourage increased use at 
all periods of the day. 

Page 19



 

Page 8 of 17 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1.3 

  
• The Operators Pricing Policy shall promote the principles of equality of access 

and sustainability while meeting the agreed participation targets and performance 
standards. Usage and attendance by all sections of the wider and local 
community shall be encouraged through the Provider's Pricing Policy to support 
delivery of the Council’s strategic outcomes.  

 
The Council has fully considered the requirements of the communities, stakeholders 
and the site when developing its high quality and sustainable specification for the 
Activity Hub and Sheffield wide Tennis provision. 

The full operating specification can be found at Appendix 1 
 
Procurement 
 
As detailed and in accordance with the original report and Procurement Strategy a 
tender opportunity was placed on the Government’s Find a Tender Service on 15 

September 2022 seeking proposals under the Concession Contracts Regulations 
2016 from prospective operators to manage Sheffield’s parks tennis programme and 
develop the site of the Activity Hub at Hillsborough Park including the tennis 
provision currently there and within the footprint of the existing site. 
 
In order to be a true concession contract under the Regulations there has to be a 
transfer of risk by the grantor of the concession, the operator in turn has to have the 
right to exploit the works or services and this shall always imply an operating risk of 
economic nature involving the possibility that it will not recoup the investments made 
and the costs incurred in operating those works or services. On the basis of the 
response and subsequent negotiation the award would constitute the formation of a 
Concession Contract under the regulations. 
 
A number of parties expressed an initial interest in the tender and all but one of 
these potential bidders decided not to submit a bid. On this basis we have worked 
with the one potential bidder through the Negotiated procedure. The other interested 
parties ruled themselves out on the basis of being specialist in some but not all of the 
requirements. 
 
Rigorous evaluation of the bid has been undertaken by an evaluation team 
represented across the Client area, Capital Delivery Service, Legal Services internal 
and external, Property Services, Commercial and Finance. Areas of the bid identified 
through evaluation and warranting further clarification and negotiation have been 
progressed through the designated process to satisfactory conclusions.  
 
Following negotiations final proposals were received on 10 February 2023. 
Submissions throughout the Procurement process were evaluated on the basis of 
the most economically advantageous tender to the Council with the following 
evaluation criteria; 
 
Quality: 40% 
Price: 30% 
Commercial Risk: 30% 
 

Page 20



 

Page 9 of 17 

The Commercial offer to the Council comprises contribution to the sinking fund, 
repayment the Council loan with Interest, a Concession payment to the Council and 
a Turnover Fee payable on turnover sums above a financial 
 
Funding for the Capex element is covered utilising a combination of grants and loans 
from key supporting organisations such as, The Council, The Lawn Tennis 
Association, Sport England and others. The bidder is providing funding in its own 
right and in addition is underwriting any shortfall in Capex costs should this be the 
case; however, the build is currently on a fixed price model. The repayment of third-
party loans is fully covered in the financial modelling. Further detail can be found in 
the financial summary at (closed) Appendix 4. 
 
The contractual agreement comprises the Concession agreement, the Lease 
agreements that are required, a Grant Funding agreement and the Council’s Loan 
agreement all of which cover the Councils legal and commercial position and 
requirements. 
 
The documents supporting the arrangements can be found in Appendices 6-8 
 
At the time of writing the supporting legal documents were not in final draft stage, a 
number of minor drafting changes are required to the Concession terms following the 
final negotiation round.  
 
The Lease can only be fully drafted following a successful Planning application and 
the correct application of Charity Law to four affected disposals – see Property 
section. See draft lease at Appendix 7. 
 
The Loan agreement is in basic form at the present time detailing the term for the 
Loan and interest rates, the agreement still requires drafting, but the amount, interest 
and repayment schedule has been accepted by the operator. 
 
Given the investment requirement and the grant and loan funding conditions of the 
third parties and the Council and taking all this into account has therefore informed 
the contract length which is recommended to be up to 25 years. To cover costs and 
make the repayments, a minimum guaranteed term is agreed in principal by the 
parties as being 15 years with a 24-month notice period. This information is also a 
requirement for the justification under Concession Contracts Regulations of 
agreements in excess of 5-year duration. 

 
 

 

  
2. HOW DOES THIS DECISION CONTRIBUTE ? 
  
2.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Investment in the parks tennis programme will improve financial viability and long-
term sustainability of the services provided across our parks. 
 
This proposal aligns with the One Year Plan; Communities and Neighbourhoods 
theme: 
 
Every community in Sheffield should be a great place to live, with excellent local 
services, access to high quality green spaces, and a great local centre; where 
everyone has a home they are proud of, that suits their needs, and that supports 

Page 21



 

Page 10 of 17 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

their health; where everyone feels safe and is able to live without fear of prejudice or 
discrimination; where people get along and everyone can play a full part in the life of 
their local area, and have an expectation of health, wellbeing and happiness. 
 
This proposal will support Parks and Countryside’s aspiration for Hillsborough Park 
to achieve Green Flag status and will further strengthen the quality and offer for local 
people and other visitors. 
 
This proposal will contribute to a reduction in health inequalities and support wider 
public health outcomes. Enhancement of sport and recreational facilities that appeal 
to a wider range of people, including women and girls. This safe and accessible 
facility will provide an on-site presence that will enable and facilitate a variety of use 
and targeted users.   
 
This proposal will contribute to the Sheffield Sport and Leisure Strategy which is 
currently in development, and city wide consultation (see 3.3) has highlighted the 
importance of improvements to multi-use recreational spaces in the outdoors. 
 
 

  
3. HAS THERE BEEN ANY CONSULTATION? 

 
  
3.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Local Consultation - in relation to the Activity Hub at Hillsborough Park 
  
Consultation regarding this project and the wider development of Hillsborough Park 
began with stakeholders around February 2021. Further Consultation was carried 
out between April and September 2021 and included both an online survey and a 
virtual stakeholder session which has resulted in a rich seam of information to 
support the development of a Forward Plan for Hillsborough Park and underpin an 
application for Green Flag status during 2022.  
 
The Forward Plan online consultation had 412 responses and identified key themes 
and local priorities for investment across the site, several of which are relevant to this 
project. Interestingly 42% of respondents didn’t know about the quality of the tennis 
courts which suggests that in their current state they are not heavily used. Of those 
that said they were poor or very poor they also commented that the ‘tennis courts 
need improvement’, ‘better lights on the tennis courts’, ‘the tennis courts need 
updating as the floor is very worn’ and the ‘tennis courts need tidying up.’ Similarly 
41% of respondents were not able to comment on the quality of the MUGA provision 
and 17% felt that it was ‘poor’ or ‘very poor’ with mention of the dangerous surface. 
When questioned about improving the tennis and MUGA facilities in the Park 
respondents ranked this project in 5th position and the opportunity to try out new 
sports such as padel tennis, pétanque and adventure golf in 6th position. 
 
The projects identified as higher priority: 1) toilet provision in the Park, 2) a Changing 
Spaces toilet, 3)a Park Shelter and 4) improved run routes, with the exception of the 
Park Shelter, these other projects have either been delivered or in the process of 
being delivered, which brings the need for recreational improvements and associated 
activities close to the top of the list. 
  

Page 22



 

Page 11 of 17 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Specific consultation related to the development of the Activity Hub was carried out 
in 2022, see Appendix 9 for further detail. The consultation was carried out over 
Sheffield City Councils online engagement platform, Citizenspace, and 607 people 
responded. There was significant support to the proposed changes with 
approximately 4:1 in favour of the proposal, as well as resistance to some of the 
elements, a key concern for some related to the reduction in size of the multi-use 
games area.   
 
The feedback gained through both consultations as well as insight from partners 
such as Sport England, Basketball England and the Football Foundation around 
design principles, was used in the development of the performance and operating 
specifications. Included within the specification was the need for;  
 

• Continued free use of the multi-use games area  
• Improvements to the recreational facilities  
• Welfare and catering facilities  
• Facilities which are complementary to other activities/events in the park 
• A space which is designed in a way which could accommodate multiple users 

and activities and attract target audiences who are often discouraged by 
traditional multi-use games activities and spaces i.e. Make Space for Girls 

•  
We continue to have conversations with key stakeholders in the park including 
Cycling for All, local Members, the Friends of Group, Age UK, other license holders 
and event organisers as the project progresses. 
 
There are two stakeholders that are directly impacted by this proposal at an 
operational level; Cycling for All and Tramlines. Recent discussions with these two 
key organisations have focused on ensuring that their needs are accommodated 
within the re-design of the proposed activity hub space. Discussions have been 
constructive, and we continue to work together with all stakeholders as this project 
develops and would continue do so in advance of any planning applications. 
 
Local Consultation – in relation to the 8 spoke sites  
 
Specific consultation has been undertaken at the two sites that are currently being 
improved for the re-provision of tennis at Hollinsend Park and Ecclesfield Park. At 
Ecclesfield Park there was a full ‘improvements and priorities’ survey for the site 
which received 274 responses, with 204 respondents wishing to see tennis courts re-
provision and MUGA improvements. 
 
At Hollinsend Park, full consultation was undertaken when the site master plan was 
developed in 2008, this showed the refurbishment of the tennis courts as a key 
priority. The Friends group have been fully engaged with the delivery of the current 
refurbishment project, and site notices have informed local communities including 
progress updates (in this instance funding was specific to the goal of tennis court 
renewal).  
 
For all the outdoor tennis courts sites that form part of this key site stakeholders 
have been informed about the proposed changes to the tennis management 
arrangements. The impact of the proposed changes for these ‘spokes’ is considered 
to be positive as the arrangement will strengthen the coaching opportunities at these 

Page 23



 

Page 12 of 17 

 
 
 
3.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3.4 

sites, and the sinking fund component will provide funding over the time period of the 
contract for infrastructure renewal investment. 
 
Sheffield Sport and Leisure Strategy Consultation 
 
A consultation was carried out by Sheffield Council in 2022 to better understand how 
our sport and leisure assets and services can be re-shaped to help deliver the 
outcomes in the Move More Plan and the City's wider strategic priorities. We know 
for example, that many of our sport and leisure facilities require investment and 
modernisation to better meet the needs of our communities and that it is easier to be 
active in some communities in Sheffield than in others.  
 
We want to address this inequality and ensure our indoor and outdoor facilities are 
modern, welcoming and inclusive and that our services create opportunities and 
encourage more people to be more active, more often in an equitable way.  
 
The key points from the consultation with relevance to the parks tennis programme 
include; 
 

- appetite for investment in facilities and services which support the delivery of 
sport and physical activity 

- desire for additional investment in outdoor activity spaces which provide 
opportunities for low-cost activities on the doorstep 

- recognition that indoor and outdoor spaces should be places that people want 
to visit for multiple reasons. Investment should support the development of 
facilities as activity hubs by creating spaces which are multi-purpose 
destinations in their own right 

- the notable shifts in participation patterns observed during the Covid-19 
pandemic and people’s appetite for exercising in the outdoors 

- Small scale investment which would reinstate derelict or disused facilities 
would be welcomed 

 
Better Parks Consultation 
 
In 2018 the Parks and Countryside Service carried out an online citizen space 
consultation, framed around the Better Parks initiative. The key themes that came 
through this consultation, which confirmed previous research highlighted within the 
Outdoor City Strategy, were the need for toilets and café facilities to really enhance 
and support people to access and enjoy our Parks, Woodlands and Green Spaces. 
 
This consultation has driven the approach taken for the Better Parks initiative, 
meaning that we continue to look for opportunities to create or enhance these types 
of facilities, whilst in a financially sustainable way, in partnership with others.  For the 
Activity Hub at Hillsborough, we can see that the tennis courts and multi-use games 
area alone, won’t create that hub of provision required, whereas with the introduction 
of toilets and other welfare facilities, this will make the opportunity more appealing 
and accessible to a range of audiences. 
 

  
4. RISK ANALYSIS AND IMPLICATIONS OF THE DECISION 
  
4.1 Equality Implications 

Page 24



 

Page 13 of 17 

  
 
 

Hillsborough, Hollinsend and Ecclesfield where the most significant facility 
improvements will be seen, are all in the top 30% Indices of Multiple Deprivation 
across Sheffield with high levels of inactivity and obesity in children and adults.   
  
This proposal will help to improve the health and wellbeing of groups within these 
areas who are experiencing poorer outcomes. The introduction of accessible welfare 
facilities will provide greater access for disabled people. The range of improved 
facilities alongside targeted community engagement programmes, will support a 
reduction in health inequalities with focus on key groups such as; women and girls, 
people on lower incomes, children and older people, disabled people and people 
from Black, Asian and minority ethnic backgrounds.  
 

  
4.2 Financial and Commercial Implications 
  
 
 
 

Sheffield City Councils direct financial contribution to the project includes: 
• £183,000 of Section 106 funding 
• Up to £180,000 funding from prudential borrowing 

 
The preferred supplier will fund all remaining capital investment and generate a 
sufficient return to: 

• Repay the prudential borrowing including interest 
• Contribute to project lifecycle costs via a sinking fund 
• Pay a revenue contribution to SCC, which will be allocated to, the 

Hillsborough Park business unit for the Hub and other parks business 
units for Parks Tennis in other locations.  This income will be included 
in the parks charities accounts. 

 
Any funding gap is to be covered by the operator and a Parent Company Guarantee 
will be completed for assurance, see Appendix 5. 
 
The Activity Hub is also expected to increase the usage of the adjacent car park, 
which will generate a further revenue benefit to The Hillsborough Park Charitable 
Trust. 
 
The loan term is 15 years and interest will be payable annually (5%).  This will be 
covered by a separate loan agreement. 
 
Financial due diligence including background checks on the financial health of the 
preferred supplier and detailed analysis of the robustness of capital and revenue 
budget assumptions, contained in the bid, has been undertaken to demonstrate that 
the proposal should meet the expectations detailed above. Further detail on the 
financial summary can be found at Appendix 4. 
 

  
4.3 Legal Implications 
  
 The Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions ) Act 1976 permits the Council to 

provide such recreational facilities as it thinks fit which includes tennis courts and a 
wide variety of outdoor and indoor facilities and associated provision. The power is 
broad and sufficient for the purpose of this proposal. 

Page 25



 

Page 14 of 17 

 
However, if it were necessary the Council could use its ancillary powers under s111 
Local Government act 1972 or its ‘General Power of Competence’ under s.1 of 
Localism Act 2011.  
 
The procurement must comply with domestic procurement law, including the relevant 
contracts regulations, and the Council’s own standing orders and the Council must 
also ensure that the proposals are Subsidy Control compliant.   
 
Each of the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 and the Concession Contracts 
Regulations 2016 would require the Council to treat providers equally and without 
discrimination, to act in a transparent and proportionate manner, and to prevent or 
eliminate conflicts of interest.   
 
The sites that make up the Activity Hub at Hillsborough Park and the spoke sites 
across various city parks are a mixture of charitable and non-charitable land. In all 
cases the proposal is that the use and occupation of sites by the preferred supplier 
will be regulated by way leasehold interests for up to 25 years. The lease term was 
addressed as part of the procurement strategy, taking into consideration the 
minimum term required for the relevant funder (i.e. The Lawn Tennis Association) 
whilst also ensuring a sufficient length of term for the partner to secure its required 
return on investment. 
  
In the case of the non-charitable land the disposal of the land will be pursuant to the 
best consideration requirements of section 123 of the Local Government Act 1972.  
 
In respect of the land that is held on charitable trusts the Council as charity trustee 
must comply with the restrictions on any disposition contained in the relevant 
provisions of the Charities Act 2011. These contain a general obligation to achieve 
the best price that can be reasonably obtained on any disposal but also contains a 
number of specific obligations as detailed below. 
 
Section 120 of the Charities Act 2011 contains an obligation on the trustee to obtain 
and consider advice from a person having the requisite ability and practical 
experience to provide them with competent advice on the proposed disposition who 
is instructed by the charity trustee and acting exclusively for the Charity. A report 
compliant with the requirements of section 120 has been obtained in respect of each 
charitable site and is attached to this report at Appendix 10. 
 
Where the land is held for specific charitable purposes (designated land) and the 
proposed lease as in the case will be for a term in excess of two years under s121 of 
the Charities Act 2011 the lease cannot be entered into until public notice has been 
given of the proposed letting inviting representations to the trustees within one month 
of notice being given and those representations have been considered.  
 
In the event that the trust in question does not contain an express power allowing the 
charity trustee to dispose of the whole or any part of the land held on trust for the 
objects of the Charity the Council proposes to rely on the power of sale contained in 
section 6 of the Trusts of Land and Appointment of Trustees Act 1996. This provides 
for the sale of land where the extent of the disposal is so small that it will have no 
impact on the charity’s ability to further its objects. As in relative terms the disposals 
are only for a short period of time, will not provide any security of tenure for the 

Page 26



 

Page 15 of 17 

tenant and are consistent with previous uses of the premises it is considered that the 
trustees can rely on the statutory powers referred to above where necessary and will 
not need to seek any consents from the Charity Commission. Should it transpire that 
this is not the case then the necessary approvals will be sought. 
 
All the sites to be leased are designated as Open Space. Therefore, before any 
proposed disposal takes place the Council is required to give notice pursuant to 
section 123 (2a) of the Local Government Act 1972. The notices will be advertised 
giving details of the proposed disposal together with access to a plan in a local 
newspaper for two consecutive weeks. In addition the notices will be made available 
on the Council website.  
 
In addition in some cases the Council’s freehold title has been dedicated as a Fields 
in Trust Centenary Field. The Council will need to satisfy Fields in Trust that the 
granting of the leases are consistent with the FIT charitable objectives. It is 
considered that the continuation of the current uses primarily delivering affordable 
tennis is consistent with FIT charitable objectives.  
 
Additional legal advice is set out in the closed Appendix 11 to this report. 
 

  
4.4 Property Implications 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The project involves disposing of property by way of 25-year leases at the following 
locations – see Appendix 12 for plans for each site: 
 
1 Hillsborough Park (this will be the Hub and comprise of the site of the existing 
MUGA/tennis courts which it is proposed to redevelop to provide new facilities) 
 
The ‘spokes’ are tennis courts and ancillary facilities currently at and any new site 
identified during the term: 
 
2 Ecclesfield Park 
3 Concord Park 
4 High Hazels Park  
5 Graves Park  
6 Millhouses Park 
7 Bingham Park  
8 Weston Park  
9 Hollinsend Park 
 
Of the above, the parks at Hillsborough, High Hazels, Graves and Weston comprise 
Charitable land held on Trust.  
 
The sites that lie within Charitable Parks will need to follow the legal requirements 
governing the disposal of Charity land. (See legal implications section in this report) 
The Council, as charity trustee of those sites, must comply with the restrictions on any 
disposition contained in the relevant provisions of the Charities Act 2011. These 
contain a general obligation to achieve the best price that can be reasonably obtained 
on any disposal but also contains a number of specific obligations as detailed below. 
 

Page 27



 

Page 16 of 17 

 
 
 

Section 120 of the Charities Act 2011 contains an obligation on the trustee to obtain 
and consider advice from a person having the requisite ability and practical 
experience to provide them with competent advice on the proposed disposition who 
is instructed by the charity trustee and acting exclusively for the Charity. A report 
containing this advice is attached in the closed Appendix 10 
 
The basis of disposal in each case will be by way of a 25 year lease on the terms set 
out in the closed Appendix 8 with the draft lease at Appendix 7 

  
  
5. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
  
5.1 Do nothing 

 
Parks and Countryside’s have reviewed the option of continuing as is, with the 
existing parks tennis programme model exclusive of an Activity Hub. It has been 
concluded that continuing in this way, now with the added pressures that the Council 
is facing as a result of the pandemic, would make the model financially challenging 
for the future. It would also mean the loss of the opportunity to improve the sports 
and recreational facilities in this currently underused area of the Park. In addition the 
health and wellbeing gains that would be gained through the introduction of the hub 
and the improvement of the recreational and sports facilities would be reduced.  
 
For the tennis sites that form part of the ‘spokes’ of this proposal, the do nothing 
option would put the future viability and quality of these facilities at risk, as the 
current model does not adequately account for the financing of future infrastructure 
renewal needs. 

  
  
6. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 

Continued management of Sheffield’s parks tennis programme, alongside a 
sustainable business model, providing appropriate opportunities to generate income, 
provides financial security to parks tennis programme into the future. Without this, 
the programme faces a financially challenging future. 
 
Hillsborough Park is a site which lies within an area identified as within the top 30% 
IMD, and therefore the provision of quality sport and recreational facilities will have a 
real benefit to communities with identified health inequalities. It is designated as a 
‘City Park’ which reflects the fact that residents travel to the park from across the city 
and further afield; and hence the benefits will also have city wide reach.  
 
The deteriorating conditions of the existing tennis and multi-use games area 
provision are not ‘city’ standard. Improvements to these recreational facilities will 
support the parks Green Flag aspirations. The provision of an exciting and high-
quality facility of this nature will raise the standard of the park, increase its 
attractiveness as a destination site and encourage and attract users of all ages and 
abilities from various communities to engage in sport and physical activities. 
 
Data and evaluation will form an important component of this project to capture 
benefits, outputs and outcomes particularly focused around a reduction in health 
inequalities. See Appendix 13 for the latest performance insight. 

Page 28



 

Page 17 of 17 

 
The social return on investment of the current parks tennis programme was recently 
valued by Sheffield Hallam University at over £191,000, this includes; 
 

• £51,000 Health Outcomes 
• £95,000 personal wellbeing 
• £45,000 community development 

 
We would expect this value and therefore benefits gained, to increase considerably 
with the introduction of the Activity Hub at Hillsborough Park and additional courts at 
Hollinsend and Ecclesfield Parks.  
 
The council recognises that leisure provision both indoors and outdoors is critical 
post pandemic, with many people requiring rehabilitation after suffering long-COVID, 
or diminished mental health caused by lockdown.  
 
The health and wellbeing of residents is a priority, and it is clear the services 
delivered by facilities such as this play a vital role both now and in the future.  It is 
therefore critical that long term sustainable plans are put in place to maintain and 
grow these facilities. 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 30



Page | 1 
 

APPENDIX 1 

 

SHEFFIELD CITY COUNCIL 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Specification:  
PARKS TENNIS  
Hillsborough Activity Hub (including management of Tennis on other sites) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Parks and Countryside – September 2022 

Version: 2_02 

 

 

Page 31



Page | 2 
 

Contents 
(1) INTRODUCTION ......................................................................................................................3 

(2) ACTIVITY HUB REQUIREMENTS ........................................................................................4 

(3) BUILDING AND EXTERNAL DEVELOPMENT PERFORMANCE STANDARDS .........7 

(4) PRICING REQUIREMENTS ..................................................................................................8 

(5) PROGRAMMING REQUIREMENTS ....................................................................................9 

(6) BOOKINGS POLICY AND SYSTEM ..................................................................................13 

(7) CUSTOMER SERVICE .........................................................................................................15 

(8) MARKETING AND PUBLICITY ...........................................................................................17 

(9) STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT .......................................................................................19 

(10) MAINTENANCE REQUIREMENTS ....................................................................................20 

(11) STAFFING REQUIREMENTS .............................................................................................23 

(12) HEALTH AND SAFETY ........................................................................................................24 

(13) MAJOR INCIDENTS ..............................................................................................................27 

(14) PERFORMANCE REPORTING AND CONTRACT MANAGEMENT ............................28 

 

 

 

 

Page 32



Page | 3 
 

1. INTRODUCTION 
 

This Specification document sets out the objectives and operational requirements 
that the Provider shall meet in the delivery of the Concession during the Contract 
Period. It details the requirements that the Provider shall meet for the ongoing 
operation of the Facilities, associated buildings, grounds, and any other leisure 
amenities as specified within this Specification throughout the Contract Period. 
Please refer to the Performance Specification PC06503-CDS-XX-XX-SP-A-00601-V1_03   for 
details of the requirements for the design and construction of any development.                                                                                                   
 
The structure of this Specification relates to how the Performance Standards will be 
assessed as part of a quarterly contract monitoring process. 
 
The Specification provides the detail of the Council’s requirements in the following 
areas: 

1. Introduction 
2. Activity Hub requirements  
3. Building and External Development Performance Standards 
4. Pricing Requirements 
5. Programming Requirements 
6. Bookings Policy and Booking Systems 
7. Customer Service Requirements 
8. Marketing and Promotion 
9. Stakeholder Engagement 
10. Maintenance Obligations 
11. Staffing Requirements 
12. Health and Safety 
13. Major Incidents 
14. Reporting Requirements & Contract Management 

 

The Provider shall comply with all requirements in this Specification. Compliance will 
be assessed based on response to specific questions and the associated 
submission. Please refer to [Method Statements- Parks Tennis) 

  

Page 33



Page | 4 
 

 

(2) ACTIVITY HUB REQUIREMENTS 
 

The provider is expected to develop, build, and manage a multi-activity hub on the 
existing multi-use games area and tennis courts site within Hillsborough Park – see 
Appendix 6a with site plan and DWG showing an area of 4730m2 within the red line 
boundary.  

The visual in Appendix 6b is an illustrative example of the types of activities a hub 
could contain and potential layout for this.  

Project Scope (refer to Performance Specification for details): 

• Make improvements to the tennis facilities 
o tennis court improvements on (a minimum of existing) 3 courts  
o introduction of LED lighting  
o Refer to LTA specification for community use (accommodating use of 

site by Tramlines) 
o Consider viability of introducing padel tennis in the Activity Hub 

 
• Carry out a full upgrade and resurfacing to the multi-use games area (refer to 

Performance Specification) 
 

• Surfacing and lining appropriate for football, basketball, tennis, netball and 
other  activities, designed within Lawn Tennis Association, Sport England and 
Football Foundation guidelines. MUGA (Multi-Use Games Area) line marking 
to include a range of sports (as per Sport England Guidance). Design and 
lining proposals will need to be presented following appointment to agree the 
detail with SCC.  

 
• Create accessible welfare facilities, to be suitable for the number of 

anticipated daily visitors based on the overall proposal. A minimum provision 
should include one accessible female and one accessible male toilet.  
 

• Create accessible catering facilities, to be suitable for the number of 
anticipated daily visitors based on the overall proposal. A minimum provision 
should include a kiosk and outdoor seating area. 
 

• Create a hub of recreational activities which will cater to a range of audiences, 
with both a paid for and free to use offer – see programming requirements in 
(5) for further detail. 
 

• The partner would be expected to work with SCC, Tramlines and other events 
(as required by SCC) but to minimise the disruption to the Hub Operations. It 
is likely that this would be a 3 day shut down of the facility over the event 
weekend and a set up/down period of approximately two weeks. Initial 

Page 34



Page | 5 
 

discussions with Tramlines have indicated that access requirements would 
require removal of a section of the MUGA fencing. However SCC is invested 
in minimising the disruption to the Hub so would work with both partners to 
reach a satisfactory agreement. 
 

• Ensure gate entry points to the multi-use games area and tennis courts are 
accessible for disability bikes. 
 

• Ensure the activity hub, connects coherently with the ‘Pump Track facility’ 
adjacent to the hub to facilitate access by Cycling for All users, pedestrians 
and cyclists. 
 

• Ensure the activity hub enables the continues to enable the services and 
operations offered by Cycling for All, which currently provides their main 
service offer from the existing multi-use games area space. It is understood 
that the activity hub development will impact on Cycling for All’s current 
operations and this will need to be negotiated and agreed between all parties.    
 

• Cycle parking to be provided based on the proposed operating model. 
 

• Information/signage proposal to assist use and navigation of the park for 
members of the public.  
 

• Court access – proposal required for the control and locking of the courts. 
Minimum requirement for an online booking system with manually operated 
digital lock.  

Operations – proposals to include the following 

• Efficient energy and water management measures should be in place and 
correctly used – appropriate staff training should be provided. 

• Waste management processes should be in place with a view to reducing 
overall amount of waste and maximising recycling opportunities including 
cardboard, glass, plastics, metals, food and green waste. Proposals should 
identify location of waste and recycling bins and compound design if relevant. 
Consideration could be given to composting of food waste, and donation of 
surplus food. 

• Catering equipment should be energy efficient. The use of heat recovery 
systems could be considered on grills. 

• Consumables such as takeaway cutlery, crockery etc should be made of 
recycled material and be recyclable/compostable. 

• Single use plastics should be minimised. 

Food and Drink - proposals to include the following 

Page 35



Page | 6 
 

• Meat free, dairy free and gluten free options should be offered at the catering 
outlet. 

• Seasonal and local food supplies should be prioritised to minimise ‘food 
miles’. 

• Single use packaging on products should be avoided, and use of customers 
own reusable cups encouraged. 

Communications and Engagement 

• Information about any low carbon measures in the design and construction 
should be provided e.g. signage. 

• Information about other operational measures taken should be provided e.g. 
sourcing of food, how to correctly segregate waste, what kind of plants are on 
site etc. 

• Operator should be encouraged to support local initiatives and campaigns 
around climate action. 

 
  

Page 36



Page | 7 
 

(3) BUILDING AND EXTERNAL DEVELOPMENT 
PERFORMANCE STANDARDS  

 

The development will be required to comply with all statutory and regulatory 
requirements, such as: 

• Planning Permission 
• Building Regulations 
• CDM 2015 

In addition, it is a requirement to complete a Sheffield City Council, Climate Impact 
Assessment - Refer to 2.0 of the Performance Specification. 

Reporting Requirements 

• The Provider will be expected to work collaboratively with Sheffield City 
Council Officers through the design and delivery stages. 
 

• The Provider will be expected to provide the following as a minimum: 
o RIBA Design Reports – to be presented at each stage (1-4) 

demonstrating the design development process and ongoing 
compliance with the Specification  

o Designer Risk Assessments and strategy for ongoing maintenance and 
servicing of the facility (refer to 1.4.3 of Performance Specification) 

o Planning Conditions Tracker 
o Building Regulations Tracker 
o Pre-construction information  
o Construction Phase Plan 
o Health & Safety File 
o Operations and Maintenance file 

 
• The Provider will be expected to facilitate site access to Sheffield City Council 

Officers through the construction phase to check compliance from a Clerk of 
Works and Health and Safety perspective (particularly in relation to delivering 
a construction project within a public open space) and also from a service 
delivery perspective to monitor building quality and maintenance standards. 
 
 

  

Page 37



Page | 8 
 

(4) PRICING REQUIREMENTS 
 

• The Provider shall comply with the Council’s Pricing Policy Requirements as 
set out in Appendix 6g to the ITT. Prices are permitted to be revised annually 
in accordance with RPI base rate.  

• All price increases shall be agreed in writing with the Council in advance of 
any price increases being implemented.  The Council retains absolute 
discretion on all prices. 

• The Provider may offer a loyalty/membership scheme as part of their pricing 
policy, however, pay and play prices must also be offered. The Provider may 
offer pricing promotions to encourage increased use at all periods of the day.  

• The Provider's Pricing Policy shall promote the principles of equality of access 
and sustainability while meeting the agreed participation targets and 
performance standards set out in Appendix 6f ‘Concessionary Pricing’ . Usage 
and attendance by all sections of the wider and local community shall be 
encouraged through the Provider's Pricing Policy to support delivery of the 
Council’s strategic outcomes.  

Submission & Reporting Requirements 

• The Provider shall submit a revised Pricing Policy annually by the anniversary 
of the service commencement date and each subsequent year following the 
first Contract Year for the remainder of the Contract term. 

• The Provider must honour the provider’s discount schemes, Sheffield Saver 
Plus Card and Sheffield Lifecard Plus reduction schemes at all sites Discount 
Leisure Activities (sheffield.gov.uk) 

• Information is detailed in Appendix 6f Concessionary Pricing. 
• No charges shall be collected by the Provider in respect of services extending 

beyond the Contract Period other than those authorised by the Council 
Representative during the last year of the Contract Period. 

• The Provider must ensure that all current fees and charges are displayed 
prominently on all literature, as appropriate within the facilities and on the 
Internet.  

Reporting Requirements  

Following the first Contract Year, the Provider shall detail their Pricing Strategy as 
part of the Quarterly Performance Monitoring Report on an annual basis by the 
anniversary of the service commencement date and each subsequent year following 
the first contract year for the remainder of the contract term.  

  

Page 38

https://www.sheffield.gov.uk/home/parks-sport-recreation/discount-leisure-activities
https://www.sheffield.gov.uk/home/parks-sport-recreation/discount-leisure-activities


Page | 9 
 

(5) PROGRAMMING REQUIREMENTS 
 

The Provider must develop a Programme of Use that takes into account the 
following requirements: 
 
• The need to offer a wide-ranging and diverse programme of activities targeted at 

encouraging greater levels of community participation across all relevant local 
social and cultural groups and for those groups where the greatest health gains 
can be made. 

• The need to provide a free tennis offer in partnership with the LTA and a 
recreational competitive offer at each site, including local tennis leagues. 

• Provision of a wide range of recreational opportunities 
• An enhanced programme of outreach and engagement for the Activity Hub site at 

Hillsborough Park 
• The provision of a free to use multi-use games facility that adheres to the Sport 

England design guidance and meets community needs  
• A management philosophy that encourages participation by or engagement with 

all sections of the community 
• A regular and planned review of the programme of activities, taking into account 

User and non-User research, changing Council/LTA priorities, other funder 
priorities and the LTA’s National Promotional marketing campaigns 

• Setting and reviewing programme objectives on at least an annual basis 
• Having a promotional strategy in place that keeps users informed of the 

programme and any planned changes 
• Making optimum use of all available resources and facilities 
• Monitoring usage levels 
• Contributing towards the Council’s Outcomes. 
 

 
The Provider shall encourage greater use by groups who have been traditionally 
under-represented, such as young people, people who are economically 
disadvantaged, people with disabilities, older people and minority ethnic groups. 
 
The Provider shall develop a pathway to support young people from casual activity 
into coached and club sessions. 
 
The Provider and the Council shall work together to ensure that the Programmes of 
Use reflects the changing needs of the users. The programmes should evolve with 
changing needs and aspirations of users and the Provider must therefore work to 
identify new opportunities and discuss these with the Council.  
 
The Provider must ensure that free court hire is available at Concord Park at all 
times and that there is free court hire available time slots at all sites, with an 
enhanced and proportionate ‘free’ offer at sites within the areas of highest Indices of 
Multiple Deprivation (IMD) including; High Hazels, Hollinsend, Ecclesfield and 
Hillsborough. 
 
 

Page 39



Page | 10 
 

 
Submission & Reporting Requirements 

 
• The Provider shall submit proposed Programmes of Use to the Council by the 

anniversary of the service commencement date, for the Council's approval 
and for the Provider to implement in the following Contract Year. An approved 
Programme of Use may only be changed with the written agreement of the 
Council.  

 
• The Provider must ensure that the facilities are bookable for 12 months of the 

year 
 

• The Provider must deliver an enhanced programme of coaching and outreach 
at the Hub facility at Hillsborough Park 

 
• The Provider shall deliver a Holiday Activity Programme and ensure that for 

each Holiday Activity Programme provided there will be places available for 
young people with children with additional needs, disabled young people, in 
accordance with the Equality Act 2010 requirements, and looked-after 
children. 

 
• The Provider shall review the effectiveness of the Programmes of Use on a 

regular basis, but in any event as a minimum every 12 months using market 
information and through consultation with relevant users.  

 
• The Provider shall ensure that the Programme of Use is complementary to 

other sports/leisure facilities that are funded by the Council and/or within close 
proximity to the facilities. 

 
Reporting Requirements  

 
The Provider shall maintain records of actual use of the Facilities and shall submit 
details of the outcome of programming reviews, activity usage, and of any failure to 
provide any of the specified activities or sessions as part of the Quarterly 
Performance Monitoring Report.  
 
Provide data as required by the LTA to meet any LTA funding requirements or other 
external stakeholders/funding agencies investing capital or revenue. 
 
A "Programmes of Use Progress Update" must be provided to the Council on a 
quarterly basis as part of the Quarterly Performance Monitoring Report and shall 
include the following information: 

 
Court Bookings 

• Total number of court hours booked per month for each venue 
• Total number of court hours booked as a percentage of the total court hours 

available for each venue 

Page 40



Page | 11 
 

 
Unique Participants 

• Total number of unique participants per month for each venue 
• Total number of unique participants across all venues 

 
Tennis Programme 

• Total number of tennis programme bookings per month for each venue 
• Total number of unique mini tennis participants per month (up to 10 years) per 

month for each venue 
• Total number of unique junior participants (11-18 year) per month for each 

venue 
• Total number of unique adult participants (18+ years) per month for each 

venue 
 
Outreach Programme 

• Total number of unique participants per month attending sessions at community 
outreach sessions delivered outside of core venues i.e. schools 

 
Programme Analysis 

• Analysis of usage trends for the sites across the parks programme 
• Overview of marketing of the programme and delivery of LTA initiatives 
• Details of partnership work to develop the programme 
• Development of workforce and the coaching team 
• Challenges faced delivering the programme 
 
Income and Expenditure 

• Breakdown of court income taken from each site per month 
• Breakdown of coaching income taken from each site per month 
• Breakdown of income generated from other commercial activities linked to the 

programme 
• Breakdown of total income per month 

 
LTA Participation Tracker 

In addition, the Provider will be required to provide data to comply with the 
requirements of the LTA Participation Tracker. This is currently quarterly with the 
measures outlined above. This may be subject to change and the LTA reserves the 
right to amend the measures as appropriate. 
 
Sheffield Tennis Network Group 

The Provider will be required to attend meetings of the Sheffield Tennis Steering 
Group and provide updates on the Parks Tennis Programme of Use. The group 
currently meets twice a year. 
 

Page 41



Page | 12 
 

(6) BOOKINGS POLICY AND SYSTEM 
 

The Provider shall ensure that there is a clear, high quality and online user-friendly 
booking system and service for all tennis activities which is accessible to all potential 
users. 

This booking system will incorporate comprehensive terms and conditions for hire, 
advanced booking arrangements, cancellation and non-attendance policies, User 
information, effective administration systems, and operational information systems to 
record and effectively deliver all bookings. 

The Council would also welcome the use of a 24/7 automated telephone booking 
system. 

Court access arrangements  

The courts (with the exception of Concord Park) must be locked at all times.  The 
booking system should interface with the gate locking systems to allow users access 
to the courts and prohibit use by non-bookers/payers.  

The provider will meet the conditions of any funding criteria applied to ensure funding 
can be received from the LTA sources for developments at Ecclesfield and 
Hollinsend Parks. 

The provider will need to provide a booking system and related gate locking system.  

The booking system must be able to capture the following participation information: 

Court Bookings 

• Total number of court hours booked per month for each venue 
• Total number of court hours booked as a percentage of the total court hours 

available for each venue 
 
Unique Participants 

• Total number of unique participants per month for each venue 
• Total number of unique participants across all venues 

 
Tennis Programme 

• Total number of tennis programme bookings per month for each venue 
• Total number of unique mini tennis participants per month (up to 10 years) per 

month for each venue 
• Total number of unique junior participants (11-18 year) per month for each 

venue 
• Total number of unique adult participants (18+ years) per month for each 

venue 

Page 42



Page | 13 
 

 
Outreach Programme 

• Total number of unique participants per month attending sessions at community 
outreach sessions delivered outside of core venues i.e. schools 

 
Programme Analysis 

• Analysis of usage trends for the sites across the parks programme 
• Overview of marketing of the programme and delivery of LTA initiatives 
• Details of partnership work to develop the programme 
• Development of workforce and the coaching team 
• Challenges faced delivering the programme 
 
Income and Expenditure 

• Breakdown of court income taken from each site per month 
• Breakdown of coaching income taken from each site per month 
• Breakdown of income generated from other commercial activities linked to the 

programme 
• Breakdown of total income per month 
 
Performance Standards 

• The Provider shall design, develop and implement a booking system within 
the one month of the Contract Commencement Date. 

 
• As a minimum the Council requires that bookings can be made by phone 

between the hours of 9am and 5pm Monday to Sunday.  Outside of these 
times an answer phone service must be available.   

 
• The Provider shall ensure that the telephone booking system is appropriately 

staffed between the hours of 9am to 5pm Monday to Sunday. The provider 
may choose to install an automated telephone booking system rather than 
staffing a telephone line. However, if an automated system is not provided a 
voicemail message directing people to the internet booking system must be in 
place from 5pm to 9am. 

 
An online booking system must also be available at all times. 
 
The Provider shall comply with and shall provide details of its compliance with PCI 

DSS standards for credit and debit card payment handling. 
 
 
Reporting Requirements 

The Provider shall submit details of any unavailability and performance of the 
required booking system as part of the Quarterly Performance Monitoring Report. 
 

Page 43



Page | 14 
 

(7) CUSTOMER SERVICE 
 

The Provider shall ensure a high level of customer service so that all Users receive a 
high quality and memorable experience at the Facilities. The level of customer 
service shall be reflective of good industry practice and provide a level of customer 
service that will facilitate achievement of the Council's Outcomes.  
 
The Provider shall support the Council with additional consultation relating to 
customer service from time to time. 
 
Performance Standards 

 
• The Provider shall provide and publicise a comprehensive customer service 

charter which meets or exceeds the standards in any/all of the Customer 
Charter of Sheffield City Council set out in Appendix 6e which provides that 
users are dealt with promptly, effectively and courteously at all times.  
 

• The Provider shall ensure that all User complaints and comments are dealt 
with in accordance with the Council’s Customer Charter and Complaints 
Process (Appendix 6e). 

 
• The Provider shall operate and administer a comprehensive and effective 

User comments and feedback system, to encourage feedback and record 
verbal and written comments.  

 
• The Provider shall always ensure a smart appearance by all staff, with 

appropriate uniform and name badges being worn.  
 

• The Provider shall ensure that staffing levels are appropriate to meet the 
demands of the participation / usage patterns at the facilities to ensure high 
standards of customer service. 

 
• The Provider shall provide training in customer service as part of its new staff 

induction and ongoing refresher training.  
 

• The Provider shall keep notice and display boards updated at all times.  
 

• The Provider shall ensure that information regarding the availability of 
courses, activities and events is available to the public on-line at all times. 

 
• The Provider shall ensure that any out-of-order equipment is clearly labelled 

accordingly, and information provided as to the estimated timescale for repair 
and, if relevant, reopening. 

 
• The Provider shall operate an effective system for dealing with lost and found 

property.  
 

Page 44



Page | 15 
 

• The Provider shall ensure that a "Retention Strategy" is developed to 
encourage user loyalty and minimise attrition rates. The Retention Strategy 
shall offer awards and incentives for loyal or high usage members. 

 
• The Provider shall ensure that details and records of all complaints, 

comments, forums and surveys are maintained including the date and time of 
each along with the response to the customer .See Appendix 6j for further 
details. 
 
 

Reporting Requirements 

 
The Provider shall carry out a detailed User Satisfaction Survey before the 
anniversary of the service commencement date and then every year thereafter. The 
format and content of the survey shall be agreed in advance with the Council and 
results reported fully to the Council within two weeks of receiving the survey findings 
together with a proposed improvement action plan for agreement by the Council. 
 
The Provider shall ensure that an annual report detailing the outcomes of User 
feedback is submitted to the Council by the anniversary of the service 
commencement date and then each year thereafter. 
 
The Provider shall ensure that a report detailing all complaints and remedial action 
taken is provided to the Council on a quarterly basis (the "Customer Complaints 
and Feedback Summary"). The Provider shall ensure that a summary of this report 
and details of any failure to maintain the required Performance Standards set out 
above are included within the Quarterly Performance Monitoring Report. 
 

 

  

Page 45



Page | 16 
 

(8) MARKETING AND PUBLICITY 
 
The Provider is responsible for all marketing and promotion of the tennis facilities 
and shall liaise with the Council’s Contract Manager and Communications team 
before publishing any marketing or promotional material.  
 
The Marketing Plan shall ensure that users and potential users are made aware 
(through a wide range of promotional channels) of the range of services being 
offered and are encouraged to use and re-use the services. 
 
The Council reserves the right to make use of appropriate space within the facilities, 
free of charge, for promotional and publicity material as determined by the Council. 
 
The Provider shall, from time to time, be expected to support sport and leisure 
activities being run by the Council either through cross-promotion or as a presence 
at an event.  
 
The Provider may seek sponsorship for events and activities but shall obtain 
permission in writing from the Council’s Representative in advance of any 
negotiations with the potential sponsors. 
 
Performance Standards 

 
The Provider shall update its Marketing Plan by the anniversary of the service 
commencement date and then each contract year following the first Contract Year. 
 
The Provider shall ensure that the Marketing Plan covers the following key areas: 

• Partnership strategy for working with the LTA and other stakeholders 
• A communications strategy 
• Branding & publicity 
• Event promotion 
• Delivery of participation targets and marketing for underrepresented 

groups 
• Media opportunities 

 
• The Provider shall not issue any statements to the media unless agreed and 

approved in advance by the Council. 
 

• The Provider shall ensure that the Council’s name and logo appears on all 
external signage, all promotional mediums including websites and published 
material including stationery relating to the Facilities. 

 
• The Provider shall ensure that all marketing material is branded in accordance 

with the requirements of the Council.  
 

• A Branding Strategy will be developed by the Provider in conjunction with the 
Council within 6 months of the Contract Commencement date. 

Page 46



Page | 17 
 

 
• The Provider shall ensure that there is information available online which 

provides details of the opening hours of the Facilities, services, activities and 
prices. The Provider shall ensure that this information is up to date, accurate 
and clearly presented and easy to follow at all times. 

 
• The Provider shall ensure that where appropriate this information is made 

available to appropriate local clubs and community organisations. The 
Provider shall co-operate in the distribution of various Council-sponsored 
promotional material, agreed with the Council’s communications team. 

 
• The Provider shall ensure that no publicity material or notices are produced or 

displayed in handwritten form. 
 

• The Provider shall ensure that all standards laid down by the Advertising 
Standards Council and Trading Standards Board are adhered to at all times 
and that publicity conforms to all relevant Legislation, including the Equality 
Act 2010. 

 
• The Provider shall ensure that no advertising/publicity material likely to cause 

offence to or mislead the public or cause embarrassment to the Council is 
used. The Council retains the absolute right to veto any advertising or 
promotional material, which is likely to breach this condition, and the Provider 
shall remove such material immediately. The Council accepts no responsibility 
for any loss incurred as a consequence of the removal of such material. 

 
• The Provider shall ensure that all media work (including all filming) is 

approved in advance by the Council’s media office. The Provider shall ensure 
that all necessary permissions are gained from individuals involved or, where 
minors are concerned, from their parents or guardians (especially where 
filming or photography is involved). 

 
• The Provider shall market proposed Holiday Activity Programme schemes to 

users during the previous holiday programme. Consequently, the Provider 
shall submit to the Council for its approval the proposed scheme one month in 
advance of marketing.  

 
Reporting Requirements 

 
Any new media opportunities shall be reported as part of the Quarterly Performance 
Monitoring Report. 
  

Page 47



Page | 18 
 

(9) STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT   
 
The Provider shall work closely with other park stakeholders to ensure the Activity 
Hub and wider parks tennis courts work together cohesively for the benefit of the 
park and its users. See Appendix 6c for further details of Park stakeholders. 
 
Performance Standards 

 The provider will work with local park user and stakeholder groups as required 
including Friends of Groups across all sites 

 
 The provider shall meet requirements as outlined within the lease for the 

Activity Hub at Hillsborough Park in relation to the accommodation of partners 
within the facility, this may include but is not exhaustive; 

  
• the provider will work with Cycling for All, providing free space at agreed times 
• the provider will work with Age UK to provide a complementary programme of 

activity 
• the provider will work with Tramlines Musical Festival organisers, ensuring the 

design fits with the requirements of the music festival 
• the provider will work with partners associated with the pump track ensuring 

the Activity Hub design is coherent with the pump track 
• the provider will work with Hillsborough Arena Sports Association 
• the provider will work with other park license holders and stakeholders as 

required 
 

Reporting Requirements 

The provider must provider updates via quarterly performance meeting regarding 
stakeholder engagement 

Any failure to comply with the community and stakeholder performance standards 
must be reported via the Quarterly Performance Monitoring Report. 

  

Page 48



Page | 19 
 

(10) MAINTENANCE REQUIREMENTS  
 
The Provider is responsible for all maintenance at all sites within this Contract with 
the exception of the Thorncliffe park site. It is a requirement that the courts are 
maintained and managed throughout the entire year.  
 
The Provider shall carry out maintenance in such a way as to maintain a well 
presented and safe environment for all users, allowing for efficient and effective use 
of the facilities and promoting a positive image of the facilities at all times. 
 
The Provider shall provide a safe, attractive, and stimulating environment for the 
citizens of Sheffield and beyond and to safeguard and enhance the natural 
environment at the facilities. 
 
The Provider will be required to unlock and lock site gates for access and egress 
outside Park opening hours. 
 
See Appendix 6d for a summary of the maintenance requirements and court 
condition, as of July 2022 . 
 
Performance Standards 

 
• The Provider shall use reasonable endeavours to ensure any maintenance 

work required on the Facilities is undertaken at times which will have minimal 
adverse effect on users (except where in the reasonable opinion of the 
Provider maintenance work on the Facilities is urgently required). 

 
• The Provider shall ensure that the Users are informed as soon as practicable 

of any necessary work to the courts which in the reasonable opinion of the 
Provider needs to be carried out during the tennis season. 

 
• The Provider is responsible for emptying the litter bins and must endeavour to 

keep the Facilities clean and litter-free at all times.  
 

• The Provider shall be responsible for the maintenance and replacement of 
tennis nets. 

 
• Personnel working on the maintenance of the Facilities shall be competent 

and suitably qualified.  
 

• The Facilities must be maintained in line with maintenance requirements at all 
times unless otherwise agreed in advance with the Council. The requirements 
are as follows: 

 
General  
 

Page 49



Page | 20 
 

The Provider shall maintain the existing fences and gates in order to maintain 
the integrity of the perimeter security including all repairs as a result of 
vandalism / damage by a third party and Provider negligence. 
 
The Provider is responsible for the maintenance, repair and replacement of all 
tennis nets. 
 
The Provider is responsible for repair maintenance and replacement of gate 
locking mechanisms 
 
The Provider shall be responsible for replacing stolen fencing and fencing that 
is vandalised beyond repair. 
 
The Council shall be responsible for lifecycle replacement of the tennis courts 
in line with LTA requirements,  
 
The Council shall be responsible for removing overhanging branches from all 
sites. 

 
Weed Control  
The Provider shall ensure that weeds are controlled throughout the year, by 
either cultural methods and/or herbicides. All pesticides must be approved by 
the Councils Parks Manager before us and a record of all chemical usage 
provided. Application need to be undertaken by staff trained with appropriate 
qualifications PA1/PA2 . 

Slippery Surfaces  
The Provider shall treat hard surfaces, with an appropriate herbicide/fungicide 
or other suitable material to ensure that at no time there is a formation of 
algae, moss etc. causing the surface to be slippery.  
 
Snow and Ice 
The Provider shall ensure:  
 
• That when dealing with the removal of snow and ice by distributing de-

icing salt over areas to maintain a safe surface that damage to grassed 
and planted areas shall not be caused; 

 
• That surface water drainage channels, gully gratings and outlets are kept 

clear to prevent ponding, flooding and subsequent damage to roads on 
site, paths and planted areas following a thaw.  

 
The Provider shall ensure that any specific hazards caused by inclement 
weather shall be made safe and reported to the Council's Contract Manager 
immediately. 
 
Litter and Refuse 
The Provider shall ensure that the Facilities are kept free of litter and refuse, 
and is responsible for emptying litter bins within the boundary of the Activity 
Hub. 

Page 50



Page | 21 
 

 
Leaf and Blossom Fall  
The Provider shall ensure the clearance and proper disposal of leaves, 
blossom, tree fruit and seeds from the areas contained within this Agreement. 
 
Animal Fouling Clearance 
The Provider shall ensure the removal of animal fouling from the site and shall 
take all reasonable steps to ensure that Sites remain free from dog 
excrement. 

 
Reporting Requirements 

 
The Provider shall submit an annual Grounds Maintenance Schedule before the 
anniversary of the service commencement date and each subsequent contract year 
following the first Contract Year. 
 
The Provider shall submit details of any failure to maintain the required Performance 
Standards set out above as part of the Quarterly Performance Monitoring Report. 
  

Page 51



Page | 22 
 

(11) STAFFING REQUIREMENTS 
 
The Facilities must have sufficient and suitably qualified staff to provide the Services 
required by this ER and all relevant Legislation. 
 
The Provider shall ensure compliance in respect of all persons employed or seeking 
employment with the provisions of all employment Legislation including equal 
opportunities, the EU Working Time Regulations and the national minimum wage. 
 
The Provider shall be entirely responsible for the employment and conditions of 
service of its employees and shall implement a scheme for the continued 
assessment and development of staff. The Provider shall therefore ensure that, 
through individual staff training plans where applicable to each role staff undertake 
regular training (including refresher and advanced courses) to achieve qualifications 
relevant to their role. The Provider shall ensure that this is appraised annually. 
 
Please see Appendix 6h Safeguarding Information Guide for further guidance. 
 
Performance Standards 

• The Provider must meet the Disclosure and Barring Scheme requirements as 
detailed in the Agreement for all staff including any third party club coaches. 

 
• Staff employed or licensed or permitted to deliver coached activities and 

courses must be qualified to Level 2 as per LTA requirements. 
 

• The Provider shall maintain detailed training records for all members of staff. 
 

• The Provider must provide an update of the staffing structure for approval by 
the Council by December 31 each Contract Year following the first Contract 
Year.   
 

Reporting Requirements 

The provider must submit an organisational chart showing the staffing structure as 
part of the tender process.  Any changes to the staffing structure following contract 
commencement must be detailed in the Quarterly Performance Monitoring Report. 

Any failure to comply with the staffing performance standards must be reported via 
the Quarterly Performance Monitoring Report.   

  

Page 52



Page | 23 
 

(12) HEALTH AND SAFETY 
 

The Provider shall comply with all health and safety Legislation and shall produce, 
maintain and comply with a "Health and Safety Procedures Manual". This shall be 
available for inspection by the Council’s Contract Manager or other authorised 
persons at any time. 
 
The Council retains the absolute right to instruct the Provider to close any of the 
Facilities, immediately, in the interest of public safety. 
 
• The Provider shall comply with all health and safety Legislation and, without 

prejudice to the generality of the foregoing, shall operate the facilities in line with 
the recommendations in the most recent edition of the HSE publication and 
relevant industry best practice. 

 
• The Provider shall not exceed the maximum occupancy numbers recommended 

by Sport England for any activity area. 
 
• The Contactor shall carry out annual risk assessments for the facility, which will 

be included in the Health and Safety Procedures Manual and available for the 
Council to review upon request. The Provider shall revise them as a minimum: 

 
• If there is an accident or incident where a change is required to prevent a 

recurrence; 
 
• If a new task (for staff) or activity (for members of the public) is introduced 

where a new risk assessment is required before commencement 
 
• Before and after a new item of equipment is purchased (excluding identical 

replacement items); or 
 
• If a change to the building or premises is planned where new / revised 

arrangements for its safe use will be needed.  
 
• The Provider shall provide safe working procedures for all activities, equipment, 

cleaning and rigging undertaken by staff. 
 
• The Provider shall ensure that all surface water and other liquid spillage within 

the facilities causing dangerous floor surfaces is dealt with on identification of the 
problem and signed appropriately. 

 
• The Provider shall maintain a record of all training undertaken by staff with 

respect to health and safety training. 
 
• The Provider shall include health and safety training in the new staff induction 

programme. 
 
 

Page 53



Page | 24 
 

• The Provider shall repair any damaged health and safety notices within 24 hours 
and shall take action in the interim period to ensure staff are fully aware and take 
the necessary action to prevent any type of incident. 

 
• The Provider shall ensure that all exits are cleared of rubbish and debris and 

checked daily for ease of exit. 
 
• The Provider shall ensure that all staff are competent and adequately equipped to 

undertake all health and safety responsibilities relevant to their individual roles 
and duties. The Provider shall keep full records of all relevant training. 

 
• The Provider shall notify all defects to the Facilities and equipment affecting the 

health and safety of employees, users and the Provider to the Council's Contract 
Manager within one Business Day of their occurrence, together with any action 
taken to repair, withdraw from use or replace the plant or equipment. 

 
• The Provider shall permit access at all times to the Council’s Contract Manager, 

any relevant corporate health and safety advisor, Licensing Officer, 
Environmental Health Officer, Fire Officer or officer of the Health and Safety 
Executive that has responsibility for matters concerned with health and safety for 
the purpose of inspecting plant and equipment. 

 
• The Provider shall monitor safe occupancy levels bearing in mind the numbers 

and qualifications of staff on duty at the time and the nature of the activity taking 
place. 

 
• The Provider shall ensure that in any case of snow and ice, such snow and ice 

will be cleared and the immediate entrance and public pathways leading to the 
facilities are sanded/gritted. 
 

• The Provider shall ensure that all cleaning materials and equipment are 
appropriate for their required function and are used in accordance with the 
manufacturer's instructions, British Standards, and relevant Health and Safety 
Legislation, particularly COSHH. 

 
The Provider shall maintain comprehensive records of: 
 

• All accidents and incidents involving staff, members of the public and 
Providers 

 
• Evacuations and incidents occurring at the facilities  

 
• Records of reports made in accordance with Reporting of Injuries, 

Diseases and Dangerous Occurrences Regulations 1995 (RIDDOR). 
 

• The Provider shall ensure that any RIDDOR reportable incident is reported to the 
Council within an hour of its occurrence with a full incident and a copy of the 
RIDDOR report provided within 24 hours.  The Provider shall ensure that these 

Page 54



Page | 25 
 

records include details of any relevant actions taken/to be taken and shall be 
available to the Council at any time.  

 
• The Provider shall ensure compliance with the conditions of the Fire and 

Electrical Certificates.  
 
• The Provider shall enforce the Legislation relating to smoking in public places. 

The following hygiene and safety standards and rules must be maintained and 
enforced within the facility by the Provider as follows: 

 
• No person is allowed to enter the facility who: 
 

- is under the influence of alcohol or drugs 
- is considered to be a risk to themselves or others 

 
• No inappropriate footwear likely to cause damage to court surfaces is 

allowed 
• No animals or pets are allowed within the facilities with the exception of 

guide dogs for the blind. 
• No persons are permitted to partake in activity sports such as motorised 

vehicle sports within the facilities. 
 
Emergency Contact Details 

 
The provider must ensure that an emergency contact number is clearly displayed on 

court side at all sites. The emergency contact number must be staffed during 
all hours of operation in order to deal with any accidents/incidents on site. 

 
 
Reporting Requirements  

 
The Provider shall report details of any accidents, incidents and evacuations 
reportable under the RIDDOR regulations to the Council and any other required 
organisation (i.e. the Health and safety Executive (HSE)) within the time restraints 
prescribed by the regulations. The Provider shall ensure that records of accidents 
and actions taken are to be made available for inspection by the Council.  
 
The Provider shall make a formal record of all inspections or visits made by 
Environmental Health Officers, the Health and Safety Executive and any other 
person or body who, in the proper execution of their duties requires or is entitled to 
access to the relevant facility. A copy of this record shall be supplied by the Provider 
to the Council within 48 hours of receipt. 
 
  

Page 55



Page | 26 
 

(13) MAJOR INCIDENTS 
 

The Provider shall ensure the Council is aware of all major incidents. A major 
incident includes major accidents or incidents such as fatalities, severe injury, 
assault on users, theft of property, problems relating to security including vandalism, 
major damage to plant or equipment, major plant failure, industrial action, closure or 
any other issue likely to be of interest or concern to the Council and users.  
 
The objectives of this requirement are to: 

• Reassure the public 

• Ensure the Council is fully briefed on the incident 

• Ensure that any critical action or provision identified as a result of the incident can 
be progressed by the appropriate party 

• Minimise the likelihood of a repeat incident  

• Enable the Council to respond competently to enquiries. 
 
Performance Standards 

 
• The Provider shall ensure that all major incidents at the Facilities are reported 

to the Council’s Contract Manager by telephone at the earliest opportunity but 
no longer than an hour after the incident/accident occurred, followed by a full 
report by email or fax within 24 hours of the incident. 

 
• The Provider shall ensure that records of all major incidents accidents and 

actions taken are made available for inspection by the Council. 
 

• The Provider shall maintain an up to date log of all major incidents and severe 
injuries as defined by RIDDOR and their response to them. 

 
• In the event of the Council or its insurers wishing to undertake an 

investigation, then the Provider shall fully comply with any reasonable 
requests for information of staff attendance at such an inquiry. 

 
 
Reporting Requirements 

 
The Provider shall ensure that within three days following any emergency, a full 
account of the actions taken and the implications for future training are provided by 
the Provider to the Council’s Contract Manager.  
 
The Provider shall provide a summary of all accidents and incidents occurring at the 
Facility as part of the quarterly Major Accidents and Incidents Report. The Provider 
shall ensure that a summary of this report and details of any failure to maintain the 
required Performance Standards set out above should be included as part of the 
Quarterly Performance Monitoring Report.  

Page 56



Page | 27 
 

(14) PERFORMANCE REPORTING AND CONTRACT 
MANAGEMENT 

 
The Provider is expected to self-monitor its performance, submitting a variety of 
performance reports and strategies as specified in this Services Specification.  
 
 
Performance Standards 

 
• The Provider shall appoint an overall Contract Manager to be its Provider's 

Representative. The Provider's Representative shall consult with the Council’s 
Contract Manager as often as may reasonably be necessary for the efficient 
provision of the Services and shall attend meetings on a regular basis.  

 
• The Provider shall supply its Contract Manager’s contact details to the    

Council’s Contract Manager at the Contract Commencement Date.   
 

• The Provider’s Contract Manager shall be contactable during all hours of 
operation; during out of season periods or during periods of closure the 
Contract Manager must be available from 9am to 5pm Monday to Friday. 

• The Provider shall submit a Quarterly Performance Monitoring Report to the 
Council five business days in advance of the Contract Review Meetings. 

 
• The Provider’s Contract Manager shall attend a quarterly contract review 

meeting with the Council’s nominated Contract Manager and other key 
stakeholders/friends groups. 

 
 
Reporting Requirements 

 
The Quarterly Performance Monitoring Report shall include but not limited to the 
following information: 
 

• A general overview of performance 
• Booking System performance  
• Details of any special promotions/events etc. 
• Media coverage during the quarter and a forward plan of media opportunities 
• Progress against the agreed participation targets 
• Visitor profile data 
• Headline Income Position (including notes to explain key variance) 
• Details of customer comments, compliments and complaints 
• Details of any accidents or incidents during the quarter 
• General update on maintenance, including information on any maintenance 

undertaken. 
• Update on staffing issues, vacancies etc. 
• Major Accidents and Incidents Report 

Page 57



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 58



PC06503-CDS-XX-XX-SP-A-00601-V1_03 
                                                                                                       1 

 

 

 

APPENDIX 2 
 
 

Performance Specification 
 

Hillsborough Park 
PC06503-CDS-XX-XX-SP-A-00601-V1_03 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V0_03 
12th September 2022 
Capital Delivery Service 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

xxx 

1 Project Summary 

2 Climate Impact Assessment 

3 MUGA and Tennis Courts 

4 Café Facilities 

5 Wider Recreational Facilities 

Page 59



PC06503-CDS-XX-XX-SP-A-00601-V1_03 
                                                                                                       2 

 

 

 

 

Issue Record  

Version  Circulation List Date Issued Format Issued 

V0_01 PT / TD / JP 15/08/22 WORD 

V1_00 JP / PT 22/08/2022  

V1_01 JP / PT 22/08/2022  

V1_02 JP / AT / PT 23/08/2022  

V1_03 PT/AB 12/09/22  

 

Revision History  

Version  Nature of Revision  

V0_01 Issued for initial comment 

V1_00 Released for use 

V1_01 Released with client requested update regarding omission of meeting facility 

V1_02 Inclusion of additional clauses and cross referencing with other tender docs 

V1_03 Final amendments 

 

Document Approval  

Version Number: V0_01 

Prepared by:  Amber Beare Date: 14/08/2022 

    

    

Page 60



PC06503-CDS-XX-XX-SP-A-00601-V1_03 
                                                                                                       3 

 

 

  

Contents 

1.0 Project Summary 4 

2.0 Climate Impact Assessment 6 

3.0 MUGA and Tennis Courts (Activity Hub) 7 

4.0 Café Facility (Activity Hub) 8 

5.0 Wider Recreational Facilities (Activity Hub) 9 

Page 61



PC06503-CDS-XX-XX-SP-A-00601-V1_03 
                                                                                                       4 

 

1.0 Project Summary 
 
A vital component of creating an Active Park, is making excellent quality recreational 
infrastructure that is sustainable to manage, and adaptable to changing needs over time. 
Sheffield City Council would like to procure a delivery partner to support the delivery of 
outdoor tennis across Sheffield (refer to Specification: Parks Tennis/ Hillsborough Activity 
Hub_V2_02).   
 
The scope of this project is to deliver: 
 
1.1 A high-quality multi sports activity ‘hub’ at Hillsborough Park focused around:  

• Development of the MUGA and Tennis Courts   
• A Catering/ Kiosk Opportunity  
• Wider recreational facilities  
• An accessible toilet for Park use   
 

          Specific outputs highlighted as: 
 

• 1 Resurfaced and redesigned multi-use games area (for football, basketball, tennis, 
netball and more) with low-spill LED lighting.  

• Min of 3 Full-sized resurfaced and remarked tennis courts with low-spill LED lighting 
on 8m posts.  Padel Tennis to be considered.  

• 1 New catering facility created with associated accessible toilets and kitchen. 
Planning and building regulations permission will need to be sought for this building.  

• Wider recreational facilities are desirable and will be identified by the tenderer in 
the submission (with consideration given to community feedback from the Forward 
Plan consultation (see Appendix 6k), and other local provision)  

 
 

1.2 Hillsborough Park was chosen for the project as a site which lies within an area identified 
as within the lowest 30% IMD, and therefore the provision of quality sport and 
recreational facilities will have a real benefit to communities with identified health 
inequalities. It is designated as a ‘City Park’ which reflects the fact that residents travel 
to the park from across the city; and hence the benefits will have city wide reach. 
Unfortunately, the deteriorating conditions of the existing tennis and MUGA provision 
are not ‘city’ standard, hence the need for this project. The provision of an exciting and 
high-quality facility of this nature will raise the standard of the park, increase its 
attractiveness as a destination site and encourage and attract users of all ages and 
abilities from various communities to engage in sport and physical activities. For further 
background information on the Park please see Appendix 6c. 
 

1.3 The purpose of this performance specification is to give standardised parameters for the      
       tendering parties to work within. In addition, it ensures the asset is ‘fit for purpose’ and            
       future proofed. 
 
 
 

Page 62



PC06503-CDS-XX-XX-SP-A-00601-V1_03 
                                                                                                       5 

 

 
1.4 Compliance Requirements 
 

1.4.1 

PLANNING AUTHORITY REQUIREMENTS 

The proposed works will require planning permission to progress – all tenderers to allow for 
this in their tender returns. 

1.4.2 BUILDING CONTROL REQUIREMENTS 

Certain areas of the proposed works will require Building Control approval.  The tendering 
parties are to deliver a statement listing the items of works requiring Building Control and 
their methodology of compliance. 

1.4.3  

CDM (2015) CONSTRUCTION DESIGN MANAGEMENT REQUIREMENTS 

This work will fall under CDM (2015) and each tendering party is to submit a Designers Risk 
Assessment including mitigation items to confirm their understanding and display their 
competence in working within the regulations. 

 

 

 

  

Page 63



PC06503-CDS-XX-XX-SP-A-00601-V1_03 
                                                                                                       6 

 

2.0 Climate Impact Assessment 
 
2.1 Sheffield City Council have declared a climate emergency and are working towards      
Sheffield becoming a zero-carbon city by the start of the next decade.  We recognise the 
impact that climate change will have on Sheffield and its residents, as well as the 
contribution that we as a city can make to the future of our planet.  

The biggest contributors to climate change in Sheffield are: 

• electricity and gas used in business and industry 
• energy we use in our homes, particularly gas used for heating 
• transport (the flights people take and road travel by vehicles) 
• the food that we eat (and the food that we waste) 

From bigger energy and food bills to unpredictable and extreme weather, increased risk of 
flooding and negative impacts on our health, climate change and energy affects everyone. 
The more we can do to save energy and cut carbon the better. The food that we eat and the 
things we buy and throw away also make a large contribution. Our natural environment, 
including trees, plants and peat bogs in the rural parts of the city area can reduce our 
carbon emissions. 

As part of the strategy to mitigate against the emergency we find ourselves in, SCC have 
devised a ‘Climate Impact Assessment’ tool, which aims to ensure every project is measured 
against certain parameters to ensure that the proposed works contributes to the cohesive 
sustainability strategy. 

All projects delivered under this EOI will be required to complete the Climate Impact 
Assessment tool for assessment as part of the tender process. 

 

 
sheffield-cia-tool-dra

ft-v7.xlsx  
cia-guidance-users-2

00622.pdf  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 64



PC06503-CDS-XX-XX-SP-A-00601-V1_03 
                                                                                                       7 

 

3.0 MUGA and Tennis Courts 
 
3.1 MUGA and Tennis Courts 
      Site inspection to be undertaken to assess full scope of work required for delivery up to the  
      standard required.  
 
3.1.1 
      Court upgrades to the MUGA / Tennis Courts to be undertaken in line with the below 
requirements: 

• Standard to Sport England Guidance Note  
• Class Type 1 
• Priority of Activities to be confirmed upon appointment of tender but for the purposes of 

tendering assume: 
o 1. Football, 2. Basketball, 3. Netball (for Tennis courts obviously only one priority) 

• Durability to BS EN 14877 
 
3.1.2 
    Lighting provision to the MUGA / Tennis Courts to be designed in line with the below 
requirements: 

• Sport England Design Guidance Note  
• BS EN 12193:2007 Light and lighting: Sports Lighting 
• Institute of Electrical Engineers Wiring Regulations BS7671 (18th Edition IET Wiring 

Regulations) 
• Institute of Lighting Professionals (ILP) - - Guidance Note for the reduction of obtrusive light 

GN01:2020 
 
3.1.3 
    Fencing to comply with the requirements below: 

• Height and spacing to be in line with Sport England Guidance Note 
• Heavy Duty Fencing to BS 1722-14 Category 1 
• Sports Rebound Fencing for ball courts, tennis etc. 
• Allow for all required accessories as part of the overall system 
• Containment: Tennis balls 

 
3.1.4 
   Sports Benching where proposed to meet the requirements below: 

• Design working life to be min 10 years to BS EN 1990 
• Foundation and fixing details as manufacturers details 
• Structural design to Eurocodes appropriate to nature and location of structure 
• To ensure maximum accessibility with designed gaps to BS 5709 
• Galvanised finish to BS EN ISO 1461 and powder coated to BS EN 13438 

 
3.1.4 
      Cognisance to the court drainage to be given – any evidence of water logging to be investigated.    
     Drainage runs to have CCTV surveys and resultant drainage changes approved by Yorkshire  
     Water. 
  

Page 65



PC06503-CDS-XX-XX-SP-A-00601-V1_03 
                                                                                                       8 

 

4.0 New Catering Facility  
 

4.1    Catering Delivery 

4.1.1 
Schedule of Accommodation 

• Provide area breakdown for each of the following elements: 
o Café Internal Seating (if included) 
o Café External Seating 
o Kitchen and ancillary stores 
o WC 
o Café Euro bins/ Waste & Recycling facilities 

4.1.2     
Performance Specification 
    Building to be designed with a minimum life span of 100 years. 
    Individual element performance is given below 

Element Thermal performance u value 
Roof 0.1 
Floor 0.1 
Walls 0.15 
Windows / Doors 1.2 

 
    Acoustic performance is to be designed in line with the current edition of Approved   
    Document E.          
   

4.1.3  
Operational Requirements 

• All elements to be compliant with Approved document M and provide full accessibility 
and be in line with the Equality Act 2010. 

• Consideration to be given to access and egress required for deliveries/ emptying of 
Euro bins etc 
 

4.1.4     
Servicing 
Details to be provided at time of tender regarding connections for the following: 

• Electricity supply 
• Waste drainage 
• Surface water drainage 

 

Page 66



PC06503-CDS-XX-XX-SP-A-00601-V1_03 
                                                                                                       9 

 

 

5.0 Wider Recreational Facilities 

5.1 Recreational Facilities 

5.1.1 

    For each of the proposed facilities provide details on: 

• Location 
• Size 
• Quantum 
• Specification 
• Proposed operation 
• Risks and opportunities to delivery 

5.1.2 

Performance Requirements 

• Proposed sports pitches – refer to MUGA / Tennis Court requirements 
• Proposed Buildings – refer to requirements for Catering Facilities requirements 
• Proposed Play equipment – to be in accordance with BS EN 1176 
• Proposed gates / entry control – to be in accordance with BS 7818 
•  

5.2 

Upgrade to park infrastructure –  

5.2.1 

Tarmacadam paths 

• Tarmac footpath to be designed at 1:40 fall cross fall 
• Surface course 25mm AC 6 Dense Surf 100 / 150 
• Binder course min depth of 60mm AC 20 Bin 40/60 to BS EN 13180 – 1:2000 
• Sub base 150mm depth well compacted non frost susceptible type 1 granular sub-case 

to SHW clause 803 or recycled aggregate that complies with specification for highways 
works. 

 

 

Page 67



PC06503-CDS-XX-XX-SP-A-00601-V1_03 
                                                                                                       10 

 

5.2.2 Litter bins/ Euro bins 
Waste and dog waste bins – to BS 8300 – 1:2018 accessibility and to have a minimum of 10 year life 
span 

Eurobins – to BS EN 840-3:2020 and to have a minimum of 10 year life span 

 

Page 68



Document is Restricted

Page 69

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 77

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



 

LEGAL\59923355v1 

APPENDIX 5 

 
APPENDIX 5 
 
 
 
Dated      2023 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(1)  [NAME OF GUARANTOR] 

(2)   Sheffield City Council  

 
 
 

Guarantee  

Page 79



 

LEGAL\59923355v1 

Contents 

1 Interpretation 1 

2 Guarantee and indemnity 2 

3 Authority protections 3 

4 Addendum or variation to the Agreement 4 

5 Payment 4 

6 Costs 5 

7 Conditional discharge 5 

8 Representations and warranties 5 

9 General 6 

10 Governing law 9 

11 Jurisdiction 9 

 

Page 80



 

1 

LEGAL\59923355v1 

Date:      2023 

Parties 

(1) [NAME OF GUARANTOR] incorporated and registered in England and Wales with 
[company number []] whose registered office is [ ] (Guarantor).  

(2) Sheffield City Council of Town Hall, Pinstone Street, Sheffield, S1 2HH (Authority). 

Introduction 

A [ ] (company number [ ]) (“[ ]”) and the Authority entered into the concession 
agreement dated [ ] (the “Agreement”).   

B [The Guarantor has agreed to guarantee the due performance of the Agreement by 
the Concessionaire.] 

Agreed terms 

1 Interpretation 

The following definitions and rules of interpretation apply in this guarantee. 

1.1 Definitions: 

Agreement: the Concession Agreement between (1) Sheffield City Council 
and (2) [NAME OF CONCESSIONARE] dated [DATE].  

Business Day: a day, other than a Saturday, Sunday or public holiday in 
England, when banks in London are open for business. 

Business Hours: the period from 9.00 am to 5.00pm on any Business Day 
except any Business Day which is a Friday in which case the period shall be 
from 9:00 am to 4:30 pm. 

Concessionaire: means [ ] ([company number [ ]]) whose registered office is 
at [ ]. 

control: has the meaning given in section 1124 of the Corporation Tax Act 
2010, and the expression change of control shall be construed accordingly. 

Guaranteed Obligations: has the meaning given in clause 2.1.1 (Guarantee). 

VAT: value added tax or any equivalent tax chargeable in the UK or 
elsewhere. 

1.2 Clause headings shall not affect the interpretation of this guarantee. 

1.3 A person includes a natural person, corporate or unincorporated body 
(whether or not having separate legal personality). 

1.4 A reference to a company shall include any company, corporation or other 
body corporate, wherever and however incorporated or established. 

Page 81



 

2 

LEGAL\59923355v1 

1.5 Unless the context otherwise requires, words in the singular shall include 
the plural and, in the plural, include the singular. 

1.6 A reference to writing or written includes fax and email. 

1.7 A reference to this guarantee or to any other agreement or document 
referred to in this guarantee is a reference to this guarantee or such other 
guarantee or document as varied, novated (in each case, other than in 
breach of the provisions of this guarantee) from time to time. 

1.8 References to clauses are to the clauses of this guarantee. 

1.9 Any words following the terms including, include, in particular, for 
example or any similar expression shall be construed as illustrative and shall 
not limit the sense of the words, description, definition, phrase or term 
preceding those terms. 

2 Guarantee and indemnity 

2.1 The Guarantor: 

2.1.1 irrevocably guarantees to the Authority and its successors, 
transferees and assignees the due and punctual performance of all 
of the Concessionaire's present and future obligations under and in 
connection with the Agreement if and when they become due and 
performable in accordance with the terms of the Agreement 
(Guaranteed Obligations); 

2.1.2 shall pay to the Authority from time to time on demand all monies 
(together with interest on such sum accrued before and after the 
date of demand until the date of payment) which have become 
payable by the Concessionaire to the Authority under the 
Agreement but which has not been paid at the time the demand is 
made; and 

2.1.3 shall, if the Concessionaire fails to perform in full and on time any 
of its obligations, duties and undertakings under the Agreement, 
immediately on demand perform or procure performance of the 
same at its own cost and expenses. 

2.2 The Guarantor, as principal obligor and as a separate and independent 
obligation and liability from its obligations and liabilities under clause 2.1.1 
and clause 2.1.3 agrees to indemnify and keep indemnified the Authority in 
full and on demand from and against all and any losses, costs and expenses 
suffered or incurred by the Authority arising out of, or in connection with: 

2.2.1 any failure by the Concessionaire to perform or discharge the 
Guaranteed Obligations except where the Concessionaire's failure 
to perform or discharge the Guaranteed Obligations results from 
the Authority's failure to comply with its obligations under this 
guarantee or the Concessionaire contesting any payment or part of 
a payment in good faith; or 

2.2.2 any of the Guaranteed Obligations being or becoming totally or 
partially unenforceable by reason of illegality, capacity, lack or 

Page 82



 

3 

LEGAL\59923355v1 

exceeding of powers, ineffectiveness of execution or any other 
matter, 

but the Guarantor's liability under this clause 2.2 shall be no greater than 
the Concessionaire's liability under the Agreement was (or would have been, 
had the relevant obligation been fully enforceable). 

3 Authority protections 

3.1 Continuing guarantee. This guarantee is and shall, at all times, be a 
continuing security until the Guaranteed Obligations have been satisfied or 
performed in full and is not revocable and is in addition to and not in 
substitution for and shall not merge with any other right, remedy, guarantee 
or security which the Authority may at any time hold for the performance of 
such obligations and may be enforced without first having recourse to any 
such security. 

3.2 Preservation of Guarantor's liability. The Guarantor's liability under this 
guarantee shall not be reduced, discharged or otherwise adversely affected 
by: 

3.2.1 any arrangement made between the Concessionaire and the 
Authority; 

3.2.2 any alteration in the obligations undertaken by the Concessionaire 
whether by way of any addendum or variation referred to in clause 
4 or otherwise; 

3.2.3 any waiver or forbearance by the Authority whether as to payment, 
time, performance or otherwise; 

3.2.4 the taking, variation, renewal or release of, the enforcement or 
neglect to perfect or enforce any right, guarantee, remedy or 
security from or against the Concessionaire or any other person; 

3.2.5 any unenforceability, illegality or invalidity of any of the provisions 
of the Agreement or any of the Concessionaire's obligations under 
the Agreement, so that this guarantee shall be construed as if 
there were no such unenforceability, illegality or invalidity; 

3.2.6 any legal limitation, disability, incapacity or other circumstances 
relating to the Concessionaire, or any other person; or 

3.2.7 the dissolution, amalgamation, reconstruction, reorganisation, 
change in status, function, control or ownership, insolvency, 
liquidation or the appointment of an administrator or receiver of 
the Concessionaire or any other person. 

3.3 Immediate demand. The Guarantor waives any right it may have to require 
the Authority (or any trustee or agent on its behalf) to proceed against or 
enforce any other right or claim for payment against any person before 
claiming from the Guarantor under this guarantee. 

3.4 Deferral of rights. Until all amounts which may be or become payable under 
the Agreement or this guarantee have been irrevocably paid in full, the 

Page 83



 

4 

LEGAL\59923355v1 

Guarantor shall not, as a result of this guarantee or any payment 
performance under this guarantee: 

3.4.1 be subrogated to any right or security of the Authority; 

3.4.2 claim or prove in competition with the Authority against the 
Concessionaire or any other person; and 

3.4.3 demand or accept repayment of any monies or claim any right of 
contribution, set-off or indemnity,  

any sums received by the Guarantor in breach of this clause 3.4 (Deferral of 
rights) shall be held by the Guarantor in trust for and shall be promptly paid 
to the Authority. 

3.5 Guarantee additional to all other security. This guarantee is in addition to 
and shall not affect nor be affected by or merge with any other judgment, 
security, right or remedy obtained or held by the Authority from time to 
time in respect of the discharge and performance of the Guaranteed 
Obligations by the Concessionaire. 

4 Addendum or variation to the Agreement 

The Guarantor authorises the Concessionaire and the Authority to make any 
addendum or variation to the Agreement, the due and punctual performance of 
which addendum and variation shall, subject to the terms of this guarantee and, 
amongst other things, be guaranteed by the Guarantor in accordance with the 
terms of this guarantee. 

5 Payment 

5.1 All sums payable by the Guarantor under this guarantee shall be paid in full 
to the Authority in pounds sterling: 

5.1.1 without any set-off, condition or counterclaim whatsoever; and 

5.1.2 free and clear of any deductions or withholdings whatsoever except 
as may be required by law or regulation which is binding on the 
Guarantor. 

5.2 If any deductions or withholding is required by any law or regulation to be 
made by the Guarantor, the amount of the payment due from the Guarantor 
shall be increased to an amount which (after making any deduction or 
withholding) leaves an amount equal to the payment which would have been 
due if no deduction or withholding had been required. 

5.3 The Guarantor shall promptly deliver or procure delivery to the Authority of 
all receipts issued to it evidencing each deduction or withholding which it 
has made. 

5.4 The Guarantor shall not and may not direct the application by the Authority 
of any sums received by the Authority from the Guarantor under any of the 
terms in this guarantee. 

Page 84



 

5 

LEGAL\59923355v1 

5.5 The Guarantor shall pay interest on any sum due under this guarantee, 
calculated as follows: 

5.5.1 Rate. 4% a year above the Bank of England's base rate from time to 
time, but at 4% for any period when that base rate is below 0%. 

5.5.2 Period. From when the overdue sum became due, until it is repaid. 

5.6 The Authority shall not be entitled to recover any amount in respect of 
interest under both this guarantee and any arrangements entered into 
between the Concessionaire and the Authority in respect of any failure by 
the Concessionaire to make any payment in respect of the Guaranteed 
Obligations. 

6 Costs 

6.1 The Guarantor shall, on a full indemnity basis pay to the Authority on 
demand the amount of all costs and expenses (including legal and out-of-
pocket expenses and any VAT on those costs and expenses) which the 
Authority incurs in connection with: 

6.1.1 the preservation, or exercise and enforcement, of any rights under 
or in connection with this guarantee or any attempt to do so; and 

6.1.2 any discharge or release of this guarantee. 

6.2 Each party shall pay its own costs in connection with the negotiation, 
preparation, execution and registration of this guarantee, and all documents 
ancillary to it. 

7 Conditional discharge 

7.1 Any release, discharge or settlement between the Guarantor and the 
Authority in relation to this guarantee shall be conditional on no right, 
security, disposition or payment to the Authority by the Guarantor, the 
Concessionaire or any other person being avoided, set aside or ordered to be 
refunded pursuant to any enactment or law relating to breach of duty by any 
person, bankruptcy, liquidation, administration, protection from creditors 
generally or insolvency for any other reason. 

7.2 If any such right, security, disposition or payment as referred to in clause 
7.1 (Conditional discharge) is avoided, set aside or ordered to be refunded, 
the Authority shall be entitled subsequently to enforce this guarantee 
against the Guarantor as if such release, discharge or settlement had not 
occurred and any such security, disposition or payment has not been made. 

8 Representations and warranties 

8.1 The Guarantor represents and warrants to the Authority: 

8.1.1 that it is duly incorporated with limited liability and validly existing 
under the laws of England; 

Page 85



 

6 

LEGAL\59923355v1 

8.1.2 that it has full power under its constitution or equivalent 
constitutional documents in the jurisdiction in which it is 
established to enter into this guarantee; 

8.1.3 that it has full power to perform the obligations expressed to be 
assumed by it or contemplated by this guarantee; 

8.1.4 that it has been duly authorised to enter into this guarantee; 

8.1.5 that it has taken all necessary corporate action to authorise the 
execution, delivery and performance of this guarantee; 

8.1.6 that this guarantee when executed and delivered will constitute a 
legally binding obligation on it enforceable in accordance with its 
terms; 

8.1.7 that all necessary consents and authorisations for the giving and 
implementation of this guarantee have been obtained; 

8.1.8 its entry into and performance of its obligations under this 
guarantee will not constitute any breach of or default under any 
contractual, government or public obligation binding on it; and 

8.1.9 it is not engaged in any litigation or arbitration proceedings that 
might affect its capacity or ability to perform its obligations under 
this guarantee and to the best of its knowledge no such legal or 
arbitration proceedings have been threatened or are pending 
against it. 

9 General 

9.1 Confidentiality 

9.1.1 Each party undertakes that it shall not at any time during this 
guarantee, and for a period of five years after termination or 
expiry of this guarantee, disclose to any person any confidential 
information concerning the business, affairs, customer, clients or 
suppliers or the other party, except as permitted by clause 9.1.2 
(Permitted disclosure). 

9.1.2 Each party may disclose the other party's confidential information: 

(a) to its employees, officers, representatives or advisers who 
need to know such information for the purposes of 
exercising the party's rights of carrying out its obligations 
under or in connection with this guarantee. Each party shall 
ensure that its employees, officers, representatives or 
advisers to whom it discloses the other party's confidential 
information comply with this clause 9.1 (Confidentiality); 
and 

(b) as may be required by law, a court of competent 
jurisdiction or any governmental or regulatory authority. 

Page 86



 

7 

LEGAL\59923355v1 

9.1.3 No party shall use any other party's confidential information for any 
purpose other than to exercise its rights and perform its obligations 
under or in connection with this guarantee. 

9.2 Announcements 

No party shall make, or permit any person to make, any public 
announcement concerning the existence, subject matter or terms of this 
guarantee, the wider transactions contemplated by it, or the relationship 
between the parties, without the prior written consent of the other party 
(such consent not to be unreasonably withheld or delayed), except as 
required by law, any governmental or regulatory authority (including, 
without limitation, any relevant securities exchange), or any court or other 
authority of competent jurisdiction. 

9.3 Assignment 

The Authority shall be entitled by notice in writing to the Guarantor to 
assign the benefit of this guarantee at any time to any person without the 
consent of the Guarantor being required and any such assignment shall not 
release the Guarantor from liability under this guarantee. 

9.4 Further assurance 

Each party shall and shall use all reasonable endeavours to procure that any 
necessary third party shall, promptly execute and deliver such documents 
and perform such acts as may be required for the purpose of giving full 
effect to this guarantee. 

9.5 Variation 

No variation of this guarantee shall be effective unless it is in writing and 
signed by the parties (or their authorised representatives). 

9.6 Notices 

9.6.1 Any notice given to a party under or in connection with this 
guarantee shall be in writing and shall be: 

(a) delivered by hand or by pre-paid first-class post or other 
next working day delivery service at its registered office (if 
a company) or its principal place of business (in any other 
case; or 

(b) sent by email to: 

[TBC] in relation to notices sent to the Authority. 

[TBC] in relation to notices sent to the Guarantor. 

9.6.2 Any notice shall be deemed to have been received: 

(a) if delivered by hand, on signature of a delivery receipt;  

Page 87



 

8 

LEGAL\59923355v1 

(b) if sent by pre-paid first-class post or other next working day 
delivery service, at 9.00 am on the second Business Day 
after posting or at the time recorded by the delivery 
service; and 

(c) if sent by email, at the time of transmission, or if this time 
falls outside Business Hours in the place of receipt, when 
Business Hours resume.  

9.6.3 This clause 9.6 (Notices) does not apply to the service of any 
proceedings or other documents in any legal action or, where 
applicable, any arbitration or other method of dispute resolution. 

9.7 Entire agreement 

9.7.1 This guarantee constitutes the entire agreement between the 
parties and supersedes and extinguishes all previous agreements, 
promises, assurances, warranties, representations and 
understandings between them, whether written or oral, relating to 
its subject matter. 

9.7.2 Each party agrees that it shall have no remedies in respect of any 
statement, representation, assurance or warranty (whether made 
innocently or negligently) that is not set out in this guarantee. 
Each party agrees that it shall have no claim for innocent or 
negligent misrepresentation or negligent misstatement based on 
any statement in this guarantee. 

9.8 Waiver 

No failure or delay by a party to exercise any right or remedy provided under 
this guarantee or by law shall constitute a waiver of that or any other right 
or remedy, nor shall it prevent or restrict the further exercise of that or any 
other right or remedy. No single or partial exercise of such right or remedy 
shall prevent or restrict the further exercise of that or any other right or 
remedy. 

9.9 Severance 

9.9.1 If any provision or part-provision of this guarantee is or becomes 
invalid, illegal or unenforceable, it shall be deemed deleted, but 
that shall not affect the validity and enforceability of the rest of 
this guarantee. 

9.9.2 If any provision or part-provision of this guarantee is deemed 
deleted under clause 9.9.1 (Deemed deletion) the parties shall 
negotiate in good faith to agree a replacement provision that, to 
the greatest extent possible, achieves the intended commercial 
result of the original provision. 

9.10 Third party rights 

9.10.1 Unless it expressly states otherwise, this guarantee does not give 
rise to any rights under the Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act 
1999 to enforce any term of this guarantee. 

Page 88



 

9 

LEGAL\59923355v1 

9.10.2 The rights of the parties to rescind or vary this guarantee are not 
subject to the consent of any other person. 

9.11 Counterparts 

This guarantee may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of 
which when executed and delivered shall constitute a duplicate original, but 
all the counterparts shall together constitute the one deed. 

10 Governing law 

This guarantee and any dispute or claim (including non-contractual disputes or 
claims) arising out of or in connection with it or its subject matter or formation 
shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the law of England and 
Wales. 

11 Jurisdiction  

Each party irrevocably agrees, for the sole benefit of the Authority that, subject as 
provided below, the courts of England and Wales shall have exclusive jurisdiction 
over any dispute or claim (including non-contractual disputes or claims) arising out 
of or in connection with this guarantee or its subject matter or formation. Nothing 
in this clause shall limit the right of the Authority to take proceedings against the 
Guarantor in any other court of competent jurisdiction, nor shall the taking of 
proceedings in any one or more jurisdictions preclude the taking of proceedings in 
any other jurisdictions, whether concurrently or not, to the extent permitted by the 
law of such other jurisdiction. 

This Deed has been entered into on the date stated at the beginning of it. 

Page 89



 

10 

LEGAL\59923355v1 

 

EXECUTED as a deed by the parties on the 
date which first appears in this Deed: 

THE COMMON SEAL of SHEFFIELD CITY 
COUNCIL was affixed in the presence of:  

 

 

 

…………………………………………………. 

Authorised Signatory  

 Authorised Signatory Printed Name 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 90



 

11 

LEGAL\59923355v1 

 

[Executed as a Deed by 
[ ]. 
acting by: 

 

………………………………… ………………………………… 
Director Director Printed Name 

 

………………………………… ………………………………… 
Director/Secretary/Witness Signatory] Director/Secretary/Witness Printed Name 

 
 

 

Page 91



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 92



 

LEGAL\57499235v1 

APPENDIX 6 – Grant Funding Agreement 
 

 
DATED                                                   2022 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(1)  THE SHEFFIELD CITY COUNCIL 
 
 

- and - 
 
 

(2) [NAME OF GRANT RECIPIENT] 
 
 
 
 
 
 

_____________________________________________________ 
 

F U N D I N G   A G R E E M E N T 
in relation to: 

    
   Activity Hub at Hillsborough Park 
 

_____________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Director of Legal Services 
Sheffield City Council 

 
Ref:  

 
[DN: THE AGREEMENT CONTAINS A NUMBER OF AREAS WHICH ARE 
HIGHLIGHTED IN YELLOW. THOSE PARTS WILL BE UPDATED BY THE 

Page 93



 
 
 

LEGAL\57499235v1 2 

COUNCIL AS NECESSARY PRIOR TO ISSUING A FINAL VERSION FOR 
SIGNATURE]  
 

Page 94



 
 

 

LEGAL\57499235v1 3 

PARTICULARS OF AGREEMENT 
 
This Deed is dated                                                   2022 “the Agreement Date” 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 
The Parties:  (1) The Sheffield City Council of the Town Hall, Pinstone 

Street, Sheffield, S1 2HH ("the Council") and 
 
   (2) [NAME OF GRANT RECIPIENT], [ADDRESS], (“the 

Grant Recipient”) 
 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 
Commencement Date:  the date of this Agreement being the date on which funding 

for the Project will commence. 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 
Completion Date:  [DATE], being the date on which funding for the Project will 

cease (or such earlier date as this Agreement shall terminate 
in accordance with Clause 6 below, or such later date as this 
Agreement shall terminate under the extension provisions in 
Clause 2.3 below) 

___________________________________________________________________ 
 
The Premises 
/ Location:  Activity Hub at Hillsborough Park 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 
The Project:  [PROJECT NAME] 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 
The Grant:  A total grant of up to a maximum amount of £[183,132.26] to 

be paid by the Council to the Grant Recipient in accordance 
with the terms of this Agreement  

 
 
The Project   [NAME/POSITION]   
Manager  on behalf of the Council or his or her replacement as notified 

to the Grant Recipient  
                   from time to time 

 

Page 95



 
 
 

LEGAL\57499235v1 4 

DEFINITIONS: 
 

“Allowable  
Expenditure”  

means expenditure defrayed by the Grant Recipient on the 
Project as envisaged and included for in the Project, 
including, but not limited to, recoverable Value Added Tax, 
depreciation or amortisation of fixed assets; 
 

“Capital Assets” has the meaning given to it in clause 5.26;  
 

“Change of Control” means a sale of all or substantially all of the assets of a 
Party, any merger, consolidation or acquisition of a Party 
with, by or into another corporation, entity or person, or any 
change in the ownership of more than 50% of the voting 
capital stock of one Party in one or more related 
transactions; 
 

“Clawback”  means the requirement for the Grant Recipient to repay 
some or the entire Grant; 
 

“Commencement 
Date” 

the date of this Agreement;  
 
 

“Council’s Project 
Manager” 

means an officer of the Council appointed as the Council’s 
Project Manager for this Agreement and any replacement 
from time to time; 
 

“Data Protection 
Legislation” 

all applicable data protection and privacy legislation in force 
from time to time in the UK including the UK GDPR; the 
Data Protection Act 2018 (DPA 2018) (and regulations 
made thereunder) and the Privacy and Electronic 
Communications Regulations 2003 (SI 2003/2426) as 
amended and the guidance and codes of practice issued by 
the Information Commissioner or other relevant regulatory 
authority and applicable to a party; 
 

“Financial Year” means the twelve (12) month period commencing on the 1st 
April in any year and terminating on the 31st March the 
following year; 
 

“Governing Body” means the governing body of the Grant Recipient including 
its directors or trustees; 
 

“Hillsborough Park” means the park known as Hillsborough Park located at 
Middlewood Road, Sheffield, S6 4HD, a registered charity 
with charity umber 523913; 
 

"Intellectual 
Property" 

means any or all of the following: patents, trade marks, 
service marks, drawings, designs, registered designs, utility 
models, design right, copyright (including copyright in 
computer software), database right, inventions, trade 
secrets and other confidential information, technical 
information, know-how, business or trade names, rights to 
prevent passing off, and all other intellectual property rights 

Page 96



 
 

 

LEGAL\57499235v1 5 

and rights of a similar or corresponding nature in any part of 
the world, whether registered or not or capable of 
registration or not and including all applications and the right 
to apply for any of the foregoing rights; 
 

“Law”  means any law, statute, subordinate legislation within the 
meaning of section 21 (1) of the interpretation Act 1978, by-
law, enforceable right within the meaning of section 2 of the 
European Communities Act 1972 (as retained in English 
law), regulation, order, mandatory guidance or code of 
practice, judgment of a relevant court of law, or directives or 
requirements of any regulatory body with which the Grant 
Recipient is bound to comply; 
 

Lease”  means a lease in respect of the Premises between the 
Grant Recipient and the Council dated on [[DATE] OR [or 
around the same date as the Commencement Date] [DN: 
TO BE UPDATED DEPENDING ON WHEN THIS 
AGREEMENT WILL BE ENTERED INTO];  
 

[“Licence for 
Alterations” 

means the licence for alterations permitting the Works at the 
Premises dated on [[DATE] OR [or around the same date as 
the Commencement Date] [DN: TO BE UPDATED 
DEPENDING ON IF ONE WILL BE GRANTED AND 
WHEN IT IS ENTERED INTO]; 
 

“Payment Schedule” means the schedule of payments of the Grant as set out in 
Schedule 3; 
 

“Premises” the existing multi-use game area and tennis court at 
Hillsborough Park; 
 

“Prohibited Act” means:  
   

(a) to directly or indirectly offer, promise or give any 
person working for or engaged by the Council a 
financial or other advantage to:  

 
i. induce that person to perform 

improperly a relevant function or activity; or 
 

ii. reward that person for improper 
performance of a relevant function or 
activity;  

 
(b) to directly or indirectly request, agree to receive or 

accept any financial or other advantage as an 
inducement or a reward for improper performance of 
a relevant function or activity in connection with this 
Agreement;  

 
(c) an offence:  

 

Page 97



 
 
 

LEGAL\57499235v1 6 

i. under the Bribery Act 2010 (or any legislation 
repealed or revoked by such Act);  
 

ii. under legislation or common law concerning 
fraudulent acts; or  

 
iii. defrauding, attempting to defraud or 

conspiring to defraud the Council;  
 

(d) any activity, practice or conduct which would 
constitute one of the offences listed under (c) above 
if such activity, practice or conduct had been carried 
out in the UK; 

(e)  
“Project Proposals” means the Grant Recipient’s project proposals reviewed 

and approved by the Council and as set out in Schedule 1;  
 

“Section 106 
Agreement” 

means the Section 106 Agreement set out in Schedule 2;  
 
 

“State Subsidy” means a financial contribution granted by a public authority 
or through State resources in any form whatsoever which 
confers a benefit on the Recipient, and which shall include 
the definition of subsidy contained in the UK-EU TCA and in 
the Subsidy Control Act 2022; 
 

“Subsidy Control   
Law”  

means all Laws of the United Kingdom limiting State 
Subsidy applicable from time to time, including the UK-EU 
TCA as incorporated into the Law of the United Kingdom by 
the European union (Future Relationship) Act 2020 and any 
Law replacing the Subsidy Control Act 2022;  
 

“Quarter”  means a three (3) calendar month period in the Financial 
Year, the first Quarter commencing on the same date as the 
Financial Year; 
 

“Term”  means the period commencing on the Commencement 
Date and ending on the Completion Date; 
 

“UK – EU TCA” the Trade and Cooperation Agreement between the 
European Union and the European Atomic Energy 
Community, on the one part, and the United Kingdom and 
Great Britain and Northern Ireland, of the part, signed on 30 
December 2020, including such amendments as are agreed 
between the parties from time to time;  
 

“UK GDPR”  has the meaning given to it in section 3(10) (as 
supplemented by section 205(4)) of the Data Protection Act 
2018; 
 

“VAT”  means value added tax chargeable in the UK; 
 

“Works”  means those works to be carried out at the Premises for the 

Page 98



 
 

 

LEGAL\57499235v1 7 

sole purpose of the Project specified within the Project 
Proposals at Schedule 1 and any goods and services 
required to facilitate the carrying out of those works; 

“Working Day” means any day from Monday to Friday inclusive which is not 
Christmas Day, Good Friday or a statutory bank holiday in 
England. 

 
 
SPECIAL CONDITIONS 
 
1. The Grant Recipient shall appoint in accordance with Clause 10 a competent, 

qualified contractor to carry out the design, supervision and post installation 
inspection of the Works. 

 
2. The Grant Recipient shall ensure that the design, supervision, post installation 

and ongoing inspection and maintenance shall be in accordance with the [BS 
EN 15312:2007 Free access multi-sports equipment]. 

 
3. The Grant Recipient shall submit to the Council prior to tendering of the Works 

the final design details and specifications and any further documents 
requested by the Council for approval. 

 
4. The Grant Recipient shall, on completion of the Works, obtain [a post 

installation inspection certificate which conforms to the European Design 
Standards] including the referred to in Special Condition 2 above and provide 
a copy of the certificate to the Project Manager. 
 

5. The Grant Recipient shall procure the design and construction of the Works 
and thereby assume the full duties and responsibilities of ‘client’ for the Works 
including those duties imposed by the Construction (Design and Management) 
Regulations 2007 (CDM Regulations). 
 

6. The Grant Recipient shall be responsible for the ongoing maintenance of the 
Premises and the associated costs of this. 

 
 

Page 99



 
 
 

LEGAL\57499235v1 8 

THIS DEED is made on the Agreement Date between (1) the Council and (2) the 
Grant Recipient whereby it is agreed as follows: 
 
 
1. INTERPRETATION 
 
1.1 This Agreement shall be interpreted by reference to the Project Proposals 

contained at Schedule 1 of this document, both the Special Conditions and 
Definitions set out above form part of this Agreement. 

 
1.2 The expressions "the Council" and "the Grant Recipient" shall include their 

respective successors in title. 
 
1.3 Any reference to the title of an officer of the Council shall include any person 

holding such office from time to time by the same or any title substituted 
therefore or such other officer of the Council as the Council may from time to 
time appoint to carry out the duties of the officer referred to. 

 
1.4 Any powers, discretions, rights or obligations of the Council within this 

Agreement may be exercised or discharged by the Council or any duly 
authorised Committee or any duly authorised officer of the Council. 

 
1.5 Reference to any statute shall be deemed to refer to any statutory 

modification or re-enactment thereof and any reference to any rules or 
regulations made thereunder shall include reference to any rules or 
regulations from time to time in force. 

 
1.6 Words importing any gender shall include all genders. 
 
1.7 Words importing the singular shall be deemed to include the plural and vice 

versa. 
 
1.8 The clause headings and numbering shall not affect the construction of this 

Agreement. 
 
1.9 References to clauses, schedules and appendices are, unless otherwise 

provided, references to the clauses of and schedules and appendices to this 
Agreement. 

 
1.10 The Project Proposals, the Definitions, the Special Conditions and the 

Schedules form part of this Agreement and shall have the same force and 
effect as if expressly set out in the body of this Agreement and any reference 
to this Agreement shall include the Project Proposals, the Definitions, the 
Special Conditions and the Schedules and Appendices. 
 

1.11 Where the Grant Recipient is more than one person, each shall be jointly and 
severally bound by the terms of this Agreement. 

 
1.12 Any phrase introduced with the words “including”, “includes”, “in particular”, 

“for example” or similar shall be construed as illustrative and without 
limitation to the generality of the related general words. 

 

Page 100



 
 

 

LEGAL\57499235v1 9 

1.13 a reference to any Law includes a reference to that Law as amended, 
extended, consolidated or re-enacted from time to time.  

 
1.14 any obligation in this Agreement on a person not to do something includes an 

obligation not to agree or allow that thing to be done.  
 
 
2. PURPOSE OF THE GRANT 
 
2.1 The Grant Recipient shall use the Grant only for the delivery of the Project 

and in in accordance with the terms and conditions set out in this Agreement. 
The Grant shall not be used for any other purpose without the prior written 
agreement of the Council.  

 
2.2 The Recipient shall not make any significant change to the Project without 

the Council’s prior written agreement.  
 
2.3 Throughout the Term, where the Grant Recipient intends to apply to a third 

party for other funding for the Project, it will notify the Council in advance of 
its intention to do so and, where such funding is obtained, it will provide to 
the Council with details of the amount and purpose of that funding. The Grant 
Recipient agrees and accepts that it shall not apply for duplicate funding in 
respect of any part of the Project or any related administration costs that the 
Council is funding in full under this Agreement.  

 
 
3. PAYMENT OF THE GRANT 
 
3.1 Subject to the compliance by the Grant Recipient with its obligations 

hereunder and to the other terms of this Agreement, the Council (subject to 
the necessary funds being available when payment falls due) agrees to pay 
the Grant to the Grant Recipient in accordance with the following procedures 
and conditions: 

 
3.1.1 The Council shall (subject to the necessary funds being available 

when payment falls due) pay the Grant in accordance with the 
Payment Schedule, and the terms of this Agreement, which shall be 
deemed to apply from the Commencement Date for the Term. 

 
3.1.2 Payment of the Grant shall be made in line with the Payment 

Schedule attached to this Agreement. 
 
3.1.3 No Grant shall be paid unless and until the Council is satisfied that 

such payment will be used for proper expenditure in the delivery of 
the Project.  

 
3.1.4 The Council shall not pay more than the maximum Grant amount 

allocated to the Project. 
 
3.1.5 The amount of the Grant shall not be increased in the event of any 

overspend by the Grant Recipient in its delivery of the Project.  
 
 

Page 101



 
 
 

LEGAL\57499235v1 10 

 
3.1.6 The Grant Recipient agrees and accepts that payments of the Grant 

can only be made to the extent that the Council has available funds.  
 
3.1.7 The Grant Recipient shall promptly repay to the Council any money 

incorrectly paid to it either as a result of an administrative error or 
otherwise. This includes (without limitation) situation where either an 
incorrect sum of money has been paid or where Grant monies have 
been paid in error or before all conditions attaching to the Grant have 
been complied with by the Grant Recipient. 

 
3.1.8 The Grant will be paid into a verified bank or building society account 

in the name of the Grant Recipient in the UK. The Grant Recipient 
must provide bank account details in writing to the Council that must 
be verified for means of electronic payment.  

 
3.1.9 The Grant Recipient shall not transfer any part of the Grant to bank 

accounts which are not ordinary business accounts within the 
clearing bank system, without the prior written consent of the 
Council. 

 
3.1.10 A sum equivalent to 10% of the Grant will be deducted from the 

amount of the final Grant claim submitted by the Grant Recipient 
under this Agreement and retained by the Council until such time as 
the Council has received, and is satisfied with, the final financial 
statement as specified in Clause 7.4 and the Project has been 
completed in accordance with this Agreement, to the satisfaction of 
the Council. 

 
3.2 The Council accepts no liability whatsoever for any losses attributable to 

delays in payment of the Grant to the Grant Recipient, nor for any 
repayment, reduction, cancellation, termination or withdrawal of the Grant, or 
for any Clawback enforced under the terms of this Agreement. 

 
3.3 The Council may, at its sole discretion, extend the Term of this Agreement by 

amending the Completion Date to such later date as the Council determines 
in accordance with all relevant funding rules and guidance, in order to allow 
the Grant Recipient to completely defray the entire Grant. Such extension 
shall be notified to the Grant Recipient in writing, and the terms of this 
Agreement shall continue for such extended period. Any such extension shall 
not result in an increase to the Grant unless the Council notifies the Grant 
Recipient in writing at its sole discretion.  

 
4. USE OF THE GRANT 
 
4.1 The Grant Recipient shall only use the Grant for the Allowable Expenditure 

and for the delivery of the Project.  
 
4.2 The Grant Recipient shall not use the Grant to:  
 

4.2.1 make any payment to members of its Governing Body;  
 

4.2.2 purchase buildings or land; or  

Page 102



 
 

 

LEGAL\57499235v1 11 

 
4.2.3 pay for any expenditure commitments of the Grant Recipient entered 

into before the Commencement Date,  
 

unless this has been approved in writing by the Council.  
 
4.3 The Grant Recipient shall not spend any part of the Grant on the delivery of 

the Project after termination of this Agreement or expiry of the Term.  
 
4.4 Should any part of the Grant remain unspent at the expiry of the Term, the 

Grant recipient shall ensure that any unspent monies are returned to the 
Council unless agreed otherwise in writing with the Council.  

 
4.5 Any liabilities arising at the end of the Project including any redundancy 

liabilities for staff employed by the Grant Recipient to deliver the Project must 
be managed and paid for by the Grant recipient using the Grant (provided it 
constitutes Allowable Expenditure) or other resources of the Grant Recipient. 
There will be no additional funding available to the Council for this purpose.  

 
5. THE GRANT RECIPIENT'S OBLIGATIONS 
 
The Grant Recipient shall: 
 
5.1 carry out the Project and to procure the carrying out of the Works, and 

promptly to meet any outputs or milestones or completion dates; 
 
5.2 ensure that the Project to be funded by the Grant is completed by the 

Completion Date unless otherwise agreed in accordance with Clause 3.3 of 
this Agreement; 

 
5.3 comply with all Law, applicable Government rules and guidance, and any 

guidance issued by the Council;  
 
5.4 comply with the terms of the Section 106 Agreement as it relates to the 

Project;  
 
5.5 notify the Council promptly of any matter which may affect the Grant 

Recipient’s ability to continue to meet any of the terms of this Agreement; 
 
5.6 notify the Council’s Project Manager immediately if any of the events referred 

to in Clause 8.1 below shall take place; 
 
5.7 notwithstanding any other provisions of this Agreement, if the Government 

and/or the Council shall require repayment for any reason of the whole or 
any part of the Grant to that body or another body, to immediately make any 
such repayment to the relevant body as required upon demand; 

 
5.8 ensure that the delivery of the Project does not result in it being in receipt of 

an unlawful State Subsidy;  
 
5.9 not take any action or fail to take any action, or (insofar as it is reasonably 

within its power) permit anything to occur that will cause the Council to be in 
breach of Subsidy Control Law;  

Page 103



 
 
 

LEGAL\57499235v1 12 

 
5.10 maintain appropriate records of compliance with the relevant Subsidy Control 

Law and will take all reasonable steps to assist the Council or any other UK 
governmental, regional or other authority respond to any proceedings or 
investigations(s) into the Project by any relevant court or tribunal of relevant 
jurisdiction or regulatory body, including any body appointed to oversee the 
granting of State Subsidies in the United Kingdom;  

 
5.11 acknowledge and accept that the Grant is awarded on the basis [REASON] 
 
[DN: ADDITIONAL DRAFTING REQUIRED BASED ON THE GRANT RECIPIENT’S 
CIRCUMSTANCES AND THE BASIS FOR MAKING THE GRANT. POSSIBLE 
OPTIONS (ALTHOUGH DEPENDANT ON CIRCUMSTANCES WHICH MUST BE 
ASSESSED AT THE TIME AND PRIOR TO ENTERING INTO GRANT 
AGREEMENT::  
 

• SMALL AMOUNTS OF FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE UNDER THE EU – 
UK TCA1  

  
• MINIMAL FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE2 

 
• ANY OTHER EXEMPTION?  

 
• COMPLIANCE WITH THE PRINCIPLES?] 

 
5.12 If the Council is of the reasonable opinion that variation and/or repayment of 

some or all of the Grant and/or payment of interest should be made because 
there has been an unlawful State Subsidy or it is required under Subsidy 
Control Law and/or if the Council is otherwise required to procure variation, 
repayment and/or payment of interest by the determination of a court or 
decision of the Secretary of State or a regulatory body or any body appointed 
to oversee the granting of State subsidies in the United Kingdom, the Council 
may vary or withhold any or all payments and/or require repayment of the 
Grant already paid, together with interest at an appropriate rate, within 20 
Working Days of receipt of the Council’s invoice.  

 
5.13 ensure that an acceptable quality assurance standard is in place and 

adhered to by all personnel, agents, sub-contractors,  involved in delivery of 
the Project if requested by the Council; 

 
5.14 comply and ensure that contractors and sub-contractors involved in 

undertaking the Works comply with all applicable requirements of the Law;  
 

5.15 maintain, and ensure that any contractors and sub-contractors involved in 
undertaking the Works maintain, with a reputable insurance office adequate 
insurance against: 

 
5.15.1 any losses, damages, suits, actions, claims or demands arising from 

fault, negligence or otherwise in the performance of this Agreement 
and generally in the carrying out of the Project including, but not 

 
1 Will not be available if the Subsidy Control Act 2022 comes into force 
2 Will only be available if the Subsidy Control Act 2022 comes into force Page 104



 
 

 

LEGAL\57499235v1 13 

limited to, employers' liability, public liability and professional 
indemnity insurances; and 

 
5.15.2 theft, loss or damage to any asset purchased or improved with the 

Grant including but not limited to damage to or destruction of the 
Premises for its full replacement value; and 

 
5.15.3 any loss or damage occurring during the course of the Works 

including but not limited to insurance of the Works against fire and all 
other relevant risks; 

 
5.16 produce on written demand evidence of the policies of insurance referred to 

in Clause 5.15 above and the receipt for the last premium paid, and to give to 
the Council at least thirty (30) days notice in writing of the cancellation of any 
such policies; 

 
5.17 comply with all the publicity requirements in relation to the Project and any 

further rules or guidance specified by the Council and/or the Government 
regarding publicity of the contribution to the Project from the Council and/or 
the Government;  

 
5.18 operate an open and competitive procedure when recruiting members of staff 

that have all or part of their salaries paid for by funding under this 
Agreement; 

 
5.19 comply with all applicable Council and Government rules or guidance relating 

to procurement, and the Council’s requirements in relation to appointment of 
contractors and consultants as detailed in Clause 12 below; 

 
5.20 maintain accounts for the Project from the Commencement Date and 

throughout the Term which shall show and explain: 
 

5.20.1 the Grant Recipient’s transactions being processed through the 
company accounting system of the Grant Recipient; 

 
5.20.2 the Grant Recipient’s financial positions with accuracy at any time; 

 
5.20.3 records of the daily money received, interest earned and money 

spent; 
 

5.20.4 where money was spent by the Grant Recipient and what it was 
spent on; 

 
5.20.5 records of the Grant Recipient’s assets and liabilities. 

 
5.21 ensure that the Grant shall be shown in the Grant Recipient’s account as a 

restricted fund and shall not be included under general funds; 
 
5.22 keep full, complete and accurate original books, records and documentation, 

including the accounts referred to in Clause 5.20 above, relating to the 
Project for a period of fifteen (15) years from the Completion Date;  

 

Page 105



 
 
 

LEGAL\57499235v1 14 

5.23 permit any authorised officer or representative of the Council to review and 
make copies of any accounts, books, records and documentation kept by the 
Grant Recipient relating to the Grant and the Project pursuant to 
Clauses 5.17 and 5.18, upon reasonable request by the Council throughout 
the Term; 

 
5.24 comply and facilitate the Council’s compliance with all statutory requirements 

as regards, accounts, audit, or examination of accounts, annual reports and 
annual returns applicable to itself and the Council;  

 
5.25 indemnify and to keep the Council fully indemnified against all losses, costs, 

claims, expenses, demands and/or liabilities whatsoever which the Council 
may incur, receive or suffer as a result of: 

 
5.25.1 any act or omission by the Grant Recipient or its employees, agents, 

successors, assigns and/or contractors or sub-contractors in 
connection with or in consequence of the undertaking of any 
activities connected with the Project; or 

 
5.25.2 any breach of this Agreement by the Grant Recipient or by any such 

person; 
 
5.26 establish and maintain an asset register detailing any assets or items of 

equipment having a useful life of more than one year (“Capital Assets”) 
acquired, built or improved with the Grant (including but not limited to the 
Premises) having a net value of £2,500 or more, such register to show: 

 
5.26.1 the date of purchase;  

 
5.26.2 description of the Capital Asset; 

 
5.26.3 the price paid (identifying any VAT paid); 

 
5.26.4 location of any title deeds to the Capital Asset; 

 
5.26.5 any serial number or other distinguishing marks; 

 
5.26.6 where the Capital Asset is located or stored and subject to clause 

5.27 where the Capital Asset is disposed of by way of sale, lease, 
charge, loan, gift or otherwise: 

 
(a) the date of disposal; 

 
(b) the details of any consideration for the disposal (identifying 

any VAT); 
 

(c) any other information the Council may reasonably require 
and to allow the Council access to inspect the register as required; 

 
5.27 not dispose of or agree to the disposal of any Capital Assets referred to in 

Clause 5.2 above (by way of sale, lease, charge, gift, loan or otherwise) 
without notifying the Council in writing of such intention and receiving the 
Council’s prior written consent (which may at the Council’s absolute 

Page 106



 
 

 

LEGAL\57499235v1 15 

discretion be conditional on the payment of Clawback to the Council of some 
or all of the Grant); 

 
5.28 work together with any other body as dictated by the nature of the Project or 

as reasonably requested by the Council in cooperation and good faith; 
 
5.29 ensure that appropriate contractual arrangements on an arm’s length basis 

and on market rates are entered into with any project or business receiving 
any funding from the Grant or other benefit funded by the Grant or any 
contractors appointed to carry out the Works or otherwise assist with the 
delivery of the Project; 

 
5.30 carry out the Works or procure that the Works are carried out in a good and 

workmanlike manner with sound and good materials and to the satisfaction of 
the Council, and in a manner which conforms with all applicable 
requirements of Law, including but not limited to planning permissions, 
building regulations, and legislation relating to listed buildings and ancient 
monuments; 

 
5.31 obtain any necessary permissions consents or approvals required for the 

Grant Recipient to lawfully undertake the Works including where appropriate 
consents required under planning, listed buildings and ancient monuments 
legislation and buildings regulations, and any landlord’s or mortgagees 
consents required prior to the commencement of the Works, and where 
applicable to ensure that the consent of any funding body funding any prior 
works to the Premises has been obtained; 

 
5.32 without prejudice to any other term of this Agreement, ensure that the 

Council is able to comply with the terms of the Section 106 Agreement by 
fulfilling all of the Council’s obligations under the Section 106 Agreement 
insofar as they apply to the Project as if they were set out fully in this 
Agreement as obligations and requirements on the Grant Recipient. 

 
 
6. WARRANTIES 
 
6.1 The Grant Recipient warrants and represents to the Council as follows: 
 

6.1.1 that the information given in connection with this Agreement, the 
Project or the Council’s evaluation of the Grant Recipient or the 
Project is at the date of this Agreement true, complete and accurate 
in all respects and not misleading in any respect; 

 
6.1.2 that where at any time any information of any nature whatsoever is 

provided by the Grant Recipient to the Council regarding this 
Agreement, the Project or in response to a specific request by the 
Council relating to this Agreement or the Project it will at the time(s) 
when given be true, complete and accurate and not misleading in 
any respect; 

 
6.1.3 that it will promptly notify in writing the Council if, and to the extent 

that, any information provided by it to the Council becomes untrue, 
incomplete, or misleading in any respect; 

Page 107



 
 
 

LEGAL\57499235v1 16 

 
6.1.4 that it has the necessary power and authority to enter into this 

Agreement with the Council;  
 

6.1.5 all actions necessary on the part of the Grant Recipient to authorise 
the execution of and the performance of its obligations under this 
Agreement have been taken;  

 
6.1.6 the obligations expressed to be assumed by the Grant Recipient 

under this Agreement will be legal, valid, binding and enforceable to 
the extent permitted by Law and this Agreement will be in the proper 
form for enforcement in England;  

 
6.1.7 the execution, deliver and performance by it of this Agreement does 

not contravene any provision of:  
 

(a) any Law either in force, or enacted but not yet in force and 
binding on the Grant Recipient;  

 
(b) the memorandum and articles of association of the Grant 

Recipient;  
 

(c) any order or decree of any court or arbitrator which is 
binding on the Grant Recipient;  

 
(d) any obligation which is binding upon the Grant Recipient or 

upon any of its assets or revenues;  
 

6.1.8 no claim is presently being assessed and no litigation, arbitration, 
administrative or mediation proceedings are presently in progress or, 
to the best of the knowledge of the Grant Recipient, pending or 
threatened against it or any of its assets which will or might have a 
material adverse effect on the ability of the Grant Recipient to 
perform its obligations under this Agreement; 

 
6.1.9 it is not subject to any other obligation, compliance with which will or 

is likely to have a material adverse effect on the ability of the Grant 
Recipient to perform its obligations under this Agreement;  

 
6.1.10 no proceedings or other steps have been taken and not discharged 

(nor, to the best of the knowledge of the Grant Recipient, threatened) 
for its winding up, or dissolution or for the appointment of a receiver, 
administrative receiver, administrator, liquidator, trustee or similar 
officer or in relation to any of its assets or revenues;  

 
6.1.11 this Agreement will be in full force and effect and constitutes the 

valid, binding and enforceable obligations of the parties; and  
 

the Council relies upon such warranties and representations.  
 
6.2 All warranties, representations, undertaking, indemnities and other 

obligations made, given or undertaken by the Grant Recipient in this 

Page 108



 
 

 

LEGAL\57499235v1 17 

Agreement are cumulative and none shall be given a limited construction by 
reference to any other.  

 
6.3 The Grant Recipient warrants and represents that by entering into this 

Agreement it has not committed any Prohibited Act.  
 
7. MONITORING AND REPORTING 
 
7.1 The Grant Recipient shall closely monitor the delivery and success of the 

Project throughout the Term to ensure that the aims and objectives of the 
Project are being met and that this Agreement is being adhered to.   

 
7.2 The Grant Recipient shall comply with any Project monitoring and reporting 

requirements as required by the Council. This may include a financial and 
operational report on its use of the Grant and delivery of the Project annually 
or as notified by the Council throughout the Term and in such formats as the 
Council may reasonably require. 

 
7.3 Subject to Clause 2.3, where the Grant Recipient has obtained funding from 

a third party for its delivery of part of the Project, the Grant Recipient shall 
include the amount of such funding in its financial reports together with 
details of what that funding has been used for.  

 
7.4 The Council shall have the sole discretion, in the event that in its reasonable 

opinion that sufficient progress has not been made by the Grant Recipient, to 
withhold payment of the Grant payments as set out in the Payment Schedule 
until such sufficient progress has been made. 

 
7.5 The Grant Recipient shall, if requested, submit to the Council such other 

information as is reasonably required by the Council in order to verify 
incurred costs and expenses. 

 
7.6 The Grant Recipient shall allow representatives of the Council, and any 

Government representatives, to visit the Premises on request in order to 
examine, inspect and photograph: 

 
7.6.1 the Works and all other operations carried out by the Grant Recipient 

and/or its contractors; 
 

7.6.2 the Grant Recipient’s records; and 
 

7.6.3 the Grant Recipient’s administrative and financial systems. 
 

The Grant Recipient shall provide all reasonable assistance to any 
representatives visiting pursuant to this Clause including provision via 
original or certified copy of any documents required.  

 
7.7 The Grant Recipient shall provide all information reasonably required by the 

Council and/or the Government in order to monitor the Project and ensure 
compliance with this Agreement. 

 
7.8 The Grant Recipient shall on request provide to the Council with such 

information, explanation and documents as the Council may reasonably 

Page 109



 
 
 

LEGAL\57499235v1 18 

require in order to establish that the Grant has been used properly and in 
accordance with this Agreement. 

 
7.9 The Grant Recipient shall permit any person authorised by the Council such 

reasonable access to its employees, agents, premises, facilities and records, 
for the purpose of discussing, monitoring and evaluating the Grant 
Recipient’s fulfilment of the conditions of this Agreement and shall, if so 
required, provide appropriate oral or written explanations from them.  

 
7.10 The Grant Recipient shall permit any person authorised by the Council for 

the purpose to visit the Grant Recipient, the Premises and/or the Works 
every quarter (if required) to monitor the delivery of the Project. Where, in the 
reasonable opinion, the Council considers that additional visits are necessary 
to monitor the Project, it shall be entitled to authorise any person to make 
such visits on its behalf.  

 
7.11 If requested by the Councill, the Recipient shall provide to the Council with a 

final report on completion of the Term which shall complete whether the 
Project has been successfully and properly completed.  

 
 
8. TERMINATION, WITHHOLDING, SUSPENDING AND REPAYMENT OF 

GRANT ANDREMEDIES AND CONSEQUENCES OF TERMINATION 
 
8.1 The Council may at its absolute discretion and without prejudice to its other 

rights and remedies terminate, reduce, withhold or suspend the whole of or 
part of the Grant, and/or rely on its right to Clawback the Grant in part or in 
full to the Council, and/or terminate this Agreement immediately upon service 
of written notice to that effect, in the event that: 

 
8.1.1 the Grant Recipient does not achieve the Project’s outputs to the 

reasonable satisfaction of the Council; 
 

8.1.2 the Grant Recipient does not otherwise deliver the Project in 
accordance with this Agreement; 

 
8.1.3 The Grant Recipient uses the Grant for purposes other than those for 

which it has been awarded; 
 

8.1.4 the delivery of the Project does not start within one month of the 
Commencement Date and the Grant Recipient has failed to provide 
the Council with a reasonable explanation for the delay;  

 
8.1.5 the Council considers that the Grant Recipient has not made 

satisfactory progress with the delivery of the Project;  
 

8.1.6 the Recipient, is in the reasonable opinion of the Council delivering 
the Project in a negligent manner;  

 
8.1.7 the Grant Recipient obtains duplicate funding from a third party for 

the Project;  
 

Page 110



 
 

 

LEGAL\57499235v1 19 

8.1.8 the Grant Recipient obtains funding from a third party which, in the 
reasonable opinion of the Council, undertakes activities that are 
likely to bring the reputation of the Project or the Council into 
disrepute or where the Grant Recipient has not sought the Council’s 
prior consent;  

 
8.1.9 the Grant Recipient provides the Council with any materially 

misleading or inaccurate information;  
 

8.1.10 the Grant Recipient commits or committed a Prohibited Act or fails to 
report a Prohibited Act to the Council;  

 
8.1.11 subject to Clause 10, the Grant Recipient undergoes a Change of 

Control which the Council, acting reasonably, considers:  
 

(a) will be materially detrimental to the Project;  
 

(b) the new body corporate cannot continue to receive the Grant 
because in the Council’s opinion (acting reasonably) they do 
not meet the Council’s criteria to receive the Grant or have 
the experience to successfully deliver the Project; or  

 
(c) the new body corporate intends to make fundamental 

change(s) to the purpose for which the Grant was given; 
 

8.1.12 any member of the Governing Body, employee or volunteer of the 
Grant Recipient has (a) acted dishonestly or negligently at any time 
and directly or indirectly to the detriment of the Project or (b) taken 
any actions which, in the reasonable opinion of the Council, bring or 
are likely to bring the Council’s name or reputation into disrepute;  

 
8.1.13 the Grant Recipient becomes insolvent, or it is declared bankrupt, or 

it is placed into receivership, administration or liquidation, or a 
petition has been presented for its winding up, or it enters into any 
arrangement or composition for the benefit of its creditors, or it is 
unable to pay for its debts as they fall due;  

 
8.1.14 the Grant Recipient fails to comply with the terms and conditions set 

out in this Agreement and fails to rectify any such failure within 30 
days of receiving written notice detailing the failure;  

 
8.1.15 the Council determines the Lease or [the Licence for Alterations] in 

respect of the Premises in accordance with its terms;  
 

8.1.16 The European Commission or the Court of Justice of the European 
Union requires any Grant paid to be recovered by reason of a breach 
of State Aid Law through its application under Article 10 of the 
Northern Ireland Protocol; or  

 
8.1.17 a court or tribunal or independent body or authority of competent 

jurisdiction require any Grant paid to be recovered;  
  

8.1.18 Clawback is enforced under Clause 16 below;  

Page 111



 
 
 

LEGAL\57499235v1 20 

 
8.1.19 the Grant Recipient ceasing to carry on its business or being or 

becoming unable to pay its debts within the meaning of Section 123 
of the Insolvency Act 1986; 

 
8.1.20 possession is taken over any of the Grant Recipient’s property under 

the terms of a fixed or floating charge.  
 
9. Termination for convenience  
 
9.1 The Council may terminate this Agreement in whole or in part and any Grant 

payments on giving the Grant Recipient 1 month’s written notice should it be 
required to do so by financial restraints or for any other reason.  

 
9.2 If the Council terminates the Agreement in accordance with Clause 9.1, the 

Grant Recipient shall return to the Council all unspent monies of the Grant 
that it has received within 30 days of the date of receipt of a written notice of 
termination from the Council unless agreed otherwise with the Council. 

 
10. Change of Control 
 
10.1 The Grant Recipient shall notify the Council immediately in writing and as 

soon as the Grant Recipient is aware (or ought to reasonably be aware) that 
it is anticipating, undergoing, undergoes or has undergone a Change of 
Control, provided such notification does not contravene any Law.  

 
10.2 The Recipient shall ensure that any notification made pursuant to 

Clause 10.1 shall set out full details of the Change of Control including the 
circumstances suggesting and/or explaining the Change of Control.  

 
10.3 The Council may, at its sole discretion:  
 

10.3.1 agree to a Change of Control; or  
 

10.3.2 terminate the Agreement pursuant to Clause 8.1.11.  
 
10.4 The Council shall not be entitled to terminate where a written approval was 

granted prior to the Change of Control.  
 
 
11. Exit Management 
 

The Council may require the Grant Recipient to prepare an exit plan. Where 
this is required, the Council shall inform the Grant Recipient in writing.  

 
 
12. Limitation of Liability  
 

The Council accepts no liability for any consequences, whether direct or 
indirect, that may come about from the Grant Recipient running the Project or 
providing the Works, the use of the Grant or from withdrawal of the Grant. 
The Grant Recipient shall indemnify and hold harmless the Council, its 
employees, agents, officers or sub-contractors with respect to all claims, 

Page 112



 
 

 

LEGAL\57499235v1 21 

demands, actions, costs, expenses, losses, damages and all other liabilities 
arising from or incurred by reason of the actions and/or omissions of the 
Grant Recipient in relation to the Project, the Works, the non-fulfilment of 
obligations of the Grant Recipient under this Agreement or its obligations to 
third parties.  

 
13. VAT 
 
13.1 If VAT is held to be chargeable in respect of the Agreement, all payments 

shall be deemed to be inclusive of VAT and the Council shall not be obliged 
to pay any additional amount by way of VAT.  

 
13.2 All sums and other consideration payable to or provided by the Grant 

Recipient to the Council at any time shall be deemed to be exclusive of all 
VAT payable and where such sums become payable or due or other 
consideration is provided, the Grant Recipient shall at the same time or as 
the case may be on demand by HMRC in addition to such sums, or other 
consideration, pay to HMRC all the VAT payable upon the receipt of a valid 
VAT invoice.  

 
 
14. Consequences of expiry or termination 
 
14.1 Notwithstanding anything contained elsewhere in this Agreement, the 

provisions of Clauses 1, 3.2, 5.6, 5.16, 5.20, 5.22, 7.5, 7.7, 8.1.18, 8.1.16, 
14,  16, 18, 19, 24, 27, 31, 33, 35 and the Special Conditions shall survive 
the termination or expiry of this Agreement howsoever caused and shall 
continue thereafter in full force and effect together with any other provision 
hereof which is expressly or by implication intended to come into or continue 
in force on or after such termination. 

 
14.2 If this Agreement is terminated or expires then any rights or liabilities that 

arose under this Agreement before such termination or expiry shall not be 
affected. 

 
 
15. CHANGE TO PROJECT AND REPROFILING  
 
15.1 Where the Grant Recipient becomes aware that the costs, outputs, or any 

other aspect of the Project have changed the Grant Recipient must notify the 
Council in writing.  

 
15.2 Where it becomes apparent that amendments to the Project are required to 

be made or a reprofile of Grant undertaken then a variation to contract letter 
may be issued by the Council. The Grant Recipient acknowledges that any 
action under this Clause may result in the reduction of the Grant under this 
Agreement.  

 
15.3 Such reprofiling of the Grant Recipient’s Grant amount as detailed in 

Clause 15.2 above shall not affect any of the other provisions of this 
Agreement.  

 
 

Page 113



 
 
 

LEGAL\57499235v1 22 

16. CLAWBACK  
 

The Council may in accordance with the terms of this Agreement enforce 
Clawback of the Grant. Where the Council relies on the Clawback provisions 
of this Agreement, the Grant Recipient shall repay the Grant to the Council in 
whole or in part within 30 days.  

 
 
17. APPOINTMENT OF CONSULTANTS AND CONTRACTORS 
 
17.1 The Grant Recipient must be able to demonstrate that for each and every 

purchase and contract for Works, the most economically advantageous 
tender is accepted. 

 
17.2 For the purposes of Clause 17.1 above the Grant Recipient shall ensure that 

a minimum of three competitive tenders are sought on each occasion.  
 
17.3 Where the Grant Recipient believes this is not possible and/or believes that 

an alternative way of procurement would achieve the requirements of 
Clause 17.1, the Grant Recipient shall: 

 
17.3.1 set out in writing the reasons why a minimum of three competitive 

tenders cannot be sought; and/or 
 

17.3.2 set out in writing their alternative proposals for best achieving the 
requirements of Clause 17.1; and 

 
17.3.3 provide such further information as requested by the Council within 

five (5) Working Days of such request being received from the 
Council. 

 
16.4    No contract for Works shall be tendered or placed before such alternative 

proposals have been approved by the Council in writing following any 
requirement of the Council to amend such alternative proposals.   

 
 
18. SUBSIDY CONTROL REPAYMENT 
 
18.1 If the Council is of the reasonable opinion that variation and/or repayment of 

some or all of the Grant and/or payment of interest should be made because 
there has been an unlawful State Subsidy or it is required under Subsidy 
Control Law and/or if the Funder is otherwise required to procure variation, 
repayment and/or payment of interest by the determination of a court or 
decision of the Secretary of State or regulatory body or any body appointed 
to oversee the granting of State Subsidies in the United Kingdom, the 
Council may vary or withhold any or all of the payments and/or require 
repayment of Grant already paid, together with interest at an appropriate 
rate, within 20 Working Days of receipt of the Council’s invoice.  

 
 

Page 114



 
 

 

LEGAL\57499235v1 23 

19. INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY 
 
19.1 The Council and the Grant Recipient agree that all rights, title and interest in 

or to any information, data, reports, documents, procedures, forecasts, 
technology, know-how and any other Intellectual Property whatsoever owned 
by either the Council or the Grant Recipient before the Commencement Date 
or developed by either Party during the Term, shall remain the property of 
that Party.  

 
19.2 Where the Council has provided the Grant Recipient with any of its 

Intellectual Property for use in connection with the Project (including without 
limitation its name and logo), the Grant Recipient shall, on expiry or 
termination of this Agreement, cease to use such Intellectual Property 
immediately and shall either return or destroy such Intellectual Property as 
requested by the Council. 

 
19.3 In the absence of prior written agreement by the Council to the contrary, all 

Intellectual Property created by the Grant Recipient: 
 

19.3.1 in using the Grant; or 
 

19.3.2 in delivering the Project and/or the Works, 
 

shall vest in the Council on creation.  
 
19.4 The Grant Recipient shall indemnify the Council against all claims, demands, 

actions, costs, expenses (including legal costs and disbursements on a 
solicitor and client basis), losses and damages arising from or incurred by 
reason of any infringement or alleged infringement (including the defence of 
such alleged infringement) of any Intellectual Property by the availability of 
the Services, except to the extent that they have been caused by or 
contributed to by the Council's acts or omissions. 

 
20. NO PARTNERSHIP 
 

 Nothing contained in this Agreement shall or shall be deemed to create any   
partnership or joint venture between the Parties hereto, and nothing in this 
Agreement shall be deemed to constitute either of the Parties hereto as the 
agent of the other Party. Neither Party shall hold itself out as acting as the 
agent or partner of the other Party or as being associated with that other 
Party. 

 
21. VARIATIONS 
 

No variation of this Agreement shall be valid or effective unless in writing and 
signed by the Grant Recipient or a duly authorised officer of the Grant 
Recipient and a duly authorised officer of the Council and specified to be for 
such purpose. 

 
22. ASSIGNMENT 
 

The Grant Recipient shall not without the prior written consent of the Council 
assign, sub-let, transfer, charge, or deal in any other manner in this 

Page 115



 
 
 

LEGAL\57499235v1 24 

Agreement or its rights hereunder or any part thereof, nor purport to do any of 
the same. Should the Council consent to the same in writing, the Council may 
first require amendments to be made to this Agreement.  

 
23. COUNCIL'S STATUTORY ROLE 
 

Nothing contained in this Agreement or done hereunder shall affect the rights 
and/or powers of the Council as local authority, local planning authority or in 
any other capacity whatsoever under or by virtue of any Law from time to time 
in force, or shall (where applicable) affect the rights and powers of the Council 
in its capacity as landlord, or shall relieve the Grant Recipient from the 
necessity of obtaining all such approvals or consents as from time to time shall 
be required from the Council in any of its aforementioned capacities. 

 
24. FAILURE TO ENFORCE IS NOT A WAIVER 
 

Failure by either Party at any time to enforce the provisions of this Agreement 
or to require performance by the other Party of any of the provisions of this 
Agreement shall not be construed as a waiver of any such provision and shall 
not affect the validity of the right of the first mentioned Party to enforce any 
provision in accordance with its terms. 

 
24. NOTICES 
 
24.1 Notices to be given under this Agreement shall be given in writing and sent 

by letter sent by first class prepaid post or delivered by hand to the address 
of the Party to be served.  

 
24.2 Notices sent by first class post shall be deemed to have been served 48 

hours after the time of posting and notices delivered by hand shall be 
deemed to have been served at the time of delivery.  

 
24.3 Proof of service of notices shall be by proof of posting by first class or by 

proof of actual delivery. 
 
 
25. SEVERABILITY 
 

If any provision of this Agreement is held invalid, illegal or unenforceable for 
any reason by any court of competent jurisdiction, such provision shall be 
severed without effect to the remaining provisions.  If a provision of this 
Agreement that is fundamental to the accomplishment of the purpose of this 
Agreement is held to any extent to be invalid, the Council and the Grant 
Recipient shall immediately commence good faith negotiations to remedy that 
invalidity. 

 
26. CORRUPT GIFTS OR PAYMENTS AND THE BRIBERY ACT 2010 
 
26.1 The Grant Recipient shall not:  
 

26.1.1 offer or give, or agree to give, to any member, employee or 
representative of the Council any gift or consideration of any kind as 
an inducement or reward for doing, or refraining from doing, or for 

Page 116



 
 

 

LEGAL\57499235v1 25 

having done, or refrained from doing, any act in relation to the 
obtaining or execution of this or any other agreement with the 
Council, or for showing, or refraining from showing favour, or 
disfavour to any person in relation to this or any other agreement. 
The attention of the Grant Recipient is drawn, without limitation, to 
the criminal offence provisions of the Prevention of Corruption Acts 
1889 to 1916;  

 
26.1.2 commit a Prohibited Act.  

 
26.2 The Grant Recipient warrants and undertakes to the Council that it will, 

throughout the duration of this Agreement, use all reasonable endeavours to 
have in place adequate procedures (as referred to in section 7(2) of the 
Bribery Act 2010) designed to prevent persons associated with the Grant 
Recipient from bribing any person with the intention of obtaining or retaining 
business for the Grant Recipient or with the intention of obtaining or retaining 
an advantage in the conduct of business for the Grant Recipient. 

 
26.3 The Grant Recipient shall notify the Council (in writing) if it becomes aware of 

any breach of this Clause 26, or has reason to believe that it or any person 
associated with it has received a request or demand for any undue financial 
or other advantage. 

 
 
27. INTEREST 
 

The Grant Recipient agrees that in the event of any payment being due from 
the Grant Recipient to the Council under the terms of this Agreement but 
unpaid, interest shall be added to the sum due at the rate of 2% per annum 
above the base rate from time to time of the Natwest Bank plc, such interest to 
accrue from the date payment becomes due until the date of payment and to 
be compounded on 31st March, 30th June, 30th September and 31st December 
each year as well after as before any demand and/ or judgment obtained 
hereunder. 

 
 
28. RIGHTS OF THIRD PARTIES 
 

The Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999 shall not apply to this 
Agreement. For the avoidance of doubt, nothing in this Agreement shall confer 
on any third party any benefit or the right to enforce any term of this 
Agreement. 

 
 
29. PROHIBITED ACTIVITIES 
 

The Grant Recipient shall not use the Grant for the purpose of supporting, 
directly or indirectly, any political party, organisation or activities, or any 
organisation or activity which is likely to bring the Government or the Council 
into disrepute, or for any religious purposes.  The Grant Recipient shall not 
use the Grant to fund any religious organisation unless it is shown to the 
satisfaction of the Council that the activities funded pursuant to that agreement 
will not promote a particular religious view. 

Page 117



 
 
 

LEGAL\57499235v1 26 

 
 
30. DATA PROTECTION 
 
30.1 The Grant Recipient shall comply with all relevant provisions of the Data 

Protection Legislation and do nothing which causes, or may cause, the 
Council to be in breach of its obligations under the Data Protection 
Legislation.   

 
30.2 The Grant Recipient shall: 
 

30.2.1 implement technical and organisational measures to protect any 
personal data (as defined under the Data Protection Legislation) it is 
processing against any unauthorised or unlawful processing and 
against any accidental loss, destruction, damage, alteration or 
disclosure and undertakes to maintain such measures during the 
course of this Agreement; 

 
30.2.2 take all reasonable steps to ensure the reliability of its staff having 

access to any such personal data;  
 

30.2.3 monitor and maintain the integrity of all personal data in full 
accordance with the Data Protection Legislation; 

 
30.2.4 notify the Council within 10 Working Days if it receives any 

complaint, enquiry or request from any person whatsoever relating to 
the Council’s or the Grant Recipient’s obligations (as applicable) 
under the Data Protection Legislation. 

 
 
31. CONFIDENTIALITY 
 
31.1 Subject to Clause 32 (Freedom of Information), each Party shall during the 

term of this Agreement and thereafter keep secret and confidential all 
Intellectual Property or know-how or other business, technical or commercial 
information disclosed to it as a result of this Agreement and shall not disclose 
the same to any person save to the extent necessary to perform its 
obligations in accordance with the terms of this Agreement or save as 
expressly authorised in writing by the other Party. 

 
31.2 The obligation of confidentiality contained in this Clause shall not apply or 

shall cease to apply to any Intellectual Property, know-how or other business, 
technical or commercial information which: 

 
31.2.1 at the time of its disclosure by the disclosing party is already in the 

public domain or which subsequently enters the public domain other 
than by breach of the terms of this Agreement by the receiving party; 

 
31.2.2 is already known to the receiving party as evidenced by written 

records at the time of its disclosure by the disclosing party and was 
not otherwise acquired by the receiving party from the disclosing 
party under any obligations of confidence;  

 

Page 118



 
 

 

LEGAL\57499235v1 27 

31.2.3 is disclosed for the purpose of the examination and certification of 
the Council’s accounts; or pursuant to section 6(1) of the National 
Audit Act 1983 of the economy, efficiency, and effectiveness with 
which the Council has used its resources;  

 
31.2.4 is disclosed on a confidential basis to a Party’s insurer, legal 

adviser(s) or auditor(s); or 
 

31.2.5 is at any time after the date of this Agreement acquired by the 
receiving party from a third party having the right to disclose the 
same to the receiving party without breach of the obligations owed 
by that party to the disclosing party. 

 
 
 
32. FREEDOM OF INFORMATION 
 
32.1 The Grant Recipient acknowledges that the Council is subject to the 

requirements of the Freedom of Information Act 2000 (FOIA) and the 
Environmental Information Regulations 2004 (EIRs). 

 
32.2 The Recipient shall: 
 

32.2.1 provide all necessary assistance and cooperation as reasonably 
requested by the Council to enable the Council to comply with its 
obligations under the FOIA and EIRs; 

 
32.2.2 transfer to the Council all requests for information relating to this 

Agreement that it receives as soon as practicable and in any event 
within two working days of receipt; 

 
32.2.3 provide the Council with a copy of all information belonging to the 

Council requested in the request for information which is in its 
possession or control in the form that the Council requires within five 
working days (or such other period as the Council may reasonably 
specify) of the Council’s request for such information; and 

 
32.2.4 not respond directly to a request for information unless authorised in 

writing to do so by the Council. 
 
32.3 The Grant Recipient acknowledges that the Council may be required under 

the FOIA and EIRs to disclose information without consulting or obtaining 
consent from the Grant Recipient. The Council shall take reasonable steps to 
notify the Grant Recipient of a request for information (in accordance with the 
Secretary of State’s section 45 Code of Practice on the Discharge of the 
Functions of Public Authorities under Part 1 of the FOIA) to the extent that it 
is permissible and reasonably practicable for it to do so but (notwithstanding 
any other provision in this Agreement) the Council shall be responsible for 
determining in its absolute discretion whether any information is exempt from 
disclosure in accordance with the FOIA and/or the EIRs. 

 
 

Page 119



 
 
 

LEGAL\57499235v1 28 

33. ENTIRE AGREEMENT 
 

This Agreement and the schedules and appendices to it shall constitute the 
entire Agreement and understanding between the Parties with respect to all 
matters which are referred to and shall supersede any previous agreement(s) 
between the Parties in relation to the matters referred to in this Agreement.    

 
 
34. COUNTERPART  
 

This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of 
which shall constitute a duplicate original of this Agreement, but all the 
counterparts shall together constitute the one agreement. 

 
 
35. GOVERNING LAW 
 

This Agreement shall be governed and construed in accordance with English 
law and the parties submit to the jurisdiction of the English courts.   

 
 
This Agreement is executed as a deed and delivered on the date stated at the 
beginning of it. 
 
 
 

Page 120



 
 

 

LEGAL\57499235v1 29 

 
 
THE COMMON SEAL of SHEFFIELD 
CITY COUNCIL was affixed  

 

 in the presence of: 

 

 

 

................................. 

Authorised Signatory 

 

 

 

 

  

EXECUTED as a DEED  

by [NAME OF GRANT RECIPIENT]  

acting by and under the signatures of:  

 ............................................... 

 Signature of Director 

  

............................................. 

Name of Director 

 

] ............................................... 

 Signature of Director or Secretary  

 

 .............................................. 

Name of Director or Secretary  

  

  

 

Page 121



 
 
 

LEGAL\57499235v1 30 

Schedule 1 
 

Project Proposals 
 

[TO BE INSERTED ONCE AGREED AND BEFORE SIGNATRUE] 
_____________________________________________________ 

 
 
 

Page 122



 
 

 

LEGAL\57499235v1 31 

Schedule 2 
 

Section 106 Agreement 
 

[TO BE INSERTED BEFORE SIGNATURE] 
 
 
 

Page 123



 
 
 

LEGAL\57499235v1 32 

Schedule 3 
 

Payment Schedule 
 

[TO BE INSERTED BEFORE SIGNATURE] 
 
 
 

Page 124



 

 
LEGAL\56382298v2 

 Appendix 7 

 

Dated      2023 

(1) The Sheffield City Council 

(2) [  ] 

 

Lease 

relating to  

[  ] 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 125



 

LEGAL\56382298v2 

Contents 

1 Definitions ...........................................................................................4 

2 Interpretation .......................................................................................5 

3 Demise and rent ....................................................................................6 

4 Tenant’s covenants .................................................................................7 

5 Landlord’s covenant ..............................................................................12 

6 Provisos agreements and declarations .........................................................12 

Schedule 1 Exceptions and reservations ..........................................................15 

Schedule 2 Rights granted to the Tenant .........................................................17 

 

Page 126



 

  
LEGAL\56382298v2 

LR1. Date of lease 2022 

LR2. Title Number(s) LR2.1 Landlord’s title number(s) 

[                ] 

LR2.2 Other title number(s) 

None 

LR3. Parties to this lease Landlord 

THE SHEFFIELD CITY COUNCIL of Town Hall, 
Pinstone Street, Sheffield, SI 2HH 

Tenant 

[           ] 

LR4. Property In the case of a conflict between this clause and 
the remainder of this lease then, for the 
purposes of registration, this clause shall prevail. 

Refer to the definition of Premises in clause 1 of 
this Lease. 

LR5. Prescribed statements etc. LR5.1 Statements prescribed under rules 179 
(dispositions in favour of a charity), 180 
(dispositions by a charity) or 196 (leases under 
the Leasehold Reform, Housing and Urban 
Development Act 1993) of the Land Registration 
Rules 2003. 

None 

LR5.2 This lease is made under, or by reference 
to, provisions of: 

None 

LR6. Term for which the Property 
is leased 

The term as specified in this lease at clause 1 (the 
Term) 

LR7. Premium None 

LR8. Prohibitions or restrictions on 
disposing of this lease 

This lease contains a provision that prohibits or 
restricts dispositions. 

LR9. Rights of acquisition etc. LR9.1 Tenant’s contractual rights to renew this 
lease, to acquire the reversion or another lease 
of the Property, or to acquire an interest in other 
land 

None 

Page 127



 

3 
LEGAL\56382298v2 

LR9.2 Tenant’s covenant to (or offer to) 
surrender this lease 

None 

LR9.3 Landlord’s contractual rights to acquire 
this lease 

None 

LR10. Restrictive covenants given 
in this lease by the Landlord in 
respect of land other than the 
Property 

None 

LR11. Easements LR11.1 Easements granted by this lease for the 
benefit of the Property 

The easements as specified in Schedule 2 of this 
lease. 

LR11.2 Easements granted or reserved by this 
lease over the Property for the benefit of other 
property 

The easements as specified in Schedule 1 of this 
lease. 

LR12. Estate rentcharge burdening 
the Property 

None 

LR13. Application for standard 
form of restriction The parties 
to this lease apply to enter the 
following standard form of 
restriction 

None 

 

LR14. Declaration of trust where 
there is more than one person 
comprising the Tenant  

None 

   

  

Page 128



 

4 
LEGAL\56382298v2 

Date 
 
Parties: 

(1) THE SHEFFIELD CITY COUNCIL of Town Hall, Pinstone Street, Sheffield, SI 2HH (the 
Landlord); 

(2) [           ] (the Tenant). 

It is agreed as follows: 

1 Definitions 

The following expressions shall where the context so admits have the following 
meanings: 

1954 Act the Landlord and Tenant Act 1954; 

Authorised Use means the use as a tennis facility and purposes 
reasonably ancillary to that use during the 
Operating Hours; DN: This may need to be revised 
for the MAGA at Hillsborough  

Contract means the [     ] (and any agreement made 
supplemental to or in variation thereof from time to 
time) entered on [         ] between (1) the Landlord 
and (2) the Tenant; 

Conducting Media means all media for the supply or removal of 
electricity, gas, water, sewage, energy, 
telecommunications, data and all other services and 
utilities, and all structures, machinery and 
equipment ancillary to those media; 

Operating Hours means the number of hours per week as defined in 
the Contract or such other days as the Landlord in 
its absolute discretion may determine on seven 
days’ notice to the Tenant; 

Plan means the plan annexed; 

Planning Acts means The Town and Country Planning Act 1990, the 
Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) 
Act 1990, the Planning (Hazardous Substances) Act 
1990 and the Planning (Consequential Provisions) 
Act 1990; 

Property means the tennis courts at [            ] shown coloured 
pink on the Plan together with all boundary 
structures that belong to the Property and all 
Conducting Media that serve the Property 
exclusively at the same from time to time as the 
same forms part of the land registered at the Land 
Registry under title number [            ]; 

Page 129



 

5 
LEGAL\56382298v2 

Reserved Rights means the rights and matters set out in Schedule 1; 

Retained Land means the adjoining or neighbouring land of the 
Landlord being the land registered at the Land 
Registry under title number [            ] but excluding 
the Property; 

Rights means the rights set out in Schedule 2; 

Services means foul and surface water, drainage, gas, 
electricity, telephone, telecommunications and 
other services; 

Term means the term of [twenty-five] years from and 
including [         ]  unless it is terminated in 
accordance with the provisions in the Contract; 

Third Party Rights all rights, covenants and restrictions affecting the 
Property including the matters referred to at the 
date of this lease in the property register and 
entries of the charges register of title number [     ]; 

VAT has the meaning given to that term in the Contract; 

Yearly Rent means One pound (£1) per annum (if demanded), 
(exclusive). 

2 Interpretation 

2.1 The expression “the Landlord” shall include the person for the time being 
entitled to the reversion immediately expectant on the determination of the 
Term while the expression “the Tenant” shall include the Tenant’s successors 
in title and assigns. 

2.2 A reference to this lease, except a reference to the date of this lease or to 
the grant of this lease, is a reference to this deed and any deed, licence, 
consent, approval or other instrument supplemental to it. 

2.3 The expressions landlord covenant and tenant covenant each has the meaning 
given to it by the Landlord and Tenant (Covenants) Act 1995. 

2.4 Unless the context otherwise requires, a reference to the Property is to the 
whole and any part of it.  

2.5 A reference to the term is to the Term.  

2.6 A reference to the end of the term is to the end of the term however it ends. 

2.7 Unless otherwise specified, a reference to legislation or a legislative provision 
is a reference to it as amended, extended or re-enacted from time to time 
and shall include all subordinate legislation made from time to time under 
them and all orders, notices, codes of practice and guidance made under 
them. 

Page 130



 

6 
LEGAL\56382298v2 

2.8 A reference to laws in general is a reference to all local, national and directly 
applicable supra-national laws as amended, extended or re-enacted from 
time to time and shall include all subordinate laws made from time to time 
under them and all orders, notices, codes of practice and guidance made 
under them. 

2.9 Any obligation on the Tenant not to do something includes an obligation not 
to allow that thing to be done and an obligation to use best endeavours to 
prevent that thing being done by another person. 

2.10 Unless the context otherwise requires, any words following the term 
including, include, in particular, for example, or any similar expression shall 
be construed as illustrative and shall not limit the sense of the words, 
description, definition, phrase or terms preceding those terms. 

2.11 A person includes a natural person, corporate or unincorporated body 
(whether or not having separate legal personality). 

2.12 A reference to writing and written excludes fax and email. 

2.13 Unless the context requires, references to clauses and Schedules are to the 
clauses and Schedules of this lease and references to paragraphs are to 
paragraphs of the relevant Schedule. 

2.14 Clause, Schedule and paragraph headings shall not affect the interpretation 
of this lease. 

2.15 Unless the context otherwise requires, words in the singular shall include the 
plural and in the plural shall include the singular. 

2.16 Unless expressly provided otherwise, the obligations and liabilities of the 
parties under this lease are joint and several. 

2.17 In relation to any payment, a reference to a fair proportion is to a fair 
proportion of the total amount payable, determined conclusively (except as 
to questions of law) by the Landlord. 

2.18 Where there is any inconsistency between the terms of the Contract and this 
Lease the Contract shall prevail. 

3 Demise and rent 

3.1 The Landlord lets the Property to the Tenant for the Term. 

3.2 The grant is made together with the Rights, excepting and reserving to the 
Landlord the Reserved Rights, and subject to the Third Party Rights. 

3.3 The grant is made with the Tenant paying the following as rent to the 
Landlord: 

3.3.1 the Yearly Rent and all VAT in respect of it; and  

3.3.2 all other sums due under this lease. 

Page 131



 

7 
LEGAL\56382298v2 

4 Tenant’s covenants 

The Tenant covenants with the Landlord as follows: 

4.1 To Pay Rent 

To pay the Yearly Rent reserved in clause 3. 

4.2 Signs 

Save where necessary to comply with its obligations or as permitted under 
the Contract not to affix, place or exhibit or permit or suffer to be affixed, 
placed or exhibited to or upon the exterior of any part of the Property or to 
or through any windows or to or upon any boundary wall rail or fence at the 
Property any sign, placard, poster, signboard or other advertisement save as 
may have been previously approved in writing by the Landlord such approval 
not to be unreasonably withheld or delayed. 

4.3 User 

4.3.1 Not to use or permit or suffer the Property to be used otherwise 
than for the Authorised Use. 

4.3.2 Not to: 

(a) organise or permit any gambling upon the Property; 

(b) permit the sale or consumption of tobacco or tobacco 
related products; or 

(c) use the Property for any illegal purposes nor for any 
purpose or in a manner that would or is likely to cause loss, 
damage, injury, nuisance or inconvenience to the Landlord 
or the owners or occupiers of any neighbouring property. 

4.3.3 The tennis courts on the Property will be available for public 
booking during the times set out in the Contract. 

4.4 Rates and taxes 

4.4.1 The Tenant shall pay all present and future rates, taxes and other 
impositions in accordance with the Contract in respect of the 
Property, its use and any works carried out there, except: 

(a) any taxes payable by the Landlord in connection with any 
dealing with or disposition of the reversion to this lease; or 

(b) any taxes (other than VAT) payable by the Landlord by 
reason of the receipt of any of the rents due under this 
lease. 

4.4.2 If any rates, taxes or other impositions and outgoings are payable 
in respect of the Property together with other property, the 
Tenant shall pay a fair proportion of the amount payable. 

Page 132



 

8 
LEGAL\56382298v2 

4.5 Utilities  

The Tenant shall pay all costs in connection with the supply and removal of 
all electricity, gas, water, sewage, telecommunications, data and other 
services and utilities to or from the Property. If any of those costs are payable 
in relation to the Property together with other property, the Tenant shall pay 
a fair proportion of all those costs. 

4.6 Tenant’s covenant for repair 

4.6.1 The Tenant must: 

(a) keep the Property in good and substantial repair and 
condition; 

(b) ensure that any Conducting Media forming part of the 
Property is kept in good working order; and 

(c) keep the Property clean, tidy and clear of rubbish.  

4.6.2 The Landlord may enter the Property to inspect its condition and 
may give the Tenant a notice of any breach of any of the tenant 
covenants in this lease relating to the condition of the Property. 
The Tenant shall carry out and complete any works needed to 
remedy that breach within the time reasonably required by the 
Landlord, in default of which the Landlord may enter the Property 
and carry out the works needed. The costs incurred by the 
Landlord in carrying out any works pursuant to this clause 4.6.2 
(and any professional fees and any VAT in respect of those costs) 
shall be a debt due from the Tenant to the Landlord and payable 
on demand. Any action taken by the Landlord pursuant to this 
clause 4.6.2 shall be without prejudice to the Landlord's other 
rights, including those under clause 6. 

4.7 Insurance 

Each party shall be responsible for maintaining appropriate insurance in 
accordance with the arrangements agreed in the Contract. 

4.8 Alterations 

4.8.1 Subject as may be permitted under the Contract, the Tenant shall 
not make any alteration or addition to the Property and shall not 
make any opening in any boundary of the Property without the 
consent of the Landlord, such consent not to be unreasonably 
withheld.  

4.8.2 Subject to the terms of the Contract, the Tenant shall not install 
any electronic communications apparatus on the Property or on 
the outside of any building erected from time to time on the 
Property, other than such that is reasonably required for the 
provision of an electronic communications service to the Property 
that is required for the proper and reasonable use of the Property 
for the Authorised Use. 

Page 133



 

9 
LEGAL\56382298v2 

4.8.3 Subject as may be permitted under the Contract, the Tenant shall 
not erect or place any temporary buildings or structures on the 
Property without the consent of the Landlord, such consent not to 
be unreasonably withheld. 

4.8.4 Subject as may be permitted under the Contract the Tenant shall 
not carry out any alteration to the Property which would, or may 
reasonably be expected to, have an adverse effect on the asset 
rating in any Energy Performance Certificate commissioned in 
respect of the Property. 

4.9 Third Party Rights 

4.9.1 The Tenant shall comply with all obligations on the Landlord 
relating to the Third Party Rights insofar as those obligations relate 
to the Property and shall not do anything (even if otherwise 
permitted by this lease) that may interfere with any Third Party 
Right. 

4.9.2 The Tenant shall allow the Landlord and any other person 
authorised by the terms of the Third Party Right to enter the 
Property in accordance with its terms. 

4.10 Compliance with laws  

4.10.1 The Tenant shall comply with all laws relating to: 

(a) the Property and the occupation and use of the Property 
by the Tenant; 

(b) the use of all Conducting Media and machinery and 
equipment at or serving the Property; 

(c) any works carried out at the Property; and 

(d) all materials kept at or disposed of from the Property. 

4.10.2 Within five working days after receipt of any notice, order, 
direction or other formal communication affecting the Property or 
the Landlord's interest in the Property (and whether or not served 
pursuant to any law), the Tenant shall: 

(a) inform the Landlord and allow the Landlord to copy the 
relevant document; and 

(b) take all steps necessary to comply with the communication 
and take any other action in connection with it as the 
Landlord may reasonably require. 

4.10.3 The Tenant shall not apply for any planning permission for the 
Property without the Landlord's consent. 

4.11 Alienation 

Page 134



 

10 
LEGAL\56382298v2 

Subject as may be permitted under the Contract, not to assign, underlet, 
charge, part with the possession or share the possession, use or occupation 
of the whole or any part or parts of the Property nor enter into a binding 
agreement to do any of the same. 

4.12 Assignments  

4.12.1 In the event that the Contract is novated, the Tenant shall assign 
this lease to the same party to which the Contract is novated to.  

4.13 Sharing occupation 

If consent is granted under the terms of the Contract, the Tenant may share 
occupation of the Property for Third Party Use (as defined in the Contract). 
  
4.14 Charing  

4.14.1 The Tenant shall not charge the whole of this lease without the 
consent of the Landlord, such consent not to be unreasonably 
withheld. 

4.14.2 The Tenant shall not charge part only of this lease. 

4.15 Closure of the registered title of this Lease 

Within one month after the end of the Term (and notwithstanding that the 
term has ended), the Tenant shall make an application to close the registered 
title of this lease and shall ensure that any requisitions raised by HM Land 
Registry in connection with that application are dealt with promptly and 
properly; the Tenant shall keep the Landlord informed of the progress and 
completion of its application. 

4.16 Costs 

4.16.1 The Tenant shall pay the costs and expenses of the Landlord 
including any solicitors’ or other professionals’ costs and expenses 
(incurred both during and after the end of the term) in connection 
with or in contemplation of any of the following: 

(a) the enforcement of the tenant covenants of this lease; 

(b) serving any notice in connection with this lease under 
section 146 or 147 of the Law of Property Act 1925 or taking 
any proceedings under either of those sections, 
notwithstanding that forfeiture is avoided otherwise than 
by relief granted by the court; 

(c) serving any notice in connection with this lease under 
section 17 of the Landlord and Tenant (Covenants) Act 
1995; or 

(d) any consent or approval applied for under this lease, 
whether or not it is granted. 

Page 135



 

11 
LEGAL\56382298v2 

4.16.2 Where the Tenant is obliged to pay or indemnify the Landlord 
against any solicitors’ or other professionals’ costs and expenses 
(whether under this or any other clause of this lease) that 
obligation extends to those costs and expenses assessed on a full 
indemnity basis provided that the Landlord shall take  reasonable 
steps to see that any solicitors or other professional costs and 
expenses are reasonable. 

4.17 Encroachments, obstructions and acquisition of rights 

4.17.1 Subject as may be permitted under the Contract, the Tenant shall 
not grant any right or licence over the Property to any person. 

4.17.2 If any person makes or attempts to make any encroachment over 
the Property or takes any action by which a right may be acquired 
over the Property, the Tenant shall: 

(a) immediately give notice to the Landlord; and 

(b) take all steps at the Landlord’s cost (including any 
proceedings) the Landlord reasonably requires to prevent 
or license the continuation of that encroachment or action. 

4.17.3 The Tenant shall not obstruct the flow of light or air to the 
Property nor obstruct any means of access to the Property.  

4.17.4 The Tenant shall not make any acknowledgement that the flow of 
light or air to the Property or that the means of access to the 
Property is enjoyed with the consent of any third party. 

4.17.5 If any person takes or threatens to take any action to obstruct the 
flow of light or air to the Property or obstruct the means of access 
to the Property the Tenant shall: 

(a) immediately notify the Landlord; and 

(b) take all steps at the Landlord’s cost (including proceedings) 
the Landlord reasonably requires to prevent or secure the 
removal of the obstruction. 

4.18 To Yield Up 

To yield up the Property in accordance with the provisions of this lease and 
the Contract provided that the Landlord may treat as abandoned by the 
Tenant any property not removed by the Tenant prior to the expiration of the 
Term and may as agent of the Tenant (and the Landlord is hereby irrevocably 
appointed by the Tenant to act in that capacity) arrange for the removal and 
destruction or sale of the same after having given the Tenant at least 28 days’ 
prior written notice of its intention to carry out such removal and destruction 
and having given the Tenant reasonable opportunity within such notice period 
to remove any such property. 

 

 

Page 136



 

12 
LEGAL\56382298v2 

4.19 Common Items  

The Tenant shall pay the Landlord on demand a fair proportion of all costs 
payable by the Landlord for the maintenance, repair, lighting, cleaning and 
renewal of all Services, structures and other items on the Retained Land 
which are used or capable of being used by the Property in common with 
other land. 

5 Landlord’s covenant 

The Landlord covenants with the Tenant that the Tenant shall and may peaceably 
and quietly hold and enjoy the Property during the Term without any interruption by 
the Landlord or any person rightfully claiming under or in trust for the Landlord. 

6 Provisos agreements and declarations 

Provided always and it is hereby expressly agreed as follows: 

6.1 Remedies 

Any breach of the covenants and obligations in this Lease by the Tenant shall 
be dealt with by way of clause 6.2 and the remedies specified in the Contract 
and/or clause 6.3. 

6.2 Early Termination of the Term 

If the Contract is terminated or determines for any reason in accordance with 
the terms of the Contract then this Lease shall automatically determine on 
the same date without any further notice being served under this Lease but 
without prejudice to any claim by either party against the other in respect of 
any antecedent breach of any covenant or condition contained in this Lease 
and on such determination it shall be lawful for the Landlord at any time 
thereafter to re-enter the Property or any part of the Property in the name 
of the whole.  

6.3 Re-entry and forfeiture 

6.3.1 The Landlord may re-enter the Property (or any part of the 
Property in the name of the whole) at any time after any breach 
of any condition of, or tenant covenant in, this lease.  

6.3.2 If the Landlord re-enters the Property (or any part of the Property 
in the name of the whole) pursuant to this clause, this lease shall 
immediately end but without prejudice to any right or remedy of 
the Landlord in respect of any breach of covenant by the Tenant 
or any guarantor. 

6.4 Provisions in relation to rights 

6.4.1 Save for the rights expressly granted nothing in this Lease shall by 
implication of law or otherwise operate to confer on the Tenant 
any easement, right or privilege whatsoever over or against the 
Retained Land or any other property of the Landlord which might 
in any way restrict or prejudicially affect the future rebuilding 

Page 137



 

13 
LEGAL\56382298v2 

alteration or development of the Retained Land or such other 
property. 

6.4.2 The Rights are granted in common with the Landlord and any other 
person authorised by the Landlord. 

6.4.3 The Rights are granted subject to the Third Party Rights and the 
Tenant shall not exercise any of the Rights so as to interfere with 
any Third Party Right. 

6.4.4 The Tenant shall exercise the Rights only in connection with its 
use of the Property for the Authorised Use. 

6.4.5 The Tenant shall comply with all laws relating to its use of any 
part of the Retained Land pursuant to the Rights. 

6.4.6 The Reserved Rights may be exercised by the Landlord and by 
anyone else who is or becomes entitled to exercise them, and by 
anyone authorised by the Landlord. To the extent that the 
exercise of any Reserved Rights impacts upon the operation of the 
Property by the Tenant, this will be dealt with in accordance with 
the Contract. 

6.4.7 The provisions relating to VAT in the Contract shall apply to any 
payment due or payable under the terms of this Lease. 

6.5 Compensation on vacating 

Any right of the Tenant or anyone deriving title under the Tenant to claim 
compensation from the Landlord on leaving the Property under the 1954 Act 
is excluded, except to the extent that the legislation prevents that right being 
excluded. 

6.6 Security of Tenure - Exclusion of sections 24 to 28 of the 1954 Act 

6.6.1 The parties confirm that before the Tenant became contractually 
bound to enter into the tenancy created by this Lease: 

(a) the Landlord served a notice on the Tenant, as required by 
section 38A(3)(a) of the 1954 Act applying to the tenancy 
created by this Lease; and 

(b) made a statutory declaration dated in accordance with the 
requirements of section 38A(3)(b) of the 1954 Act. 

6.6.2 The parties agree that the provisions of sections 24 to 28 of the 
1954 Act are excluded in relation to the tenancy created by this 
Lease.  

6.7 Notices 

The service and receipt of notices shall be undertaken in accordance with the 
terms of the Contract. 

6.8 Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999 

Page 138



 

14 
LEGAL\56382298v2 

A person who is not a party to this Lease shall not have any rights under or in 
connection with this Lease by virtue of the Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) 
Act 1999. 

6.9 Warranty on Use 

Nothing in this Lease constitutes or shall constitute a representation or 
warranty that the Property may lawfully be used for any purpose allowed by 
this Lease. 

6.10 Governing law 

This lease and any dispute or claim arising out of or in connection with it or 
its subject matter or formation (including non-contractual disputes or claims) 
shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the law of England 
and Wales. 

6.11 Jurisdiction 

Each party irrevocably agrees that the courts of England and Wales shall have 
exclusive jurisdiction to settle any dispute or claim arising out of or in 
connection with this lease or its subject matter or formation (including non-
contractual disputes or claims). 

6.12 Local Authority Landlord’s Capacity and Powers 

The Landlord enters into this Lease solely in its capacity as a landowner in 
respect of the Property and not in any other capacity. Nothing in this Lease 
shall restrict the Landlord’s powers or rights as a local authority, local 
planning authority or statutory body to perform any of its statutory functions. 

This Lease is executed as a deed and is delivered on the date stated at the beginning of this 
Lease.  

Page 139



 

15 
LEGAL\56382298v2 

Schedule 1 Exceptions and reservations 

1 A right of way at all times, with or without vehicles, plant machinery and/ or 
equipment over and along the roadway shown coloured brown on the Plan for the 
purpose of gaining access to and egress from the Retained Land 

2 The right to the free and uninterrupted passage and running of Services to and from 
the Retained Land in and through the Conducting Media which now are or may at any 
time hereafter during the Term be in, upon, through, under or over the Property. 

3 The right to maintain in, on, through, under or over the Property at any time during 
the Term any easements or services for the benefit of the Retained Land, the right 
to connect into any Conducting Media on the Property and the right to install and 
construct Conducting Media at the Property to serve any part of the Retained Land. 

4 Rights of light, air, support and protection to the extent those rights are capable of 
being enjoyed at any time during the term. 

5 At any time during the term, the full and free right to develop any part of the 
Retained Land and any neighbouring or adjoining Property in which the Landlord 
acquires an interest during the term as the Landlord may think fit. 

6 The right to build on or into any boundary wall of the Property in connection with 
any of the Reservations. 

7 The right to re-route any Conducting Media at or serving the Property. 

8 The right at any time during the Term in accordance with the conditions for such 
entry included within the Contract or otherwise (if no such conditions apply) at 
reasonable times and after reasonable prior written notice (except in an emergency 
when no notice shall be required) to enter upon the Property to: 

8.1 inspect, maintain, relay, repair, replace or renew or execute any works 
whatever to or in connection with any of the Conducting Media easements or 
Services referred to in paragraphs 3 and 4 of this Schedule 1; 

8.2 to erect scaffolding at the Property and attach it to any building or structure 
on the Property in connection with any of the Reserved Rights; 

8.3 carry out any cleaning and or maintenance of the Landlord’s Retained Land; 
or 

8.4 exercise any of the rights granted or reserved to the Landlord by this Lease 
or the Contract, 

the Landlord exercising such rights only if such works cannot reasonably be effected 
without such entry and causing as little inconvenience as possible and remedying any 
physical damage so caused to the Tenant’s reasonable satisfaction. 

9 All liberties, privileges, easements, quasi-easements, rights and advantages 
whatsoever now held or enjoyed with or appertaining or reputed to appertain to any 
other part of the Retained Land provided always that those matters or any of them 
reserved pursuant to this paragraph do not materially interfere with the Tenant’s 
proper performance and exercise of its obligations and rights contained in the 
Contract. 

Page 140



 

16 
LEGAL\56382298v2 

10 The right to deal in any manner whatsoever with the Retained Land and to erect, 
maintain, rebuild or alter or suffer to be erected, maintained, rebuilt or altered 
thereon any buildings whatsoever. 

11 The right of support and protection by and from the Property for adjoining buildings 
(whether now in existence or erected during the term) situated on the Retained 
Land. 

12 The mines and minerals under the Property and the airspace above the buildings on 
the Property.  

[DN: The Landlord reserves the right to revise these reservations on a site by site basis] 

Page 141



 

17 
LEGAL\56382298v2 

Schedule 2 Rights granted to the Tenant 

1 The right of support and protection by and from the Retained Land for the Property 
and buildings (whether now in existence or erected during the term) situated on the 
Property. 

2 The right at any time during the Term in accordance with the conditions for such 
entry included within the Contract or otherwise (if no such conditions apply) at 
reasonable times and after reasonable prior written notice (except in an emergency 
when no notice shall be required) to enter upon the Retained Land to: 

2.1 carry out any cleaning and or maintenance of the Property; or 

2.2 exercise any of the rights granted or reserved to the tenant by this Lease or 
the Contract, 

the Tenant exercising such rights only if such works cannot reasonably be effected 
without such entry and causing as little inconvenience as possible and remedying any 
physical damage so caused to the Landlord’s reasonable satisfaction.  

  

  

Page 142



 

18 
LEGAL\56382298v2 

EXECUTED AS A DEED by the affixing of ) 
THE COMMON SEAL of THE SHEFFIELD  ) 
CITY COUNCIL in the presence of:  ) 

 

Authorised Signatory 

 

[TENANT’S EXECUTION CLAUSE] 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 143



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 144



Document is Restricted

Page 145

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Sheffield City Council 

1 
 

Appendix 11 – Survey Results from the Hillsborough Park Activity Hub 
Consultation April 2022 
 

 

The consultation was live from 04/04/2022 to 02/05/2022 

There were 607 responses to this survey 

A series of FAQs were provided to give greater context to the proposal – these can be 
found on page 40 of this document. 

1: What type of involvement do you have with Hillsborough Park? Please select 
all that are relevant.  
Q1 stakeholder 

There were 607 responses to this part of the question. 

Page 147



Sheffield City Council 

2 
 

 

 

 

 

Option Total Percent 
Local resident 418 68.86% 
Local business owner 15 2.47% 
In-park operator (concession, activity operator etc.) 12 1.98% 

Member of Friends of Hillsborough Park 35 5.77% 
Member of a local community group 52 8.57% 
Regular park user 403 66.39% 
Sheffield resident park visitor 222 36.57% 
Non-Sheffield resident park visitor 9 1.48% 

None of the above

Other

Non-Sheffield resident park visitor

Sheffield resident park visitor

Regular park user

Member of a local community group

Member of Friends of Hillsborough Park

In-park operator (concession, activity o
perator etc.)

Local business owner

Local resident

0 50 100 150 200 250 300 350 400 450

Page 148



Sheffield City Council 

3 
 

Other 14 2.31% 
None of the above 9 1.48% 
Not Answered 0 0.00% 

 

2: How often do you visit Hillsborough Park? 
Q2 visiting 

There were 606 responses to this part of the question. 

 

Option Total Percent 
Daily 74 12.19% 
Several times a week 201 33.11% 
About once a week 170 28.01% 
About once a month 78 12.85% 
Every other month or so 37 6.10% 

Not Answered

Never visited

Less than once a year

Once a year

About every six months

Every other month or so

About once a month

About once a week

Several times a week

Daily

0 50 100 150 200 250

Page 149



Sheffield City Council 

4 
 

About every six months 18 2.97% 
Once a year 9 1.48% 
Less than once a year 11 1.81% 
Never visited 8 1.32% 
Not Answered 1 0.16% 

 
 

 

3: What are your main reasons for visiting the park? Please select all that apply. 
Q3 visiting 

There were 606 responses to this part of the question. 

 

Option Total Percent 
As a green route/cut through 226 37.23% 
Attending community groups or meetings 45 7.41% 
Relaxing/Wildlife watching 249 41.02% 
Walking/dog walking 342 56.34% 

Not Answered

None of the above

Socialising

Playing football

Running

Picnics

Playground

Events

Multi-Use Games Area

Bowls

Tennis

Cycling/BMX/Skate/Scoo...

Walking/dog walking

Relaxing/Wildlife watching

Attending community groups or meetings

As a green route/cut through

0 50 100 150 200 250 300 350 400

Page 150



Sheffield City Council 

5 
 

Cycling/BMX/Skate/Scoot 85 14.00% 
Tennis 138 22.73% 
Bowls 5 0.82% 
Multi-Use Games Area 54 8.90% 
Events 112 18.45% 
Playground 210 34.60% 
Picnics 138 22.73% 
Running 161 26.52% 
Playing football 46 7.58% 
Socialising 262 43.16% 
None of the above 12 1.98% 
Not Answered 1 0.16% 

 

4: Focusing on the multi-use games area, how do you rate the following?  
Q4 MUGA rating - Multi-use games area (MUGA) surface 

There were 607 responses to this part of the question. 

 

Option Total Percent 
Very good 27 4.45% 
Good 121 19.93% 
Neither good nor poor 138 22.73% 

Don't know

No comment

Very poor

Poor

Neither good nor poor

Good

Very good

0 20 40 60 80 100 120 140 160

Page 151



Sheffield City Council 

6 
 

Poor 100 16.47% 
Very poor 59 9.72% 
No comment 24 3.95% 
Don't know 138 22.73% 
Not Answered 0 0.00% 

 
 

 

Q4 MUGA rating - Multi-use games area (MUGA) lighting 

There were 607 responses to this part of the question. 

 

Option Total Percent 
Very good 25 4.12% 
Good 110 18.12% 
Neither good nor poor 94 15.49% 
Poor 128 21.09% 
Very poor 53 8.73% 
No comment 26 4.28% 
Don't know 171 28.17% 
Not Answered 0 0.00% 

Don't know

No comment

Very poor

Poor

Neither good nor poor

Good

Very good

0 20 40 60 80 100 120 140 160 180

Page 152



Sheffield City Council 

7 
 

 
 

Q4 MUGA rating - Accessibility to the Multi-use games area (MUGA) 

There were 607 responses to this part of the question. 

 

Option Total Percent 
Very good 71 11.70% 
Good 193 31.80% 
Neither good nor poor 112 18.45% 
Poor 51 8.40% 
Very poor 21 3.46% 
No comment 26 4.28% 
Don't know 133 21.91% 
Not Answered 0 0.00% 

 
 

 

Q4 MUGA rating - Table Tennis 

There were 607 responses to this part of the question. 

Don't know

No comment

Very poor

Poor

Neither good nor poor

Good

Very good

0 50 100 150 200 250

Page 153



Sheffield City Council 

8 
 

 

Option Total Percent 
Very good 25 4.12% 
Good 98 16.14% 
Neither good nor poor 107 17.63% 
Poor 88 14.50% 
Very poor 38 6.26% 
No comment 45 7.41% 
Don't know 206 33.94% 
Not Answered 0 0.00% 

 
 

 

 

 

5: How often to you use the Multi-Use Games Area? 
Q5 MUGA use 

There were 607 responses to this part of the question. 

Don't know

No comment

Very poor

Poor

Neither good nor poor

Good

Very good

0 50 100 150 200 250

Page 154



Sheffield City Council 

9 
 

 

Option Total Percent 
Daily 2 0.33% 
Several times a week 26 4.28% 
About once a week 78 12.85% 
About once a month 68 11.20% 
Every other month or so 51 8.40% 
About every six months 39 6.43% 
Once a year 20 3.29% 
Less than yearly 62 10.21% 
I have never used the MUGA 261 43.00% 
Not Answered 0 0.00% 

 
 

 

 

I have never used the MUGA

Less than yearly

Once a year

About every six months

Every other month or so

About once a month

About once a week

Several times a week

Daily

0 50 100 150 200 250 300

Page 155



Sheffield City Council 

10 
 

6: What do you use the Multi-Use Games Area [MUGA] for? Please select all 
that apply. 
Q6 MUGA Use 

There were 575 responses to this part of the question. 

 

Option Total Percent 
I do not use the MUGA 268 44.15% 
Playing basketball 74 12.19% 
Playing netball 11 1.81% 
Running exercises 71 11.70% 
Riding bikes 79 13.01% 
Scooting 57 9.39% 
Football 111 18.29% 
Other 64 10.54% 
Not Answered 32 5.27% 

Not Answered

Other

Football

Scooting

Riding bikes

Running exercises

Playing netball

Playing basketball

I do not use the MUGA

0 50 100 150 200 250 300

Page 156



Sheffield City Council 

11 
 

 
 
Q6 MUGA use comments 

There were 74 responses to this part of the question which can be found in the raw data 

7: Do you have any further comments about the existing Multi-Use Games 
Area? (e.g. usage, size, quality or anything else) 
 
Q7 MUGA comments 

There were 211 responses to this part of the question, which can be found in the raw 
data 

8: Focusing on the tennis courts, how do you rate the following? 
Q8 Tennis court rating - Tennis court surface 

There were 607 responses to this part of the question. 

 

Option Total Percent 
Very good 22 3.62% 
Good 114 18.78% 
Neither good nor poor 99 16.31% 
Poor 80 13.18% 

Don't know

No Comment

Very Poor

Poor

Neither good nor poor

Good

Very good

0 50 100 150 200 250

Page 157



Sheffield City Council 

12 
 

Very Poor 41 6.75% 
No Comment 34 5.60% 
Don't know 217 35.75% 
Not Answered 0 0.00% 

 
 

Q8 Tennis court rating - Tennis court lighting 

There were 607 responses to this part of the question. 

 

Option Total Percent 
Very good 24 3.95% 
Good 91 14.99% 
Neither good nor poor 89 14.66% 
Poor 99 16.31% 
Very Poor 35 5.77% 
No Comment 32 5.27% 
Don't know 237 39.04% 
Not Answered 0 0.00% 

 
 

 

Don't know

No Comment

Very Poor

Poor

Neither good nor poor

Good

Very good

0 50 100 150 200 250

Page 158



Sheffield City Council 

13 
 

 

Q8 Tennis court rating - Accessibility to the tennis court area 

There were 607 responses to this part of the question. 

 

Option Total Percent 
Very good 42 6.92% 
Good 161 26.52% 
Neither good nor poor 107 17.63% 
Poor 52 8.57% 
Very Poor 30 4.94% 
No Comment 26 4.28% 
Don't know 189 31.14% 
Not Answered 0 0.00% 

 
 

 

 

9: How often do you book to use the tennis courts? 
Q9 tennis booking 

Don't know

No Comment

Very Poor

Poor

Neither good nor poor

Good

Very good

0 20 40 60 80 100 120 140 160 180 200

Page 159



Sheffield City Council 

14 
 

There were 607 responses to this part of the question. 

 

Option Total Percent 
Several times a week 11 1.81% 
About once a week 53 8.73% 
About once a month 49 8.07% 
Every other month or so 40 6.59% 
About every six months 37 6.10% 
Once a year 25 4.12% 
Less than once a year 45 7.41% 
Never 347 57.17% 
Not Answered 0 0.00% 

 
 

 

 

Never

Less than once a year

Once a year

About every six months

Every other month or so

About once a month

About once a week

Several times a week

0 50 100 150 200 250 300 350 400

Page 160



Sheffield City Council 

15 
 

10: What do you think about the current tennis provision? 
 
Q10 tennis comments  

There were 246 responses to this part of the question. 

11: We are exploring the option of renovating the tennis courts and Multi-Use 
Games Area into a Multi-Activity Hub. What do you think of these proposed 
new facilities?  
 
Q11 new facilities  - Resurfaced/floodlit tennis courts 

There were 607 responses to this part of the question. 

 

Option Total Percent 
Strongly oppose 24 3.95% 
Oppose 15 2.47% 
Neither support nor oppose 73 12.03% 
Support 178 29.32% 
Strongly support 299 49.26% 
No comment 18 2.97% 
Not Answered 0 0.00% 

 
 

No comment

Strongly support

Support

Neither support nor oppose

Oppose

Strongly oppose

0 50 100 150 200 250 300 350

Page 161



Sheffield City Council 

16 
 

 

 

 

Q11 new facilities  - Resurfaced/floodlit MUGA (e.g. for football, basketball, cricket 
and netball) 

There were 607 responses to this part of the question. 

 

Option Total Percent 
Strongly oppose 25 4.12% 
Oppose 14 2.31% 
Neither support nor oppose 60 9.88% 
Support 197 32.45% 
Strongly support 291 47.94% 
No comment 20 3.29% 
Not Answered 0 0.00% 

 
 

Q11 new facilities  - Indoor multi-purpose activity space (e.g. for 'pay as you go' 
exercise or community get-togethers) 

There were 607 responses to this part of the question. 

No comment

Strongly support

Support

Neither support nor oppose

Oppose

Strongly oppose

0 50 100 150 200 250 300 350

Page 162



Sheffield City Council 

17 
 

 

Option Total Percent 
Strongly oppose 83 13.67% 
Oppose 65 10.71% 
Neither support nor oppose 65 10.71% 
Support 148 24.38% 
Strongly support 234 38.55% 
No comment 12 1.98% 
Not Answered 0 0.00% 

 
 

 

 

 

Q11 new facilities  - Landscaped mini golf/putting course 

There were 607 responses to this part of the question. 

No comment

Strongly support

Support

Neither support nor oppose

Oppose

Strongly oppose

0 50 100 150 200 250

Page 163



Sheffield City Council 

18 
 

 

Option Total Percent 
Strongly oppose 61 10.05% 
Oppose 65 10.71% 
Neither support nor oppose 98 16.14% 
Support 148 24.38% 
Strongly support 221 36.41% 
No comment 14 2.31% 
Not Answered 0 0.00% 

 
 

Q11 new facilities  - Covered padel tennis (easier, short court game)  [additional 
info below] 

There were 607 responses to this part of the question. 

No comment

Strongly support

Support

Neither support nor oppose

Oppose

Strongly oppose

0 50 100 150 200 250

Page 164



Sheffield City Council 

19 
 

 

Option Total Percent 
Strongly oppose 58 9.56% 
Oppose 51 8.40% 
Neither support nor oppose 139 22.90% 
Support 144 23.72% 
Strongly support 191 31.47% 
No comment 24 3.95% 
Not Answered 0 0.00% 

 
 

Q11 new facilities  - Shuffleboard/petanque [additional info below] 

There were 607 responses to this part of the question. 

No comment

Strongly support

Support

Neither support nor oppose

Oppose

Strongly oppose

0 50 100 150 200 250

Page 165



Sheffield City Council 

20 
 

 

Option Total Percent 
Strongly oppose 42 6.92% 
Oppose 52 8.57% 
Neither support nor oppose 151 24.88% 
Support 152 25.04% 
Strongly support 165 27.18% 
No comment 45 7.41% 
Not Answered 0 0.00% 

 
 

Q11 new facilities  - Table tennis tables 

There were 607 responses to this part of the question. 

No comment

Strongly support

Support

Neither support nor oppose

Oppose

Strongly oppose

0 20 40 60 80 100 120 140 160 180

Page 166



Sheffield City Council 

21 
 

 

Option Total Percent 
Strongly oppose 26 4.28% 
Oppose 24 3.95% 
Neither support nor oppose 132 21.75% 
Support 209 34.43% 
Strongly support 195 32.13% 
No comment 21 3.46% 
Not Answered 0 0.00% 

 
 

Q11 new facilities  - Accessible toilets/welfare and catering facilities 

There were 607 responses to this part of the question. 

No comment

Strongly support

Support

Neither support nor oppose

Oppose

Strongly oppose

0 50 100 150 200 250

Page 167



Sheffield City Council 

22 
 

 

Option Total Percent 
Strongly oppose 34 5.60% 
Oppose 24 3.95% 
Neither support nor oppose 34 5.60% 
Support 117 19.28% 
Strongly support 389 64.09% 
No comment 9 1.48% 
Not Answered 0 0.00% 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

No comment

Strongly support

Support

Neither support nor oppose

Oppose

Strongly oppose

0 50 100 150 200 250 300 350 400 450

Page 168



Sheffield City Council 

23 
 

12: From previous consultations regarding Hillsborough Park we have heard 
differing opinions around the need for additional indoor activity space in 
Hillsborough Park. Would you support a new indoor activity space for year-
round use as part of the Activity Hub? 
Q12 indoor area 

There were 607 responses to this part of the question. 

 

Option Total Percent 
Yes - fully indoor space 233 38.39% 
No - fully indoor space 70 11.53% 
Yes - covered outdoor area 135 22.24% 
No - covered outdoor area 44 7.25% 
Unsure 113 18.62% 
No comment 12 1.98% 
Not Answered 0 0.00% 

 
 

 

No comment

Unsure

No - covered outdoor area

Yes - covered outdoor area

No - fully indoor space

Yes - fully indoor space

0 50 100 150 200 250

Page 169



Sheffield City Council 

24 
 

13: If you are supportive of an indoor activity space, how interested would you 
be in using an indoor space for the following activities? 
 
 
Q13 indoor use - Gentle/moderate activity, e.g. chairobics 

There were 553 responses to this part of the question. 

 

Option Total Percent 
Very uninterested 120 19.77% 
Uninterested 102 16.80% 
Neither uninterested nor interested 108 17.79% 
Interested 100 16.47% 
Very interested 58 9.56% 
No Comment 65 10.71% 
Not Answered 54 8.90% 

 
 

Q13 indoor use - Vigorous activity, e.g. fitness classes 

There were 550 responses to this part of the question. 

Not Answered

No Comment

Very interested

Interested

Neither uninterested nor interested

Uninterested

Very uninterested

0 20 40 60 80 100 120 140

Page 170



Sheffield City Council 

25 
 

 

 

Option Total Percent 
Very uninterested 87 14.33% 
Uninterested 59 9.72% 
Neither uninterested nor interested 91 14.99% 
Interested 158 26.03% 
Very interested 101 16.64% 
No Comment 54 8.90% 
Not Answered 57 9.39% 

 
 

 

 

Q13 indoor use - Local group use, e.g. table tennis club 

There were 555 responses to this part of the question. 

Not Answered

No Comment

Very interested

Interested

Neither uninterested nor interested

Uninterested

Very uninterested

0 20 40 60 80 100 120 140 160 180

Page 171



Sheffield City Council 

26 
 

 

Option Total Percent 
Very uninterested 78 12.85% 
Uninterested 62 10.21% 
Neither uninterested nor interested 127 20.92% 
Interested 145 23.89% 
Very interested 78 12.85% 
No Comment 65 10.71% 
Not Answered 52 8.57% 

 
 

Q13 indoor use - Community get-togethers, e.g. quizzes, bingo 

There were 555 responses to this part of the question. 

Not Answered

No Comment

Very interested

Interested

Neither uninterested nor interested

Uninterested

Very uninterested

0 20 40 60 80 100 120 140 160

Page 172



Sheffield City Council 

27 
 

 

Option Total Percent 
Very uninterested 99 16.31% 
Uninterested 87 14.33% 
Neither uninterested nor interested 114 18.78% 
Interested 134 22.08% 
Very interested 68 11.20% 
No Comment 53 8.73% 
Not Answered 52 8.57% 

 
 

Q13 indoor use - Private hire, e.g. birthday parties 

There were 549 responses to this part of the question. 

Not Answered

No Comment

Very interested

Interested

Neither uninterested nor interested

Uninterested

Very uninterested

0 20 40 60 80 100 120 140 160

Page 173



Sheffield City Council 

28 
 

 

Option Total Percent 
Very uninterested 96 15.82% 
Uninterested 66 10.87% 
Neither uninterested nor interested 86 14.17% 
Interested 170 28.01% 
Very interested 78 12.85% 
No Comment 53 8.73% 
Not Answered 58 9.56% 

 
 

Q13 indoor use - Pop-up health services, e.g. exercise referrals, nutrition advice 

There were 553 responses to this part of the question. 

Not Answered

No Comment

Very interested

Interested

Neither uninterested nor interested

Uninterested

Very uninterested

0 20 40 60 80 100 120 140 160 180

Page 174



Sheffield City Council 

29 
 

 

Option Total Percent 
Very uninterested 81 13.34% 
Uninterested 48 7.91% 
Neither uninterested nor interested 101 16.64% 
Interested 172 28.34% 
Very interested 105 17.30% 
No Comment 46 7.58% 
Not Answered 54 8.90% 

 
 

14: Do you have any specific ideas for activities you would like to see (physical 
and/or social)? E.g. Netball/football league use, community hire space etc.  
 
Q14 activity suggestion 

There were 209 responses to this part of the question. 

 

 

 

Not Answered

No Comment

Very interested

Interested

Neither uninterested nor interested

Uninterested

Very uninterested

0 20 40 60 80 100 120 140 160 180 200

Page 175



Sheffield City Council 

30 
 

 

15: Do you support the proposal of the Hillsborough Activity Hub project? 
Q15 support HAB 

There were 607 responses to this part of the question. 

 

Option Total Percent 
Yes 412 67.87% 
No 101 16.64% 
Undecided 62 10.21% 
I need more information 32 5.27% 
Not Answered 0 0.00% 

 

16: Do you think you would make use of the Hillsborough Activity Hub? 
Q16 Using the Hub? 

There were 607 responses to this part of the question. 

I need more information

Undecided

No

Yes

0 50 100 150 200 250 300 350 400 450

Page 176



Sheffield City Council 

31 
 

 

Option Total Percent 
Yes 353 58.15% 
No 111 18.29% 
Unsure 139 22.90% 
No comment 4 0.66% 
Not Answered 0 0.00% 

 

 

17: How would an Activity Hub like this impact on your usage of Hillsborough 
Park? 
Q17 Hub impact on park use 

There were 607 responses to this part of the question. 

 

No comment

Unsure

No

Yes

0 50 100 150 200 250 300 350 400

I am unsure

I would use the park less than I current
ly do

I would use the park the same amount as 
I currently do

I would use the park more than I current
ly do

0 50 100 150 200 250 300 350

Page 177



Sheffield City Council 

32 
 

Option Total Percent 
I would use the park more than I currently do 320 52.72% 
I would use the park the same amount as I currently do 164 27.02% 

I would use the park less than I currently do 59 9.72% 
I am unsure 64 10.54% 
Not Answered 0 0.00% 

 
 

18: Please share any further comments regarding this proposal. This can 
include: positive/negative comments, thoughts, concerns, ideas, or questions. 
Please review the FAQ before commenting. 
 
Q18 proposal comments 

There were 272 responses to this part of the question. 

 

19: What is your age range? 
age 

There were 603 responses to this part of the question. 

Page 178



Sheffield City Council 

33 
 

 

Option Total Percent 
24 and under 16 2.64% 
25-34 115 18.95% 
35-44 197 32.45% 
45-54 110 18.12% 
55-64 97 15.98% 
65-74 57 9.39% 
75-84 11 1.81% 
85 and over 0 0.00% 
Not Answered 4 0.66% 

 
 

 

20: Ethnicity 
White 

There were 566 responses to this part of the question. 

Not Answered

75-84

65-74

55-64

45-54

35-44

25-34

24 and under

0 50 100 150 200 250

Page 179



Sheffield City Council 

34 
 

 

Option Total Percent 
English/Welsh/Scottish/British/Northern Irish 534 87.97% 
Irish 7 1.15% 
Gypsy/Irish Traveller 0 0.00% 
Roma 0 0.00% 
Other White background (please state below) 25 4.12% 
Not Answered 41 6.75% 

 
 

 
Other White background 

There were 16 responses to this part of the question. 

Asian or Asian British 

There were 10 responses to this part of the question. 

Not Answered

Other White background (please state bel
ow)

Irish

English/Welsh/Scottish...

0 100 200 300 400 500 600

Page 180



Sheffield City Council 

35 
 

 

Option Total Percent 
Indian 2 0.33% 
Pakistani 1 0.16% 
Bangladeshi 1 0.16% 
Chinese 2 0.33% 
Other Asian background (please state below) 4 0.66% 
Not Answered 597 98.35% 

 
 

 
Other Asian background 

There were 3 responses to this part of the question. 

Black or Black British 

There were 6 responses to this part of the question. 

Not Answered

Other Asian background (please state bel
ow)

Chinese

Bangladeshi

Pakistani

Indian

0 100 200 300 400 500 600 700

Page 181



Sheffield City Council 

36 
 

 

Option Total Percent 
Caribbean 3 0.49% 
Somali 1 0.16% 
Other African 1 0.16% 
Other Black background (please state below) 1 0.16% 
Not Answered 601 99.01% 

 
 

 
Black or Black British other 

There was 1 response to this part of the question. 

Other ethnic group 

There were 3 responses to this part of the question. 

 

Not Answered

Other Black background (please state bel
ow)

Other African

Somali

Caribbean

0 100 200 300 400 500 600 700

Not Answered

Other ethnic group (please state below)

Yemeni

0 100 200 300 400 500 600 700

Page 182



Sheffield City Council 

37 
 

Option Total Percent 
Yemeni 1 0.16% 
Other Arab 0 0.00% 
Other ethnic group (please state below) 2 0.33% 
Not Answered 604 99.51% 

 
 

 
Other ethnic group 

There was 1 response to this part of the question. 

Mixed /multiple heritage 

There were 9 responses to this part of the question. 

 

Option Total Percent 
White and Black Caribbean 3 0.49% 
White and Black African 0 0.00% 
White and Asian 1 0.16% 
Other Mixed background (please state below) 5 0.82% 
Not Answered 598 98.52% 

 
 

 
Other mixed background 

There were 2 responses to this part of the question. 

 

Not Answered

Other Mixed background (please state bel
ow)

White and Asian

White and Black Caribbean

0 100 200 300 400 500 600 700

Page 183



Sheffield City Council 

38 
 

21: What is your sex? 
sex 

There were 598 responses to this part of the question. 

 

Option Total Percent 
Female 365 60.13% 
Male 214 35.26% 
Prefer not to answer 19 3.13% 
Not Answered 9 1.48% 

 
 

 

22: Do you have a disability or a long-term health condition? 
disability 

There were 597 responses to this part of the question. 

 

Not Answered

Prefer not to answer

Male

Female

0 50 100 150 200 250 300 350 400

Not Answered

No

Yes

0 100 200 300 400 500 600

Page 184



Sheffield City Council 

39 
 

Option Total Percent 
Yes 104 17.13% 
No 493 81.22% 
Not Answered 10 1.65% 

 
 

 

23: Are you an unpaid carer for a family member or someone else? 
carer 

There were 591 responses to this part of the question. 

 

Option Total Percent 
Yes - for a child or young person with a disability or a 
long-term health condition 

25 4.12% 

Yes - for an adult with a disability or a long-term health 
condition 

27 4.45% 

Yes - for an elderly relative or friend 25 4.12% 
No - none of these 515 84.84% 
Not Answered 16 2.64% 

 
 

 

 

Not Answered

No - none of these

Yes - for an elderly relative or friend

Yes - for an adult with a disability or 
a long-term health condition

Yes - for a child or young person with a
 disability or a long-term health condit

ion

0 100 200 300 400 500 600

Page 185



Sheffield City Council 

40 
 

Hillsborough Activity Hub Consultation - FAQs 

Q – Why is Hillsborough Park being proposed for this Activity Hub? 

• The park is a city destination site with good transportation and access links. 

• The park already has a sports area, and this sports area is need of reinvestment due  

to the deteriorating conditions of the existing tennis and MUGA provision. 

• There are a range of complimentary developments that are currently progressing  

including the Coach House, the All-Wheels Track, improvements to the pathway and  

the playground improvements. 

• The provision of an exciting and high-quality facility of this nature will raise the  

standard of the park and increase its attractiveness as a destination and supporting  

it’s standing as an ‘Active Park’ - a destination green space that encourages and  

attract users of all ages and abilities from within a community to engage in sport and  

physical activities. 

• Currently, provision for this type of activity is lacking in the north of Sheffield. Not only  

would this be a unique project for the whole of the City but it would also be addressing  

a need for this area. 

Q – How would this project benefit Hillsborough Park? 

• This project would support aspirations for Hillsborough Park to be awarded Green  

Flag status.  

• Increased site presence throughout the day and into the evening.  

• Increases local access to high quality activity space which aids health and wellbeing. 

• Activity enhancement and sports training for local people.  

• New employment opportunities. 

• Increased parks income that supports reinvestment into Hillsborough Park.  

• Enables the redevelopment of the MUGA and tennis courts.  

• New free accessible toilets in the park.  

Page 186



Sheffield City Council 

41 
 

Q – How would this project be funded? 

It would be a combination of public and private funding. 

Due to budget constraints, Parks and Countryside, along with the Council as a whole, 
are faced with the difficult decision between cutting core Park services or moving 
forward creatively alongside third parties. The Better Parks initiative is the framework 
within which improvements can be made within parks that both help achieve desired 
outcomes alongside supporting external investment into green spaces. 

This is where project proposals such as the Multi-Activity Hub at Hillsborough Park come 
in. We have the opportunity to invite partners to work with us to develop proposals, 
whilst bringing much needed external investment to this. We have been working with the 
Lawn Tennis Association (LTA), Sport England and our existing Parks Tennis Operator, 
Courtside, to consider potential options for the site and all are supportive of bringing 
external investment to this development. 

Q – Would green-space be lost due to this development? 

It is proposed that this potential development would reside on the same footprint as the 
current tarmacked area that includes the Multi-use Games Area [MUGA] and tennis and 
table tennis courts. No additional open greenspace will be lost to this development.  

Q – Would we have to pay to access the Hillsborough Activity Hub? 

As with the current tennis courts, some facilities would be paid-for use such as the padel 
tennis and mini golf. We would work with the Operator to ensure these are affordable 
and promote inclusivity with related community engagement activity. Facilities such as 
the Multi-use Games Area [MUGA] and open access areas will be free to use as this is a 
core community asset.  

Q – Would the Hillsborough Activity Hub be open in the evening? 

We would be looking for an Operator who is able to provide a service in evenings and 
weekends, providing a presence and activity at times when the park is quieter and when 
perceptions of safety are lower. To be consistent the new All Wheels Park (and to fit with 
probable planning requirements) park lighting would turn off at 9pm in the evening. 

Q – How would existing park partners, operators, and users be accommodated? 

We are aware that this is a sizeable project, and we are working with stakeholders to 
ensure all voices are listened too. For example, we are in ongoing discussions with 
Cycling for All to support their needs and we are investigating how to accommodate their 
users across the wider park including the car park and across the improved path 
network.  

 

Page 187



Sheffield City Council 

42 
 

Q – Is there going to be another café-type offer? If so, does Hillsborough Park 
need two eateries? 

As with the previous point regarding a sustainable business model, there is the potential 
for the development of some welfare and catering facilities as part of the Hub. With the 
opening of the Age UK Café in 2022, this is an exciting time for Hillsborough Park, and 
we know from the Forward Plan consultation that this is going to address a real issue 
that people have felt for a long time.  

We think that a welfare facility and catering offer at the bottom of the park will only 
enhance the overall offer of Hillsborough Park, and also provide something unique which 
will likely appeal to different audiences, including those who may be accessing the All-
Wheels Site.  

Q – Does the project need planning permission? 

Yes. This project will need to obtain full planning permission.  

Q – What is Padel Tennis? 

Padel Tennis is a fun ‘bat and ball’ variation of the popular and well-loved game of tennis 
played in a smaller, enclosed court in a social doubles format (4 players). It is one of the 
fastest growing sports in the world. To find out more please go to: 
https://www.lta.org.uk/play/ways-to-play/padel/  

Q – What is Pétanque? 

From the family of boules, pétanque can be a social or competitive game that is suitable 
for all ages and abilities. The aim of the game is to throw your team's boules closest to 
the target ball - cochonnet. The closet at the end of the round is the winner! 

Q – What is Shuffleboard? 

Shuffleboard is like curling but without the ice! Teams go head-to-head to slide weighted 
discs into the triangular scoring zone - the highest points win. A game of strategy and 
skill, it’s fun for all! 

Q – If this project goes ahead, what would be the next steps? 

If this project obtains the necessary approvals to move forward, we would progress by 
taking this opportunity out to tender and invite offers from potential partners. We would 
have clearer timescales once this process has been undertaken. At which point we 
would go back to the community to share progress.  

Q – What if this project does not go ahead, what would be the next steps? 

If this project doesn’t go ahead, we will need to pursue alternative means of improving 
the tennis and multi-use games area facilities. Due to the outlined financial constraints 
that Sheffield City Council are facing, alternatives to the partnership approach will 

Page 188

https://www.lta.org.uk/play/ways-to-play/padel/


Sheffield City Council 

43 
 

provide a much less sustainable future for the delivery of quality recreational facilities in 
this area of the park – and will not provide scope for a site presence with coaching and 
engagement professionals to support positive use of the space. 

Q – How to I stay up to date with the outcome and progress of this consultation 
and project? 

Once the feedback has been collected we will produce a report to share with all 
respondents. This will be published on the same website used to fill out the consultation 
and there will be information shared on site at Hillsborough Park. We will also be sharing 
further feedback with key park stakeholders such as the Friends of Hillsborough Park 
and Cycling 4All directly. To stay in touch please follow @SheffieldParks on Facebook 
and @ParksSheffield on Instagram and Twitter to stay up to date with developments 
with this project and others! Any questions can be directed to Sheffield Parks and 
Countryside –parksandcountryside@sheffield.gov.uk or call 0114 250 0500. 

Page 189



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 190



Document is Restricted

Page 191

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 199

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 12 – Site Plans 

Page 213



Page 214



Page 215



Page 216



 

Page 217



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 218



 1 
 
 

APPENDIX 13 – Current parks tennis programme performance insight for 2022 

2022 saw; 

• 19,207 court bookings was which was a 52% increase from 2019 (pre-covid) 
• 5395 unique users: up 54% vs pre-Covid 2019 baseline (there is approx. 2800 unique 

users linked in a club setting) 
• Social value/IMD decile player mapping: £192k of social value p.a., with 16% of all 

parks players live in the top 3 most deprived IMD deciles (significant variations for 
each park) 
 

The heat maps below show where people are travelling from, to the courts across Sheffield.  

Map 1 – Sheffield – All Sites 

 
Demographics; 

• The programme attracts around 34% female participants 
• 74% of respondents do not play at any other tennis venues (therefore are not ‘club 

tennis’ players) 
• There is a broad split across all ages from young to old; 

o Under 18 - 8% 
o 19-29 – 15% 
o 30-39 – 20% 
o 40-49 – 23% 

Page 219



 2 
 
 

o 50-59 – 13% 
o 60+ - 21% 

• 17% of participants are from a Black and Minority Ethnic Background 
• More than half of all participants are in a low or average household income;  

o 16% of participants are in a low-income household, 39% of participants are in 
an average income household. 

More recently the programme has been evaluated by Sheffield Hallam University against the 
social value that it delivers, the findings are summarised below; 

 

Page 220



Policy Committee Report                                                        April 2022 

 

 
 

Report to Policy Committee 
 
Author/Lead Officer of Report:   
 
Tony Kirkham- Director of Finance and 
Commercial Services 
 
Tel:   

 
Report of: 
 

Tony Kirkham- Director of Finance and 
Commercial Services 
 

Report to: 
 

Charity Trustee Sub Committee 

Date of Decision: 
 

21st March 2023 

Subject: Sheffield City Council 2021/22 Charity 
Accounts 
 
 

 
Has an Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) been undertaken? Yes  No X  
 
If YES, what EIA reference number has it been given?   (Insert reference number) 

Has appropriate consultation taken place? Yes X No   
 
Has a Climate Impact Assessment (CIA) been undertaken? Yes  No X  
 
 
Does the report contain confidential or exempt information? Yes  No X  
 
If YES, give details as to whether the exemption applies to the full report / part of the 
report and/or appendices and complete below:- 
 
“The (report/appendix) is not for publication because it contains exempt information 
under Paragraph (insert relevant paragraph number) of Schedule 12A of the Local 
Government Act 1972 (as amended).” 
 
 
Purpose of Report: 
 
The purpose of the report is to present the 2021/22 Sheffield City Council Charity 
Accounts, to communicate any relevant matters arising from the external auditors’ 
independent examination, and to conclude the examination, request that Trustee 
approval is given by signing the Letter of Management Representations, the 
Statement of Accounts and the Annual Trustees Report.  

 

Page 221

Agenda Item 8



Page 2 of 7 

 
Recommendations: 
 
It is recommended that: 
 

• The Charity Trustee Sub Committee notes the 2021/22 Sheffield City 
Council Charity Accounts and outcome of the external auditor’s independent 
examination undertaken by Rogers Spencer Ltd Chartered Accountants. 
 

• The Charity Trustee Sub Committee approves the 2021/22 Charity 
Accounts. The Chair of the Charity Sub-Committee will sign the Statement 
of Accounts, Trustee Report and Letter of Management Representations to 
conclude the external auditor’s independent examination.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Background Papers: 
 
Included for reference and approval are the 2021/22 Charity Accounts and Letter 
of Management Representations for the following sites: 
 

• Graves Park 
• Hillsborough Park 
• Norfolk Park 
• Weston Park 
• Firth Park 
• Endcliffe Park 
• Richmond Park 
• High Hazels Park 
• City Hall Gardens 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 222



Page 3 of 7 

Lead Officer to complete:- 
 

Finance:  Janinne Scarborough  

Legal:  David Hollis  

Equalities & Consultation:  (Insert name of officer 
consulted)  

1 I have consulted the relevant departments 
in respect of any relevant implications 
indicated on the Statutory and Council 
Policy Checklist, and comments have 
been incorporated / additional forms 
completed / EIA completed, where 
required. 

Climate:  (Insert name of officer consulted) 
 

 Legal, financial/commercial and equalities implications must be included within the report and 
the name of the officer consulted must be included above. 

2 SLB member who approved 
submission: 

(Insert name of relevant Executive Director) 

3 Committee Chair consulted:  Cllr Bryan Lodge 

4 I confirm that all necessary approval has been obtained in respect of the implications indicated 
on the Statutory and Council Policy Checklist and that the report has been approved for 
submission to the Committee by the SLB member indicated at 2.  In addition, any additional 
forms have been completed and signed off as required at 1.  

 Lead Officer Name: 
Tony Kirkham 

Job Title:  
Director of Finance and Commercial Services 
 

 Date:  7th March 2023 

 
 

Page 223



Page 4 of 7 

 
  
1. 
 
 

PROPOSAL  
 
Purpose 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The purpose of the report is to present the 2021/22 Sheffield City Council 
Charity Accounts, to communicate any relevant matters arising from the 
external auditor’s independent examination, and to request that approval 
is given to conclude the independent examination by signing the Letter of 
Management Representations, the Financial Statements, and Annual 
Trustees Report.  
 
Introduction and Background 
 
Several sites within Sheffield City Council have charitable status, 
meaning they are used for public benefit and improving people’s lives.  
 
Each year a set of statutory accounts accompanied by a trustee report is 
prepared for each charity, setting out the financial position for the year. 
These are subject to independent examination by external auditors’ 
(dependant on income thresholds), and once finalised, these are 
published with the Charity Commission.  
 
The accounts are prepared in accordance with relevant guidance, 
legislation and financial reporting standards for Accounting and reporting 
by charities, as set out in Note 1 to the Accounts. 
 
This report includes charity accounts for the following sites: 
 

• Graves Park 
• Hillsborough Park 
• Norfolk Park 
• Weston Park 
• Firth Park 
• Endcliffe Park 
• Richmond Park 
• High Hazels Park 
• City Hall Gardens 

 
 
Governance: 
 
Sheffield City Council is the sole Trustee of each charity, acting through 
the Charity Trustee Sub Committee. 
 
Trustee responsibilities with respect of the accounts are to ensure that: 
 

• Financial statements are prepared which give a true and fair view 
of the state of affairs of the charity for that period, and that they 

Page 224



Page 5 of 7 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

comply with statute and other financial accounting regulations. 

• Proper accounting records are kept that disclose with reasonable 
accuracy the financial position of the charity.  

• The assets of the charity are safe-guarded and reasonable steps 
are taken for the prevention and detection of fraud and other 
irregularities. 

Further detail regarding Trustees responsibilities can be seen in the 
Trustees Report to the accounts. 

 
2021/22 Accounts 

The accounts for 2021/22 have been prepared and the independent 
examination has been undertaken by Rogers Spencer Ltd.  

The accounts consist of: 

• A statement of financial activities (income and expenditure 
account) 

• Balance sheet 

• Trustees report 

• Independent Examiners report (External Audit) 

The Trustees report for each charity includes any notable achievements 
and performance in the year.  

The financial statements and accompanying Trustee reports are 
attached, to be signed by the Chair of the Charity Trustee Sub 
Committee to conclude the independent examination. 

 

External Audit  

Independent Examination 

The auditors have completed their independent examination and confirm 
that there are no matters to bring to Trustees attention to enable a proper 
understanding of the financial statements to be reached. Full details of 
the report signed by Rogers Spencer Ltd can be found within each set of 
accounts. 

 

Management representations 

External auditors are required to undertake their work in accordance with 
International Auditing Standards. To complete their independent 
examination, and to satisfy their auditing standards, they are requesting 

Page 225



Page 6 of 7 

 
 
 
 
 
 

written management representation from those charged with governance.  

The auditors are also required to ask those charged with governance to 
confirm that there are no material uncertainties that cast significant doubt 
about the ability of the Council to continue as a going concern.  

Appropriate enquiries have been made within the Council and no 
material uncertainties have been identified. 

A letter of management representations for each site is attached in the 
format prescribed by external audit, to be signed by the Chair of the 
Charity Trustee Sub Committee to conclude the audit. 

 

Recommendations 

It is recommended that: 
 

• The Charity Trustee Sub Committee notes the 2021/22 Sheffield 
City Council Charity Accounts and outcome of the external 
auditors’ independent examination undertaken by Rogers Spencer 
Ltd Chartered Accountants. 
 

• The Charity Trustee Sub Committee approves the 2021/22 Charity 
Accounts. The Chair of the Charity Sub-Committee will sign the 
Statement of Accounts, Trustee Report and Letter of Management 
Representations.  

  
  
2. HOW DOES THIS DECISION CONTRIBUTE? 
  
  

2.1 Approval of the 2021/22 Charity Accounts will conclude the external audit 
independent examination and allow publication with the Charity 
Commission. This will provide publicly available robust and transparent 
financial information for each of the charity sites. 

  
  
3. HAS THERE BEEN ANY CONSULTATION? 
  
3.1 Relevant management and staff have been consulted as appropriate 

throughout the process. 
  

 
  
4. RISK ANALYSIS AND IMPLICATIONS OF THE DECISION 
  
4.1 Equality Implications 
  
4.1.1 There are no equal opportunities implications arising from the 

Page 226



Page 7 of 7 

recommendations set out in this report. 
  
4.2 Financial and Commercial Implications 
  
4.2.1 There are no financial implications arising from the recommendations set 

out in this report. 
  
4.3 Legal Implications 
  
4.3.1 The legal implications in relation to this report are as set out in the 

Statements of Account and Trustees Reports for each trust. 
  
4.4 Climate Implications 
  
4.4.1 There are no climate implications arising from the recommendations set 

out in this report 
  
4.4 Other Implications 
  
4.4.1 There are no other implications arising from the recommendations set out 

in this report 
  
  
5. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
  
5.1 No further options have been considered but rejected in the course of 

developing this report. 
  
  
  
6. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
  
6.1 The Trustees of the Charity Accounts included in this report are required 

to approve the financial statements in order to provide audit assurance 
that their obligations as trustees to the charities have been met and 
subsequently conclude the external audit independent examination 
process, allowing for publication of the annual returns with the Charity 
Commission. 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 227



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 228



 

  

 

  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

GRAVES PARK 
TRUSTEES’ REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 
 

REGISTERED CHARITY NUMBER 510841 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 229



 

  

 

  

GRAVES PARK 
 
CONTENTS 
 
 
 
 
 
 Page 
  
 
Reference and administrative details           1  
 
Trustees’ report  2 - 8 
  
Independent examiner’s Report  9 
 
Statement of financial activities  10 - 11 
 
Balance sheet  12 
 
Notes to the financial statements  13 - 21

Page 230



 

  

 

1  

GRAVES PARK 
REFERENCE AND ADMINISTRATIVE DETAILS 
 
CHARITY NO: 510841     
 
     
TRUSTEES    
 
Sheffield City Council is the sole Trustee of the charity, acting through the Charity 
Trustee Sub Committee. 
 
Charity Sub-Committee Members: 
 
Cllr Bryan Lodge (Chair) 
Cllr Richard Williams (Deputy Chair) 
Cllr Douglas Johnson (Spokesperson) 
Cllr Julie Grocutt 
Cllr Mick Rooney 
 
 
PRINCIPAL ADDRESS 
Sheffield City Council 
Parks and Countryside 
Moorfoot 
Level 3 West wing 
Sheffield 
S1 4PL 
 
 
INDEPENDENT EXAMINER 
Melvin Bailey FCCA DChA 
for and on behalf of Rogers Spencer 
Chartered Accountants 
Newstead House 
Pelham Road 
Nottingham 
NG5 1AP 
 

Page 231



 

  

 

2  

GRAVES PARK 
TRUSTEES’ REPORT 
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 
 
The trustees present their report together with the financial statements of the charity for the 
year ended 31 March 2022. The financial statements have been prepared in accordance 
with the accounting policies set out in note 1 to the accounts and comply with the charity’s 
trust deed, the Charities Act 2011 and the requirements of the Statement of Recommended 
Practice, ‘Accounting and Reporting by Charities’ Financial Reporting Standard applicable 
in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) effective on 1 January 2019  (Updated second 
edition – October 19). 
 
DESCRIPTION OF CHARITY’S TRUSTS AND OBJECTS  
 
The governing document is a scheme dated 12 March 2009. The Park is held on trust for 
the recreation of the public as public walks or pleasure grounds or as an open space within 
the meaning of the Open Space Act 1906. 
 
STRUCTURE, GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT 
 
Graves Park is a charity and the sole Trustee is Sheffield City Council. The Charity 
Trustee Sub Committee is a standing sub committee of the Strategy and Resources 
Policy Committee. It has been established to take all decisions of the Council, including 
but not limited to disposal of and other dealings with charitable land.  
 
Management of the park is the responsibility of the Councils’ Parks and Countryside 
service. Management and administrative decisions which are not decisions of the Council 
as Trustee, may be made, in accordance with the Council constitution delegations, by the 
Executive Director of Operational Services, the Director of Parks, Leisure and Libraries, or 
the head of Parks and Countryside service. 
  
  
PUBLIC BENEFIT 
 
The Trustees have complied with the duty in Section 4 of the Charities Act 2011 to have 
due regard to public benefit guidance published by the Charity Commission. Details of how 
the charity has carried out its activities for the public benefit are given in the section below. 
 
OBJECTIVES AND ACTIVITIES 
 
The object of the charity is the provision and maintenance of a park and recreation ground 
for use by the public with the object of improving their conditions of life.  Graves Park is 
classified as a city park and a major visitor attraction with bowling greens, tennis courts, 
pitch and putt golf, cricket, football and a popular animal farm. 
 
The charity operates for the benefit of the inhabitants of Sheffield  without distinction of sex, 
race or political, religious or other opinions in a common effort to advance education, health 
and wellbeing and to provide facilities for recreation and other leisure time occupation with 
the object of improving the health and condition of life of the said inhabitants and, particularly 
of those who have need of such facilities by reason of their youth, age, infirmity or 
disablement, poverty or social and economic circumstances. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 232



 

  

 

3  

GRAVES PARK 
TRUSTEES’ REPORT 
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 
 
OBJECTIVES AND ACTIVITIES continued 
 
The object of the charity is met by the following on-going activities: 
 

 Provision of a well-maintained, safe and welcoming environment for casual 
recreation. 

 Provision of sports facilities for both formal and informal use by residents from 
across the city. 

 Provision of visitor services including Café. 
 Provision of a farm as a visitor attraction and educational resource. 

The charity has sought to utilise its financial resources including grant funding from Sheffield 
City Council and other fund-raising activities to provide a high quality recreational site for 
the benefit of the residents of the city of Sheffield. 
 
Graves Park and Graves Park Animal Farm’s annual assessment against the Green Flag 
criteria was carried out to determine current level of standard and to identify and implement 
incremental improvements. 
 
Concessions in the park continue to run such as the land train, inflatable attractions and the 
Tree Amigos Christmas tree sales concession over at the Charles Ashmore side of the park.  
 
Due to continued reduction in public finances and the consequential pressure on local 
authority budgets, the charity continues to review its fundraising activities to ensure 
improved security of, and increase in, financial resources available for its ongoing charitable 
activities. 
  
 
ACHIEVEMENTS AND PERFORMANCE 
 
Graves Park is important to many people both locally and from across Sheffield as a free to 
all city park and animal farm. It aims to enhance the lives of many people and is more critical 
now, following years of austerity, cuts in public funding and increasing community hardship 
following the pandemic.  We continue to provide a large and increasing variety of facilities 
for people of all ages and backgrounds, supported by an extensive events programme 
throughout the year. 
 
The park and animal farm are as busy as they have ever been with a high standard of 
visitor experience and many positive reviews for the farm and park. 
 
In the last year the following work has taken place: 
 

 Security CCTV installed around the Animal Farm 
 New Shelter for Animal Farm Shire Horse 
 A number of memorial trees planted 
 1 new bench in the park  
 2 new bins in the park 
 2 new goalposts installed to replace older posts that had become rusted and 

unsightly 
 
 

Page 233



 

  

 

4  

GRAVES PARK 
TRUSTEES’ REPORT 
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 
 
ACHIEVEMENTS AND PERFORMANCE Continued 
   

 Additional temporary bins for events that can be re-used as events become busier 
than ever 

 Improvements to the sand pit in the playground at the Rose Garden including new 
sand and posts 

 
The charity’s continued investment in park facilities and the provision of events and other 
visitor services ensures that the site remains a well-maintained, safe and welcoming 
environment for informal and formal recreation, and encourages increased use by the 
residents of the city, contributing to their health and well-being. 
 
 
GROUPS WITH INTEREST IN THE PARK 
 
There are 2 active Friends groups within the park, the Friends of Graves Park, and the 
Friends of Woodseats Playground. In 2021-22 the Friends of Graves Park purchased over 
1,000 new roses for the Rose Garden which were planted by the Graves Park gardening 
team in early 2022.  The Friends of Woodseats Playground have also been active and have 
secured over £15,000 which will be spent on a new piece of play equipment for the 
Woodseats playground which was installed in July 2022. 
 
A working relationship has also been established with the Sheffield Royal Society of the 
Blind who would like to develop a sensory entrance to the Rose Garden and planning work 
for this has been ongoing from October 2021 and is due to be completed in Spring 2023. 
 

 
 

EVENTS 
 
There has been a fuller events program in 2021 as the restrictions necessitated by COVID 
have been lifted. The Animal Farm has held several extremely popular events including a 
Family Fun Day, Halloween pumpkin picking event and Christmas trail around the farm. 
Feedback from all events in the park has been extremely positive and a further increased 
program of events is planned for 2022 including a rebranded Highland Fling/Country Fair 
and Animal Farm Easter Events which have both not been held since 2018.   
 
The following events took place during 21/22: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 234



 

  

 

5  

 
 
GRAVES PARK 
TRUSTEES’ REPORT 
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 
 
 
EVENTS Continued 
 

 
 
 
Future Plans 
 
 
We will continue to upgrade the Animal Farm for all to benefit including:  
 

 Add new litter bins and facilitate better litter provision for events and weekends 
when the park is busiest. 

 Work in partnership with the Friends of Graves Park to enhance the park including 
a project to work with additional community groups to remove Himalayan Balsam, 
a non-native, invasive species along the watercourses in the park 

 Support the Friends of Woodseats Playground to install equipment they are able to 
purchase through grant funding 

 Continue to work in partnership with the Sheffield Royal Society of the Blind to 
develop a sensory entrance to the Rose Garden 

 Investigate ways to improve facilities in the park including the potential to run 
additional portable food concessions 

 Continue to improve enrichment in the animal enclosures at the Animal Farm to 
enhance both animal welfare and visitor experience. 

 Develop income generation activities at the Animal Farm to offset increasing costs 
of welfare and utilities while continuing to enhance the visitor experience. 

Date EVENT
APPROX 

ATTENDANCE
ORGANISATION

03/05/2021 Highland Fling - COVID CANCELLED NA Major Events
01/06/2021 Jessops Superheroes Scavenger Hunt (All June) 150 Sheffield Hospitals Charity
13/07/2021 Little Library& Family Learning 100 Family Learning - SCC
30/07/2021 Thunder Theme Park 500 International Funfairs
31/07/2021 Thunder Theme Park 500 International Funfairs
01/08/2021 Thunder Theme Park 500 International Funfairs
02/08/2021 Thunder Theme Park 500 International Funfairs
03/08/2021 Thunder Theme Park 500 International Funfairs
04/08/2021 Thunder Theme Park 500 International Funfairs
05/08/2021 Thunder Theme Park 500 International Funfairs
06/08/2021 Thunder Theme Park 500 International Funfairs
07/08/2021 Thunder Theme Park 500 International Funfairs
08/08/2021 Thunder Theme Park 500 International Funfairs
25/08/2021 Family Fun Day 3000 Animal Farm
05/09/2021 Race for Life 4000 Cancer Research UK
12/09/2021 Morris Minor Owner's Club Day 400 Barnsley Morris Minor Owners Club
20/10/2021 Family Learning 100 Family & Community Learning Service
23/10/2021 Northern Athletics Cross Country Relays 1000 Northern Athletics
25/10/2021 Halloween ‘pick a pumpkin’ 10000 Animal Farm
06/12/2021 Christmas Trail and Santa’s Grotto 10000 Animal Farm
12/12/2021 SY XC League 4 race and Championships 400 Sheffield Schools Sports
12/12/2021 South Yorkshire Cross Country League 300 South Yorkshire County Athletics Association
15/01/2022 Secondary XC Champs 400 Sheffield Schools Sports
26/02/2022 Primary Schools XC Champs 400 Sheffield Schools Sports

Page 235



 

  

 

6  

 
GRAVES PARK 
TRUSTEES’ REPORT 
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 

 
 

FINANCIAL REVIEW AND FUNDING 
 
Restricted Funds - Net expenditure of £88,127 (2021: Net income of £174,973) comprising 
grants received of £3,692 from Sheffield City Council (2021: £261,144) and depreciation of 
£91,819 (2021: £86,171).   
The net reduction in Restricted Fund from 2020/2021 to 2021/2022 is as a result of the 
capital investment in assets being largely completed in 2020/2021. 
 
Unrestricted funds - Net income of £11 (2021: £0). This includes interest received of £11 
(2021: £0). The income from charitable activities was £325,316 (2021: £177,231), donations 
and gifts were £7,600 (2021: £10,812), revenue grant from the Countryside Agency was 
£16,865 (2021: £0) and interest received of £11 (Interest on Investments).   There was 
charitable expenditure of £524,200 (2021: £475,036). The deficit was funded by the grant 
from Sheffield City Council of £174,420 (2021: £286,993). 
 
There was an increase in expenditure on charitable activities of £49,164 in 21/22.  This was 
as a result of activity generally normalising after the pandemic but most notably an increase 
of £29,637 (31%) on supplies and services costs and £12,975 (52%) on repairs & 
maintenance.   
 
The supplies and services expenditure increased due to the Animal Farm activity increasing 
demand for stock such as toys and stationery (Toy purchases have increased 3 fold since 
2019/2020). Events such as pumpkin picking, and easter egg hunts planned for April 2022 
where supplies had to be purchased in advance all required additional purchases.  Animal 
food costs have approximately doubled plus there were increasing veterinary bills.     
 
Repairs and maintenance costs increased as a result of a new boiler and refurbishment 
work in the Park changing facilities.  
 
The additional expenditure in 2021/2022 has been partially offset by additional rent and 
Animal Park sales income of £135,187.  This is due to post pandemic activity returning to 
more normal levels and also new income streams being developed through the introduction 
of more diverse activities.   
 
At 31 March 2022 the charity had total funds of £2,398,671 (2021: 2,486,787).  These funds 
are mainly tied up in fixed assets and investments.  Restricted funds of £2,398,225 (2021: 
£2,486,352) were held mainly as fixed assets. There are Investments of £11,948 (2021: 
£11,918). 
 
There was investment income of £11 (2021: £0) and this has been transferred to the 
Designated Fund which now totals £446 and is available to spend in accordance with the 
Charity’s Trusts & Objectives. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 236



 

  

 

7  

 
GRAVES PARK 
TRUSTEES’ REPORT 
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 
 
 
RESERVES POLICY 
 
As the charity is managed and funded by the Council no specific charity reserves are 
deemed to be necessary, except for those reserves represented by fixed assets. 
 
Annual revenue expenditure is generally greater than income and the variance is born by 
the Council and not carried forward into the next financial year. 
 
This charity has specific monies invested in the Council’s internal investment fund.  Interest 
is received half yearly on the monies invested.  These investments form the restricted funds 
and any interest is used in line with the restrictions on the funds. 
 
RISK MANAGEMENT   
 
The charity is dependent for its day-to-day management upon Sheffield City Council.  It is 
therefore considered expedient and cost effective for the charity to adopt the Council’s risk 
management policy and strategy, which it considers is a crucial part of the service planning 
process in highlighting key risks and how they affect the Council’s ability to deliver its service 
and how they will be managed.  The Council has incorporated a formal approach to risk 
management in its day-to-day operations and has developed a toolkit to allow managers to 
identify risk, which would prevent them from achieving their objectives and to provide 
information and guidance on how these risks can be managed.  The Council operates an 
Internal Insurance Account covering a variety of risks. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 237



 

  

 

8  

GRAVES PARK 
TRUSTEES’ REPORT 
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 
 
Trustees' responsibilities statement  
 
The trustees are responsible for preparing the Trustees’ Report and the financial statements 
in accordance with applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United 
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice). 
 
The law applicable to charities in England & Wales requires the trustees to prepare financial 
statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of 
the charity and of the incoming resources and application of resources of the charity for that 
period.  In preparing these financial statements, the trustees are required to: 
 
 select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently; 
 observe the methods and principles in the Charities SORP; 
 make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 
 state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any 

material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; 
 prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate 

to presume that the charity will continue in operation. 
 
The trustees are responsible for keeping proper accounting records that disclose with 
reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the charity and enable them to 
ensure that the financial statements comply with the Charities Act 2011, the Charity 
(Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008 and the provisions of the trust deed.  They are 
also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charity and hence for taking reasonable 
steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities. 
 
TRUSTEES 
 
Sheffield City Council adopted a Committee system in May 2002. The current Trustees are 
listed on Pg 1.  
 
Approved by the Trustees and signed on their behalf by: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Cllr Bryan Lodge – Chair of the Charity Trustee Sub Committee. 

Page 238



 

  

 

9  

INDEPENDENT EXAMINER’S REPORT 
 
TO THE TRUSTEES OF Trustees of Graves Park  
 
I report to the trustees on my examination of the financial statements of the charity for the year ended 31 
March 2022. 
 
Responsibilities and basis of report 
 
As the trustees of the charity (and also its directors for the purposes of company law) you are responsible 
for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 
2006 (the 2006 Act). 
 
Having satisfied myself that the financial statements of the charity are not required to be audited under 
Part 16 of the 2006 Act and are eligible for independent examination,  I report in respect of my examination 
of the charity’s financial statements carried out under section 145 of the Charities Act 2011 (the 2011 Act). 
In carrying out my examination I have followed all the applicable Directions given by the Charity 
Commission under section 145(5)(b) of the 2011 Act. 
 
Independent examiner's statement 
 
Since the charity’s gross income exceeded £250,000 your examiner must be a member of a body listed 
in section 145 of the 2011 Act. I confirm that I am qualified to undertake the examination because I am a 
member of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, which is one of the listed bodies. 
 
I have completed my examination. I confirm that no matters have come to my attention in connection with 
the examination giving me cause to believe that in any material respect: 
 

1. accounting records were not kept in respect of the charity as required by section 386 of the 2006 
Act; or 

2. the financial statements do not accord with those records; or 
3. the financial statements do not comply with the accounting requirements of section 396 of the 

2006 Act other than any requirement that the accounts give a true and fair view which is not a 
matter considered as part of an independent examination; or 

4. the financial statements have not been prepared in accordance with the methods and principles 
of the Statement of Recommended Practice for accounting and reporting by charities applicable 
to charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard 
applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102). 
 

I have no concerns and have come across no other matters in connection with the examination to which 
attention should be drawn in this report in order to enable a proper understanding of the financial 
statements to be reached. 
 
 

 
 
 
 

........................................ 
Melvin Bailey FCCA DChA 
for and on behalf of Rogers Spencer 
Chartered Accountants 
Newstead House 
Pelham Road 
Nottingham 
NG5 1AP 
 
Dated:  

Page 239



GRAVES PARK
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

 
Unrestricted Restricted Total Total

2021/22 2021/22 2021/22 2020/21
Note £ £ £ £

Income and endowments from:

Donations and legacies 2 198,885     3,692           202,577      558,949       

Charitable activities 3 325,316     -               325,316      177,231       

Investments 10 11              -               11               -              

Total 524,211     3,692           527,903      736,180       

Expenditure on:

Raising funds 4 -            -               -              -              
 
Charitable activities 5 524,200     91,819         616,019      561,207       

Total 524,200     91,819         616,019      561,207       

Net income/(expenditure) 11              (88,127)        (88,116)       174,973       

Transfer between funds -              -              

Net movement in funds 11              (88,127)        (88,116)       174,973       

Reconciliation of funds:
Total funds brought forward 435            2,486,352    2,486,787   2,311,814    

Total funds carried forward 446            2,398,225    2,398,671   2,486,787    

10Page 240



GRAVES PARK
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

 
Unrestricted Restricted Total Total

2020/21 2020/21 2020/21 2019/20
Note £ £ £ £

Income and endowments from:

Donations and legacies 2 297,805     261,144       558,949      272,017       

Charitable activities 3 177,231     -               177,231      247,821       

Investments 10 -            -               -              215              

Total 475,036     261,144       736,180      520,053       

Expenditure on:

Raising funds 4 -            -               -              14,615         
 
Charitable activities 5 475,036     86,171         561,207      568,366       

Total 475,036     86,171         561,207      582,981       

Net income/(expenditure) -            174,973       174,973      (62,928)       

Transfer between funds -              -              

Net movement in funds -            174,973       174,973      (62,928)       

Reconciliation of funds:
Total funds brought forward 435            2,311,379    2,311,814   2,374,742    

Total funds carried forward 435            2,486,352    2,486,787   2,311,814    

The statement of financial activities includes all gains and losses recognised in the year.
All income and expenditure derives from continuing activites.

11Page 241



GRAVES PARK
BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 MARCH 2022

  
Unrestricted Restricted Total Total

2021/22 2021/22 2021/22 2020/21
Note £ £ £ £

Fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets 9 -                 2,386,307     2,386,307   2,474,434    

Investments 10 446                11,918          12,364        12,353         

446                2,398,225     2,398,671   2,486,787    

  
Current assets
Debtors 11 1,050             1,050          1,350           

Liabilities
Creditors falling due within one year 12 (1,050)            (1,050)         (1,350)         

Net current assets -                 -               -              -              

Net assets 446                2,398,225     2,398,671   2,486,787    

The funds of the charity

Unrestricted income funds 13 -                 -               -              -              
  Designated funds 15 446                446             435              
Restricted income funds 14 -                 2,398,225     2,398,225   2,486,352    

446                2,398,225     2,398,671   2,486,787    

Sheffield City Council adopted a Committee system in May 2022. The current Trustees are listed on Pg 1.

Approved by the Trustees and signed on their behalf by:

 
Signed  ___________________________________               Date  _____________

Cllr Bryan Lodge – Chair of the Charity Trustee Sub Committee.

12Page 242



GRAVES PARK 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 
 

13 
 

1.   Accounting Polices 
 
Graves Park is a registered charity in England.  The address of the registered office 
is given in the charity information on page 1 of these financial statements.  The 
nature of the charity’s operations and principal activities are for the recreation of the 
public as public walks or pleasure grounds or as an open space.  
 
The charity constitutes a public benefit entity as defined by FRS 102. The financial 
statements have been prepared in accordance with Accounting and Reporting by 
Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their 
accounts in accordance with the  Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK 
and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) effective on 1 January 2019  (Updated second 
edition – October 19), the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the United 
Kingdom and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102), the Charities Act 2011 and UK 
Generally Accepted Practice as it applies from 1 January 2015.  
 
The financial statements have been prepared to give a ‘true and fair’ view and have 
departed from the Charities (Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008 only to the 
extent required to provide a ‘true and fair view’. This departure has involved following 
the Accounting and Reporting Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice 
applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial 
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) issued 
on 16 July 2014 rather than the Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of 
Recommended Practice effective from 1 April 2005 which has since been withdrawn. 
 
The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis under the historical 
cost convention, modified to include certain items at fair value.  The financial 
statements are presented in sterling which is the functional currency of the charity 
and rounded to the nearest £. 
 
The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial 
statements are as follows: 

1.1  Fixed assets 

Graves Park is classified as a Community Asset.  The trustees policy is to value 
Community Assets at £Nil. 
 
Land and buildings have been valued at their deemed cost at the date of transition to 
SORP (FRS 102). 
 
Other Plant and Equipment are carried at cost. 
 
Expenditure on fixed assets is capitalised, provided that the fixed asset yields benefit 
to the charity and the services it provides are for a period of more than one year. 
 
Assets have been reviewed for any impairment loss in respect of consumption of 
economic benefit. 
 

Page 243



GRAVES PARK 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 
 

14 
 

1.2 Depreciation  
 
Depreciation is provided on fixed assets at rates calculated to write off the cost of the 
assets over their expected useful lives as follows: 
 

 Land and previously revalued buildings are not depreciated. 
 Park buildings have been depreciated on a straight line basis over 10, 15 or 

40 years, commencing on the transfer from assets under construction.  
 Plant, furniture and equipment have been depreciated on a straight line basis 

over 10 years. 
 Depreciation is not provided on assets under construction. 

 
1.3  Investments 
 
Fund balances are invested internally with Sheffield City Council. Investments are 
held at market value. 
 
1.4  Fund accounting 
 
Unrestricted funds are available for use at the discretion of the trustees in furtherance 
of the general objectives of the charity and which have not been designated for other 
purposes. 
 
Restricted funds are funds which are to be used in accordance with specific 
restrictions imposed by the donors or which have been raised by the charity for 
particular purposes. The aim and use of each restricted fund is set out in the notes to 
the financial statements. 
 
Endowment funds represent those assets which must be held permanently by the 
charity, principally investments. Income arising on the endowment fund can be used 
in accordance with the objects of the charity and is included as unrestricted income.  
Any capital gains or losses arising on the investments form part of the fund. 
 
1.5  Income 
 
Income from donations and grants, including capital grants, is included in income 
when it is probable that the income will be received, and is allocated to the 
appropriate fund. 
 
Investment income is included when receivable. 
 
Rental, events, activity and similar income is included when the event or function has 
taken place. 
 
The cost of running the park is funded by Sheffield City Council.  Annual revenue 
expenditure is generally greater than income and any variance is borne by the 
Council by way of a grant to the charity. 
 

Page 244



GRAVES PARK 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 
 

15 
 

1.6  Expenditure 
 
Expenditure is included in the Statement of Financial Activities on an accruals basis, 
net of any VAT, which can be recovered as Sheffield City Council is the sole trustee 
and therefore has special status under s33 VAT Act 1994. 
 
The main exception to this treatment is payments for such items as gas and 
electricity are charged at the date of the meter reading rather than being apportioned 
between years.  This policy is applied consistently each year. 
 
Expenditure has been allocated to the activities to which it is directly attributable.  
 
Cost of raising funds 
 
The cost of generating any external funding, such as grant applications and events, 
is attributable to the time of Sheffield City Council officers who work on a range of 
projects including the charity. As such it is not possible to accurately apportion the 
cost of this to the charity so no charge is included in the accounts. 
 
Charitable activities 
 
Charitable activities are set out within the charitable deeds and represent the costs 
associated with the running and maintenance of the park. 
 
Governance costs 
 
Independent examination costs and finance officer costs are charged to the charity.  
The Council currently absorbs the cost of other officers’ time. This policy is kept 
under review. 
 
Staff costs 
 
The staff who work for the charity are employed by Sheffield City Council, and are 
subject to the terms and conditions of that organisation. The costs of such staff are 
recharged to the charity. Full disclosure of the relevant staff costs and numbers is 
provided in the notes to these financial statements. 
 
Pensions 
 
City Council employees may participate in the Local Government Superannuation 
Scheme, which provides members with defined benefits related to pay and service. 
The City Council makes payments for this group of employees to the South Yorkshire 
Pensions Authority, which administers pension arrangements on behalf of Sheffield 
City Council and the other local authorities in the South Yorkshire area. The City 
Council bears any deficit or surplus on the scheme and does not charge this to the 
charity. 
 
1.7  Debtors and creditors receivable / payable within one year 
 
Debtors and creditors with no stated interest rate and receivable or payable within 
one year are recorded at transaction price. Any losses arising from impairment are 
recognised in expenditure. 
 

Page 245



GRAVES PARK 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 
 

16 
 

1.8  Financial instruments 
 
The charity only has financial assets and liabilities of a kind that qualify as basic 
financial instruments. Basic financial instruments are initially recognised at 
transaction value and subsequently measured at their settlement value. 
 
1.9  Going concern 
 
The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis as the 
trustees believe that no material uncertainties exist. The trustees have considered 
the level of funds held and the expected level of income and expenditure for 12 
months from authorising these financial statements. The budgeted income and 
expenditure is sufficient with the level of reserves for the charity to be able to 
continue as a going concern. 

Page 246



GRAVES PARK
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

2.   Donations and legacies

2.a  Donations and gifts 2021/22 2020/21
 £  £ 

Unrestricted:
General (Animal Park) 6,980            6,682             
Friends of Group 620               4,130             

7,600            10,812           
2.b  Grants

Unrestricted:
Countryside Agency 16,865          -                 
Sheffield City Council - revenue  174,420        286,993         

191,285        286,993         

Restricted:
Sheffield City Council 3,692            261,144         
Lawn Tennis Association -                -                 
Chantry cottage -                -                 
Pocket Park

3,692            261,144         

202,577        558,949         

3.  Income from charitable activities 2021/22 2020/21
 £  £ 

Unrestricted:
Outdoor sports 7,280            1,146             
Bowls -                -                 
Mini Golf -                -                 
Tennis -                -                 
Events -                -                 
Memorial benches & tree planting 1,400            -                 
Miscellaneous 1,319            5,186             
Reimbursement of legal fees -                -                 
Rents 153,068        109,377         
Animal Park income (excl donations and sponsors) 100,106        8,610             
Car parking income 62,142          52,912           

325,316        177,231

4. Analysis of expenditure on raising funds 2021/22 2020/21
 £  £ 

Unrestricted:
Events -                -                 

-                -                 

If expenditure is greater than income the variance is borne by Sheffield City Council and not brought forward into the next financial year.

17

Page 247



GRAVES PARK
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

Park Animal
Operation Park Total Total

5.  Analysis of expenditure on charitable activities Costs Costs 2021/22 2020/21
 £  £  £  £ 

Unrestricted:
Employees 150,717      133,583      284,300        278,248         
Rangers -             -                -                 
Repairs and maintenance 27,790        10,189        37,979          25,004           
Grounds maintenance 41,322        41,322          39,701           
Tree work 9,025          1,050          10,075          12,275           
Playground refurbishment and maintenance 8,912          8,912            5,041             
Electricity 2,066          3,983          6,049            5,308             
Gas 2,734          2,734            1,615             
Water and sewage 3,005          1,381          4,386            5,596             
Telephones 37               -              37                 3,192             
Supplies and services 12,132        113,884      126,016        96,379           
Transport -             -              -                -                 
Legal fees -             -              -                28                  
Governance costs 2,390          2,390            2,649             

260,130      264,070      524,200        475,036         
Restricted:
Supplies and services (Restricted) -             -              -                -                 
Depreciation 84,460        7,359          91,819          86,171           

344,590      271,429      616,019        561,207         

 
  

6.  Governance costs 2021/22 2020/21
  £  £ 

Managing and administration:
Independent examination fees 1,050            1,350             
Finance office costs 1,340            1,299             

2,390            2,649             

  

7.  Staff costs and trustees' remuneration 2021/22 2020/21
 £  £ 

Salaries 212,362        213,574         
Social security costs 23,360          18,522           
Pension 40,349          39,166           
Other  8,230            6,986             

 284,300        278,248

 

No employee received remuneration of over £60,000 during the year (2021 - None).

Trustees received no remuneration (2021 - £Nil) and were not reimbursed for any of their expenses during the year.

8.  Staff numbers 2021/22 2020/21
Number Number

The average number of employees during the year was 10 10

Staff costs in 2021/22 comprise of Operations £150,717 (2021 £135,255) and Animal Park £133,583 (2021: £142,993).

18

Page 248



GRAVES PARK
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

 Plant

9.  Fixed assets Assets under Land & Norton Lane Council Equipment &

Construction buildings Nurseries dwellings Infrastructure Total

At cost  £  £  £  £  £ 
At 1 April 2021 -              2,382,053   465,039      300,000        46,343          3,193,435      
Additions 3,692          -             -              -                -                3,692             
Transfers (3,692)         3,692          -              -                -                -                 
At 31 March 2022 -              2,385,745   465,039      300,000        46,343          3,197,127      

Accumulated depreciation
At 1 April 2021 -              399,834      212,824      60,000          46,343          719,001         
Charge in the year -              57,716        26,603        7,500            -                91,819           
At 31 March 2022 -              457,550      239,427      67,500          46,343          810,820         

Net book value

At 31 March 2022 -              1,928,195   225,612      232,500        -                2,386,307      

At 31 March 2021 -              1,982,219   252,215      240,000        -                2,474,434      

10.  Investments
2021/22

At market value  £ 

At 1 April 2021 12,353           
Income -                 
Interest received 11                  
Draw down -                 
At 31 March 2022 12,364           

11.  Debtors 2021/22 2020/21
 £  £ 

Amounts due from Sheffield City Council 1,050            1,350             
Trade Debtor - - 

1,050            1,350

12.  Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 2021/22 2020/21
 £  £ 

Independent examination fees 1,050            1,350             
Deferred income - - 

1,050 1,350

Norton Lane Nurseries, Council Dwellings and various land and buildings are included at deemed cost as permitted on transition to 
SORP (FRS102) based on a valuation in 2012/13 by the Asset Partnership Services team of Kier who are MRICS qualified.

The charity funds are invested in Sheffield City Council's Consolidated Loans Funds (interest paid half yearly).  Market value is the same 
as historical cost.

19

Page 249



GRAVES PARK
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

13.  Unrestricted funds
General 

Funds Total

 £ 
Balance at 1 April 2021 - - 
Income 524,200 524,200 
Expenditure (524,200) (524,200)
Transfer - - 
Balance at 31 March 2022 - - 

     Unrestricted funds - prior year General Funds Total

 £  £ 
Balance at 1 April 2020 - - 
Income 475,036 475,036 
Expenditure (475,036) (475,036)
Transfer - - 
Balance at 31 March 2021 - - 

 

Squirrel Fund  
This fund comprises a donation made for the specific purpose of feeding squirrels.

Café Fund
The fund comprises a donation made for the specific purpose of providing toys for use in the Rose Garden Café.

Cobnar Cottage
This fund comprises of income received relating to the sale of Cobnar Cottage, Cobnar Road.

Chantry Cottage
This fund comprises of income received relating to a 125 year lease of land adjacent to Chantry Cottage, Norton Lane.

Assets under Construction

Land & Buildings

Council Dwellings
This fund comprises of revalued values of 2 residential properties: The Bungalow, Derbyshire Lane and the Lodge, Charles Ashmore 
Road.

This fund comprises a combination of various grants and donations made for the specific purpose of several capital projects including 
the Norton Lane Nursery, Rose Garden Café, the Sports Pavillion, the Cobnar Road Playground and the Inclusive Play area. 

This fund relates to ongoing capital work for pathworks and installation of 2 cricket pitches which have been completed in year.  The 
refurbishment of tennis courts and other improvements in the park are on-going.

Squirrel Café Chantry Cobnar Pocket Land & Assets under Council Total
Fund Fund Cottage Cottage Park Buildings construction Dwellings Funds

14. Restricted funds  £  £  £  £  £  £ £  £  £ 

Balance at 1 April 2021 127 1,088 157 10,545 1 2,234,434 - 240,000 2,486,352 
Income 1 10 3,692 3,703 
Expenditure and depreciation (84,319) (7,500) (91,819)
Realised gain on disposal of fixed assets - 
Transfer - - 
Transfer 3,692 (3,692) - 
Transfer to Designated Funds (1) (10) (11)
Balance at 31 March 2022 127 1,088 157 10,545 1 2,153,807 - 232,500 2,398,225 

20

Page 250



GRAVES PARK

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

15. Designated funds 2021/22
 £ 

Balance at 1 April 2021 435 
Transfer 11 
Balance at 31 March 2022 446 

16. Analysis of net assets between funds Unrestricted 
funds

Restricted 
funds Total funds

£ £ £

Fixed asset investments 446 2,398,225 2,398,671 
Current assets 1,050 - 1,050 
Creditors due within one year (1,050) - (1,050)

446 2,398,225 2,398,671 

Analysis of net assets between funds - prior year Unrestricted 
funds

Restricted 
funds Total funds

£ £ £

Fixed asset investments 435 2,486,352 2,486,787 
Current assets 1,350 - 1,350 
Creditors due within one year (1,350) - (1,350)

435 2,486,352 2,486,787 

17.  Ultimate Controlling Party

The ultimate controlling party is the sole trustee, Sheffield City Council.

18.  Related parties

19.  Post balance sheet events

The Rose Garden Café in Graves Park was closed on 27 July 2022 following a structural survey highlighting concerns about the 
building’s structural stability. After some temporary structural repairs were carried out,  it was reopened on  20th December 2022
to the public. An options appraisal concerning the current costs of permanently repairing the structure is due to be presented 
to the Charity Trustees Sub-committee on 21st March 2023.
No adjustment has been made to the asset value in the accounts due to the uncertainty over the works that need to be carried out.
More information can be found out about this through the Sheffield City Council web page:  
https://www.sheffield.gov.uk/parks-sport-recreation/rose-garden-cafe-closure

The Café building has a net book value on the fixed asset register of £143,375 as of 31st March 2022.

The charity has a very close relationship with Sheffield City Council who is the sole trustee and provides the balance of funding not 
provided elsewhere on an annual basis, to enable the charity to carry out its charitable objectives. The amount of funding provided by 
Sheffield City Council during the year is £178,112 (2021: £548,137) of which £3,692 was towards capital projects (2021 £261,144). At 
the year end £1,050 was owed by Sheffield City Council (2021: £1,350).

Designated funds represent accumulated interest in the investments.  The trustees have set this money aside for one-off projects in the 
future, rather than for ongoing running costs.

Squirrel Café Chantry Cobnar Pocket Land & Assets under Council Total
Fund Fund Cottage Cottage Park Buildings construction Dwellings Funds

14. Restricted funds  £  £  £  £  £  £ £  £  £ 

Balance at 1 April 2020 127 1,088 157 10,545 1 2,051,961 - 247,500 2,311,379 
Income 261,144 261,144 
Expenditure and depreciation (78,671) (7,500) (86,171)
Realised gain on disposal of fixed assets - 
Transfer - - 
Transfer 261,144 (261,144) - 
Transfer to Designated Funds - 
Balance at 31 March 2021 127 1,088 157 10,545 1 2,234,434 - 240,000 2,486,352 

21

Page 251



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 252



Graves Park 
 

SHEFFIELD CITY COUNCIL 
TOWN HALL 

PINSTONE STREET 
SHEFFIELD 

S1 2HH 
 

Charity Number : 510841 
 
Rogers Spencer  
Chartered Accountants 
Newstead House 
Pelham Road 
Nottingham 
NG5 1AP                                                           
 
 
Dear Sirs 
 
The following representations are made on the basis of enquiries of management and staff with relevant knowledge 
and experience such as we consider necessary in the connection with your examination on the charity’s financial 
statements for the year ended 31 March 2022.  These enquiries have included inspection of supporting 
documentation where appropriate and are sufficient to satisfy ourselves that we can make each of the following 
representations. All representations are made to the best of our knowledge and belief. 
 
General 
1 We have fulfilled our responsibilities as trustees as set out in the terms of your engagement letter, under the 

Charities Act 2011 for preparing financial statements in accordance with applicable law and United Kingdom 
Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), for being satisfied that 
they give a true and fair view and for making accurate representations to you.  
 

2 All the transactions undertaken by the charity have been properly reflected and recorded in the accounting 
records. 
 

3 All the accounting records have been made available to you for the purpose of your examination. We have 
provided you with unrestricted access to all appropriate persons within the charity, and with all other records 
and related information requested, including minutes of management and trustee meetings and 
correspondence with The Charity Commission. 

 
4 The financial statements are free of material misstatements, including omissions. 
 
5 The effect of uncorrected misstatements is immaterial both individually and in total. 
 
Internal control and fraud 
6 We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control 

systems to prevent and detect fraud and error.  We have disclosed to you the results of our risk assessment 
that the financial statements may be misstated as a result of fraud.  

  
7 We have disclosed to you all instances or known or suspected fraud affecting the entity involving 

management, employees who have a significant role in internal control or others that could have a material 
effect on the financial statements.  

 
8 We have also disclosed to you all information in relation to allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting 

the entity’s financial statements communicated by current or former employees, analysis, regulators or 
others. 

 
Assets and liabilities 
9 The charity has satisfactory title to all assets and there are no liens or encumbrances on the charity’s assets, 

except for those that are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. 
 

10 All actual liabilities, contingent liabilities and guarantees given to third parties have been recorded or 
disclosed as appropriate. 

 
11 We have no plans or intentions that may materially alter the carrying value and where relevant the fair value 

measurements or classification of assets and liabilities reflected in the financial statements. 
 

Page 253



Accounting estimates 
12 Significant assumptions used by us in making accounting estimates, including those measured at fair value, 

are reasonable. 
 
Loans and arrangements 
13 The charity has not granted any advances or credits to, or made guarantees on behalf of, trustees other than 

those disclosed in the financial statements. 
 
Legal claims 
14 We have disclosed to you all claims in connection with litigation that have been, or are expected to be, 

received and such matters, as appropriate, have been properly accounted for, and disclosed in, the financial 
statements. 

 
Law and regulations 
15 We have disclosed to you all known instances of non-compliance or suspected non-compliance with laws 

and regulations whose affects should be considered when preparing the financial statements. 
 
Related parties 
16 Related party relationships and transactions have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed in the 

financial statements. We have disclosed to you all relevant information concerning such relationships and 
transactions and are not aware of any other matters which require disclosure in order to comply with 
legislative and accounting standards requirements. 

 
Subsequent events 
17 All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements which require adjustment or disclosure have 

been properly accounted for and disclosed. 
 
Going concern 
18 We believe that the charity's financial statements should be prepared on a going concern basis on the 

grounds that current and future sources of funding or support will be more than adequate for the charity's 
needs.  We have considered a period of twelve months from the date of approval of the financial statements.   
We believe that no further disclosures relating to the charity's ability to continue as a going concern need to 
be made in the financial statements. 

 
Grants and donations 
19 All grants, donations and other income, the receipt of which is subject to specific terms or conditions, have 

been notified to you. There have been no breaches of terms or conditions in the application of such income. 
 
Restricted grants and donations are as follows: 
    

Sheffield City Council – Animal farm 
Sheffield City Council – Park 
 

£2,117 
£1,575 

 

 
We acknowledge our legal responsibilities regarding disclosure of information to you as examiner and confirm that 
so far as we are aware, there is no relevant information needed by you in connection with preparing your 
independent examination report of which you are unaware. 
 
Each trustee has taken all steps that they ought to have taken as a trustee in order to make themselves aware of 
any relevant information and to establish that you are aware of that information. 
 
 
Yours faithfully 
 
 
 
.......................................................................................................................... 
Signed on behalf of the board of Sheffield City Council 
  
 
 
Date  
 

Page 254



 

  

 

  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 HILLSBOROUGH PARK  
TRUSTEES’ REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 
 

REGISTERED CHARITY NUMBER 523913 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Page 255



 

  

 

  

 HILLSBOROUGH PARK  
 CONTENTS 
 
 
 
 
 
 Page 
  
 
Reference and administrative details           1  
 
Trustees’ report  2 - 7 
  
Independent examiner’s report  8 
 
Statement of financial activities  9 - 10 
 
Balance sheet  11 
 
Notes to the financial statements  12 - 19

Page 256



 

  

 

1  

HILLSBOROUGH PARK  
REFERENCE AND ADMINISTRATIVE DETAILS 
 
CHARITY NO: 523913     
   
     
TRUSTEES    
 
Sheffield City Council is the sole Trustee of the charity, acting through the Charity 
Trustee Sub Committee. 
 
 
Charity Sub-Committee Members: 
 
Cllr Bryan Lodge (Chair) 
Cllr Richard Williams (Deputy Chair) 
Cllr Douglas Johnson (Spokesperson) 
Cllr Julie Grocutt 
Cllr Mick Rooney 
 
 
PRINCIPAL ADDRESS 
Sheffield City Council 
Parks and Countryside 
Moorfoot 
Level 3 West wing 
Sheffield 
S1 4PL 
 
 
INDEPENDENT EXAMINER 
Melvin Bailey FCCA DChA 
for and on behalf of Rogers Spencer 
Chartered Accountants 
Newstead House 
Pelham Road 
Nottingham 
NG5 1AP 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 257



 

  

 

2  

 
HILLSBOROUGH PARK  
TRUSTEES’ REPORT 
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 
 
The trustees present their report together with the financial statements of the charity for the 
year ended 31 March 2022.  The financial statements have been prepared in accordance 
with the accounting policies set out in note 1 to the accounts and comply with the charity’s 
trust deed, the Charities Act 2011 and the requirements of the Statement of Recommended 
Practice, ‘Accounting and Reporting by Charities’ Financial Reporting Standard applicable 
in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) effective on 1 January 2019  (Updated second 
edition – October 19). 
 
The Hillsborough Park site was previously included in registered charity 523913 Earl 
Marshal Recreation Ground.  From the 18 of November 2005 registered charity 523913 was 
split into 3 separate charities as follows: 
 
Earl Marshal Recreation Ground (formerly known as Carlisle Street Recreation Ground) is 
registered as 1088787. 
Hillsborough Park is registered as 523913. 
Endcliffe Park is registered as 1112149. 
 
These accounts relate to Hillsborough Park 523913 and incorporate the transfer of assets 
from this charity to the other two in the year 2005/06. 
 
DESCRIPTION OF CHARITY’S TRUSTS AND OBJECTS  

 
The charity comprises the Hillsborough Park incorporating Hillsborough Library. The 
charity’s governing documents are two schemes dated 22 March 1996 and 15 October 
1998. 
 
The objects of the charity are the provision and maintenance of a public park and recreation 
ground in Sheffield for the use of members of the public resorting thereto with the object of 
improving their conditions of life. 
 
STRUCTURE, GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT 
 
Hillsborough Park is a charity and the sole Trustee is Sheffield City Council. The Charity 
Trustee Sub Committee is a standing sub committee of the Strategy and Resources 
Policy Committee. It has been established to take all decisions of the Council, including 
but not limited to disposal of and other dealings with charitable land.  
 
Management of the park is the responsibility of the Councils’ Parks and Countryside 
service. Management and administrative decisions which are not decisions of the Council 
as Trustee, may be made, in accordance with the Council constitution delegations, by the 
Executive Director of Operational Services, the Director of Parks, Leisure and Libraries, or 
the head of Parks and Countryside service. 
 
  

Page 258



 

  

 

3  

HILLSBOROUGH PARK  
TRUSTEES’ REPORT 
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 
 
PUBLIC BENEFIT 
 
The Trustees have complied with the duty in Section 4 of the Charities Act 2011 to have 
due regard to public benefit guidance published by the Charity Commission. Details of how 
the charity has carried out its activities for the public benefit are given in the section below. 
 
ACTIVITIES AND ACHIEVEMENTS 
 
Hillsborough Park Partnership, which was established in 1999 as a group of organisations 
using or working in the park, with a shared interest in maintaining and developing the park. 
The Partnership meetings have now all been encompassed into the Friends of Hillsborough 
Park Meetings held on a regular basis.  
 
The objectives of the Friends of Hillsborough Park: 

 To strive to improve the park aiding maintenance for the good of local communities 
and the wider city developing new ideas and activities work centred mainly around 
the walled garden  

 To involve local people in the management of the park, to have a direct link with 
Council officers responsible for the management of the park. Andrew Phillips, area 
manager, attends regular FOHP meetings and work days. 

 
Sheffield Wednesday Football Club continues to pay for the use of one of the car parks on 
a maximum of 28 home match days. 
 
Pay and display ticket machines have been installed in Parkside and Hawksley Avenue car 
parks. Charges are in operation from 9.30-6.30 7 days per week.  
 
The Friends of Hillsborough Park Group work actively with the Council to improve the park.  
They carry out practical work within the Park and the walled garden area along with a 
number of individual volunteers and gardening groups.  They have group insurance which 
means they can work on agreed tasks without supervision. The group has grown 
substantially over recent years with many members working a few mornings per week. They 
usually hold work mornings on Tuesdays and Wednesdays, but this is not exclusive. 
 
The walled garden buildings on site have been converted into a café and Makers Shed by 
Age UK. Age UK have an agreed lease with the council for the use of these buildings 
including the pavilion. Age UK provide a variety of activities for the local community which 
take place in either the Makers Shed or the pavilion. 
 
The lighting within the Park has been extended to improve the access/egress for the pavilion 
users. 
 
Disabled cycling groups regularly use the park with a number of specially adapted bikes 
available on site with the activity run by local cycling groups.   
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 259



 

  

 

4  

 
HILLSBOROUGH PARK  
TRUSTEES’ REPORT 
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 
 
 
EVENTS 
 
The following events occurred during the year: 
 

DATE EVENT APPROX 
ATTENDANCE 

ORGANISATION 

15/05/2021 Fake Festival - COVID CANCELLED 0 Fake Festival 
28/05/2021 Farrar's Family Funfair 500 Farrar's Funfairs 
29/05/2021 Farrar's Family Funfair 500 Farrar's Funfairs 
30/05/2021 Farrar's Family Funfair 500 Farrar's Funfairs 
31/05/2021 Farrar's Family Funfair 500 Farrar's Funfairs 
01/06/2021 Farrar's Family Funfair 500 Farrar's Funfairs 
02/06/2021 Farrar's Family Funfair 500 Farrar's Funfairs 
03/06/2021 Farrar's Family Funfair 500 Farrar's Funfairs 
04/06/2021 Farrar's Family Funfair 500 Farrar's Funfairs 
05/06/2021 Farrar's Family Funfair 500 Farrar's Funfairs 
06/06/2021 Farrar's Family Funfair 500 Farrar's Funfairs 
29/06/2021 Little Library & Family Learning 100 Family Learning - SCC 
14/07/2021 Tramlines Set Up 14 - 30 Jul 0 Tramlines 
23/07/2021 Tramlines 11000 Tramlines 
24/07/2021 Tramlines 10000 Tramlines 
25/07/2021 Tramlines 10000 Tramlines 

05/08/2021 Little Library 100 
Learning and Young People’s 
Team 

29/08/2021 Junior Park Run 200 Major Events 
11/09/2021 Hillsborough Fun Day 500 Hillsborough Churches 
09/10/2021 RivelinCo/Age UK performances 200 Major Events 
10/10/2021 RivelinCo/Age UK performances 200 Major Events 
27/10/2021 Ride for their life 50 Major Events 
26/02/2022 All Lit Up (Walled Garden) 200 Friends of Hillsborough Park 
12/03/2022 Primary Schools XC Relays yrs 3 & 4 300 Major Events 

 
 
 
PLANS FOR FUTURE PERIODS 
 
 Additional herbaceous border to the entrance off Middlewood Road. 
 Continue to work with all key stakeholders, including FOHP, AUK, LTA and Cycling for 

all. 
 Playground improvements and add new benches around the Park. 
 Potential Tennis Association investment in the tennis court booking office. 
 Resurface additional footpaths. 
 Hillsborough Park Master plan linking all potential improvement projects. 
 Work with British Cycling to install a cycling pump track for use by all the community, 

including relocating cycle for all to a better location. 
 
 

Page 260



 

  

 

5  

HILLSBOROUGH PARK  
TRUSTEES’ REPORT 
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 
 
 
FINANCIAL REVIEW AND FUNDING 
 
Restricted Funds - Net income of £19,451 (2021: Net income £20,927) comprising grants 
of £84,807 (2021: £67,223) including the release of the £15,000 Public Health grant.  
Depreciation charged of £50,356 (2021: £46,296). 
 
Capital expenditure of £84,807 was spent in 2021/2022.  The majority of this was to build 
the Wheels Park (£61,785) and the remainder on various path and roadway works. 
 
Fixed assets (Fire Risk Assessments) totalling £7,670 were written off as part of an 
impairment review to ensure that the carrying value is not greater than the recoverable 
amount. 
 
Unrestricted funds - Net expenditure of £6 (2021: Net expenditure £15,930). The income 
from charitable activities was £142,981 (2021: £104,629), with expenditure of £317,444 
(2021: £338,052).  The deficit was funded by the grant from Sheffield City Council of 
£174,933 (2021: £217,493). In addition there was investment income of £6 (2021: £0).   
 
There was an increase in income in 2021/2022 due to the Park receiving £33,500 income 
from Tramlines Events Ltd.  This has helped offset the additional repairs & maintenance of 
£27,652 drainage and path repairs work this year. 
 
The Library employee costs have reduced by £45,442 (55%) in 2021/2122 as a result of 
more reliance on volunteers in running the Library. 
 
At 31 March 2022 the charity had total funds of £1,972,619 (2021: £1,953,162). These funds 
are all tied up in fixed assets and investments. There was investment income of £6 (2021: 
£0) and this has been transferred to the Designated Fund which now totals £135 and is 
available to spend in accordance with the Charity’s Trusts & Objectives. 
 
RESERVES POLICY 
 
As the charity is managed and funded by the Council, no specific unrestricted charity 
reserves are deemed to be necessary. 
 
Annual revenue expenditure is generally greater than income and the variance is born by 
the Council and not carried forward into the next financial year. 
 
This charity has specific monies invested in the Council’s internal investment fund.  
Interest is received half yearly on the monies invested.  These investments form the 
restricted funds and any interest is used in line with the restrictions on the funds. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 261



 

  

 

6  

 
 
 
 
HILLSBOROUGH PARK  
TRUSTEES’ REPORT 
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 
 
GRANT MAKING POLICY 
 
Grants are made in accordance with the provisions contained in the charitable deeds.  
Where the charitable deed is specific, charitable funds are applied automatically against the 
purpose stated. Where there is more discretion, judgement is made by officers, and where 
applicable, members.  If necessary, permission from the Charity Commission may be 
sought to the use of charitable funds on occasion. 
 
RISK MANAGEMENT    
 
The charity is dependent for its day-to-day management upon Sheffield City Council. It is 
therefore considered expedient and cost effective for the charity to adopt the Council’s risk 
management policy and strategy, which it considers is a crucial part of the service planning 
process in highlighting key risks and how they affect the Council’s ability to deliver its service 
and how they will be managed. The Council has incorporated a formal approach to risk 
management in its day-to-day operations and has developed a toolkit to allow managers to 
identify risk, which would prevent them from achieving their objectives and to provide 
information and guidance on how these risks can be managed. The Council operates an 
Internal Insurance Account covering a variety of risks. 

Page 262



 

  

 

7  

HILLSBOROUGH PARK 
TRUSTEES’ REPORT 
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 
 
Trustees' responsibilities statement  
 
The trustees are responsible for preparing the Trustees’ Report and the financial statements 
in accordance with applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United 
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice). 
 
The law applicable to charities in England & Wales requires the trustees to prepare financial 
statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of 
the charity and of the incoming resources and application of resources of the charity for that 
period.  In preparing these financial statements, the trustees are required to: 
 
 select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently; 
 observe the methods and principles in the Charities SORP; 
 make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 
 state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any 

material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; 
 prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate 

to presume that the charity will continue in operation. 
 
The trustees are responsible for keeping proper accounting records that disclose with 
reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the charity and enable them to 
ensure that the financial statements comply with the Charities Act 2011, the Charity 
(Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008 and the provisions of the trust deed.  They are 
also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charity and hence for taking reasonable 
steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities. 
 
TRUSTEES 
 
Sheffield City Council adopted a Committee system in May 2022. The current Trustees are 
listed on Pg 1.  
 
Approved by the Trustees and signed on their behalf by: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Cllr Bryan Lodge – Chair of the Charity Trustee Sub Committee. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 263



 

  

 

8  

INDEPENDENT EXAMINER’S REPORT 
 
TO THE TRUSTEES OF Hillsborough Park  
 
I report to the trustees on my examination of the financial statements of the charity for the year ended 
31 March 2022. 
 
Responsibilities and basis of report 
 
As the trustees of the charity (and also its directors for the purposes of company law) you are 
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the requirements of 
the Companies Act 2006 (the 2006 Act). 
 
Having satisfied myself that the financial statements of the charity are not required to be audited 
under Part 16 of the 2006 Act and are eligible for independent examination,  I report in respect of my 
examination of the charity’s financial statements carried out under section 145 of the Charities Act 
2011 (the 2011 Act). In carrying out my examination I have followed all the applicable Directions 
given by the Charity Commission under section 145(5)(b) of the 2011 Act. 
 
Independent examiner's statement 
 
Since the charity’s gross income exceeded £250,000 your examiner must be a member of a body 
listed in section 145 of the 2011 Act. I confirm that I am qualified to undertake the examination 
because I am a member of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, which is one of the 
listed bodies. 
 
I have completed my examination. I confirm that no matters have come to my attention in connection 
with the examination giving me cause to believe that in any material respect: 
 

1. accounting records were not kept in respect of the charity as required by section 386 of the 
2006 Act; or 

2. the financial statements do not accord with those records; or 
3. the financial statements do not comply with the accounting requirements of section 396 of 

the 2006 Act other than any requirement that the accounts give a true and fair view which is 
not a matter considered as part of an independent examination; or 

4. the financial statements have not been prepared in accordance with the methods and 
principles of the Statement of Recommended Practice for accounting and reporting by 
charities applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial 
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102). 
 

I have no concerns and have come across no other matters in connection with the examination to 
which attention should be drawn in this report in order to enable a proper understanding of the 
financial statements to be reached. 
 
 
........................................ 
Melvin Bailey FCCA DChA 
for and on behalf of Rogers Spencer 
Chartered Accountants 
Newstead House 
Pelham Road 
Nottingham 
NG5 1AP 
 
Dated:  

Page 264



STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

 
Unrestricted Restricted Endowment Total Total

2021/22 2021/22 2021/22 2021/22 2020/21
Note £ £ £ £ £

Income and endowments from:

Donations and legacies 2 174,933      69,807        -                  244,740      284,716      

Charitable activities 3 142,981      -              -                  142,981      104,629      

Investments 11 6                 -               -                  6                 -              

Total 317,920      69,807        -                  387,727      389,345      

Expenditure on:

Raising funds 4 470             -              -                  470             -              

Charitable activities 5 317,444      50,356        -                  367,800      384,348      

Other 6 -              -              -                  -              -              

Total 317,914      50,356        -                  368,270      384,348      
 

Net income/(expenditure) 6                 19,451        -                  19,457        4,997          

Reconciliation of funds:
Total funds brought forward 129             1,952,733   300                 1,953,162   1,948,165   

Total funds carried forward 135             1,972,184   300                 1,972,619   1,953,162   

HILLSBOROUGH PARK 

9
Page 265



STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

 
Unrestricted Restricted Endowment Total Total

2020/21 2020/21 2020/21 2020/21 2019/20
Note £ £ £ £ £

Income and endowments from:

Donations and legacies 2 217,493      67,223        -                 284,716      220,095       

Charitable activities 3 104,629      -              -                 104,629      148,558      

Investments 11 -              -               -                 -              121             

Total 322,122      67,223        -                 389,345      368,774      

Expenditure on:

Raising funds 4 -              -              -                 -              -              

Charitable activities 5 338,052      46,296        -                 384,348      383,343      

Other 6 -              -              -                 -              -              

Total 338,052      46,296        -                 384,348      383,343       

 
Net income/(expenditure) (15,930)       20,927        -                 4,997          (14,569)        

Reconciliation of funds:
Total funds brought forward 16,059        1,931,806   300                1,948,165   1,962,733   

Total funds carried forward 129             1,952,733   300                1,953,162   1,948,164   

All income and expenditure derives from continuing activities.

HILLSBOROUGH PARK 

The statement of financial activities includes all gains and losses recognised in the year.

10
Page 266



BALANCE SHEET
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

Unrestricted Restricted Endowment Total Total
2021/22 2021/22 2021/22 2021/22 2020/21

Note £ £ £ £ £

Fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets 10 -                1,966,184   -              1,966,184   1,931,733   

Investments 11 135               6,000          300             6,435          6,429          

135               1,972,184   300             1,972,619   1,938,162   

     
Current assets
Debtors 12 945               -              -              945             16,350        

Liabilities
Creditors falling due within one year 13 (945)              -              -              (945)            (1,350)         
 
Net current assets -                -              -              -              15,000        

Net assets 135               1,972,184   300             1,972,619   1,953,162   

Funds

Unrestricted funds
- Designated funds 17 135               -              -              135             129             
Restricted income funds 15 -                1,972,184   -              1,972,184   1,952,733   
Endowment funds 14 -                300             300             300             

135               1,972,184   300             1,972,619   1,953,162   

Sheffield City Council adopted a Committee system in May 2022. The current Trustees are listed on Pg 1.

Approved by the Trustees and signed on their behalf by:

 
Signed  ___________________________________               Date  _____________

Cllr Bryan Lodge – Chair of the Charity Trustee Sub Committee.

HILLSBOROUGH PARK 

11
Page 267



HILLSBOROUGH PARK 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 
 

12 
 

1.   Accounting Polices 
 
Hillsborough Park is a registered charity in England.  The address of the registered 
office is given in the charity information on page 1 of these financial statements.  The 
nature of the charity’s operations and principal activities are for the provision and 
maintenance of a public park and recreation ground.  
 
The charity constitutes a public benefit entity as defined by FRS 102. The financial 
statements have been prepared in accordance with Accounting and Reporting by 
Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their 
accounts in accordance with the  Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK 
and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) effective on 1 January 2019  (Updated second 
edition – October 19), the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the United 
Kingdom and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102), the Charities Act 2011 and UK 
Generally Accepted Practice as it applies from 1 January 2015.  
 
The financial statements have been prepared to give a ‘true and fair’ view and have 
departed from the Charities (Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008 only to the 
extent required to provide a ‘true and fair view’. This departure has involved following 
the Accounting and Reporting Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice 
applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial 
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) issued 
on 16 July 2014 rather than the Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of 
Recommended Practice effective from 1 April 2005 which has since been withdrawn. 
 
The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis under the historical 
cost convention, modified to include certain items at fair value.  The financial 
statements are presented in sterling which is the functional currency of the charity 
and rounded to the nearest £. 
 
The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial 
statements are as follows: 

1.1  Fixed assets 

Hillsborough Park is classified as a Community Asset.  The trustees policy is to value 
Community Assets at £Nil. 
 
All other Land and Buildings including Hillsborough Park Library (a Grade II Listed 
Building) are carried in the accounts at deemed cost as at date of transition to SORP 
(FRS 102). 
 
Other Plant and Equipment are carried at cost. 
 
Expenditure on fixed assets is capitalised, provided that the fixed asset yields benefit 
to the charity and the services it provides are for a period of more than one year. 
 
Assets have been reviewed for any impairment loss in respect of consumption of 
economic benefit. 
 
As the revalued assets were originally gifted to the charity, with subsequent additions 
at cost, it is not possible to obtain the overall historical cost figures. 
 
 

Page 268



HILLSBOROUGH PARK 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 
 

13 
 

1.2 Depreciation  
 
Depreciation is provided on fixed assets at rates calculated to write off the cost of the 
assets over their expected useful lives as follows: 

 Land and previously revalued buildings are not depreciated. 
 Park buildings have been depreciated on a straight line basis over 40 years, 

commencing on the transfer from assets under construction. 
 Hillsborough Park Library (a Grade II Listed Building) is not depreciated. The 

building is not depreciated because it is maintained in good condition so that 
the value is not impaired by the passage of time and in consequence any 
element of depreciation would be immaterial. The Trustees perform annual 
impairment reviews in accordance with the requirements of FRS 102 to 
ensure that the carrying value is not greater than the recoverable amount. 

 Plant, furniture and equipment have been depreciated on a straight line basis 
over 10 years. 

 Depreciation is not provided on land or assets under construction. 
 
1.3  Investments 
 
Fund balances are invested internally with Sheffield City Council. Investments are 
held at market value. 
 
1.4  Fund accounting 
 
Unrestricted funds are available for use at the discretion of the trustees in furtherance 
of the general objectives of the charity and which have not been designated for other 
purposes. 
 
Restricted funds are funds which are to be used in accordance with specific 
restrictions imposed by the donors or which have been raised by the charity for 
particular purposes. The aim and use of each restricted fund is set out in the notes to 
the financial statements. 
 
Designated funds comprise unrestricted funds that have been set aside by the 
trustees for specific purposes. 
 
Endowment funds represent those assets which must be held permanently by the 
charity, principally investments.  Income arising on the endowment fund can be used 
in accordance with the objects of the charity and is included as unrestricted income.  
Any capital gains or losses arising on the investments form part of the fund. 
 

Page 269



HILLSBOROUGH PARK 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 
 

14 
 

1.5  Income     
 
Income from donations and grants, including capital grants, is included in income 
when it is probable that the income will be received, and is allocated to the 
appropriate fund. 
 
Investment income is included when receivable. 
 
Rental, events, room hire and similar income is included when the event or function 
has taken place. 
 
The cost of running the park is funded by Sheffield City Council.  Annual revenue 
expenditure is generally greater than income and any variance is borne by the 
Council by way of a grant to the charity. 
 
1.6  Expenditure 
 
Expenditure is included in the Statement of Financial Activities on an accruals basis, 
net of any VAT, which can be recovered as Sheffield City Council is the sole trustee 
and therefore has special status under s33 VAT Act 1994. 
 
The main exception to this treatment is payments for such items as gas and 
electricity are charged at the date of the meter reading rather than being apportioned 
between years.  This policy is applied consistently each year. 
 
Expenditure has been allocated to the activities to which it is directly attributable. 
 
Charitable activities 
 
Charitable activities are set out within the charitable deeds and represent the costs 
associated with the running and maintenance of the parks and library. 
 
Grants payable 
 
Grants payable are charged in the year when the offer is conveyed to the recipient 
except in those cases where the offer is conditional, such grants being recognised as 
expenditure when the conditions attaching are fulfilled. Grants offered subject to 
conditions which have not been met at the year-end are noted as a commitment, but 
not accrued as expenditure. 
 
Governance costs 
 
Independent examination costs and finance officer costs are charged to the charity.  
The Council currently absorbs the cost of other officers’ time.  This policy is kept 
under review. 
 
Staff costs 
 
The staff who work for the charity are employed by Sheffield City Council, and are 
subject to the terms and conditions of that organisation.  The costs of such staff are 
recharged to the charity.  Full disclosure of the relevant staff costs and numbers is 
provided in the notes to these financial statements. 
 
 

Page 270



HILLSBOROUGH PARK 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 
 

15 
 

Pensions 
 
City Council employees may participate in the Local Government Superannuation 
Scheme, which provides members with defined benefits related to pay and service.  
The City Council makes payments for this group of employees to the South Yorkshire 
Pensions Authority, which administers pension arrangements on behalf of Sheffield 
City Council and the other local authorities in the South Yorkshire area.  The City 
Council bears any deficit or surplus on the scheme and does not charge this to the 
charity. 
 
1.7  Debtors and creditors receivable / payable within one year 
 
Debtors and creditors with no stated interest rate and receivable or payable within 
one year are recorded at transaction price. Any losses arising from impairment are 
recognised in expenditure. 
 
1.8  Financial instruments 
 
The charity only has financial assets and liabilities of a kind that qualify as basic 
financial instruments. Basic financial instruments are initially recognised at 
transaction value and subsequently measured at their settlement value. 

 
1.9  Going concern 
 
The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis as the 
trustees believe that no material uncertainties exist. The trustees have considered 
the level of funds held and the expected level of income and expenditure for 12 
months from authorising these financial statements. The budgeted income and 
expenditure is sufficient with the level of reserves for the charity to be able to 
continue as a going concern. 

Page 271



HILLSBOROUGH PARK 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

2.  Donations and legacies

Grants 2021/22 2020/21
 £  £ 

Unrestricted:
Sheffield City Council - revenue grant 174,933         217,493         

174,933         217,493         
Restricted:
Capital grants:
Sheffield City Council - Corporate Resource Pool 21,347           28,823           
Sheffield City Council - Capital Grants & Contributions 63,460           25,189           
Public Health - Release debtor (15,000)         -                 
S106 -                13,211           

69,807           67,223           

244,740         284,716         

3.  Income from charitable activities
Hillsborough 

Park
Hillsborough 

Library Total
Hillsborough 

Park
Hillsborough 

Library Total
2021/22 2021/22 2021/22 2020/21 2020/21 2020/21

 £  £  £  £  £  £ 
Unrestricted:
Sales 805                432                1,237             -                  200                200          
Book Fines -                93                  93                  -                  275                275          
Events -                -                -                -                  -                -           
Memorial Benches 1,212             -                1,212             824                 -                824          
Car Parking 50,511           -                50,511           44,507            -                44,507     
Hire, Lettings & Outdoor activities 7,452             -                7,452             -                  -                -           
Tramlines fee 33,500           -                33,500           
Misc 2,337             230                2,567             1,671              -                1,671       
Rents 38,886           7,523             46,409           44,918            12,234           57,152     

134,703         8,278             142,981         91,920            12,709           104,629   

4. Cost of generating funds
Hillsborough 

Park
Hillsborough 

Library Total
Hillsborough 

Park
Hillsborough 

Library Total
2021/22 2021/22 2021/22 2020/21 2020/21 2020/21

 £  £  £  £  £  £ 

Events 470                -                470                -                  -                -           

5.  Analysis of expenditure on charitable 
activities

Hillsborough 
Park

Hillsborough 
Library Total

Hillsborough 
Park

Hillsborough 
Library Total

2021/22 2021/22 2021/22 2020/21 2020/21 2020/21
 £  £  £  £  £  £ 

Unrestricted:
Employees 122,188         37,396           159,584         119,019          82,838           201,857   
Ranger service -                -                -                -                  -                -           
Repairs and maintenance 34,946           18,189           53,135           7,294              7,132             14,426     
Grounds maintenance 25,132           -                25,132           23,856            -                23,856     
Tree work 4,330             -                4,330             6,835              -                6,835       
Playground refurbishment and maintenance 7,472             -                7,472             15,847            -                15,847     
Electricity 5,876             5,016             10,892           5,967              4,459             10,426     
Gas 2,073             4,871             6,944             2,865              4,970             7,835       
Water and sewage 2,325             714                3,039             1,829              686                2,515       
Rates 4,790             3,405             8,195             4,790              3,405             8,195       
Cleaning charges 6,697             14,704           21,401           7,655              14,187           21,842     
Telephones 1,505             -                1,505             2,034              -                2,034       
Transport -                -                -                -                  -                -           
Supplies and services 12,828           836                13,664           15,744            4,121             19,865     
Governance costs 2,151             -                2,151             2,519              -                2,519       

232,313         85,131           317,444         216,254          121,798         338,052   
Restricted:
Depreciation 48,072           2,284             50,356           44,012            2,284             46,296     

48,072           2,284             50,356           44,012            2,284             46,296     

280,385         87,415           367,800         260,266          124,082         384,348   

6.  Grants payable 2021/22 2020/21
 £  £ 

Unrestricted:
Hillsborough Arena Sports Association -                 -                

If expenditure is greater than income the variance is borne by Sheffield City Council and not brought forward into the next financial year.

16Page 272



HILLSBOROUGH PARK 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

7. Governance costs 2021/22 2020/21
Managing and administration:  £  £ 
Independent Examination fees 945                1,350             
Finance office costs 1,206             1,169             

2,151             2,519             

8.  Staff costs and trustees' remuneration 2021/22 2020/21
 £  £ 

Salaries 125,657         158,942         
Social security costs 10,053           12,715           
Pension 23,875           30,199           
Other

159,584         201,856         

2021/22 2020/21
  £  £ 
Hillsborough - Operations 122,188         105,475         
Hillsborough - Library 37,396           82,838           
Hillsborough - Ranger Team (Walled Garden) -                 13,544           
Total 159,584          201,857         

No employee received remuneration of over £60,000 during the year (2021- None).

9.  Staff numbers 2021/22 2020/21
Number Number

The average number of employees during the year was 9 12

10.  Fixed assets

 
Assets under 
construction

Plant and 
Equipment

Land and 
buildings (library)

Land and buildings 
(park) Total

Cost £ £ £ £ £
At 1 April 2021 -                49,078           379,445         1,882,324       2,310,847      
Additions 5,478             79,329            84,807           
Disposals (7,670)             (7,670)           
Transfers -                -                  -                
At 31 March 2022 -                49,078           384,923         1,953,983       2,387,984      

 
Accumulated depreciation  
At 1 April 2021 28,526           -                 350,588          379,114         
Depreciation charged in year 2,284             -                 48,072            50,356           
Eliminated on disposals -                (7,670)             (7,670)           
At 31 March 2022 -                30,810           -                 390,990          421,800         

 
Net book value
At 31 March 2022 -                18,268           384,923         1,562,993       1,966,184      

At 31 March 2021 -                20,552           379,445         1,531,736       1,931,733      

 

11.  Investments  

2021/22
At market value  £ 

At 1 April 2020 6,429             
Interest received 6                    
Draw downs -                
At 31 March 2021 6,435             

Trustees received no remuneration (2021 - £Nil) and were not reimbursed for any of their expenses during the year.

Land and buildings, park and library are included at deemed cost as permitted on transition to SORP (FRS102) based on a valuation in 2013 by 
the Kier Asset Partnership Services.

The Charity funds are invested in Sheffield City Council's Consolidated Loan Funds (interest paid half yearly).  Market value is the same as 
historical cost.

17Page 273



HILLSBOROUGH PARK 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

12.  Debtors 2021/22 2020/21
 £  £ 

Accrued income - 15,000 
Amounts due from Sheffield City Council 945                1,350             

945                16,350           

13. Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 2021/22 2020/21
 £  £ 

Independent examination fees 945                1,350             

14.  Endowment funds
Permanent 

endowment 

 £ 

At 1 April 2021 and 31 March 2022 300                

Endowment funds - prior year
Permanent 

endowment 

 £ 

At 1 April 2020 and at 31 March 2021 300                

15.  Restricted funds
Investment Funds Land and buildings Total

 £  £  £ 

At 1 April 2021 6,000             1,946,733       1,952,733      
Expenditure -                 (50,356)           (50,356)         
Income -                 69,807            69,807           
Balance at 31 March 2022 6,000             1,966,184       1,972,184      

Investment Fund  

Land and buildings 
This fund relates to the library building and refurbishment of the park.  

Restricted funds - prior year
Investment Funds Land and buildings Total

 £  £  £ 

At 1 April 2020 6,000             1,925,806       1,931,806      
Expenditure -                 (46,296)           (46,296)         
Income -                 67,223            67,223           
Balance at 31 March 2021 6,000             1,946,733       1,952,733      

16.  Unrestricted funds General 
Funds

Designated 
Funds Total

 £  £  £ 

At 1 April 2021 - 129 129 
Income 317,920 - 317,920 
Expenditure (317,914) - (317,914)
Transfer (6) 6 - 
Balance at 31 March 2022 - 135 135 

Unrestricted funds - prior year General 
Funds

Designated 
Funds Total

 £  £  £ 

At 1 April 2020 - 16,058 16,058 
Income 322,123 - 322,123 
Expenditure (338,052) - (338,052)
Transfer 15,929 (15,929) - 
Balance at 31 March 2021 - 129 129 

Designated funds represent amounts invested and accumulated interest set aside by the trustees for specific costs as determined by the trustees. 

Endowment funds represent those assets which must be held permanently by the charity, principally investments. Income arising on the
endowment fund can be used in accordance with the objects of the charity and is included as unrestricted income. Any capital gains or losses
arising on the investment form part of the fund.                                         

This represents investments held in repect of land used to create Hawksley Avenue turning head.  Interest can be used for unrestricted purposes.

18Page 274



HILLSBOROUGH PARK 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

17. Analysis of net assets between funds
Unrestricted 

funds
Restricted 

funds Endowment Total funds
£ £ £ £

Fixed asset investments 135 1,972,184 300 1,972,619 
Current assets 945 - - 945 
Creditors due within one year (945) - - (945)

135 1,972,184 300 1,972,619 

Unrestricted 
funds

Restricted 
funds Endowment Total funds

£ £ £ £

Fixed asset investments 129 1,937,733 300 1,938,162 
Current assets 1,350 15,000 - 16,350 
Creditors due within one year (1,350) - - (1,350)

129 1,952,733 300 1,953,162 

18. Ultimate controlling party

The ultimate controlling party is the sole trustee, Sheffield City Council.

19.  Related parties

The charity has a very close relationship with Sheffield City Council who is the sole trustee and provides the balance of funding not provided
elsewhere on an annual basis, to enable the charity to carry out its charitable objectives. The amount of funding provided by Sheffield City
Council during the year is £196,280 (2021: £246,316).  At the year end £945 was owed by Sheffield City Council (2021: £1,350).

Analysis of net assets between funds - prior year 

19Page 275



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 276



Hillsborough Park 
 

SHEFFIELD CITY COUNCIL 
TOWN HALL 

PINSTONE STREET 
SHEFFIELD 

S1 2HH 
 

Charity Number : 523913 
 
Rogers Spencer  
Chartered Accountants 
Newstead House 
Pelham Road 
Nottingham 
NG5 1AP                                                           
 
 
Dear Sirs 
 
The following representations are made on the basis of enquiries of management and staff with relevant knowledge 
and experience such as we consider necessary in the connection with your examination on the charity’s financial 
statements for the year ended 31 March 2022.  These enquiries have included inspection of supporting 
documentation where appropriate and are sufficient to satisfy ourselves that we can make each of the following 
representations. All representations are made to the best of our knowledge and belief. 
 
General 
1 We have fulfilled our responsibilities as trustees as set out in the terms of your engagement letter, under the 

Charities Act 2011 for preparing financial statements in accordance with applicable law and United Kingdom 
Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), for being satisfied that 
they give a true and fair view and for making accurate representations to you.  
 

2 All the transactions undertaken by the charity have been properly reflected and recorded in the accounting 
records. 
 

3 All the accounting records have been made available to you for the purpose of your examination. We have 
provided you with unrestricted access to all appropriate persons within the charity, and with all other records 
and related information requested, including minutes of management and trustee meetings and 
correspondence with The Charity Commission. 

 
4 The financial statements are free of material misstatements, including omissions. 
 
5 The effect of uncorrected misstatements is immaterial both individually and in total. 
 
Internal control and fraud 
6 We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control 

systems to prevent and detect fraud and error.  We have disclosed to you the results of our risk assessment 
that the financial statements may be misstated as a result of fraud.  

  
7 We have disclosed to you all instances or known or suspected fraud affecting the entity involving 

management, employees who have a significant role in internal control or others that could have a material 
effect on the financial statements.  

 
8 We have also disclosed to you all information in relation to allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting 

the entity’s financial statements communicated by current or former employees, analysis, regulators or 
others. 

 
Assets and liabilities 
9 The charity has satisfactory title to all assets and there are no liens or encumbrances on the charity’s assets, 

except for those that are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. 
 

10 All actual liabilities, contingent liabilities and guarantees given to third parties have been recorded or 
disclosed as appropriate. 

 
11 We have no plans or intentions that may materially alter the carrying value and where relevant the fair value 

measurements or classification of assets and liabilities reflected in the financial statements. 
 

Page 277



Accounting estimates 
12 Significant assumptions used by us in making accounting estimates, including those measured at fair value, 

are reasonable. 
 
Loans and arrangements 
13 The charity has not granted any advances or credits to, or made guarantees on behalf of, trustees other than 

those disclosed in the financial statements. 
 
Legal claims 
14 We have disclosed to you all claims in connection with litigation that have been, or are expected to be, 

received and such matters, as appropriate, have been properly accounted for, and disclosed in, the financial 
statements. 

 
Law and regulations 
15 We have disclosed to you all known instances of non-compliance or suspected non-compliance with laws 

and regulations whose affects should be considered when preparing the financial statements. 
 
Related parties 
16 Related party relationships and transactions have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed in the 

financial statements. We have disclosed to you all relevant information concerning such relationships and 
transactions and are not aware of any other matters which require disclosure in order to comply with 
legislative and accounting standards requirements. 

 
Subsequent events 
17 All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements which require adjustment or disclosure have 

been properly accounted for and disclosed. 
 
Going concern 
18 We believe that the charity's financial statements should be prepared on a going concern basis on the 

grounds that current and future sources of funding or support will be more than adequate for the charity's 
needs.  We have considered a period of twelve months from the date of approval of the financial statements.   
We believe that no further disclosures relating to the charity's ability to continue as a going concern need to 
be made in the financial statements. 

 
Grants and donations 
19 All grants, donations and other income, the receipt of which is subject to specific terms or conditions, have 

been notified to you. There have been no breaches of terms or conditions in the application of such income. 
 
Restricted grants and donations are as follows: 
    

Sheffield City Council – CRP 
Sheffield City Council – Capital grants & contributions  

£21,346 
£48,460 

 

 
We acknowledge our legal responsibilities regarding disclosure of information to you as examiner and confirm that 
so far as we are aware, there is no relevant information needed by you in connection with preparing your 
independent examination report of which you are unaware. 
 
Each trustee has taken all steps that they ought to have taken as a trustee in order to make themselves aware of 
any relevant information and to establish that you are aware of that information. 
 
 
Yours faithfully 
 
 
 
.......................................................................................................................... 
Signed on behalf of the board of Sheffield City Council 
  
 
 
Date  
 

Page 278



 

  

 

  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

NORFOLK PARK 
(KNOWN AS NORFOLK HERITAGE PARK) 

TRUSTEES’ REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 

 
REGISTERED CHARITY NUMBER 1040354 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 279



 

  

 

  

NORFOLK HERITAGE PARK 
 
CONTENTS 
 
 
 
 
 
 Page 
  
 
Reference and administrative details           1  
 
Trustees’ report  2 - 7 

  
Independent examiner’s report  8 
 
Statement of financial activities  9 - 10 
 
Balance sheet  11 
 
Notes to the financial statements  12 - 20

Page 280



 

  

 

1  

NORFOLK HERITAGE PARK 
REFERENCE AND ADMINISTRATIVE DETAILS 
 
CHARITY NO: 1040354     
 
     
TRUSTEES    
 
Sheffield City Council is the sole Trustee of the charity, acting through the Charity 
Trustee Sub Committee. 
 
Charity Sub-Committee Members: 
 
Cllr Bryan Lodge (Chair) 
Cllr Richard Williams (Deputy Chair) 
Cllr Douglas Johnson (Spokesperson) 
Cllr Julie Grocutt 
Cllr Mick Rooney 
   
 
PRINCIPAL ADDRESS 
Sheffield City Council 
Parks and Countryside 
Moorfoot 
Level 3 West wing 
Sheffield 
S1 4PL 
 
 
INDEPENDENT EXAMINER 
Melvin Bailey FCCA DChA 
for and on behalf of Rogers Spencer 
Chartered Accountants 
Newstead House 
Pelham Road 
Nottingham 
NG5 1AP 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
      
 
 
 
 
 

Page 281



 

  

 

2  

NORFOLK HERITAGE PARK 
TRUSTEES’ REPORT 
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 
 
The trustees present their report together with the financial statements of the charity for the 
year ended 31 March 2022.  The financial statements have been prepared in accordance 
with the accounting policies set out in note 1 to the accounts and comply with the charity’s 
trust deed, the Charities Act 2011 and the requirements of the Statement of 
Recommended Practice, ‘Accounting and Reporting by Charities’ Financial Reporting 
Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) effective on 1 January 
2019  (Updated second edition – October 19). 
 
DESCRIPTION OF CHARITY’S TRUSTS AND OBJECTS  

 
The City Council acquired Norfolk Park by virtue of a conveyance dated 18 April 1910 from 
the Duke of Norfolk.  The City Council holds the land acquired on trust for charitable 
purposes.  The governing document is the scheme dated 24 August 1998.  
 
The park is held on trust as a public park, recreation ground and community centre.  There 
is further provision that access to the park will be at no charge and there are restrictions on 
the sort of public meetings that can be held.   
 
STRUCTURE, GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT 
 
Norfolk Heritage Park is a charity and the sole Trustee is Sheffield City Council. The 
Charity Trustee Sub Committee is a standing sub committee of the Strategy and 
Resources Policy Committee. It has been established to take all decisions of the Council, 
including but not limited to disposal of and other dealings with charitable land.  
 
Management of the park is the responsibility of the Councils’ Parks and Countryside 
service. Management and administrative decisions which are not decisions of the Council 
as Trustee, may be made, in accordance with the Council constitution delegations, by the 
Executive Director of Operational Services, the Director of Parks, Leisure and Libraries, or 
the head of Parks and Countryside service. 
  
 
PUBLIC BENEFIT 
 
The Trustees have complied with the duty in s. 4 of the Charities Act 2011 to have due 
regard to public benefit guidance published by the Charity Commission. Details of how the 
charity has carried out its activities for the public benefit are given in the section below. 
 
  

Page 282



 

  

 

3  

NORFOLK HERITAGE PARK 
TRUSTEES’ REPORT 
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 
 
ACTIVITIES AND ACHIEVEMENTS 
 
Norfolk Heritage Park is classed as a City Park and is one of the oldest parks in the country.  
From 1999-2005 the park has been regenerated through a national lottery restoration 
project.  New visitor facilities have been constructed including the Centre in the Park, a 
multi-purpose community building.  The park landscape has been restored to its original 
Victorian character.  A new sports pavilion and car park were opened in March 2005 and 
then later in 2011 the redeveloped Sports Pitches were officially opened. 
 
More recently in 2018 the renovation and renewal of new Playground facilities was 
completed.  Then in 2019 a new footpath link between Jervis Lum & Beeches Drive was 
installed creating better access links into the park.  To allow controlled entry to the park a 
new rising arm barrier was fitted at the entrance off Guildford Avenue. 
 
Norfolk Heritage Park has the following facilities for park visitors: 

 Under 8's playground 
 Adventure playground for over 8's 
 Sports pitches, Sports Pavilion and Bowling Greens 
 Multi-use games area 
 A café 
 A crèche/Nursery 
 Youth club provision 
 Sheffield City Council Ranger Service 
 Rooms for hire including an I.T. Training Suite 
 Toilets including toilets for disabled visitors  
 Bookable event space 

 
 
Summary of activities  
 
Most activities and achievements at the park during 21/22 were returning to pre-pandemic 
levels again including the following:  
 
 The Park has been awarded the Green Flag for the fifteenth-year running in recognition 

of the quality of the facilities, services and management. 
 We strive to maintain and improve the high standard of facilities within the park for 

people and wildlife.  
 We have created more biodiversity within the park by increasing wildlife habitats & 

implementing reduced mowing regimes. 
 The new pitches are well used and have benefited from the new drainage, irrigation and 

a knee high rail around the pitches. The pitches have received a higher specification for 
ongoing maintenance and end of season renovation work. 

 We have continued to ensure that all the tenanted buildings associated with the park 
are fully tenanted in order to maximise income for the charity. 

 Norfolk Park Bowling Club still operate from the park albeit with now one green in use. 
 Due to the covid pandemic room booking / income within CITP was greatly reduced but 

has now increased again in 21/22. 
  

Page 283



 

  

 

4  

NORFOLK HERITAGE PARK 
TRUSTEES’ REPORT 
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 
 
Centre in the Park 

 
Due to Covid 19 operations & income within the centre was greatly reduced however the 
toilet facilities remained open with social distancing & other mitigations in place.  Activity 
has since recovered during 21/22.  
 
There has been successful re configuration of the building around the core use of Age UK 
who have established a local service delivery hub within the building taking four of the larger 
community rooms and bringing increased family usage to the centre which will help to 
safeguard the long term viability of the café within the centre. 
 
There has been significant work with the operators of the crèche to restructure the operation 
and make it more sustainable which will allow them to continue to provide preschool places 
within the local area and continue to use facilities within the centre. 
 
The youth club continues to operate from the centre on two nights each week although 
this was curtailed somewhat by the covid restrictions. 
 
Groups with an interest in the park 
 
A new Friends of Norfolk Heritage Park met with Councillors and Sheffield City Council 
Officers during late 2021 and are currently forming a new committee. 
 
Events 
 
A number of events were undertaken during 21/22, some being outdoor events in the 
park and others being based in Centre in the Park and utilising outdoor facilities.  
 

  

Date EVENT
APPROX 

ATTENDANCE
ORGANISATION Type of Event

06/07/2021 Little Library & Family Learning 100 Major Events Community
11/09/2021 Community Picnic 90 SODIT Survivors of Depression in Transition Community
19/09/2021 Froglife Event 50 Froglife Community
09/10/2021 Secondary schools XC 2 300 Major Events Sports
27/10/2021 Froglife Event 50 Froglife Community
20/11/2021 Seconday Schools XC 4 300 Major Events Sports
27/11/2021 Primary Schools XC 5 300 Major Events Sports
22/01/2022 Schools Cross country 150 Major Events Sports
05/02/2022 SFSS Oriienteering 5 100 Major Events Sports
12/03/2022 yorkshire vets cross country 300 Major Events Sports

Page 284



 

  

 

5  

NORFOLK HERITAGE PARK 
TRUSTEES’ REPORT 
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 
 
PLANS FOR FUTURE PERIODS 
 
The trustees will continue to work with key stakeholders to further develop Norfolk 
Heritage Park.  
 
 Continuing to provide a high quality suite of services accessible by all sectors of the 

community in line with Green Flag standards, maintaining the park’s Green Flag Award 
(nationally recognised). 

 Implementing park developments in line with Green Flag Management Plans. 
 Continue to implement and develop the Norfolk Heritage Park Environment Policy to 

reduce the effect of services on the local environment e.g., Bio-Diversity gains 
 Work with Activity Sheffield, Heritage Park Community School, GOALS Soccer Centre 

and All Saints Secondary School to carry out the necessary work to ensure the 
successful usage of the sports pitches. 

 Work with Norfolk Park bowling club to sustain the use of the bowling green within the 
park and seek to encourage increases in junior bowling within the park. 

 Improve visitor information services including supporting Friends Group in the 
development of their website and ensure interpretation leaflet is widely available.   

 Identify marketing opportunities to further promote the park and its facilities, marketing 
plan to be completed and implemented. 

 Parks and Countryside and the Centre in the Park team will continue to provide support 
and facilitate a range of partnership / community led events that use the park buildings 
and the park landscape. 

 Ensure that the park links with the wider regeneration process taking place on the estate 
and any strategies and developments that affect the park and its day-to-day operations.  

 Work is underway to install 5mph speed limit signage from the Norfolk Pk Rd entrance 
up to the bowling green car park following a risk assessment exercise 

 Replacement of the wooden knee rail fencing around the main carpark is planned to 
replace with steel knee high rails for extra durability/sustainability. 

 The surface of the drive leading into the car park & the car park itself is deteriorating, it 
has been acknowledged that full surface repairs/renewal will be required in the short-
term dependant on funding. 

 
 
FINANCIAL REVIEW AND FUNDING 
 
Restricted fund - Net expenditure of £65,788 (2021: expenditure of £48,390) comprising 
depreciation of £93,100 (2021: £48,390). This expenditure was offset by capital grant 
income from the Environment Agency £10,000, Community Infrastructure Levy £10,000 and 
Sheffield City Council Grant £7,312. 
The additional grant income this year covered works on Arbourthorne Pond and 
Arbourthorne Lodge access. 
 
Fixed assets totalling £44,710 were written off as part of an impairment review to ensure 
that the carrying value is not greater than the recoverable amount.  This comprises of 
£36,421 on the Centre in the Park and £8,289 in the Park. 
 
   
 
 

Page 285



 

  

 

6  

NORFOLK HERITAGE PARK 
TRUSTEES’ REPORT 
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 
 
Unrestricted funds - Net income of £159 (2021: £0), this includes investment income of 
£159 (2021: £0).  The income from charitable activities was £55,594 (2021: £38,329) with 
expenditure of £215,489 (2021: £185,573).  The deficit was funded by the grant from 
Sheffield City Council of £159,895 (2021: £147,244).   
 
There has been an increase in charitable expenditure of £29,916 in 21/22.  This is a result 
of activity generally increasing again after the pandemic.  Most notably employee costs have 
risen by £16,225 (30%) due to investing more time in maintaining the Park.  There has also 
been an increase of £4,562 expenditure on supplies & services due to increased activity at 
the Centre in the Park.   
 
The additional expenditure in year has been partially offset by increased rents and room 
hire income of £16,103.  This is as a result of the post pandemic activity returning to more 
normal levels.  The remainder of the deficit has been covered by the Sheffield City Council 
grant of £159,895. 
 
At 31 March 2022 the charity had total funds of £1,745,457 (2021: £1,811,086).  These 
funds are mainly tied up in fixed assets and investments.  Restricted funds of £1,582,275 
(2021: £1,648,063) were held mainly as fixed assets. Endowment and designated funds of 
£163,182 (2021: £163,023) were held as investments. 
 
There was investment income of £159 (2021: £0) and this has been transferred to the 
Designated Fund which now totals £3,122 and is available to spend in accordance with the 
Charity’s Trusts & Objectives. 
 
RESERVES POLICY 
 
As the charity is managed and funded by the Council, no specific unrestricted charity 
reserves are deemed to be necessary. 
 
Annual revenue expenditure is generally greater than income and the variance is born by 
the Council and not carried forward into the next financial year. 
 
This charity has specific monies invested in the Council’s internal investment fund.  Interest 
is received half yearly on the monies invested.  The investment monies are held as 
endowment funds and any interest earned is unrestricted income.  This income has been 
earmarked by the trustees for use at the site for one-off projects rather than ongoing costs 
and has therefore been shown as a designated fund. 
 
RISK MANAGEMENT    
 
The charity is dependent for its day-to-day management upon Sheffield City Council.  It is 
therefore considered expedient and cost effective for the charity to adopt the Council’s risk 
management policy and strategy, which it considers is a crucial part of the service planning 
process in highlighting key risks and how they affect the Council’s ability to deliver its service 
and how they will be managed.  The Council has incorporated a formal approach to risk 
management in its day-to-day operations and has developed a toolkit to allow managers to 
identify risk, which would prevent them from achieving their objectives and to provide 
information and guidance on how these risks can be managed.  The Council operates an 
Internal Insurance Account covering a variety of risks. 

Page 286



 

  

 

7  

NORFOLK HERITAGE PARK 
TRUSTEES’ REPORT 
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 

 

Trustees' responsibilities statement  
 
The trustees are responsible for preparing the Trustees’ Report and the financial statements 
in accordance with applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United 
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice). 
 
The law applicable to charities in England & Wales requires the trustees to prepare financial 
statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of 
the charity and of the incoming resources and application of resources of the charity for that 
period.  In preparing these financial statements, the trustees are required to: 
 
 select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently; 
 observe the methods and principles in the Charities SORP; 
 make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 
 state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any 

material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; 
 prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate 

to presume that the charity will continue in operation. 
 
The trustees are responsible for keeping proper accounting records that disclose with 
reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the charity and enable them to 
ensure that the financial statements comply with the Charities Act 2011, the Charity 
(Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008 and the provisions of the trust deed.  They are 
also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charity and hence for taking reasonable 
steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities. 
 
TRUSTEES 
 
Sheffield City Council adopted a Committee system in May 2022. The current Trustees are 
listed on Pg 1.  
 
Approved by the Trustees and signed on their behalf by: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Cllr Bryan Lodge – Chair of the Charity Trustee Sub Committee. 
 
 
  

Page 287



 

  

 

8  

INDEPENDENT EXAMINER’S REPORT 
 
TO THE TRUSTEES OF Norfolk Park  
 
I report to the trustees on my examination of the financial statements of the charity for the year ended 
31 March 2022. 
 
Responsibilities and basis of report 
 
As the trustees of the charity (and also its directors for the purposes of company law) you are 
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the requirements of 
the Companies Act 2006 (the 2006 Act). 
 
Having satisfied myself that the financial statements of the charity are not required to be audited 
under Part 16 of the 2006 Act and are eligible for independent examination,  I report in respect of my 
examination of the charity’s financial statements carried out under section 145 of the Charities Act 
2011 (the 2011 Act). In carrying out my examination I have followed all the applicable Directions 
given by the Charity Commission under section 145(5)(b) of the 2011 Act. 
 
Independent examiner's statement 
 
I have completed my examination. I confirm that no matters have come to my attention in connection 
with the examination giving me cause to believe that in any material respect: 
 

1. accounting records were not kept in respect of the charity as required by section 386 of the 
2006 Act; or 

2. the financial statements do not accord with those records; or 
3. the financial statements do not comply with the accounting requirements of section 396 of 

the 2006 Act other than any requirement that the accounts give a true and fair view which is 
not a matter considered as part of an independent examination; or 

4. the financial statements have not been prepared in accordance with the methods and 
principles of the Statement of Recommended Practice for accounting and reporting by 
charities applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial 
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102). 
 

I have no concerns and have come across no other matters in connection with the examination to 
which attention should be drawn in this report in order to enable a proper understanding of the 
financial statements to be reached. 
 
 
 

 
 
 

........................................ 
Melvin Bailey FCCA DChA 
for and on behalf of Rogers Spencer 
Chartered Accountants 
Newstead House 
Pelham Road 
Nottingham 
NG5 1AP 
 
Dated:  

Page 288



NORFOLK HERITAGE PARK
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

 
Unrestricted Restricted Endowment Total Total

2021/22 2021/22 2021/22 2021/22 2020/21
Note £ £ £ £ £

Income and endowments from:

Donations and legacies 2 159,895          27,312           -              187,207           147,244      

Charitable activities 3 55,594            -                 -              55,594             38,329        

Investment 10 159                 -                 -              159                  -              

Total 215,648          27,312           -              242,960           185,573      

    
Expenditure on:

Raising funds 4 -                 -                 -              -                   -              
 
Charitable activities 5 215,489          93,100           -              308,589           233,963      

Total 215,489          93,100           -              308,589           233,963      

Net income/(expenditure) 159                 (65,788)          -              (65,629)            (48,390)       

Transfer between funds -              -                   -              

Net movement in funds 159                 (65,788)          -              (65,629)            (48,390)       

Reconciliation of funds:
Total funds brought forward 2,963              1,648,063      160,060       1,811,086        1,859,476   

Total funds carried forward 3,122              1,582,275      160,060       1,745,457        1,811,086   

9Page 289



NORFOLK HERITAGE PARK
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

 
Unrestricted Restricted Endowment Total Total

2020/21 2020/21 2020/21 2020/21 2019/20
Note £ £ £ £ £

Income and endowments from:

Donations and legacies 2 147,244          -                 -              147,244           132,699      

Charitable activities 3 38,329            -                 -              38,329             90,824        

Investment 10 -                 -                 -              -                   868             

Total 185,573          -                 -              185,573           224,391      

    
Expenditure on:

Raising funds 4 -                 -                 -              -                   15,563        
 
Charitable activities 5 185,573          48,390           -              233,963           248,563      

Total 185,573          48,390           -              233,963           264,126      

Net income/(expenditure) -                 (48,390)          -              (48,390)            (39,735)       

Transfer between funds -              -                   -              

Net movement in funds -                 (48,390)          -              (48,390)            (39,735)       

Reconciliation of funds:
Total funds brought forward 2,963              1,696,453      160,060       1,859,476        1,899,211   

Total funds carried forward 2,963              1,648,063      160,060       1,811,086        1,859,476   

The statement of financial activities includes all gains and losses recognised in the year. All income and expenditure derives from continuing
activites.

10Page 290



NORFOLK HERITAGE PARK
BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 MARCH 2022

   
Unrestricted Restricted Endowment Total Total

2021/22 2021/22 2021/22 2021/22 2020/21
Note £ £ £ £ £

Fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets 9 -                 1,582,158  -               1,582,158  1,647,946

Investments 10 3,122             -             160,060       163,182     163,023

3,122             1,582,158  160,060       1,745,340  1,810,969

  
Current assets
Debtors 11 1,050             117            -               1,167         1,267

Liabilities
Creditors falling due within one year 12 (1,050)            -             -               (1,050)        (1,150)
 
Net current assets -                 117 -               117            117.00         

Net assets 3,122 1,582,275 160,060 1,745,457 1,811,086

The funds of the charity

Unrestricted income funds  
  Designated funds 15 3,122 -             -               3,122         2,963           
Restricted income funds 13 -                 1,582,275 -               1,582,275  1,648,063    
Endowment funds 14 -                 -             160,060 160,060     160,060       

3,122             1,582,275  160,060       1,745,457  1,811,086

Sheffield City Council adopted a Committee system in May 2022. The current Trustees are listed on Pg 1.

Approved by the Trustees and signed on their behalf by:

 
Signed  ___________________________________               Date  _____________

Cllr Bryan Lodge – Chair of the Charity Trustee Sub Committee.

11Page 291



NORFOLK HERITAGE PARK 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 
 

 12 
  

1.   Accounting Polices 
 
Norfolk Heritage Park is a registered charity in England. The address of the 
registered office is given in the charity information on page 1 of these financial 
statements.  The nature of the charity’s operations and principal activities are to 
provide a public park, recreation ground and community centre.  
 
The charity constitutes a public benefit entity as defined by FRS 102. The financial 
statements have been prepared in accordance with Accounting and Reporting by 
Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their 
accounts in accordance with the  Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK 
and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) effective on 1 January 2019  (Updated second 
edition – October 19), the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the United 
Kingdom and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102), the Charities Act 2011 and UK 
Generally Accepted Practice as it applies from 1 January 2015.  
 
The financial statements have been prepared to give a ‘true and fair’ view and have 
departed from the Charities (Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008 only to the 
extent required to provide a ‘true and fair view’. This departure has involved following 
the Accounting and Reporting Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice 
applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial 
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) issued 
on 16 July 2014 rather than the Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of 
Recommended Practice effective from 1 April 2005 which has since been withdrawn. 
 
The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis under the historical 
cost convention, modified to include certain items at fair value.  The financial 
statements are presented in sterling which is the functional currency of the charity 
and rounded to the nearest £. 
 
The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial 
statements are as follows: 

1.1  Fixed assets 

Norfolk Park is classified as a Community Asset.  The trustees policy is to value 
Community Assets at £Nil. 
 
Land and buildings are carried in the accounts at deemed cost, as at transition to 
SORP (FRS 102). 
 
Expenditure on fixed assets is capitalised, provided that the fixed asset yields benefit 
to the charity and the services it provides are for a period of more than one year. 
 
Assets have been reviewed for any impairment loss in respect of consumption of 
economic benefit. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 292



NORFOLK HERITAGE PARK 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 
 

 13 
  

1.2 Depreciation  
 
Depreciation is provided on fixed assets at rates calculated to write off the cost of the 
assets over their expected useful lives as follows: 
 

 Land and previously revalued buildings are not depreciated. 
 Park buildings have been depreciated on a straight line basis over 40 years, 

commencing on the transfer from assets under construction.  
 Depreciation is not provided on land or assets under construction. 
 The Trustees perform annual impairment reviews in accordance with the 

requirements of FRS 102 to ensure that the carrying value is not greater than 
the recoverable amount. 

 
1.3  Investments 
 
Fund balances are invested internally with Sheffield City Council. Investments are 
held at market value. 
 
1.4  Fund accounting 
 
Unrestricted funds are available for use at the discretion of the trustees in furtherance 
of the general objectives of the charity and which have not been designated for other 
purposes. 
 
Designated funds comprise of unrestricted funds that have been set aside by the 
trustees for specific purposes. 
 
Restricted funds are funds which are to be used in accordance with specific 
restrictions imposed by the donors or which have been raised by the charity for 
particular purposes. The aim and use of each restricted fund is set out in the notes to 
the financial statements. 
 
Endowment funds represent those assets which must be held permanently by the 
charity, principally investments.  Income arising on the endowment fund can be used 
in accordance with the objects of the charity and is included as unrestricted income.  
Any capital gains or losses arising on the investments form part of the fund. 
 
1.5  Income     
 
Income from donations and grants, including capital grants, is included in income 
when it is probable that the income will be received, and is allocated to the 
appropriate fund. 
 
Investment income is included when receivable. 
 
Rental, events, room hire and similar income is included when the event or function 
has taken place. 
 
The cost of running the park is funded by Sheffield City Council.  Annual revenue 
expenditure is generally greater than income and any variance is borne by the 
Council by way of a grant to the charity. 
 
 
 

Page 293



NORFOLK HERITAGE PARK 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 
 

 14 
  

 
1.6  Expenditure 
 
Expenditure is included in the Statement of Financial Activities on an accruals basis, 
net of any VAT, which can be recovered as Sheffield City Council is the sole trustee 
and therefore has special status under s33 VAT Act 1994. 
 
The main exception to this treatment is payments for such items as gas and 
electricity are charged at the date of the meter reading rather than being apportioned 
between years.  This policy is applied consistently each year. 
 
Expenditure has been allocated to the activities to which it is directly attributable.  
 
Cost of raising funds 
 
The cost of generating any external funding, such as grant applications and events, 
is attributable to the time of Sheffield City Council officers who work on a range of 
projects including the charity.  As such it is not possible to accurately apportion the 
cost of this to the charity so no charge is included in the accounts. 
 
Charitable activities 
 
Charitable activities are set out within the charitable deeds and represent the costs 
associated with the running and maintenance of the park. 
 
Governance costs 
 
Independent examination costs and finance officer costs are charged to the charity.  
The Council currently absorbs the cost of other officers’ time.  This policy is kept 
under review. 
 
Staff costs 
 
The staff who work for the charity are employed by Sheffield City Council, and are 
subject to the terms and conditions of that organisation.  The costs of such staff are 
recharged to the charity.  Full disclosure of the relevant staff costs and numbers is 
provided in the notes to these financial statements. 
 
Pensions 
 
City Council employees may participate in the Local Government Superannuation 
Scheme, which provides members with defined benefits related to pay and service.  
The City Council makes payments for this group of employees to the South Yorkshire 
Pensions Authority, which administers pension arrangements on behalf of Sheffield 
City Council and the other local authorities in the South Yorkshire area.  The City 
Council bears any deficit or surplus on the scheme and does not charge this to the 
charity. 
 
1.7  Debtors and creditors receivable / payable within one year 
 
Debtors and creditors with no stated interest rate and receivable or payable within 
one year are recorded at transaction price. Any losses arising from impairment are 
recognised in expenditure. 
 

Page 294



NORFOLK HERITAGE PARK 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 
 

 15 
  

 
1.8  Financial instruments 
 
The charity only has financial assets and liabilities of a kind that qualify as basic 
financial instruments. Basic financial instruments are initially recognised at 
transaction value and subsequently measured at their settlement value. 
 
1.9  Going concern 
 
The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis as the 
trustees believe that no material uncertainties exist. The trustees have considered 
the level of funds held and the expected level of income and expenditure for 12 
months from authorising these financial statements. The budgeted income and 
expenditure is sufficient with the level of reserves for the charity to be able to 
continue as a going concern. 
 
 

Page 295



NORFOLK HERITAGE PARK
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

2. Donations and legacies  

Grants 2021/22 2020/21
 £  £ 

Unrestricted:
Sheffield City Council - revenue grant  159,895 147,244 

159,895 147,244 

Restricted:
Sheffield City Council - capital grant 7,312              -                
Environment Agency 10,000            -                
Community Infrastructure Levy 10,000            -                
S106 -                  -                
Norfolk Park TARA -                  -                
Public Health -                  -                

27,312            -                

187,207          147,244        

3.  Income from charitable activities Centre in
Park the park 2021/22 2020/21

Operation building Total Total
Income Income

 £  £  £  £ 
Unrestricted:
Outdoor sports 1,087             -              1,087              - 
Events 75                  -              75                   - 
Miscellaneous -                 -              -                  - 
Rents and room hire 6,000             48,432        54,432            38,329 

7,162             48,432        55,594            38,329 

4. Analysis of expenditure on raising funds 2021/22 2020/21
 £  £ 

Unrestricted:
Events - - 

If expenditure is greater than income the variance is borne by Sheffield City Council and not brought forward into the
next financial year.

16
Page 296



NORFOLK HERITAGE PARK
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

5.  Analysis of expenditure on charitable activities Park Centre in 2021/22 2020/21
Operation the Park Total Total

Costs Building Costs

Unrestricted:  £  £  £  £ 
Employees 44,776           26,584        71,360 55,135 
Rangers -                 -              - 110 
Repairs and maintenance 26,973           18,279        45,252 45,181 
Grounds maintenance 22,980           22,980 21,789 
Tree work 6,256             6,256 3,565 
Playground refurbishment and maintenance 5,947             5,947 4,837 
Electricity -                 15,597        15,597 14,565 
Gas -                 5,097          5,097 4,993 
Water and sewage -                 4,564          4,564 2,595 
Rates -                 1,480          1,480 - 
Council tax -                 -              - - 
Cleaning charges -                 23,259        23,259 22,454 
Transport -                 -              - - 
Telephones -                 3,907          3,907 5,061 
Supplies and services -                 7,401          7,401 2,839 
Governance costs -                 2,390          2,390 2,449 

106,932         108,558      215,489 185,573 

Restricted:
Depreciation 47,304           45,796        93,100 48,390 

154,236         154,354      308,589          233,963 

  
6. Governance costs 2021/22 2020/21

 £  £ 
Managing and administration:
Independent examination fees 1,050 1,150 
Finance office costs 1,340 1,299 

2,390 2,449 

7.  Staff costs and trustees' remuneration 2021/22 2020/21
Total Total

 £  £ 
Salaries 55,318 42,740 
Social security costs 5,532 4,274 
Pension 10,510 8,121 

71,360 55,135 

No employee received remuneration of over £60,000 during the year (2021 - None).

8. Staff numbers 2021/22 2020/21
Number Number

The average number of employees during the year was 4 4

Trustees received no remuneration (2021 - £Nil) and were not reimbursed for any of their expenses during the year.

17
Page 297



NORFOLK HERITAGE PARK
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

At cost At cost

9.  Land and buildings Assets under Freehold land Total
Construction and buildings

At cost or valuation £ £

At 1 April 2021 -              1,980,318       1,980,318     
Additions 27,312        -                  27,312          
Transfers (27,312)       27,312            -                
At 31 March 2022 -              2,007,630       2,007,630     

Accumulated depreciation

At 1 April 2021 -              332,372          332,372        
Charge in the year -              93,100            93,100          
At 31 March 2022 -              425,472          425,472        

Net book value

At 31 March 2022 -              1,582,158       1,582,158     

At 31 March 2021 -              1,647,946       1,647,946     

10.  Investments
2021/22

At market value  £ 

At 1 April 2021 163,023        
Interest received 159               
Drawdown -
At 31 March 2022 163,182        

11. Debtors
2021/22 2020/21

 £  £ 
Amounts due from Sheffield City Council 1,050 1,150 
Accrued income 117 117 

1,167          1,267            

12.  Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
2021/22 2020/21

 £  £ 
Independent examination fees 1,050 1,150 
Deferred income - - 

1,050          1,150            

Market value is the same as historical cost.

Freehold land and buildings are included at deemed cost as permitted on transition to SORP (FRS102) based on a
valuation in 2012/13 by the Asset Partnership Services team of Kier who are MRICS qualified.

18
Page 298



NORFOLK HERITAGE PARK
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

13.  Restricted funds
Freehold land

and buildings Total

 £  £ 
Balance at 1 April 2021 1,648,063       1,648,063     
Expenditure (93,100)           (93,100)        
Income 27,312            27,312          
Transfer -                  -                
Balance at 31 March 2022 1,582,275       1,582,275     

Freehold Land and Buildings

Restricted funds - prior year
Freehold land

and buildings Total

 £  £ 
Balance at 1 April 2020 1,696,453       1,696,453     
Expenditure (48,390)           (48,390)        
Income -                  -                
Transfer -                  -                
Balance at 31 March 2021 1,648,063       1,648,063     

14.  Endowment funds

 £ 
Balance at 1 April 2021 and at 31 March 2022 160,060        

Endowment funds - prior year

 £ 
Balance at 1 April 2020 and at 31 March 2021 160,060        

15.  Unrestricted funds
General Funds

Designated 
Funds Total

 £  £  £ 
Balance at 1 April 2021 - 2,963 2,963 
Income 215,765 - 215,765 
Expenditure (215,489) - (215,489)
Transfer (159) 159 - 
Balance at 31 March 2022 117 3,122 3,239 

Unrestricted funds - prior year
General Funds

Designated 
Funds Total

 £  £  £ 
Balance at 1 April 2020 - 2,963 2,963 
Income 185,573 - 185,573 
Expenditure (185,573) - (185,573)
Transfer - - - 
Balance at 31 March 2021 - 2,963 2,963 

The Charity funds are invested in Sheffield City Council's Consolidated Loan Funds. The original investment balances
are held as endowment funds. Interest earned can be used for unrestricted purposes but is designated for one-off
projects rather than ongoing running costs. 

This fund comprises various grants and donations received to finance capital projects including the Centre in the Park,
a new sports pavillion, and a multi use games area.

Designated funds represent accumulated interest on the endowment funds. The trustees have set this money aside for
one-off projects in the future, rather than for ongoing running costs.

19
Page 299



NORFOLK HERITAGE PARK
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

16. Analysis of net assets between funds
Unrestricted 

funds
Restricted 

funds Endowment Total funds
£ £ £ £

Fixed assets 3,239 1,582,158 160,060 1,745,457 
Current assets 1,050 117 - 1,167 
Creditors due within one year (1,050) - - (1,050)

3,239 1,582,275 160,060 1,745,574 

   Analysis of net assets between funds - prior year Unrestricted 
funds

Restricted 
funds Endowment Total funds

£ £ £ £

Fixed assets 2,963 1,647,946 160,060 1,810,969 
Current assets 1,150 117 - 1,267 
Creditors due within one year (1,150) - - (1,150)

2,963 1,648,063 160,060 1,811,086 

17.  Ultimate Controlling Party

The ultimate controlling party is the sole trustee, Sheffield City Council.

18.  Related parties

The charity has a very close relationship with Sheffield City Council who is the sole trustee and provides the balance of
funding not provided elsewhere on an annual basis, to enable the charity to carry out its charitable objectives. 
The amount of funding provided by Sheffield City Council during the year is £167,090 (2021: £147,244). At the year
end  was owed by Sheffield City Council £1,167 (2021: £1,267).

20
Page 300



Norfolk Park 
 

SHEFFIELD CITY COUNCIL 
TOWN HALL 

PINSTONE STREET 
SHEFFIELD 

S1 2HH 
 

Charity Number : 1040354 
 
Rogers Spencer  
Chartered Accountants 
Newstead House 
Pelham Road 
Nottingham 
NG5 1AP                                                           
 
 
Dear Sirs 
 
The following representations are made on the basis of enquiries of management and staff with relevant knowledge 
and experience such as we consider necessary in the connection with your examination on the charity’s financial 
statements for the year ended 31 March 2022.  These enquiries have included inspection of supporting 
documentation where appropriate and are sufficient to satisfy ourselves that we can make each of the following 
representations. All representations are made to the best of our knowledge and belief. 
 
General 
1 We have fulfilled our responsibilities as trustees as set out in the terms of your engagement letter, under the 

Charities Act 2011 for preparing financial statements in accordance with applicable law and United Kingdom 
Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), for being satisfied that 
they give a true and fair view and for making accurate representations to you.  
 

2 All the transactions undertaken by the charity have been properly reflected and recorded in the accounting 
records. 
 

3 All the accounting records have been made available to you for the purpose of your examination. We have 
provided you with unrestricted access to all appropriate persons within the charity, and with all other records 
and related information requested, including minutes of management and trustee meetings and 
correspondence with The Charity Commission. 

 
4 The financial statements are free of material misstatements, including omissions. 
 
5 The effect of uncorrected misstatements is immaterial both individually and in total. 
 
Internal control and fraud 
6 We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control 

systems to prevent and detect fraud and error.  We have disclosed to you the results of our risk assessment 
that the financial statements may be misstated as a result of fraud.  

  
7 We have disclosed to you all instances or known or suspected fraud affecting the entity involving 

management, employees who have a significant role in internal control or others that could have a material 
effect on the financial statements.  

 
8 We have also disclosed to you all information in relation to allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting 

the entity’s financial statements communicated by current or former employees, analysis, regulators or 
others. 

 
Assets and liabilities 
9 The charity has satisfactory title to all assets and there are no liens or encumbrances on the charity’s assets, 

except for those that are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. 
 

10 All actual liabilities, contingent liabilities and guarantees given to third parties have been recorded or 
disclosed as appropriate. 

 
11 We have no plans or intentions that may materially alter the carrying value and where relevant the fair value 

measurements or classification of assets and liabilities reflected in the financial statements. 
 

Page 301



Accounting estimates 
12 Significant assumptions used by us in making accounting estimates, including those measured at fair value, 

are reasonable. 
 
Loans and arrangements 
13 The charity has not granted any advances or credits to, or made guarantees on behalf of, trustees other than 

those disclosed in the financial statements. 
 
Legal claims 
14 We have disclosed to you all claims in connection with litigation that have been, or are expected to be, 

received and such matters, as appropriate, have been properly accounted for, and disclosed in, the financial 
statements. 

 
Law and regulations 
15 We have disclosed to you all known instances of non-compliance or suspected non-compliance with laws 

and regulations whose affects should be considered when preparing the financial statements. 
 
Related parties 
16 Related party relationships and transactions have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed in the 

financial statements. We have disclosed to you all relevant information concerning such relationships and 
transactions and are not aware of any other matters which require disclosure in order to comply with 
legislative and accounting standards requirements. 

 
Subsequent events 
17 All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements which require adjustment or disclosure have 

been properly accounted for and disclosed. 
 
Going concern 
18 We believe that the charity's financial statements should be prepared on a going concern basis on the 

grounds that current and future sources of funding or support will be more than adequate for the charity's 
needs.  We have considered a period of twelve months from the date of approval of the financial statements.   
We believe that no further disclosures relating to the charity's ability to continue as a going concern need to 
be made in the financial statements. 

 
Grants and donations 
19 All grants, donations and other income, the receipt of which is subject to specific terms or conditions, have 

been notified to you. There have been no breaches of terms or conditions in the application of such income. 
 
 
We acknowledge our legal responsibilities regarding disclosure of information to you as examiner and confirm that 
so far as we are aware, there is no relevant information needed by you in connection with preparing your 
independent examination report of which you are unaware. 
 
Each trustee has taken all steps that they ought to have taken as a trustee in order to make themselves aware of 
any relevant information and to establish that you are aware of that information. 
 
 
Yours faithfully 
 
 
 
.......................................................................................................................... 
Signed on behalf of the board of Sheffield City Council 
  
 
 
Date  
 

Page 302



 

  

 

  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 WESTON PARK TRUST 
TRUSTEES’ REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 
 

REGISTERED CHARITY NUMBER 1112685  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Page 303



 

  

 

  

 WESTON PARK TRUST  
 CONTENTS 
 
 
 
 
 
 Page 
  
 
Reference and administrative details           1  
 
Trustees’ report  2 - 5 
  
Independent examiner’s report  6 
 
Statement of financial activities  7 - 8 
 
Balance sheet  9 
 
Notes to the financial statements  10 - 17

Page 304



 

  

 

1  

WESTON PARK TRUST  
REFERENCE AND ADMINISTRATIVE DETAILS 
 
CHARITY NO: 1112685     
 
     
TRUSTEES    
 
Sheffield City Council is the sole Trustee of the charity, acting through the Charity 
Trustee Sub Committee. 
 
Charity Sub-Committee Members: 
 
Cllr Bryan Lodge (Chair) 
Cllr Richard Williams (Deputy Chair) 
Cllr Douglas Johnson (Spokesperson) 
Cllr Julie Grocutt 
Cllr Mick Rooney 
 
 
PRINCIPAL ADDRESS 
Sheffield City Council 
Parks and Countryside 
Moorfoot 
Level 3 West wing 
Sheffield 
S1 4PL 
 
 
INDEPENDENT EXAMINER 
Melvin Bailey FCCA DChA 
for and on behalf of Rogers Spencer 
Chartered Accountants 
Newstead House 
Pelham Road 
Nottingham 
NG5 1AP 
 
      
 
 
 
 
   
 
 
 
    
 
 

Page 305



 

  

 

2  

WESTON PARK TRUST 
TRUSTEES’ REPORT 
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 
 
The trustees present their report together with the financial statements of the charity for 
the year ended 31 March 2022. The financial statements have been prepared in 
accordance with the accounting policies set out in note 1 to the accounts and comply with 
the charity’s trust deed, the Charities Act 2011 and the requirements of the Statement of 
Recommended Practice, ‘Accounting and Reporting by Charities’ Financial Reporting 
Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) effective on 1 January 
2019 (Updated second edition – October 19). 
 
DESCRIPTION OF CHARITY’S TRUSTS AND OBJECTS  
 
The governing document is a declaration of trust dated 5 December 2005.  
 
The objects are: 
 
To promote for the benefit of the inhabitants of Sheffield and the surrounding area the 
provision of facilities for recreation or other leisure time occupation of individuals who 
have need of such facilities by reason of their youth, age, infirmity or disablement, 
financial hardship or social and economic circumstances or the public at large in the 
interests of social welfare and with the object of improving the condition of life of the said 
inhabitants.   
 
To advance the education of the public, to promote and to advance education in the arts, 
in particular, by the establishment and maintenance of a museum and art gallery. 
 
STRUCTURE, GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT 
 
Weston Park is a charity and the sole Trustee is Sheffield City Council. The Charity 
Trustee Sub Committee is a standing sub committee of the Strategy and Resources 
Policy Committee. It has been established to take all decisions of the Council, including 
but not limited to disposal of and other dealings with charitable land.  
 
Management of the park is the responsibility of the Councils’ Parks and Countryside 
service. Management and administrative decisions which are not decisions of the Council 
as Trustee, may be made, in accordance with the Council constitution delegations, by the 
Executive Director of Operational Services, the Director of Parks, Leisure and Libraries, or 
the head of Parks and Countryside service. 
  
 
PUBLIC BENEFIT 
 
The Trustees have complied with the duty in Section 4 of the Charities Act 2011 to have 
due regard to public benefit guidance published by the Charity Commission. Details of 
how the charity has carried out its activities for the public benefit are given in the section 
below. 
 
  

Page 306



 

  

 

3  

WESTON PARK TRUST 
TRUSTEES REPORT 
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 
 
ACTIVITIES AND ACHIEVEMENTS 
 
Weston Park was the first municipal park in the City and is one of the most significant 
historic parks and is very popular with local residents and visitors to the City. 
It is also a park that is highly valued by Sheffield University, the Children’s Hospital and 
the City Museum.  These three partners border the park on three of its four sides. 
 
Heritage Lottery funding has enabled the full restoration of the Park to take place. 
There is an active friends group for the Park and they work very closely with Parks and 
Public Realm officer with the aim of maintaining the site to Green flag standard. 
 
Activities and achievements at the park during 21/22 were reduced but recovering after 
the Covid 19 pandemic. This included several weddings during the year. 
 
 
PLANS FOR THE FUTURE PERIODS 
 
 
 

 To continue the close working relationship with the Friends group and partners 
including the University, Museum and local hospitals. 

 To re-apply for and retain the Green Flag Award in 2022/23. 
 The bandstand will continue to be used as a venue for weddings. 
 To continue to maintain the park to its high standard of grounds maintenance and 

customer care. 
 Continue to replace and refurbish wooden park benches. 
 Re plant missing plant material and replace dead or trees and shrubs. 
 Aerate main event area. 

 
 
 
EVENTS 
 

DATE EVENT 
APPROX 

ATTENDANCE 
ORGANISATION 

15/06/2021 Little Library & Family Learning 50 Family Learning - SCC 

19/07/2021 Eid Prayer in the Park 19 or 20 July 500 
Muslim Welfare House Of 
Sheffield 

28/08/2021 
Falconry Display and Museum 
Activities 

250 Weston Park Museum 

02/10/2021 Student Colour Run 90 Fair Do's Events 
12/12/2021 Christmas Carols in the Park 150 Sheffield Vineyard Church 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 307



 

  

 

4  

WESTON PARK TRUST 
TRUSTEES REPORT 
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 
 
FINANCIAL REVIEW AND FUNDING 
 
Restricted Funds - Net incoming and outgoing resources of £0 (2021: £0).    
 
Unrestricted funds - Net expenditure of £0 (2021: £0).  The income from charitable 
activities was £16,115 (2021: £7,770) with expenditure of £105,815 (2021: £99,586).  The 
deficit was funded by the grant from Sheffield City Council of £89,870 (2021: £91,816). 
 
At 31 March 2022 the charity had total funds of £25,452,752 (2021: £25,452,752). These 
funds are all tied up in fixed assets. 
 
 
RESERVES POLICY 
 
As the charity is managed and funded by the Council no specific unrestricted charity 
reserves are deemed to be necessary. 
 
Annual revenue expenditure is generally greater than income and the variance is borne by 
the Council and not carried forward into the next financial year.   
 
 
RISK MANAGEMENT    
 
The charity is dependent for its day-to-day management upon Sheffield City Council. It is 
therefore considered expedient and cost effective for the charity to adopt the Council’s risk 
management policy and strategy, which it considers is a crucial part of the service 
planning process in highlighting key risks and how they affect the Council’s ability to 
deliver its service and how they will be managed. The Council has incorporated a formal 
approach to risk management in its day-to-day operations and has developed a toolkit to 
allow managers to identify risk, which would prevent them from achieving their objectives 
and to provide information and guidance on how these risks can be managed. The 
Council operates an Internal Insurance Account covering a variety of risks. 
 
  

Page 308



 

  

 

5  

WESTON PARK TRUST 
TRUSTEES’ REPORT 
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 
 
Trustees' responsibilities statement  
 
The trustees are responsible for preparing the Trustees’ Report and the financial 
statements in accordance with applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards 
(United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice). 
 
The law applicable to charities in England & Wales requires the trustees to prepare 
financial statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view of the state of 
affairs of the charity and of the incoming resources and application of resources of the 
charity for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the trustees are required 
to: 
 
 select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently; 
 observe the methods and principles in the Charities SORP; 
 make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 
 state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any 

material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; 
 prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is 

inappropriate to presume that the charity will continue in operation. 
 
The trustees are responsible for keeping proper accounting records that disclose with 
reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the charity and enable them to 
ensure that the financial statements comply with the Charities Act 2011, the Charity 
(Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008 and the provisions of the trust deed. They are 
also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charity and hence for taking 
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities. 
 
TRUSTEES 
 
Sheffield City Council adopted a Committee system in May 2022. The current Trustees 
are listed on Pg 1.  
 
Approved by the Trustees and signed on their behalf by: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Cllr Bryan Lodge – Chair of the Charity Trustee Sub Committee. 
  

Page 309



 

  

 

6  

INDEPENDENT EXAMINER’S REPORT 
 
TO THE TRUSTEES OF Weston Park  
 
I report to the trustees on my examination of the financial statements of the charity for the year 
ended 31 March 2022. 
 
Responsibilities and basis of report 
 
As the trustees of the charity (and also its directors for the purposes of company law) you are 
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the requirements of 
the Companies Act 2006 (the 2006 Act). 
 
Having satisfied myself that the financial statements of the charity are not required to be audited 
under Part 16 of the 2006 Act and are eligible for independent examination,  I report in respect of 
my examination of the charity’s financial statements carried out under section 145 of the Charities 
Act 2011 (the 2011 Act). In carrying out my examination I have followed all the applicable 
Directions given by the Charity Commission under section 145(5)(b) of the 2011 Act. 
 
Independent examiner's statement 
 
I have completed my examination. I confirm that no matters have come to my attention in 
connection with the examination giving me cause to believe that in any material respect: 
 

1. accounting records were not kept in respect of the charity as required by section 386 of the 
2006 Act; or 

2. the financial statements do not accord with those records; or 
3. the financial statements do not comply with the accounting requirements of section 396 of 

the 2006 Act other than any requirement that the accounts give a true and fair view which 
is not a matter considered as part of an independent examination; or 

4. the financial statements have not been prepared in accordance with the methods and 
principles of the Statement of Recommended Practice for accounting and reporting by 
charities applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial 
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102). 
 

I have no concerns and have come across no other matters in connection with the examination to 
which attention should be drawn in this report in order to enable a proper understanding of the 
financial statements to be reached. 
 
 
 

 

........................................ 
Melvin Bailey FCCA DChA 
for and on behalf of Rogers Spencer 
Chartered Accountants 
Newstead House 
Pelham Road 
Nottingham 
NG5 1AP 
 
Dated:  

Page 310



WESTON PARK TRUST
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

 
 

Unrestricted Restricted Endowment Total Total
2021/22 2021/22 2021/22 2021/22 2020/21

Note £ £ £ £ £

Income and endowments from:

Donations and legacies 2 89,870           -              -                89,870          91,816           

Charitable activities 3 16,115           -              -                16,115          7,770             
  

Total 105,985         -              -                105,985        99,586           

 
Expenditure on:

Raising funds 4 170 -              -                170               - 
 
Charitable activities 5 105,815 -              -                105,815        99,586           

Total 105,985         -              -                105,985        99,586           

Net income/(expenditure) -                -              -                -                -                 

Gains on revaluation of fixed assets -                -              -                -                -                 

Net movements in funds -                -              -                -                -                 

Reconciliation of funds:
Total funds brought forward -                3,042,752   22,410,000   25,452,752   25,452,752    

Total funds carried forward -                3,042,752   22,410,000   25,452,752   25,452,752    

The statement of financial activities includes all gains and losses recognised in the year. All income and expenditure derives from continuing
activites.

7Page 311



WESTON PARK TRUST
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

 
 

Unrestricted Restricted Endowment Total Total
2020/21 2020/21 2020/21 2020/21 2019/20

Note £ £ £ £ £

Income and endowments from:

Donations and legacies 2 91,816           -              -                91,816          105,510         

Charitable activities 3 7,770             -              -                7,770            18,229           
  

Total 99,586           -              -                99,586          123,739         

 
Expenditure on:

Raising funds 4 - -              -                -                11,821 
 
Charitable activities 5 99,586 -              -                99,586          104,845         

Total 99,586           -              -                99,586          116,666         

Net income/(expenditure) -                -              -                -                7,073             

Gains on revaluation of fixed assets -                -              -                -                -                 

Net movements in funds -                -              -                -                -                 

Reconciliation of funds:
Total funds brought forward -                3,042,752   22,410,000   25,452,752   25,445,679    

Total funds carried forward -                3,042,752   22,410,000   25,452,752   25,452,752    

The statement of financial activities includes all gains and losses recognised in the year. All income and expenditure derives from continuing
activites.

8Page 312



WESTON PARK TRUST
BALANCE SHEET
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

 
 

Unrestricted Restricted Endowment Total Total
2021/22 2021/22 2021/22 2021/22 2020/21

Note £ £ £ £ £

Fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets 9 -               3,042,752    22,410,000    25,452,752    25,452,752    

  
Current assets
Debtors 10 840              -               -                840                1,350             

Liabilities
Creditors falling due within one year 11 (840)             -               -                (840)              (1,350)           
  
Net current assets -               -               -                -                -                

 
 

Net assets  -               3,042,752    22,410,000    25,452,752    25,452,752    

 
 

Funds  

Unrestricted income funds 13 -               -               -                -                -                
Restricted income funds 14 -               3,042,752    -                3,042,752      3,042,752      
Endowment funds 12 -               -               22,410,000    22,410,000    22,410,000    

-               3,042,752    22,410,000    25,452,752    25,452,752    

Sheffield City Council adopted a Committee system in May 2022. The current Trustees are listed on Pg 1.
Approved by the Trustees and signed on their behalf by:

 
Signed  ___________________________________               Date  _____________

Cllr Bryan Lodge – Chair of the Charity Trustee Sub Committee.

9Page 313



WESTON PARK TRUST 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 
 

10 
 

1.   Accounting Polices 
 
Weston Park Trust is a registered charity in England.  The address of the registered 
office is given in the charity information on page 1 of these financial statements.  The 
nature of the charity’s operations and principal activities are the provision of facilities 
for recreation and to advance the education by the maintenance of a museum and art 
gallery.  
 
The charity constitutes a public benefit entity as defined by FRS 102. The financial 
statements have been prepared in accordance with Accounting and Reporting by 
Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their 
accounts in accordance with the  Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK 
and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) effective on 1 January 2019  (Updated second 
edition – October 19), the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the United 
Kingdom and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102), the Charities Act 2011 and UK 
Generally Accepted Practice as it applies from 1 January 2015.  
 
The financial statements have been prepared to give a ‘true and fair’ view and have 
departed from the Charities (Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008 only to the 
extent required to provide a ‘true and fair view’. This departure has involved following 
the Accounting and Reporting Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice 
applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial 
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) issued 
on 16 July 2014 rather than the Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of 
Recommended Practice effective from 1 April 2005 which has since been withdrawn. 
 
The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis under the historical 
cost convention, modified to include certain items at fair value.  The financial 
statements are presented in sterling which is the functional currency of the charity 
and rounded to the nearest £. 
 
The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial 
statements are as follows: 

1.1  Fixed assets 

Weston Park is classified as a Community Asset.  The trustees policy is to value 
Community Assets at £Nil. 
 
All Land and Buildings are carried at deemed cost, as at transition to SORP (FRS 
102). 
 
These costs have been identified and capitalised in recent years but for earlier years, 
where no records are available, the original cost is treated as £nil. 
 
Expenditure on fixed assets is capitalised, provided that the fixed asset yields benefit 
to the charity and the services it provides are for a period of more than one year. 
 
Assets have been reviewed for any impairment loss in respect of consumption of 
economic benefit. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 314



WESTON PARK TRUST 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 
 

11 
 

1.2 Depreciation  
 
Depreciation is provided on fixed assets at rates calculated to write off the cost of the 
assets over their expected useful lives as follows: 
 

 Land and previously revalued buildings are not depreciated. The buildings are 
not depreciated because the buildings are maintained in good condition so 
that their value is not impaired by the passage of time and in consequence 
any element of depreciation would be immaterial. The Trustees perform 
annual impairment reviews in accordance with the requirements of FRS 102 
to ensure that the carrying value is not greater than the recoverable amount. 

 
1.3  Fund accounting 
 
Unrestricted funds are available for use at the discretion of the trustees in furtherance 
of the general objectives of the charity and which have not been designated for other 
purposes. 
 
Restricted funds are funds which are to be used in accordance with specific 
restrictions imposed by the donors or which have been raised by the charity for 
particular purposes. The aim and use of each restricted fund is set out in the notes to 
the financial statements. 
 
Endowment funds represent those assets which must be held permanently by the 
charity, principally investments.  Income arising on the endowment fund can be used 
in accordance with the objects of the charity and is included as unrestricted income.  
Any capital gains or losses arising on the investments form part of the fund. 
 
1.4  Income     
 
Income from donations and grants, including capital grants, is included in income 
when it is probable that the income will be received, and is allocated to the 
appropriate fund. 
 
Investment income is included when receivable. 
 
Rental, events, room hire and similar income is included when the event or function 
has taken place. 
 
The cost of running the park is funded by Sheffield City Council.  Annual revenue 
expenditure is generally greater than income and any variance is borne by the 
Council by way of a grant to the charity. 
 
1.5  Expenditure 
 
Expenditure is included in the Statement of Financial Activities on an accruals basis, 
net of any VAT, which can be recovered as Sheffield City Council is the sole trustee 
and therefore has special status under s33 VAT Act 1994. 
 
The main exception to this treatment is payments for such items as gas and 
electricity are charged at the date of the meter reading rather than being apportioned 
between years.  This policy is applied consistently each year. 
 
Expenditure has been allocated to the activities to which it is directly attributable.  

Page 315



WESTON PARK TRUST 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 
 

12 
 

Cost of raising funds 
 
The cost of generating any external funding, such as grant applications and events or 
wedding bookings, is attributable to the time of Sheffield City Council officers who 
work on a range of projects including the charity.  As such it is not possible to 
accurately apportion the cost of this to the charity so no charge is included in the 
accounts. 
 
Charitable activities 
 
Charitable activities are set out within the charitable deeds and represent the costs 
associated with the running and maintenance of the park. 
 
Governance costs 
 
Independent examination costs and finance officer costs are charged to the charity.  
The Council currently absorbs the cost of other officers’ time.  This policy is kept 
under review. 
 
Staff costs 
 
The staff who work for the charity are employed by Sheffield City Council, and are 
subject to the terms and conditions of that organisation.  The costs of such staff are 
recharged to the charity.  Full disclosure of the relevant staff costs and numbers is 
provided in the notes to these financial statements. 
 
Pensions 
 
City Council employees may participate in the Local Government Superannuation 
Scheme, which provides members with defined benefits related to pay and service.  
The City Council makes payments for this group of employees to the South Yorkshire 
Pensions Authority, which administers pension arrangements on behalf of Sheffield 
City Council and the other local authorities in the South Yorkshire area.  The City 
Council bears any deficit or surplus on the scheme and does not charge this to the 
charity. 
 
1.6  Debtors and creditors receivable / payable within one year 
 
Debtors and creditors with no stated interest rate and receivable or payable within 
one year are recorded at transaction price. Any losses arising from impairment are 
recognised in expenditure. 
 
1.7  Financial instruments 
 
The charity only has financial assets and liabilities of a kind that qualify as basic 
financial instruments. Basic financial instruments are initially recognised at 
transaction value and subsequently measured at their settlement value. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 316



WESTON PARK TRUST 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 
 

13 
 

1.8  Going concern 
 
The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis as the 
trustees believe that no material uncertainties exist. The trustees have considered 
the level of funds held and the expected level of income and expenditure for 12 
months from authorising these financial statements. The budgeted income and 
expenditure is sufficient with the level of reserves for the charity to be able to 
continue as a going concern. 
 

Page 317



WESTON PARK TRUST
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

2.  Donations and legacies 2021/22 2020/21
 £  £ 

Unrestricted:
Sheffield City Council - revenue grant 89,870           91,816          

89,870           91,816          
Restricted:
Sheffield City Council -                 -                
S106 -                 -                

89,870 91,816 

 

3.  Income from charitable activities 2021/22 2020/21
 £  £ 

Unrestricted:
Memorial benches and ceremonies (non weddings) 908                -                
Events and weddings -                 270               
Concessions 5,769             7,500            
Rent 9,438             -                
 16,115 7,770 

4.  Analysis of expenditure on raising funds 2021/22 2020/21
 £  £ 

Events and weddings 170                -                
 170                -                

5.  Analysis of expenditure on charitable activities 2021/22 2020/21
 £  £ 

Unrestricted:
Employees 72,919           68,112          
Repairs 6,570             5,637            
Tree work 200                120               
Electricity 6,896             6,471            
Water and sewage 886                899               
Telephones 640                840               
Supplies and services 15,792           15,118          
Governance costs 1,912             2,389            

105,815           99,586          

6.  Governance costs 2021/22 2020/21
 £  £ 

Managing and administration:
Independent Examination fees 840                1,350            
Finance office costs 1,072             1,039            

1,912              2,389            

If expenditure is greater than income the variance is borne by Sheffield City Council and not brought 
forward into the next financial year.

 14Page 318



WESTON PARK TRUST
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

7.  Staff costs and trustees' remuneration 2021/22 2020/21
Total Total

 £  £ 
Salaries 57,417           53,631          
Social security costs 4,593             4,291            
Pension 10,909           10,190          

72,919            68,112          

 

No employee received remuneration of over £60,000 during the year (2021 - None).

8.  Staff numbers 2021/22 2020/21
Number Number

The average number of employees during the year was 2 2

At cost At cost

9. Fixed assets
Mappin 

museum
Land and 
buildings Total

 £  £  £ 
At cost
At 1 April 2021 22,410,000     3,042,752     25,452,752   
Additions -                 -               -                
Transfers -                 -               -                
At 31 March 2022 22,410,000     3,042,752     25,452,752   

-                

Accumulated depreciation
At 1 April 2021 and 31 March 2022 -                 -               -                

Net book value   

At 31 March 2022 22,410,000     3,042,752     25,452,752   

At 31 March 2021 22,410,000     3,042,752     25,452,752   

10.  Debtors 2021/22 2020/21
 £  £ 

Amounts due from Sheffield City Council 840                1,350            

The Mappin Museum is included at deemed cost as permitted on transition to SORP (FRS102) based on a
valuation of 1 April 2015 by the Corporate Property Division of Sheffield City Council.

Trustees received no remuneration and were not reimbursed for any of their expenses during the year 
(2021 - £Nil).

 15Page 319



WESTON PARK TRUST
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

11.  Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 2021/22 2020/21
 £  £ 

Independent examination fees 840                1,350            

12.  Endowment funds
Permanent 

endowment
 £ 

At 1 April 2021 and 31 March 2022 22,410,000   

Endowment funds - prior year
Permanent 
endowment

 £ 
At 1 April 2020 and 31 March 2021 22,410,000   

13.  Unrestricted funds
General 

funds Total
 £  £ 

Balance at 1 April 2021 -               -                
Income 105,985        105,985        
Expenditure (105,985)      (105,985)       
Balance at 31 March 2022 - - 

Unrestricted funds - prior year
General 
funds Total

 £  £ 
Balance at 1 April 2020 -               -                
Income 99,586         99,586          
Expenditure (99,586)        (99,586)         
Balance at 31 March 2021 - - 

14.  Restricted funds
Land and 
buildings Total

 £  £ 
Balance at 1 April 2021 3,042,752     3,042,752     
Income -               -                
Balance at 31 March 2022 3,042,752 3,042,752 

Restricted funds - prior year
Land and 
buildings Total

 £  £ 
Balance at 1 April 2020 3,042,752     3,042,752     
Income -               -                
Balance at 31 March 2021 3,042,752 3,042,752 

Endowment funds represent the buildings in Weston Park which must be held permanently by the charity
and which were transferred to the charity by Sheffield City Council on 1 April 2006 at a value of £2,500,000
and which were revalued on 1 April 2015. The buildings principally comprise Weston Park Museum and
the Mappin Art Gallery which are leased to Sheffield Galleries and Museums Trust, a registered charity
which operates the museum and art gallery and has incurred significant expenditure on the redevelopment
of the building.

 16Page 320



WESTON PARK TRUST
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

15. Analysis of net assets between funds
Unrestricted 

funds
Restricted 

funds Endowment Total funds
£ £ £ £

Fixed asset investments - 3,042,752 22,410,000 25,452,752 
Current assets 840 - - 840 
Creditors due within one year (840) - - (840)

- 3,042,752 22,410,000 25,452,752 

   Analysis of net assets between funds - 
prior year 

Unrestricted 
funds

Restricted 
funds Endowment Total funds

£ £ £ £

Fixed asset investments - 3,042,752 22,410,000 25,452,752 
Current assets 1,350 - - 1,350 
Creditors due within one year (1,350) - - (1,350)

- 3,042,752 22,410,000 25,452,752 

16.  Ultimate Controlling Party

The ultimate controlling party is the sole trustee, Sheffield City Council.

17.  Related parties

The amount of funding provided by Sheffield City Council during the year is £89,870 (2021: £91,816). At
the year end £840 was owed by Sheffield City Council (2021: £1,350).

The charity has a very close relationship with Sheffield City Council who is the sole trustee and provides
the balance of funding not provided elsewhere on an annual basis, to enable the charity to carry out its
charitable objectives.

 17Page 321



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 322



Weston Park Trust 
 

SHEFFIELD CITY COUNCIL 
TOWN HALL 

PINSTONE STREET 
SHEFFIELD 

S1 2HH 
 

Charity Number : 1112685 
 
Rogers Spencer  
Chartered Accountants 
Newstead House 
Pelham Road 
Nottingham 
NG5 1AP                                                           
 
 
Dear Sirs 
 
The following representations are made on the basis of enquiries of management and staff with relevant knowledge 
and experience such as we consider necessary in the connection with your examination on the charity’s financial 
statements for the year ended 31 March 2022.  These enquiries have included inspection of supporting 
documentation where appropriate and are sufficient to satisfy ourselves that we can make each of the following 
representations. All representations are made to the best of our knowledge and belief. 
 
General 
1 We have fulfilled our responsibilities as trustees as set out in the terms of your engagement letter, under the 

Charities Act 2011 for preparing financial statements in accordance with applicable law and United Kingdom 
Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), for being satisfied that 
they give a true and fair view and for making accurate representations to you.  
 

2 All the transactions undertaken by the charity have been properly reflected and recorded in the accounting 
records. 
 

3 All the accounting records have been made available to you for the purpose of your examination. We have 
provided you with unrestricted access to all appropriate persons within the charity, and with all other records 
and related information requested, including minutes of management and trustee meetings and 
correspondence with The Charity Commission. 

 
4 The financial statements are free of material misstatements, including omissions. 
 
5 The effect of uncorrected misstatements is immaterial both individually and in total. 
 
Internal control and fraud 
6 We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control 

systems to prevent and detect fraud and error.  We have disclosed to you the results of our risk assessment 
that the financial statements may be misstated as a result of fraud.  

  
7 We have disclosed to you all instances or known or suspected fraud affecting the entity involving 

management, employees who have a significant role in internal control or others that could have a material 
effect on the financial statements.  

 
8 We have also disclosed to you all information in relation to allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting 

the entity’s financial statements communicated by current or former employees, analysis, regulators or 
others. 

 
Assets and liabilities 
9 The charity has satisfactory title to all assets and there are no liens or encumbrances on the charity’s assets, 

except for those that are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. 
 

10 All actual liabilities, contingent liabilities and guarantees given to third parties have been recorded or 
disclosed as appropriate. 

 
11 We have no plans or intentions that may materially alter the carrying value and where relevant the fair value 

measurements or classification of assets and liabilities reflected in the financial statements. 
 

Page 323



Accounting estimates 
12 Significant assumptions used by us in making accounting estimates, including those measured at fair value, 

are reasonable. 
 
Loans and arrangements 
13 The charity has not granted any advances or credits to, or made guarantees on behalf of, trustees other than 

those disclosed in the financial statements. 
 
Legal claims 
14 We have disclosed to you all claims in connection with litigation that have been, or are expected to be, 

received and such matters, as appropriate, have been properly accounted for, and disclosed in, the financial 
statements. 

 
Law and regulations 
15 We have disclosed to you all known instances of non-compliance or suspected non-compliance with laws 

and regulations whose affects should be considered when preparing the financial statements. 
 
Related parties 
16 Related party relationships and transactions have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed in the 

financial statements. We have disclosed to you all relevant information concerning such relationships and 
transactions and are not aware of any other matters which require disclosure in order to comply with 
legislative and accounting standards requirements. 

 
Subsequent events 
17 All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements which require adjustment or disclosure have 

been properly accounted for and disclosed. 
 
Going concern 
18 We believe that the charity's financial statements should be prepared on a going concern basis on the 

grounds that current and future sources of funding or support will be more than adequate for the charity's 
needs.  We have considered a period of twelve months from the date of approval of the financial statements.   
We believe that no further disclosures relating to the charity's ability to continue as a going concern need to 
be made in the financial statements. 

 
Grants and donations 
19 All grants, donations and other income, the receipt of which is subject to specific terms or conditions, have 

been notified to you. There have been no breaches of terms or conditions in the application of such income. 
 
 
We acknowledge our legal responsibilities regarding disclosure of information to you as examiner and confirm that 
so far as we are aware, there is no relevant information needed by you in connection with preparing your 
independent examination report of which you are unaware. 
 
Each trustee has taken all steps that they ought to have taken as a trustee in order to make themselves aware of 
any relevant information and to establish that you are aware of that information. 
 
 
Yours faithfully 
 
 
 
 
.......................................................................................................................... 
Signed on behalf of the board of Sheffield City Council 
  
 
 
Date  
 

Page 324



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FIRTH PARK 
TRUSTEES’ REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 
 

REGISTERED CHARITY NUMBER 1104444 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 325



    

FIRTH PARK 
CONTENTS 
 
 
 
 
 
 Page 
  
 
Reference and administrative details           1  
 
Trustees’ report  2 - 6 
  
Independent examiner’s report  7 
 
Statement of financial activities  8 - 9 
 
Balance sheet  10 
 
Notes to the financial statements  11 - 18

Page 326



 

1 
 

FIRTH PARK 
REFERENCE AND ADMINISTRATIVE DETAILS 
 
CHARITY NO: 1104444     
   
     
TRUSTEES    
 
Sheffield City Council is the sole Trustee of the charity, acting through the Charity 
Trustee Sub Committee. 
 
 
Charity Sub-Committee Members: 
 
Cllr Bryan Lodge (Chair) 
Cllr Richard Williams (Deputy Chair) 
Cllr Douglas Johnson (Spokesperson) 
Cllr Julie Grocutt 
Cllr Mick Rooney 
 
 
PRINCIPAL ADDRESS 
Sheffield City Council 
Parks and Countryside 
Moorfoot 
Level 3 West wing 
Sheffield 
S1 4PL 
 
 
INDEPENDENT EXAMINER 
Melvin Bailey FCCA DChA 
for and on behalf of Rogers Spencer 
Chartered Accountants 
Newstead House 
Pelham Road 
Nottingham 
NG5 1AP 
 

Page 327



 

2 
 

FIRTH PARK 
TRUSTEES’ REPORT 
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 
 
The trustees present their report together with the financial statements of the charity for the 
year ended 31 March 2022. The financial statements have been prepared in accordance 
with the accounting policies set out in note 1 to the accounts and comply with the charity’s 
trust deed, the Charities Act 2011 and the requirements of the Statement of Recommended 
Practice, ‘Accounting and Reporting by Charities’ Financial Reporting Standard applicable 
in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) effective on 1 January 2019  (Updated second 
edition – October 19). 
 
DESCRIPTION OF CHARITY’S TRUSTS AND OBJECTS  
 
The charity’s governing document is an indenture dated 14 August 1875 as affected by a 
scheme of 15 January 2004.  The City Council acquired Firth Park from Mark Firth for the 
purpose of promoting the benefit of the inhabitants of Sheffield and in a common effort to 
advance education and to provide facilities in the interests of social welfare for recreational 
and leisure-time occupation with the object of improving the conditions of life for the said 
inhabitants.  
 
STRUCTURE, GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT 
 
Firth Park is a charity and the sole Trustee is Sheffield City Council. The Charity Trustee 
Sub Committee is a standing sub committee of the Strategy and Resources Policy 
Committee. It has been established to take all decisions of the Council, including but not 
limited to disposal of and other dealings with charitable land.  
 
Management of the park is the responsibility of the Councils’ Parks and Countryside 
service. Management and administrative decisions which are not decisions of the Council 
as Trustee, may be made, in accordance with the Council constitution delegations, by the 
Executive Director of Operational Services, the Director of Parks, Leisure and Libraries, or 
the head of Parks and Countryside service. 
 
 
PUBLIC BENEFIT 
 
The Trustees have complied with the duty in s. 4 of the Charities Act 2011 to have due 
regard to public benefit guidance published by the Charity Commission. Details of how the 
charity has carried out its activities for the public benefit are given in the section below. 
 
  

Page 328



 

3 
 

FIRTH PARK 
TRUSTEES’ REPORT 
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 
 
ACTIVITIES AND ACHIEVEMENTS 
 
Firth Park is classified as a city park and is at the heart of the local community and is well 
used. It has an active friends group which meet on a monthly cycle to organise community 
based activities and events within the park. The Friends group are based within part of the 
Bowling pavilion and are present in the park most days. The park is of major historical 
significance and the City Council is keen to explore forms of external funding which can be 
invested into the area to refurbish the landscape features and regenerate facilities, which 
will increase the usage of the area. 
 
The park was awarded a Green Flag from the Civic Trust at an awards ceremony held in 
Liverpool in August 2008 and retained the quality standard in 2009 to 2021 inclusive.  The 
Green Flag proudly flies from the First start centre roof at the park entrance. 
 
The park is situated at the centre of the wider Firth Park townships and is on one of the 
busy routes to the local shopping area. 
 
Further improvements have been achieved over the last year which include – 
 

 Improved seating and bins across the site.  The formal area now includes lowered 
hedges and inclusive octagonal picnic seating 

 Wildflower areas have been increased; naturalized areas added 
 Additional child height benches have been added 
 Changes / enhancements to both the Sensory Garden and formal bedding areas 

including perennial / shrub planting 
 
The park continues to be a popular meeting point for local health walks and joggers from 
the different ethnic groups. 
 
The park’s dedicated gardeners have continued to maintain the floral bedding displays 
which have become a local feature of the park and the area has become a well-used local 
seating area for visitors and shoppers to the nearby busy shopping area. 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 329



 

4 
 

FIRTH PARK 
TRUSTEES’ REPORT 
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 
 
EVENTS  
 
There were numerous small local events and activities organised by the Friends of Firth 
Park Group and the First Start centre in the park throughout the year for the local 
community. 
 

Date EVENT APPROX 
ATTENDANCE ORGANISATION 

4/12/21 Firth Park Christmas Lights 2,000 Firth Park Festival Committee 
 
 
PLANS FOR FUTURE PERIODS 
 

 Replacement of existing worn bins, benches, and notice boards – rolling programme 
 Standardisation of seating style within the Park. 
 Continue to develop wildflower areas within the Park as an alternative to mowed 

grass. 
 Increase naturalization and biodiversity 
 Improve planting in the (ripples) Wetland area 

 
FINANCIAL REVIEW AND FUNDING 
 
Restricted Funds - Net expenditure was £75,701 (2021: £75,701). Restricted capital 
funding comprising grants from Sheffield City Council £750 (2021: £0) less depreciation of 
£75,701 (2021: £75,701). 
 
Unrestricted funds - Net expenditure of £0 (2021: Net expenditure of £0).  The income 
from charitable activities was £73,342 (2021: £77,941) with total expenditure of £265,911 
(2021: £230,579).  The deficit was funded by the increase in grant from Sheffield City 
Council of £192,569 (2021: £152,638). 
There was a £35,332 increase in expenditure this year. This was due to additional repairs 
and maintenance costs throughout but particularly decoration and upkeep of the Sure Start 
Centre. 
 
Endowment Fund - Interest was received on the endowment fund of £92 (2021: £0). This 
has been transferred to the Designated Fund that now totals £91,832. 
 
At 31 March 2022 the charity had total funds of £2,512,156 (2021: £2,587,015). These funds 
are tied up in fixed assets of £2,355,324 (2021: £2,430,275), investments of £94,917 (2021: 
£94,825), current assets of £62,860 (2021: £63,065) and liabilities of £945 (2021: £1,150).  
  

Page 330



 

5 
 

FIRTH PARK 
TRUSTEES’ REPORT 
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 
 
RESERVES POLICY 
 
As the charity is managed and funded by the Council no specific charity reserves are 
deemed to be necessary other than designated funds which have been earmarked for future 
expenditure. 
 
Annual revenue expenditure is greater than income and the variance is born by the Council 
and not carried forward into the next financial year. 
 
This charity has specific monies invested in the Council’s internal investment fund. Interest 
is received half yearly on the monies invested. The investment monies are endowment 
funds and interest is accumulated on the fund as described in note 14. 
 
 
RISK MANAGEMENT    
 
The charity is dependent for its day-to-day management upon Sheffield City Council.  It is 
therefore considered expedient and cost effective for the charity to adopt the Council’s risk 
management policy and strategy, which it considers is a crucial part of the service planning 
process in highlighting key risks and how they affect the Council’s ability to deliver its service 
and how they will be managed.  The Council has incorporated a formal approach to risk 
management in its day-to-day operations and has developed a toolkit to allow managers to 
identify risk, which would prevent them from achieving their objectives and to provide 
information and guidance on how these risks can be managed.  The Council operates an 
Internal Insurance Account covering a variety of risks. 
  

Page 331



6 
 

FIRTH PARK 
TRUSTEES’ REPORT 
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 
 
Trustees' responsibilities statement  
 
The trustees are responsible for preparing the Trustees’ Report and the financial statements 
in accordance with applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United 
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice). 
 
The law applicable to charities in England & Wales requires the trustees to prepare financial 
statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of 
the charity and of the incoming resources and application of resources of the charity for that 
period.  In preparing these financial statements, the trustees are required to: 
 
 select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently; 
 observe the methods and principles in the Charities SORP; 
 make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 
 state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any 

material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; 
 prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate 

to presume that the charity will continue in operation. 
 
The trustees are responsible for keeping proper accounting records that disclose with 
reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the charity and enable them to 
ensure that the financial statements comply with the Charities Act 2011, the Charity 
(Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008 and the provisions of the trust deed.  They are 
also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charity and hence for taking reasonable 
steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities. 
 
TRUSTEES 
 
Sheffield City Council adopted a Committee system in May 2022. The current Trustees are 
listed on Pg 1.  
 
Approved by the Trustees and signed on their behalf by: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Cllr Bryan Lodge – Chair of the Charity Trustee Sub Committee. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 332



 

 
7 

 
INDEPENDENT EXAMINER’S REPORT 
 
TO THE TRUSTEES OF Trustees of Firth Park 
 
I report to the trustees on my examination of the financial statements of the charity for the year ended 31 
March 2022. 
 
Responsibilities and basis of report 
 
As the trustees of the charity (and also its directors for the purposes of company law) you are responsible 
for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 
2006 (the 2006 Act). 
 
Having satisfied myself that the financial statements of the charity are not required to be audited under 
Part 16 of the 2006 Act and are eligible for independent examination,  I report in respect of my examination 
of the charity’s financial statements carried out under section 145 of the Charities Act 2011 (the 2011 Act). 
In carrying out my examination I have followed all the applicable Directions given by the Charity 
Commission under section 145(5)(b) of the 2011 Act. 
 
Independent examiner's statement 
 
I have completed my examination. I confirm that no matters have come to my attention in connection with 
the examination giving me cause to believe that in any material respect: 
 

1. accounting records were not kept in respect of the charity as required by section 386 of the 2006 
Act; or 

2. the financial statements do not accord with those records; or 
3. the financial statements do not comply with the accounting requirements of section 396 of the 

2006 Act other than any requirement that the accounts give a true and fair view which is not a 
matter considered as part of an independent examination; or 

4. the financial statements have not been prepared in accordance with the methods and principles 
of the Statement of Recommended Practice for accounting and reporting by charities applicable 
to charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard 
applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102). 
 

I have no concerns and have come across no other matters in connection with the examination to which 
attention should be drawn in this report in order to enable a proper understanding of the financial 
statements to be reached. 

 
 
 
 
 

 

........................................ 
Melvin Bailey FCCA DChA 
for and on behalf of Rogers Spencer 
Chartered Accountants 
Newstead House 
Pelham Road 
Nottingham 
NG5 1AP 
 
Dated:  

Page 333



FIRTH PARK
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

Permanent  
Unrestricted Restricted Endowment Total Total

2021/22 2021/22 2021/22 2021/22 2020/21
Note £ £ £ £ £

Income and endowments from:

Donations and legacies 2 202,310      750             -             203,060      152,638      

Charitable activities 3 63,601        -             -             63,601        77,941        

Investments 9 92               -             -             92               -             

Total 266,003      750             -             266,753      230,579      

  
Expenditure on:

Charitable activities 4 265,911      75,701        -             341,612      306,280      

Total 265,911      75,701        -             341,612      306,280      
  

Net income/(expenditure) 92               (74,951)       -             (74,859)       (75,701)       

Reconciliation of funds:
Total funds brought forward 91,740        2,430,275   65,000        2,587,015   2,662,716   

Total funds carried forward 91,832        2,355,324   65,000        2,512,156   2,587,015   

8Page 334



FIRTH PARK
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

Permanent  
Unrestricted Restricted Endowment Total Total

2020/21 2020/21 2020/21 2020/21 2019/20
Note £ £ £ £ £

Income and endowments from:

Donations and legacies 2 152,638      -             -             152,638      207,069      

Charitable activities 3 77,941        -             -             77,941        70,896        

Investments 9 -             -             -             -             504             

Total 230,579      -             -             230,579      278,469      

  
Expenditure on:

Charitable activities 4 230,579      75,701        -             306,280      334,514      

Total 230,579      75,701        -             306,280      334,514      
  

Net income/(expenditure) (0)               (75,701)       -             (75,701)       (56,045)       

Reconciliation of funds:
Total funds brought forward 91,740        2,505,976   65,000        2,662,716   2,718,761   

Total funds carried forward 91,740        2,430,275   65,000        2,587,015   2,662,716   

The statement of financial activities includes all gains and losses recognised in the year. All income and expenditure derives from
continuing activites.

9Page 335



FIRTH PARK
BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 MARCH 2022

Permanent
Unrestricted Restricted Endowment Total Total

2021/22 2021/22 2021/22 2021/22 2020/21
Note £ £ £ £ £

Fixed assets   

Tangible fixed assets 8 -               2,355,324   -               2,355,324   2,430,275  

Investments 9 29,917         -             65,000         94,917        94,825       
  

29,917         2,355,324   65,000         2,450,241   2,525,100  

    
Current assets
Debtors 10 62,860         -             -               62,860        63,065       

Liabilities
Creditors falling due within one year 11 (945)             -             -               (945)            (1,150)       

Net current assets 61,915         -             -               61,915        61,915       

Net assets 91,832         2,355,324   65,000         2,512,156   2,587,015  

Funds

Unrestricted income funds
  -General Funds -               -             -               -             -            
  -Designated Funds 12 91,832         -             -               91,832        91,740       
Restricted income funds 13 -               2,355,324   -               2,355,324   2,430,275  
Permanent endowment funds 14 -               -             65,000         65,000        65,000       

91,832         2,355,324   65,000         2,512,156   2,587,015  

Approved by the Trustees and signed on their behalf by:

Signed  ___________________________________               Date  _____________

Cllr Bryan Lodge – Chair of the Charity Trustee Sub Committee.

 10Page 336



FIRTH PARK 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 
 

 11 

  

1.   Accounting Polices 
 
Firth Park is a registered charity in England.  The address of the registered office is 
given in the charity information on page 1 of these financial statements.  The nature 
of the charity’s operations and principal activities are to provide facilities for 
recreational and leisure time occupation.  
 
The charity constitutes a public benefit entity as defined by FRS 102. The financial 
statements have been prepared in accordance with Accounting and Reporting by 
Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their 
accounts in accordance with the  Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK 
and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) effective on 1 January 2019  (Updated second 
edition – October 19), the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the United 
Kingdom and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102), the Charities Act 2011 and UK 
Generally Accepted Practice as it applies from 1 January 2015.  
 
The financial statements have been prepared to give a ‘true and fair’ view and have 
departed from the Charities (Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008 only to the 
extent required to provide a ‘true and fair view’. This departure has involved following 
the Accounting and Reporting Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice 
applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial 
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) issued 
on 16 July 2014 rather than the Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of 
Recommended Practice effective from 1 April 2005 which has since been withdrawn. 
 
The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis under the historical 
cost convention, modified to include certain items at fair value.  The financial 
statements are presented in sterling which is the functional currency of the charity 
and rounded to the nearest £. 
 
The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial 
statements are as follows: 

1.1  Fixed assets 

Firth Park is classified as a Community Asset.  The trustees policy is to value 
Community Assets at £Nil. 
 
Land and Buildings were carried in the accounts at their deemed cost at the date of 
transition to SORP (FRS 102). 
 
Other Plant and Equipment are carried at cost.  
 
Expenditure on fixed assets is capitalised, provided that the fixed asset yields benefit 
to the charity and the services it provides are for a period of more than one year. 
 
Assets have been reviewed for any impairment loss in respect of consumption of 
economic benefit. 
 
 

Page 337



FIRTH PARK 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 
 

 12 

  

1.2 Depreciation  
 
Depreciation is provided on fixed assets at rates calculated to write off the cost of the 
assets over their expected useful lives as follows: 
 

• Land and previously revalued buildings are not depreciated. 

• Park buildings have been depreciated on a straight line basis over 40 years, 
commencing on the transfer from assets under construction.  

• Plant and equipment have been depreciated on a straight line basis over 10 
years. 

• Depreciation is not provided on land or assets under construction. 

• The Trustees perform annual impairment reviews in accordance with the 
requirements of FRS 102 to ensure that the carrying value is not greater than 
the recoverable amount. 

 
1.3  Investments 
 
Fund balances are invested internally with Sheffield City Council. Investments are 
held at market value. 
 
1.4  Fund accounting 
 
Unrestricted funds are available for use at the discretion of the trustees in furtherance 
of the general objectives of the charity and which have not been designated for other 
purposes. 
 
Designated funds comprise of unrestricted funds that have been set aside by the 
trustees for specific purposes. 
 
Restricted funds are funds which are to be used in accordance with specific 
restrictions imposed by the donors or which have been raised by the charity for 
particular purposes. The aim and use of each restricted fund is set out in the notes to 
the financial statements. 
 
Endowment funds represent those assets which must be held permanently by the 
charity, principally investments.  Income arising on the endowment fund can be used 
in accordance with the objects of the charity and is included as unrestricted income.  
Any capital gains or losses arising on the investments form part of the fund. 
 
1.5  Income 
 
Income from donations and grants, including capital grants, is included in income 
when it is probable that the income will be received, and is allocated to the 
appropriate fund. 
 
Investment income is included when receivable. 
 
Rental, events, activity and similar income is included when the event or function has 
taken place. 
 
The cost of running the park is funded by Sheffield City Council.  Annual revenue 
expenditure is generally greater than income and any variance is borne by the 
Council by way of a grant to the charity. 
 

Page 338



FIRTH PARK 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 
 

 13 

  

1.6  Expenditure 
 
Expenditure is included in the Statement of Financial Activities on an accruals basis, 
net of any VAT, which can be recovered as Sheffield City Council is the sole trustee 
and therefore has special status under s33 VAT Act 1994. 
 
The main exception to this treatment is payments for such items as gas and 
electricity are charged at the date of the meter reading rather than being apportioned 
between years.  This policy is applied consistently each year. 
 
Expenditure has been allocated to the activities to which it is directly attributable.  
 
Cost of raising funds 
 
The cost of generating any external funding, such as grant applications and events, 
is attributable to the time of Sheffield City Council officers who work on a range of 
projects including the charity.  As such it is not possible to accurately apportion the 
cost of this to the charity so no charge is included in the accounts. 
 
Charitable activities 
 
Charitable activities are set out within the charitable deeds and represent the costs 
associated with the running and maintenance of the park. 
 
Governance costs 
 
Independent examination costs and finance officer costs are charged to the charity.  
The Council currently absorbs the cost of other officers’ time.  This policy is kept 
under review. 
 
Staff costs 
 
The staff who work for the charity are employed by Sheffield City Council, and are 
subject to the terms and conditions of that organisation.  The costs of such staff are 
recharged to the charity.  Full disclosure of the relevant staff costs and numbers is 
provided in the notes to these financial statements. 
 
Pensions 
 
City Council employees may participate in the Local Government Superannuation 
Scheme, which provides members with defined benefits related to pay and service.  
The City Council makes payments for this group of employees to the South Yorkshire 
Pensions Authority, which administers pension arrangements on behalf of Sheffield 
City Council and the other local authorities in the South Yorkshire area.  The City 
Council bears any deficit or surplus on the scheme and does not charge this to the 
charity. 
 
1.7  Debtors and creditors receivable / payable within one year 
 
Debtors and creditors with no stated interest rate and receivable or payable within 
one year are recorded at transaction price. Any losses arising from impairment are 
recognised in expenditure. 
 
 

Page 339



FIRTH PARK 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 
 

 14 

  

1.8  Financial instruments 
 
The charity only has financial assets and liabilities of a kind that qualify as basic 
financial instruments. Basic financial instruments are initially recognised at 
transaction value and subsequently measured at their settlement value. 
 
1.9  Going concern 
 
The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis as the 
trustees believe that no material uncertainties exist. The trustees have considered 
the level of funds held and the expected level of income and expenditure for 12 
months from authorising these financial statements. The budgeted income and 
expenditure is sufficient with the level of reserves for the charity to be able to 
continue as a going concern. 

Page 340



FIRTH PARK
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

2.  Donations and legacies 2021/22 2020/21
 £  £ 

Unrestricted:
Sheffield City Council - revenue  192,569        152,638           

Restricted:   
Capital Grants:
Grants & Contributions -                -                   
Sheffield City Council -capital receipts 750               -                   

750               -                   

193,319        152,638           

3.  Income from charitable activities Park Firth Park
Operation Centre Total Total

Income Income 2021/22 2020/21
 £  £  £  £ 

Unrestricted:
Events -                 -                -                   
Memorial Benches & Donations 9,741        9,741            -                   
Fees and charges -                 -                -                   
Rents and service charges 24,601      39,000           63,601          77,941             
Recharges to other departments -            -                -                   
 34,342      39,000           73,342          77,941             

4.  Analysis of expenditure on charitable activities
Park Firth Park

Operation Centre Total Total
Costs Costs 2021/22 2020/21

 £  £  £  £ 
Unrestricted:
Employees 80,648      42,813           123,461        125,118           
Ranger service -            -                 -                -                   
Repairs and maintenance 9,335        36,843           46,178          1,759               
Grounds maintenance 15,495      -                 15,495          14,887             
Tree work 3,990        -                 3,990            1,450               
Playground refurbishment and maintenance 8,547        -                 8,547            7,667               
Electricity 1,794        7,062             8,856            7,211               
Gas -            3,284             3,284            3,511               
Water and sewage 564           2,780             3,344            2,747               
Rates -            6,861             6,861            6,861               
Cleaning charges 6,598        34,507           41,105          42,308             
Telephones -            -                 -                212                  
Supplies and services 1,961        678                2,639            14,529             
Governance costs 2,151        -                 2,151            2,319               

131,083    134,828         265,911        230,579           
Restricted:
Supplies and services -            -                 -                -                   
Depreciation -            75,701           75,701          75,701             

-            75,701           75,701          75,701             

131,083    210,529         341,612        306,280           

5.  Governance costs 2021/22 2020/21
 £  £ 

  

Independent examination fees 945               1,150               
Finance office costs   1,206            1,169               

 2,151            2,319               

If expenditure is greater than income the variance is borne by Sheffield City Council and not brought forward into the next
financial year.

 

15Page 341



FIRTH PARK
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022   

6.  Staff costs and trustees' remuneration 2021/22 2020/21
 £  £ 

Salaries 94,970          98,518             
Social security costs 10,447          7,881               
Pension 18,044          18,718             

123,461        125,118           

No employee received remuneration of over £60,000 during the year (2021 - None).

Trustees received no remuneration (2021 - £Nil) and were not reimbursed for any of their expenses during the year.

7.  Staff numbers 2021/22 2020/21
Number Number

The average number of employees during the year was 4 4

8.  Fixed assets
Assets Under 
Construction

Land and 
buildings

Plant and 
Equipment Total

At cost  £  £ 

At 1 April 2021 3,030,271     16,640            3,046,911        
Additions -                 750               750                  
Transfers -                 -                -                   
At 31 March 2022 -                 3,031,021     16,640            3,047,661        

   
Accumulated depreciation  

At 1 April 2021 599,996        16,640            616,636           
Charge for the year 75,701          -                  75,701             
At 31 March 2022 675,697        16,640            692,337           

   
Net book value

At 31 March 2022 2,355,324     -                  2,355,324        

At 31 March 2021 2,430,275     -                  2,430,275        

9.  Investments 2021/22
 £ 

At market value

At 1 April 2021 94,825             
Interest received 92                    
At 31 March 2022 94,917             

10.  Debtors 2021/22 2020/21
 £  £ 

Amounts due from Sheffield City Council 62,860          63,065             

11.  Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 2021/22 2020/21
 £  £ 

Independent examination fees 945               1,150               

The charity funds are invested in Sheffield City Council's Consolidated Loan Funds (interest paid half yearly). Market value is
the same as historical cost. 

Land and buildings are included at deemed cost as permitted on transition to SORP (FRS102) based on a valuation carried out
in 2012/13 by the Asset Partnership Services team of Kier who are MRICS qualified.

16Page 342



FIRTH PARK
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

12.  Unrestricted funds General 
Funds

Designated 
Funds Total

£  £ £

Balance at 1 April 2021 (0)                  91,740            91,740             

Income 266,003        -                  266,003           

Expenditure (265,911)       -                  (265,911)          

Transfer (92)                92                   -                   
Balance at 31 March 2022 (0)                  91,832            91,832             

Unrestricted funds - prior year General 
Funds

Designated 
Funds Total

£  £ £

Balance at 1 April 2020 (0)                  91,740            91,740             
Income 230,579        -                  230,579           
Expenditure (230,579)       -                  (230,579)          
Transfer -                -                  -                   
Balance at 31 March 2021 (0)                  91,740            91,740             

13.  Restricted funds
Land and 

Buildings Fund Total

 £  £ 

Balance at 1 April 2021 2,430,275       2,430,275        
Expenditure (75,701)           (75,701)            
Income 750                 750                  
Balance at 31 March 2022 2,355,324       2,355,324        

Land and buildings fund  

Restricted funds - prior year
Land and 

Buildings Fund Total

 £  £ 

Balance at 1 April 2020 2,505,976       2,505,976        
Expenditure (75,701)           (75,701)            
Income -                  -                   
Balance at 31 March 2021 2,430,275       2,430,275        

14. Permanent endowment fund 2021/22
 £ 

Balance at 1 April 2021 and 31 March 2022 65,000             

    Permanent endowment fund - prior year 2020/21
 £ 

Balance at 1 April 2020 and 31 March 2021 65,000             

This fund relates to the construction of a new multi-purpose building in Firth Park, the creation of a round walk in the park, a 
multi-use games area and the regeneration of the boating lake.   

In accordance with an order of the Charity Commission dated 16 February 2005, £25,000 from the proceeds of the sale of the
Old Firth Park Library (£62,000) has been invested as a permanent endowment. In accordance with the order the interest
accruing on this is to be added to the endowment for 25 years or until the value of the endowment equals £65,000, whichever
is the sooner.

The designated fund represents monies put aside for repairs and general maintenance for the multi-purpose building at Firth 
Park. During the year, £nil has been spent from this fund.

The lease was surrendered back to the council in November 2013.

17Page 343



FIRTH PARK
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

15. Analysis of net assets between funds
Unrestricted 

funds
Restricted 

funds Endowment Total funds
£ £ £ £

Fixed asset investments 29,917 2,355,324 65,000 2,450,241 
Current assets 62,860 - - 62,860 
Creditors due within one year (945) - - (945)

91,832 2,355,324 65,000 2,512,156 

Unrestricted 
funds

Restricted 
funds Endowment Total funds

£ £ £ £

Fixed asset investments 29,825 2,430,275 65,000 2,525,100 
Current assets 63,065 - - 63,065 
Creditors due within one year (1,150) - - (1,150)

91,740 2,430,275 65,000 2,587,015 

16.  Ultimate controlling party

The ultimate controlling party is the sole trustee, Sheffield City Council.

17.  Related parties

The amount of funding provided by Sheffield City Council during the year is £193,319 (2021: £152,638). At the year end
£62,860 was owed by Sheffield City Council (2021: £63,065).

The charity has a very close relationship with Sheffield City Council who is the sole trustee and provides the balance of funding
not provided elsewhere on an annual basis, to enable the charity to carry out its charitable objectives.  

   Analysis of net assets between funds - prior year 

18Page 344



Firth Park 
 

SHEFFIELD CITY COUNCIL 
TOWN HALL 

PINSTONE STREET 
SHEFFIELD 

S1 2HH 
 

Charity Number : 1104444 
 
Rogers Spencer  
Chartered Accountants 
Newstead House 
Pelham Road 
Nottingham 
NG5 1AP                                                           
 
 
Dear Sirs 
 
The following representations are made on the basis of enquiries of management and staff with relevant knowledge 
and experience such as we consider necessary in the connection with your examination on the charity’s financial 
statements for the year ended 31 March 2022.  These enquiries have included inspection of supporting 
documentation where appropriate and are sufficient to satisfy ourselves that we can make each of the following 
representations. All representations are made to the best of our knowledge and belief. 
 
General 
1 We have fulfilled our responsibilities as trustees as set out in the terms of your engagement letter, under the 

Charities Act 2011 for preparing financial statements in accordance with applicable law and United Kingdom 
Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), for being satisfied that 
they give a true and fair view and for making accurate representations to you.  
 

2 All the transactions undertaken by the charity have been properly reflected and recorded in the accounting 
records. 
 

3 All the accounting records have been made available to you for the purpose of your examination. We have 
provided you with unrestricted access to all appropriate persons within the charity, and with all other records 
and related information requested, including minutes of management and trustee meetings and 
correspondence with The Charity Commission. 

 
4 The financial statements are free of material misstatements, including omissions. 
 
5 The effect of uncorrected misstatements is immaterial both individually and in total. 
 
Internal control and fraud 
6 We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control 

systems to prevent and detect fraud and error.  We have disclosed to you the results of our risk assessment 
that the financial statements may be misstated as a result of fraud.  

  
7 We have disclosed to you all instances or known or suspected fraud affecting the entity involving 

management, employees who have a significant role in internal control or others that could have a material 
effect on the financial statements.  

 
8 We have also disclosed to you all information in relation to allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting 

the entity’s financial statements communicated by current or former employees, analysis, regulators or 
others. 

 
Assets and liabilities 
9 The charity has satisfactory title to all assets and there are no liens or encumbrances on the charity’s assets, 

except for those that are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. 
 

10 All actual liabilities, contingent liabilities and guarantees given to third parties have been recorded or 
disclosed as appropriate. 

 
11 We have no plans or intentions that may materially alter the carrying value and where relevant the fair value 

measurements or classification of assets and liabilities reflected in the financial statements. 
 

Page 345



Accounting estimates 
12 Significant assumptions used by us in making accounting estimates, including those measured at fair value, 

are reasonable. 
 
Loans and arrangements 
13 The charity has not granted any advances or credits to, or made guarantees on behalf of, trustees other than 

those disclosed in the financial statements. 
 
Legal claims 
14 We have disclosed to you all claims in connection with litigation that have been, or are expected to be, 

received and such matters, as appropriate, have been properly accounted for, and disclosed in, the financial 
statements. 

 
Law and regulations 
15 We have disclosed to you all known instances of non-compliance or suspected non-compliance with laws 

and regulations whose affects should be considered when preparing the financial statements. 
 
Related parties 
16 Related party relationships and transactions have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed in the 

financial statements. We have disclosed to you all relevant information concerning such relationships and 
transactions and are not aware of any other matters which require disclosure in order to comply with 
legislative and accounting standards requirements. 

 
Subsequent events 
17 All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements which require adjustment or disclosure have 

been properly accounted for and disclosed. 
 
Going concern 
18 We believe that the charity's financial statements should be prepared on a going concern basis on the 

grounds that current and future sources of funding or support will be more than adequate for the charity's 
needs.  We have considered a period of twelve months from the date of approval of the financial statements.   
We believe that no further disclosures relating to the charity's ability to continue as a going concern need to 
be made in the financial statements. 

 
Grants and donations 
19 All grants, donations and other income, the receipt of which is subject to specific terms or conditions, have 

been notified to you. There have been no breaches of terms or conditions in the application of such income. 
 
 
We acknowledge our legal responsibilities regarding disclosure of information to you as examiner and confirm that 
so far as we are aware, there is no relevant information needed by you in connection with preparing your 
independent examination report of which you are unaware. 
 
Each trustee has taken all steps that they ought to have taken as a trustee in order to make themselves aware of 
any relevant information and to establish that you are aware of that information. 
 
 
Yours faithfully 
 
 
 
.......................................................................................................................... 
Signed on behalf of the board of Sheffield City Council 
  
 
 
Date  
 

Page 346



 

  

 

  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ENDCLIFFE PARK 
TRUSTEES’ REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 
 

REGISTERED CHARITY NUMBER 1112149 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 347



 

  

 

  

ENDCLIFFE PARK 
CONTENTS 
 
 
 
 
 
 Page 
  
 
Reference and administrative details           1  
 
Trustees’ report  2 - 5 
  
Independent examiner’s report  6 
 
Statement of financial activities  7 - 8 
 
Balance sheet  9 
 
Notes to the financial statements  10 - 17

Page 348



 

  

 

1  

ENDCLIFFE PARK 
REFERENCE AND ADMINISTRATIVE DETAILS 
 
CHARITY NO: 1112149    
 
     
TRUSTEES    
 
Sheffield City Council is the sole Trustee of the charity, acting through the Charity 
Trustee Sub Committee. 
 
Charity Sub-Committee Members: 
 
Cllr Bryan Lodge (Chair) 
Cllr Richard Williams (Deputy Chair) 
Cllr Douglas Johnson (Spokesperson) 
Cllr Julie Grocutt 
Cllr Mick Rooney 
 
 
PRINCIPAL ADDRESS 
Sheffield City Council 
Parks and Countryside 
Moorfoot 
Level 3 West wing 
Sheffield 
S1 4PL 
 
 
INDEPENDENT EXAMINER 
Melvin Bailey FCCA DChA 
Rogers Spencer Limited 
Newstead House 
Pelham Road 
Nottingham 

 

NG5 1AP 
 

 

Page 349



 

  

 

2  

ENDCLIFFE PARK 
TRUSTEES’ REPORT 
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 
 
The trustees present their report together with the financial statements of the charity for the year 
ended 31 March 2022.  The financial statements comply with the charity’s trust deed, applicable 
law and the requirements of the Statement of Recommended Practice, ‘Accounting and 
Reporting by Charities’ Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of 
Ireland (FRS 102) effective on 1 January 2019  (Updated second edition – October 19). 
 
DESCRIPTION OF CHARITY’S TRUSTS AND OBJECTS  
 
The charity’s governing documents is a conveyance dated 15 October 1885. 
 
The objects of the charity are public walks and leisure gardens. 
 
STRUCTURE, GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT 
 
Endcliffe Park is a charity and the sole Trustee is Sheffield City Council. The Charity Trustee 
Sub Committee is a standing sub committee of the Strategy and Resources Policy Committee. 
It has been established to take all decisions of the Council, including but not limited to disposal 
of and other dealings with charitable land.  
 
Management of the park is the responsibility of the Councils’ Parks and Countryside service. 
Management and administrative decisions which are not decisions of the Council as Trustee, 
may be made, in accordance with the Council constitution delegations, by the Executive 
Director of Operational Services, the Director of Parks, Leisure and Libraries, or the head of 
Parks and Countryside service.  
 
PUBLIC BENEFIT 
 
The Trustees have complied with the duty in s. 4 of the Charities Act 2011 to have due regard 
to public benefit guidance published by the Charity Commission. Details of how the charity has 
carried out its activities for the public benefit are given in the section below. 
 
ACTIVITIES AND ACHIEVEMENTS 
 
During 2021/2022, the City Council has continued to meet and work with the friends of the 
Porter Valley, who are a local community group and a registered charity with the declared aim 
of preserving and enhancing the natural and historic characteristics of the Porter Valley of 
which Endcliffe Park forms an important part, discussing various issues alongside planning 
tasks for regular workdays. 
 
Friends of Porter Valley, the City Council’s Ranger Service, park staff and corporate volunteer 
groups, worked together on several working days to weed, prune and undertake other general 
parks tasks throughout the valley. 
 
The weekly 5km Parkrun normally attracts over 700 runners per week. 
 
Additional memorial benches were installed throughout the site. A new herbaceous plant bed 
was added to the existing flower beds. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 350



 

  

 

3  

EVENTS 
 
The following events took place during 2021/2022: 

DATE EVENT 
APPROX 

ATTENDANCE ORGANISATION 

15/05/2021 Fake Festival - COVID CANCELLED 0 Fake Festival 
26/06/2021 The Round Sheffield Run 1500 Kandoo Events 
27/06/2021 The Round Sheffield Run 1500 Kandoo Events 
11/09/2021 Orienteering 100 South Yorkshire Orienteers 
18/09/2021 Trail Blazer 50 Hope for the Future 
10/10/2021 TenTenTen 1500 Kandoo Events Ltd 
05/12/2021 Support Dogs Santa Paws Walk 100 Support Dogs 
14/12/2021 The Glow Run 350 The Children's Hospital Charity 
09/01/2022 Round Sheffield Run - Winter Edition 2000 Kandoo Events 
19/01/2022 SY Orienteering club night 120 Major Events 

 
 
PLANS FOR FUTURE PERIODS 
 
We are developing a masterplan for long term park improvement’s, utilising the parks buildings 
and looking at income generation. We hope to develop the entrance planting plans including 
new perennial planting to Rustlings Road and Hunters Bar entrances. 
 
The City Council is introducing pay & display parking and it is hoped that this will be a successful 
addition to the park.   
 
FINANCIAL REVIEW AND FUNDING 
 
Restricted Funds - Net expenditure was £11,372 (2021: net expenditure of £24,347) 
comprising grants received from Sheffield City Council of £14,359 (2021: £49,217).  
Depreciation of £25,731 (2021: £24,870) was also charged to the restricted fund.   
The reduction in grant was due to less capital expenditure this year.  The majority of which was 
spent on pathways and car park development.  
 
Fixed assets totalling £29,004 were written off as part of an impairment review to ensure that 
the carrying value is not greater than the recoverable amount. 
 
Endowment Fund – The balance on Net income on endowment funds was £nil (2021: £nil). 
 
Unrestricted funds - Net income of £2 (2021: £0).  Income from charitable activities was 
£74,968 (2021: £41,897) with expenditure of £153,622 (2021: £109,899).  The deficit was 
funded by the grant from Sheffield City Council of £74,209 (2021: £66,504).   
The expenditure on charitable activities has increased by £44,584 as a result of spending on 
playground refurbishment and in particular surfacing work around the climbing unit.  This was 
funded by additional rental income and Sheffield City Council revenue grant. 
 
At 31 March 2022 the charity had total funds of £824,785 (2021: £836,155).   £822,323 (2021: 
£833,695) of these funds are tied up in fixed assets. The remainder being endowment and 
designated funds of £2,462 (2021: £2,460) held as investments. 
There was investment income of £2 (2021: £0). This has been transferred to the Designated 
Fund which now totals £82 and is available to spend in accordance with the Charity’s Trusts & 
Objectives. 
 
 
 
 

Page 351



 

  

 

4  

RESERVES POLICY 
 
As the charity is managed and funded by the Council no specific charity reserves are deemed 
to be necessary. 
 
Annual revenue expenditure is generally greater than income and the variance is born by the 
Council and not carried forward into the next financial year. 
 
This charity has specific monies invested in the Council’s internal investment fund.  Interest is 
received half yearly on the monies invested.  The original investment forms the endowment fund 
and any interest earned is unrestricted income.  This income has been earmarked by the 
trustees for use at the site for one-off projects rather than on-going costs and has therefore been 
shown as a designated fund. 
 
During 21/22 there was zero interest receivable on the Sheffield City Council Internal Investment 
Fund. 
 
 
RISK MANAGEMENT    
 
The charity is dependent for its day-to-day management upon Sheffield City Council.  It is 
therefore considered expedient and cost effective for the charity to adopt the Council’s risk 
management policy and strategy, which it considers is a crucial part of the service planning 
process in highlighting key risks and how they affect the Council’s ability to deliver its service 
and how they will be managed.  The Council has incorporated a formal approach to risk 
management in its day-to-day operations and has developed a toolkit to allow managers to 
identify risk, which would prevent them from achieving their objectives and to provide information 
and guidance on how these risks can be managed.  The Council operates an Internal Insurance 
Account covering a variety of risks. 
 
 
 
  

Page 352



 

  

 

5  

ENDCLIFFE PARK 
TRUSTEES’ REPORT 
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 
 
Trustees' responsibilities statement  
 
The trustees are responsible for preparing the Trustees’ Report and the financial statements in 
accordance with applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom 
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice). 
 
The law applicable to charities in England & Wales requires the trustees to prepare financial 
statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the 
charity and of the incoming resources and application of resources of the charity for that period.  
In preparing these financial statements, the trustees are required to: 
 
 select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently; 
 observe the methods and principles in the Charities SORP; 
 make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 
 state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material 

departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; 
 prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to 

presume that the charity will continue in operation. 
 
The trustees are responsible for keeping proper accounting records that disclose with 
reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the charity and enable them to ensure 
that the financial statements comply with the Charities Act 2011, the Charity (Accounts and 
Reports) Regulations 2008 and the provisions of the trust deed.  They are also responsible for 
safeguarding the assets of the charity and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention 
and detection of fraud and other irregularities. 
 
 
TRUSTEES 
 
 
Sheffield City Council adopted a Committee system in May 2022. The current Trustees are listed 
on Pg 1.  
 
Approved by the Trustees and signed on their behalf by: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Signed   ___________________________________               Date  _____________ 
 
 
Cllr Bryan Lodge – Chair of the Charity Trustee Sub Committee. 
 
 
  

Page 353



 

  

 

6  

INDEPENDENT EXAMINER’S REPORT 
 
TO THE TRUSTEES OF Endcliffe Park 
 
I report to the trustees on my examination of the financial statements of the charity for the year ended 31 March 
2022. 
 
Responsibilities and basis of report 
 
As the trustees of the charity (and also its directors for the purposes of company law) you are responsible for 
the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 
(the 2006 Act). 
 
Having satisfied myself that the financial statements of the charity are not required to be audited under Part 16 
of the 2006 Act and are eligible for independent examination,  I report in respect of my examination of the 
charity’s financial statements carried out under section 145 of the Charities Act 2011 (the 2011 Act). In carrying 
out my examination I have followed all the applicable Directions given by the Charity Commission under section 
145(5)(b) of the 2011 Act. 
 
Independent examiner's statement 
 
I have completed my examination. I confirm that no matters have come to my attention in connection with the 
examination giving me cause to believe that in any material respect: 
 

1. accounting records were not kept in respect of the charity as required by section 386 of the 2006 Act; 
or 

2. the financial statements do not accord with those records; or 
3. the financial statements do not comply with the accounting requirements of section 396 of the 2006 

Act other than any requirement that the accounts give a true and fair view which is not a matter 
considered as part of an independent examination; or 

4. the financial statements have not been prepared in accordance with the methods and principles of the 
Statement of Recommended Practice for accounting and reporting by charities applicable to charities 
preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and 
Republic of Ireland (FRS 102). 
 

I have no concerns and have come across no other matters in connection with the examination to which 
attention should be drawn in this report in order to enable a proper understanding of the financial statements 
to be reached. 
 

 

........................................ 
Melvin Bailey FCCA DChA 
for and on behalf of Rogers Spencer 
Chartered Accountants 
Newstead House 
Pelham Road 
Nottingham 
NG5 1AP 
 
Dated:  

Page 354



ENDCLIFFE PARK
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

 
 

Unrestricted Restricted Endowment Total Total
2021/22 2021/22 2021/22 2021/22 2020/21

Note £ £ £ £ £

Income and endowments from:

Donations and legacies 2 78,654       14,359           -               93,013         117,219     
 

Charitable activities 3 74,968       -                 -               74,968         41,897       

Investments 10 2                -                 -               2                  -             

Total 153,624     14,359           -               167,983       159,116     

Expenditure on:    

Raising funds 4 -             -                 -               -               -             

Charitable activities 5 153,622     25,731           -               179,353       134,769     

Total 153,622     25,731           -               179,353       134,769     
  

Net income/(expenditure) 2                (11,372)         -               (11,370)        24,347       

Reconciliation of funds:
Total funds brought forward 80              833,695         2,380           836,155       811,808     

Total funds carried forward 82              822,323         2,380           824,785       836,155     

The statement of financial activities includes all gains and losses recognised in the period. All income and expenditure derives from
continuing activities.

 7Page 355



ENDCLIFFE PARK
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

 
 

Unrestricted Restricted Endowment Total Total
2020/21 2020/21 2020/21 2020/21 2019/20

Note £ £ £ £ £

Income and endowments from:

Donations and legacies 2 68,002       49,217           -               117,219       39,746       
 

Charitable activities 3 41,897       -                 -               41,897         63,607       

Investments 10 -             -                 -               -               17              

Total 109,899     49,217           -               159,116       103,370     

Expenditure on:    

Raising funds 4 -             -                 -               -               -             

Charitable activities 5 109,899     24,870           -               134,769       155,882     

Total 109,899     24,870           -               134,769       155,882     
  

Net income/(expenditure) -             24,347           -               24,347         (52,512)     

Reconciliation of funds:
Total funds brought forward 80              809,348         2,380           811,808       864,320     

Total funds carried forward 80              833,695         2,380           836,155       811,808     

The statement of financial activities includes all gains and losses recognised in the period. All income and expenditure derives from 

 8Page 356



ENDCLIFFE PARK
BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 MARCH 2022

 
 

Unrestricted Restricted Endowment Total Total
2021/22 2021/22 2021/22 2021/22 2020/21

Note £ £ £ £ £

Fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets 9 - 822,323      -               822,323     833,695     

Investments 10 82 -              2,380           2,462         2,460         

 82                 822,323      2,380           824,785     836,155     

   
Current assets
Debtors 11 945               -              -               945            575            

Liabilities
Creditors falling due within one year 12 (945) -              -               (945)           (575)           
  
Net current assets - -              -               -             -             

 
 

Net assets  82                 822,323      2,380           824,785     836,155     

 
 

Funds  

Unrestricted income funds  
     Designated funds 15 82 82              80              
Restricted income funds 13 - 822,323      -               822,323     833,695     
Endowment funds 14 - -              2,380           2,380         2,380         

82                 822,323      2,380           824,785     836,155     

Approved by the Trustees and signed on their behalf by:

Signed  ___________________________________               Date  _____________

Cllr Bryan Lodge – Chair of the Charity Trustee Sub Committee.

9
Page 357



ENDCLIFFE PARK 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022      
 

 10 
  

1.   Accounting Polices 
 
Endcliffe Park is a registered charity in England.  The address of the registered office 
is given in the charity information on page 1 of these financial statements.  The 
nature of the charity’s operations and principal activities are to provide public parks 
and leisure walks.  
 
The charity constitutes a public benefit entity as defined by FRS 102. The financial 
statements have been prepared in accordance with Accounting and Reporting by 
Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their 
accounts in accordance with the  Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK 
and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) effective on 1 January 2019  (Updated second 
edition – October 19), the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the United 
Kingdom and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102), the Charities Act 2011 and UK 
Generally Accepted Practice as it applies from 1 January 2015.  
 
The financial statements have been prepared to give a ‘true and fair’ view and have 
departed from the Charities (Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008 only to the 
extent required to provide a ‘true and fair view’. This departure has involved following 
the Accounting and Reporting Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice 
applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial 
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) issued 
on 16 July 2014 rather than the Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of 
Recommended Practice effective from 1 April 2005 which has since been withdrawn. 
  
The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis under the historical 
cost convention, modified to include certain items at fair value. The financial 
statements are presented in sterling which is the functional currency of the charity 
and rounded to the nearest £. 
 
The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial 
statements are as follows: 

1.1  Fixed assets 

Endcliffe Park is classified as a Community Asset.  The trustees policy is to value 
Community Assets at £Nil. 
 
Land and Buildings were carried in the accounts at deemed cost as at date of transition 
to SORP (FRS 102). 
 
Other Plant and Equipment are carried at cost.  
 
Expenditure on fixed assets is capitalised, provided that the fixed asset yields benefit to 
the charity and the services it provides are for a period of more than one year. 
 
Assets have been reviewed for any impairment loss in respect of consumption of 
economic benefit. 
 

Page 358



ENDCLIFFE PARK 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022      
 

 11 
  

1.2 Depreciation  
 
Depreciation is provided on fixed assets at rates calculated to write off the cost of the 
assets over their expected useful lives as follows: 
 

 Land and previously revalued buildings are not depreciated. 
 Park buildings have been depreciated on a straight line basis over 40 years, 

commencing on the transfer from assets under construction.  
 Plant and equipment have been depreciated on a straight line basis over 10 

years. 
 Depreciation is not provided on land or assets under construction. 
 The Trustees perform annual impairment reviews in accordance with the 

requirements of FRS 102 to ensure that the carrying value is not greater than 
the recoverable amount. 

 
1.3  Investments 
 
Fund balances are invested internally with Sheffield City Council. Investments are held at 
market value. 
 
1.4  Fund accounting 
 
Unrestricted funds are available for use at the discretion of the trustees in furtherance 
of the general objectives of the charity and which have not been designated for other 
purposes. 
 
Designated funds comprise of unrestricted funds that have been set aside by the 
trustees for specific purposes. 
 
Restricted funds are funds which are to be used in accordance with specific 
restrictions imposed by the donors or which have been raised by the charity for 
particular purposes. The aim and use of each restricted fund is set out in the notes to 
the financial statements. 
 
Endowment funds represent those assets which must be held permanently by the 
charity, principally investments. Income arising on the endowment fund can be used 
in accordance with the objects of the charity and is included as unrestricted income.  
Any capital gains or losses arising on the investments form part of the fund. 
 
1.5  Income     
 
Income from donations and grants, including capital grants, is included in income 
when it is probable that the income will be received, and is allocated to the 
appropriate fund. 
 
Investment income is included when receivable. 
 
Rental, events, and similar income is included when the event or function has taken 
place. 
 
The cost of running the park is funded by Sheffield City Council.  Annual revenue 
expenditure is generally greater than income and any variance is borne by the 
Council by way of a grant to the charity. 
 

Page 359



ENDCLIFFE PARK 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022      
 

 12 
  

1.6  Expenditure 
 
Expenditure is included in the Statement of Financial Activities on an accruals basis, 
net of any VAT, which can be recovered as Sheffield City Council is the sole trustee 
and therefore has special status under s33 VAT Act 1994. 
 
The main exception to this treatment is payments for such items as gas and 
electricity are charged at the date of the meter reading rather than being apportioned 
between years. This policy is applied consistently each year. 
 
Expenditure has been allocated to the activities to which it is directly attributable.  
 
Cost of raising funds 
 
The cost of generating any external funding, such as grant applications and events, 
is attributable to the time of Sheffield City Council officers who work on a range of 
projects including the charity. As such it is not possible to accurately apportion the 
cost of this to the charity so no charge is included in the accounts. 
 
Charitable activities 
 
Charitable activities are set out within the charitable deeds and represent the costs 
associated with the running and maintenance of the park. 
 
Governance costs 
 
Independent examination costs and finance officer costs are charged to the charity.  
The Council currently absorbs the cost of other officers’ time. This policy is kept 
under review. 
 
Staff costs 
 
The staff who work for the charity are employed by Sheffield City Council, and are 
subject to the terms and conditions of that organisation. The costs of such staff are 
recharged to the charity. Full disclosure of the relevant staff costs and numbers is 
provided in the notes to these financial statements. 
 
Pensions 
 
City Council employees may participate in the Local Government Superannuation 
Scheme, which provides members with defined benefits related to pay and service.  
The City Council makes payments for this group of employees to the South Yorkshire 
Pensions Authority, which administers pension arrangements on behalf of Sheffield 
City Council and the other local authorities in the South Yorkshire area. The City 
Council bears any deficit or surplus on the scheme and does not charge this to the 
charity. 
 
1.7  Debtors and creditors receivable / payable within one year 
 
Debtors and creditors with no stated interest rate and receivable or payable within 
one year are recorded at transaction price. Any losses arising from impairment are 
recognised in expenditure. 
 
 

Page 360



ENDCLIFFE PARK 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022      
 

 13 
  

1.8  Financial instruments 
 
The charity only has financial assets and liabilities of a kind that qualify as basic 
financial instruments. Basic financial instruments are initially recognised at 
transaction value and subsequently measured at their settlement value. 
 
1.9  Going concern 
 
The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis as the 
trustees believe that no material uncertainties exist. The trustees have considered 
the level of funds held and the expected level of income and expenditure for 12 
months from authorising these financial statements. The budgeted income and 
expenditure is sufficient with the level of reserves for the charity to be able to 
continue as a going concern. 

Page 361



ENDCLIFFE PARK
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 22

2.  Donations and legacies 2021/22 2020/21
 £  £ 

Grants
Unrestricted:
Donation -                    
Sheffield City Council - revenue grant 74,209              66,504           
Memorial Benches & Tree planting 4,445                1,498             

78,654              68,002           
Restricted:
Sheffield City Council - capital grant 14,359              49,217           

14,359              49,217           

93,013              117,219         

3.  Income from charitable activities 2021/22 2020/21
 £  £ 

Unrestricted:
Fees and charges 8,627                9,214             
Events -                    -                 
Rents 66,341              32,683           

74,968              41,897           

4. Analysis of expenditure on raising funds

Unrestricted:
Events -                    -                 

5.  Analysis of expenditure on charitable activities 2021/22 2020/21
 £  £ 

Unrestricted:
Employees 66,230              64,394           
Ranger service -                    88                  
Repairs and maintenance 6,826                4,519             
Grounds maintenance 13,284              12,763           
Playground refurbishment and maintenance 43,527              9,007             
Electricity 3,014                1,907             
Water and sewage 2,822                2,581             
Telephones -                    -                 
Supplies and services 11,758              4,876             
Tree work 4,010                8,020             
Governance costs 2,151                1,744             

153,622            109,899         
Restricted:
Depreciation 25,731              24,870           

179,353            134,769         

6.  Governance costs 2021/22 2020/21
 £  £ 

Managing and administration:
Independent examination fees 945                   575                
Finance office costs 1,206                1,169             

2,151                1,744             

If expenditure is greater than income the variance is borne by Sheffield City Council and not brought forward into the next
financial year.

 14Page 362



ENDCLIFFE PARK
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 22

7.  Staff costs and trustees' remuneration 2021/22 2020/21
Total Total

 £  £ 
Salaries 51,341              49,918           
Social security costs 5,134                4,992             
Superannuation 9,755                9,484             

66,230              64,394           

8.  Staff numbers 2021/22 2020/21
Number Number

The average number of employees during the year was 2 2

9.  Fixed assets
Assets under 
Construction

Plant and 
Equipment

Land and 
buildings Total

 £  £ 
Cost
At 1 April 2021 -                  2,331                1,056,654    1,058,985      
Additions 14,359            -                    -               14,359           
Disposals -                  -                    (29,004)        (29,004)          
Transfers (14,359)           -                    14,359         -                 
At 31 March 2022 -                  2,331                1,042,009    1,044,340      

Acccumulated depreciation
At 1 April 2021 -                  2,331                222,959       225,290         
Charge for the year -                  -                    25,731         25,731           
Eliminated on disposals (29,004)        (29,004)          
At 31 March 2022 -                  2,331                219,686       222,017         

Net book value  
At 31 March 2022 -                  -                    822,323       822,323         

At 31 March 2021 -                  -                    833,695       833,695         

10.  Investments 2021/22

At market value  £ 

At 1 April 2021 2,460             
Interest received 2                    
At 31 March 2022 2,462             

11.  Debtors 2021/22 2020/21
 £  £ 

Amounts due from Sheffield City Council 945                   575                

The charity funds are invested in Sheffield City Council's Consolidated Loan Funds (interest paid half yearly). Market value
is the same as historical cost. 

Land and buildings are included at deemed cost as permitted on transition to SORP (FRS102) based on a valuation carried 
out in 2012/13 by the Asset Partnership Services team of Kier who are MRICS qualified.

No employee received remuneration of over £60,000 during the year (2021 - None). Trustees received no remuneration
(2021 - £Nil) and were not reimbursed for any of their expenses during the year.

 15Page 363



ENDCLIFFE PARK
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 22

12.  Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 2021/22 2020/21
 £  £ 

Independent examination fees 945                   575                

13.  Restricted funds
Land and 
Buildings Total

 £  £ 
Balance at 1 April 2021 833,695       833,695         
Income 14,359         14,359           
Expenditure (25,731)        (25,731)          
Balance at 31 March 2022 822,323       822,323         

Land and Buildings
This fund comprises various grants and donations received to finance capital projects in Endcliffe Park.

     Restricted funds - prior year
Land and 
Buildings Total

 £  £ 
Balance at 1 April 2020 809,348       809,348         
Income 49,217         49,217           
Expenditure (24,870)        (24,870)          
Balance at 31 March 2021 833,695       833,695         

14.  Endowment funds 2021/22
 £ 

At 1 April 2021 and 31 March 2022 2,380             

     Endowment funds - prior year 2020/21
 £ 

At 1 April 2020 and 31 March 2021 2,380             

15.  Unrestricted funds

 £  £  £ 
Balance at 1 April 2021 - 80 80 
Income 153,624 - 153,624 
Expenditure (153,622) - (153,622)
Transfer (2) 2 - 
Balance at 31 March 2022 - 82 82 

Endowment funds represent those assets which must be held permanently by the charity, principally investments. Income
arising on the endowment fund can be used in accordance with the objects of the charity and is included as unrestricted
income.  Any capital gains or losses arising on the investment form part of the fund.                  

Designated funds represent accumulated interest on the endowment funds. The trustees have set this money aside for one-
off projects in the future, rather than for ongoing running costs.

TotalGeneral funds
Designated 

funds

 16Page 364



ENDCLIFFE PARK
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 22

Unrestricted funds - prior year

 £  £  £ 
Balance at 1 April 2020 - 80 80 
Income 109,899 - 109,899 
Expenditure (109,899) - (109,899)
Transfer - - - 
Balance at 31 March 2021 - 80 80 

16. Analysis of net assets between funds
Unrestricted 

funds
Restricted 

funds Endowment Total funds
£ £ £ £

Fixed asset investments 82 822,323 2,380 824,785 
Current assets 945 - - 945 
Creditors due within one year (945) - - (945)

82 822,323 2,380 824,785 

Unrestricted Restricted Endowment Total funds
£ £ £ £

Fixed asset investments 80 833,695 2,380 836,155 
Current assets 575 - - 575 
Creditors due within one year (575) - - (575)

80 833,695 2,380 836,155 

17.  Ultimate controlling party

The ultimate controlling party is the sole trustee, Sheffield City Council.

18.  Related parties

Total

   Analysis of net assets between funds - prior year 

The charity has a very close relationship with Sheffield City Council who is the sole trustee and provides the balance of
funding not provided elsewhere on an annual basis, to enable the charity to carry out its charitable objectives. 

The amount of funding provided by Sheffield City Council during the year is £88,568 (2021: £115,721). At the year end £945
was owed by Sheffield City Council (2021: £575).

General funds
Designated 

funds

 17Page 365



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 366



Endcliffe Park 
 

SHEFFIELD CITY COUNCIL 
TOWN HALL 

PINSTONE STREET 
SHEFFIELD 

S1 2HH 
 

Charity Number : 1112149 
 
Rogers Spencer  
Chartered Accountants 
Newstead House 
Pelham Road 
Nottingham 
NG5 1AP                                                           
 
 
Dear Sirs 
 
The following representations are made on the basis of enquiries of management and staff with relevant knowledge 
and experience such as we consider necessary in the connection with your examination on the charity’s financial 
statements for the year ended 31 March 2022.  These enquiries have included inspection of supporting 
documentation where appropriate and are sufficient to satisfy ourselves that we can make each of the following 
representations. All representations are made to the best of our knowledge and belief. 
 
General 
1 We have fulfilled our responsibilities as trustees as set out in the terms of your engagement letter, under the 

Charities Act 2011 for preparing financial statements in accordance with applicable law and United Kingdom 
Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), for being satisfied that 
they give a true and fair view and for making accurate representations to you.  
 

2 All the transactions undertaken by the charity have been properly reflected and recorded in the accounting 
records. 
 

3 All the accounting records have been made available to you for the purpose of your examination. We have 
provided you with unrestricted access to all appropriate persons within the charity, and with all other records 
and related information requested, including minutes of management and trustee meetings and 
correspondence with The Charity Commission. 

 
4 The financial statements are free of material misstatements, including omissions. 
 
5 The effect of uncorrected misstatements is immaterial both individually and in total. 
 
Internal control and fraud 
6 We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control 

systems to prevent and detect fraud and error.  We have disclosed to you the results of our risk assessment 
that the financial statements may be misstated as a result of fraud.  

  
7 We have disclosed to you all instances or known or suspected fraud affecting the entity involving 

management, employees who have a significant role in internal control or others that could have a material 
effect on the financial statements.  

 
8 We have also disclosed to you all information in relation to allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting 

the entity’s financial statements communicated by current or former employees, analysis, regulators or 
others. 

 
Assets and liabilities 
9 The charity has satisfactory title to all assets and there are no liens or encumbrances on the charity’s assets, 

except for those that are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. 
 

10 All actual liabilities, contingent liabilities and guarantees given to third parties have been recorded or 
disclosed as appropriate. 

 
11 We have no plans or intentions that may materially alter the carrying value and where relevant the fair value 

measurements or classification of assets and liabilities reflected in the financial statements. 
 

Page 367



Accounting estimates 
12 Significant assumptions used by us in making accounting estimates, including those measured at fair value, 

are reasonable. 
 
Loans and arrangements 
13 The charity has not granted any advances or credits to, or made guarantees on behalf of, trustees other than 

those disclosed in the financial statements. 
 
Legal claims 
14 We have disclosed to you all claims in connection with litigation that have been, or are expected to be, 

received and such matters, as appropriate, have been properly accounted for, and disclosed in, the financial 
statements. 

 
Law and regulations 
15 We have disclosed to you all known instances of non-compliance or suspected non-compliance with laws 

and regulations whose affects should be considered when preparing the financial statements. 
 
Related parties 
16 Related party relationships and transactions have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed in the 

financial statements. We have disclosed to you all relevant information concerning such relationships and 
transactions and are not aware of any other matters which require disclosure in order to comply with 
legislative and accounting standards requirements. 

 
Subsequent events 
17 All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements which require adjustment or disclosure have 

been properly accounted for and disclosed. 
 
Going concern 
18 We believe that the charity's financial statements should be prepared on a going concern basis on the 

grounds that current and future sources of funding or support will be more than adequate for the charity's 
needs.  We have considered a period of twelve months from the date of approval of the financial statements.   
We believe that no further disclosures relating to the charity's ability to continue as a going concern need to 
be made in the financial statements. 

 
Grants and donations 
19 All grants, donations and other income, the receipt of which is subject to specific terms or conditions, have 

been notified to you. There have been no breaches of terms or conditions in the application of such income. 
 
Restricted grants and donations are as follows: 
    

Sheffield City Council – Capital grant £14,359  
 
We acknowledge our legal responsibilities regarding disclosure of information to you as examiner and confirm that 
so far as we are aware, there is no relevant information needed by you in connection with preparing your 
independent examination report of which you are unaware. 
 
Each trustee has taken all steps that they ought to have taken as a trustee in order to make themselves aware of 
any relevant information and to establish that you are aware of that information. 
 
 
Yours faithfully 
 
 
 
 
.......................................................................................................................... 
Signed on behalf of the board of Sheffield City Council 
  
 
 
Date  
 

Page 368



 

  

 

  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 RICHMOND PARK  
TRUSTEES’ REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 
 

REGISTERED CHARITY NUMBER 1174316 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Page 369



 

  

 

  

 RICHMOND PARK 
 CONTENTS 
 
 
 
 
 
 Page 
  
 
Reference and administrative details           1  
 
Trustees’ report  2 - 6 
  
Independent examiner’s report  7 
 
Statement of financial activities  8 - 9 
 
Balance sheet  10 
 
Notes to the financial statements  11 - 18

Page 370



 

  

 

1  

RICHMOND PARK  
REFERENCE AND ADMINISTRATIVE DETAILS 
 
CHARITY NO: 1174316   
   
    
TRUSTEES    
 
Sheffield City Council is the sole Trustee of the charity, acting through the Charity 
Trustee Sub Committee. 
 
 
Charity Sub-Committee Members: 
 
Cllr Bryan Lodge (Chair) 
Cllr Richard Williams (Deputy Chair) 
Cllr Douglas Johnson (Spokesperson) 
Cllr Julie Grocutt 
Cllr Mick Rooney 
 
 
PRINCIPAL ADDRESS 
Sheffield City Council 
Parks and Countryside 
Moorfoot 
Level 3 West wing 
Sheffield 
S1 4PL 
 
 
INDEPENDENT EXAMINER 
Melvin Bailey FCCA DChA 
for and on behalf of Rogers Spencer 
Chartered Accountants 
Newstead House 
Pelham Road 
Nottingham 
NG5 1AP 
 
  

Page 371



 

  

 

2  

     
RICHMOND PARK 
TRUSTEES’ REPORT 
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 
 
The trustees present their report together with the financial statements of the charity for the 
year ended 31 March 2022.  The financial statements comply with the charity’s trust deed, 
applicable law and the requirements of the Statement of Recommended Practice, 
‘Accounting and Reporting by Charities’ Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK 
and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) effective on 1 January 2019  (Updated second edition – 
October 19). 
 
DESCRIPTION OF CHARITY’S TRUSTS AND OBJECTS  
 
The Governing documents are three covenants dated 9 December 1933, 1 February 1934 
and 26 March 1936. 
 
Richmond Park is a large green space in the South East of Sheffield with numerous facilities 
such as a football pitch, BMX track, zip wire, climbing boulder, playground, outdoor gym 
equipment, Multi Use Games Area (MUGA), woodland, dipping pond, bowling green and 
pavilion. 
 
The site contains a mosaic of habitats from open grassland to the perimeters of woodland 
to wetland habitats which offer a range of opportunities for wildlife. The bulk of the site is 
grassland, scattered within the grassland are areas of copses of maturing tree planting. 
 
The objects of the charity are the provision and maintenance of a public park and recreation 
ground in Sheffield for the use of members of the public resorting thereto with the object of 
improving their conditions of life. 
 
STRUCTURE, GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT 
 
Richmond Park is a charity and the sole Trustee is Sheffield City Council. The Charity 
Trustee Sub Committee is a standing sub committee of the Strategy and Resources 
Policy Committee. It has been established to take all decisions of the Council, including 
but not limited to disposal of and other dealings with charitable land.  
 
Management of the park is the responsibility of the Councils’ Parks and Countryside 
service. Management and administrative decisions which are not decisions of the Council 
as Trustee, may be made, in accordance with the Council constitution delegations, by the 
Executive Director of Operational Services, the Director of Parks, Leisure and Libraries, or 
the head of Parks and Countryside service.  
 
PUBLIC BENEFIT 
 
The Trustees have complied with the duty in Section 4 of the Charities Act 2011 to have 
due regard to public benefit guidance published by the Charity Commission. Details of 
how the charity has carried out its activities for the public benefit are given in the section 
below. 

Page 372



 

  

 

3  

RICHMOND PARK  
TRUSTEES’ REPORT 
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 
 
ACTIVITIES AND ACHIEVEMENTS 
 
The Park has a very active Friends Group, the Friends of Richmond Park. The group was 
first formed as community group in late 2006 with the aim of protecting and improving the 
once under-utilized green space that is Richmond Park. Parks and Countryside worked 
closely with the community group to develop an ambitious Master Plan that, if achieved, will 
make the park a cornerstone of community life.  
 
Community involvement in the park has vastly improved. In 2009, the Friends of Richmond 
Park began hosting community events and activities for the surrounding communities.  
These include events such as the Annual Community Fun Day , football training for the 
under sixteens with Sheffield Wednesday FC Community Coaching teams, activities with 
the Ranger Service, Activity Sheffield and adult learning events.  A change of committee 
was implemented in 2017/18 and a decision taken to reverse the Stewardship agreement 
with more emphasis put on joint working between the FORP & Parks & Countryside. 
  
Achievements to date include the installation of the BMX track, zip wire, climbing boulder, 
football pitch, regeneration of a community use room in the pavilion and renovation of part 
of the old tennis courts into a multi-use games area, renovation and new planting to the 
park entrance off Hastilar Rd South, tarmac resurfacing of several paths within the park, 
and cutting back of shrubs to improve visibility/sight lines. 
 
In 2014 and 2015 the group undertook to build up the number of activities held for the 
benefit of park users they worked with National Citizenship Scheme Groups to complete 
maintenance and fund raising work.  In 2015, following a fatal accident, the Normanton 
Hill entrance into the park was installed to improve visitor safety, adjacent to the busy 
road. This also included new areas of wildflower seeding, hedge planting, a new road 
crossing with improved visibility and a new access road into the park.  
 
 
EVENTS 

The Friends of Richmond Park continued to thrive and make full use of the park during 
2021/2022. They have carried out various events including numerous tree planting days 
with foresters, sporting activities for children and adults, gardening days and litter picks. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 373



 

  

 

4  

RICHMOND PARK  
TRUSTEES’ REPORT 
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 
 
PLANS FOR FUTURE PERIODS 
 
Parks and Countryside will continue to support the Friends Group which has a new 
Committee focussing on updating the masterplan for the park and undertaking basic work 
tasks within the park.   
 
The Friends Group work closely with P&C to maintain and improve the park for the local 
community and visitors. They have workdays to clear the pond, tidy up the BMX track once 
a year, litter picking work days four times a year, bulb planting, and planting bedding and 
vegetables in the entrance at Hasitilar Road South.  
 
The Friends Group also worked to raise funds to increase the amount of equipment in the 
play area and adult gym equipment at the top of the park. Parks and Countryside have and 
will continue to support them with this work providing them with help and guidance.  In 21/22 
a new climbing frame has been erected. 
 
Drainage/Environmental Improvement Work 
Over the last few years Richmond Park has suffered from flooding as a result of poor 
drainage, clay soils and natural springs across the site. The proposal is to capitalise on this 
situation by capturing the water through creating a SUDS shallow basin on the site of the 
old playground, and then guiding the water through the park through a series of swales that 
will link in with the water course that runs along the side of the park. 
 
Renewal of chain link fencing with weldmesh between MUGA & Bowling Green – 
dependant on funding. 
 
Reinstatement/improvement work on BMX/Cycle track – dependant on external/match 
funding. 

 
 
FINANCIAL REVIEW AND FUNDING 
 
Restricted Funds - Net income of £45,711 (2021:Net Expenditure £21,114). Includes 
reinstated depreciation of £45,711 (2021: Expenditure £21,114).   
Depreciation of £55,688 was previously applied to land from 2016/2017 but this has now 
been reversed in 21/22 to comply with financial regulations. 
 
Unrestricted Funds - Net expenditure of £0 (2021:£0). The income from charitable 
activities was £743 (2021: £2,975) with expenditure of £38,186 (2021: £23,698) resulting in 
a deficit of £37,443.   
The deficit was funded by the revenue grant from Sheffield City Council of £25,214 (2021: 
£20,723).  There was also a contribution of £12,229 from the Friends of Richmond Park that 
was used to erect a climbing frame in the Park. 
 
At 31 March 2022 the charity had total funds of £806,571 (2021: £760,860). These funds 
are all tied up in fixed assets.  

Page 374



 

  

 

5  

RICHMOND PARK  
TRUSTEES’ REPORT 
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 
 
RESERVES POLICY 
 
As the charity is managed and funded by the Council no specific unrestricted charity 
reserves are deemed to be necessary.  Annual revenue expenditure is generally greater 
than income and the variance is born by the Council and not carried forward into the next 
financial year. 
 
RISK MANAGEMENT    
 
The charity is dependent for its day-to-day management upon Sheffield City Council.  It is 
therefore considered expedient and cost effective for the charity to adopt the Council’s risk 
management policy and strategy, which it considers is a crucial part of the service planning 
process in highlighting key risks and how they affect the Council’s ability to deliver its service 
and how they will be managed.  The Council has incorporated a formal approach to risk 
management in its day-to-day operations and has developed a toolkit to allow managers to 
identify risk, which would prevent them from achieving their objectives and to provide 
information and guidance on how these risks can be managed.  The Council operates an 
Internal Insurance Account covering a variety of risks. 
  

Page 375



 

  

 

6  

RICHMOND PARK 
TRUSTEES’ REPORT 
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 
 
Trustees' responsibilities statement  
 
The trustees are responsible for preparing the Trustees’ Report and the financial statements 
in accordance with applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United 
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice). 
 
The law applicable to charities in England & Wales requires the trustees to prepare financial 
statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of 
the charity and of the incoming resources and application of resources of the charity for that 
period.  In preparing these financial statements, the trustees are required to: 
 
 select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently; 
 observe the methods and principles in the Charities SORP; 
 make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 
 state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any 

material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; 
 prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate 

to presume that the charity will continue in operation. 
 
The trustees are responsible for keeping proper accounting records that disclose with 
reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the charity and enable them to 
ensure that the financial statements comply with the Charities Act 2011, the Charity 
(Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008 and the provisions of the trust deed.  They are 
also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charity and hence for taking reasonable 
steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities. 
 
TRUSTEES 
 
Sheffield City Council adopted a Committee system in May 2022. The current Trustees are 
listed on Pg 1.  
 
Approved by the Trustees and signed on their behalf by: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Signed   ___________________________________               Date  _____________ 
 
 
Cllr Bryan Lodge – Chair of the Charity Trustee Sub Committee. 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 376



 

  

 

7  

INDEPENDENT EXAMINER’S REPORT 
 
TO THE TRUSTEES OF Richmond Park 
 
I report to the trustees on my examination of the financial statements of the charity for the year ended 31 
March 2022. 
 
Responsibilities and basis of report 
 
As the trustees of the charity (and also its directors for the purposes of company law) you are responsible 
for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 
2006 (the 2006 Act). 
 
Having satisfied myself that the financial statements of the charity are not required to be audited under 
Part 16 of the 2006 Act and are eligible for independent examination,  I report in respect of my examination 
of the charity’s financial statements carried out under section 145 of the Charities Act 2011 (the 2011 Act). 
In carrying out my examination I have followed all the applicable Directions given by the Charity 
Commission under section 145(5)(b) of the 2011 Act. 
 
Independent examiner's statement 
 
I have completed my examination. I confirm that no matters have come to my attention in connection with 
the examination giving me cause to believe that in any material respect: 
 

1. accounting records were not kept in respect of the charity as required by section 386 of the 2006 
Act; or 

2. the financial statements do not accord with those records; or 
3. the financial statements do not comply with the accounting requirements of section 396 of the 

2006 Act other than any requirement that the accounts give a true and fair view which is not a 
matter considered as part of an independent examination; or 

4. the financial statements have not been prepared in accordance with the methods and principles 
of the Statement of Recommended Practice for accounting and reporting by charities applicable 
to charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard 
applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102). 
 

I have no concerns and have come across no other matters in connection with the examination to which 
attention should be drawn in this report in order to enable a proper understanding of the financial 
statements to be reached. 
 
 
 

........................................ 
Melvin Bailey FCCA DChA 
for and on behalf of Rogers Spencer 
Chartered Accountants 
Newstead House 
Pelham Road 
Nottingham 
NG5 1AP 
 
Dated:  

Page 377



RICHMOND PARK
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
2021/2 2021/2 2021/2 2020/21

Note £ £ £ £

Income and endowments from:

Donations and legacies 2 37,443            -              37,443             20,723       

Charitable activities 3 743                 -              743                  2,975         

Total 38,186            -              38,186             23,698       

   
Expenditure on:

Charitable activities 4 38,186            (45,711)       (7,525)              44,812       

Total 38,186            (45,711)       (7,525)              44,812       

Net income/(expenditure) -                  45,711        45,711             (21,114)      

Reconciliation of funds:
Total funds brought forward -                  760,860      760,860           781,974     

Total funds carried forward -                  806,571      806,571           760,860     

The statement of financial activities includes all gains and losses recognised in the year. All income and 
expenditure derives from continuing activites.

8Page 378



RICHMOND PARK
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

    
Unrestricted Restricted Total Total

2020/21 2020/21 2020/21 2019/20
Note £ £ £ £

Income and endowments from:

Donations and legacies 2 20,723            -              20,723             19,383       

Charitable activities 3 2,975              -              2,975               2,899         

Total 23,698            -              23,698             22,282       

   
Expenditure on:

Charitable activities 4 23,698            21,114        44,812             43,396       

Total 23,698            21,114        44,812             43,396       

Net income/(expenditure) -                  (21,114)       (21,114)            (21,114)      

Reconciliation of funds:
Total funds brought forward -                  781,974      781,974           803,088     

Total funds carried forward -                  760,860      760,860           781,974     

 
The statement of financial activities includes all gains and losses recognised in the year. All income and 
expenditure derives from continuing activites.

9Page 379



RICHMOND PARK
BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 MARCH 2022

 
Unrestricted Restricted Total Total

2021/22 2021/22 2021/22 2020/21
Note £ £ £ £

Fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets 9 -                 788,045       788,045     742,334      

-                 788,045       788,045     742,334      

  
Current assets
Debtors 10 840                18,526         19,366       19,101        

Liabilities
Creditors falling due within one year 11 (840)               -               (840)           (575)           
 
Net current assets -                 18,526         18,526       18,526        

Net assets - 806,571 806,571 760,860 

The funds of the charity

Unrestricted income funds 12 -                 -               -             -             
Restricted income funds 13 -                 806,571       806,571     760,860      

-                 806,571       806,571     760,860      

Approved by the Trustees and signed on their behalf by:

Signed  ___________________________________               Date  _____________

Cllr Bryan Lodge – Chair of the Charity Trustee Sub Committee.

10Page 380



RICHMOND PARK 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 
 
 

 11 
  

1.   Accounting Polices 
 
Richmond Park is a registered charity in England.  The address of the registered 
office is given in the charity information on page 1 of these financial statements.  The 
nature of the charity’s operations and principal activities are for the provision and 
maintenance of a public park and recreation ground.  
 
The charity constitutes a public benefit entity as defined by FRS 102. The financial 
statements have been prepared in accordance with Accounting and Reporting by 
Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their 
accounts in accordance with the  Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK 
and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) effective on 1 January 2019  (Updated second 
edition – October 19), the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the United 
Kingdom and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102), the Charities Act 2011 and UK 
Generally Accepted Practice as it applies from 1 January 2015.  
 
The financial statements have been prepared to give a ‘true and fair’ view and have 
departed from the Charities (Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008 only to the 
extent required to provide a ‘true and fair view’. This departure has involved following 
the Accounting and Reporting Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice 
applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial 
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) issued 
on 16 July 2014 rather than the Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of 
Recommended Practice effective from 1 April 2005 which has since been withdrawn. 
 
The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis under the historical 
cost convention, modified to include certain items at fair value.  The financial 
statements are presented in sterling which is the functional currency of the charity 
and rounded to the nearest £. 
 
The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial 
statements are as follows: 

1.1  Fixed assets 

Richmond Park is classified as a Community Asset.  The trustees policy is to value 
Community Assets at £Nil. 
 
The Council Dwellings and all other Land and Buildings are carried in the accounts at 
valuation. 
 
Expenditure on fixed assets is capitalised, provided that the fixed asset yields benefit 
to the charity and the services it provides are for a period of more than one year. 
 
Assets have been reviewed for any impairment loss in respect of consumption of 
economic benefit. 
 

Page 381



RICHMOND PARK 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 
 
 

 12 
  

1.2 Depreciation  
 
Depreciation is provided on fixed assets at rates calculated to write off the cost of the 
assets over their expected useful lives as follows: 
 

 Land and previously revalued buildings are not depreciated. 
 Park buildings have been depreciated on a straight line basis over 40 years, 

commencing on the transfer from assets under construction.  
 Depreciation is not provided on land or assets under construction. 
 The Trustees perform annual impairment reviews in accordance with the 

requirements of FRS 102 to ensure that the carrying value is not greater than 
the recoverable amount. 
 

1.3  Fund accounting 
 
Unrestricted funds are available for use at the discretion of the trustees in furtherance 
of the general objectives of the charity and which have not been designated for other 
purposes. 
 
Designated funds comprise of unrestricted funds that have been set aside by the 
trustees for specific purposes. 
 
Restricted funds are funds which are to be used in accordance with specific 
restrictions imposed by the donors or which have been raised by the charity for 
particular purposes. The aim and use of each restricted fund is set out in the notes to 
the financial statements. 
 
1.4  Income     
 
Income from donations and grants, including capital grants, is included in income 
when it is probable that the income will be received, and is allocated to the 
appropriate fund. 
 
Investment income is included when receivable. 
 
Rental, events, and similar income is included when the event or function has taken 
place. 
 
The cost of running the park is funded by Sheffield City Council.  Annual revenue 
expenditure is generally greater than income and any variance is borne by the 
Council by way of a grant to the charity. 
 
1.5  Expenditure 
 
Expenditure is included in the Statement of Financial Activities on an accruals basis, 
net of any VAT, which can be recovered as Sheffield City Council is the sole trustee 
and therefore has special status under s33 VAT Act 1994. 
 
The main exception to this treatment is payments for such items as gas and 
electricity are charged at the date of the meter reading rather than being apportioned 
between years.  This policy is applied consistently each year. 
 
Expenditure has been allocated to the activities to which it is directly attributable.  

Page 382



RICHMOND PARK 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 
 
 

 13 
  

Cost of raising funds 
 
The cost of generating any external funding, such as grant applications and events, 
is attributable to the time of Sheffield City Council officers who work on a range of 
projects including the charity.  As such it is not possible to accurately apportion the 
cost of this to the charity so no charge is included in the accounts. 
 
Charitable activities 
 
Charitable activities are set out within the charitable deeds and represent the costs 
associated with the running and maintenance of the park. 
 
Governance costs 
 
Independent examination costs and finance officer costs are charged to the charity.  
The Council currently absorbs the cost of other officers’ time.  This policy is kept 
under review. 
 
Staff costs 
 
The staff who work for the charity are employed by Sheffield City Council, and are 
subject to the terms and conditions of that organisation.  The costs of such staff are 
recharged to the charity.  Full disclosure of the relevant staff costs and numbers is 
provided in the notes to these financial statements. 
 
Pensions 
 
City Council employees may participate in the Local Government Superannuation 
Scheme, which provides members with defined benefits related to pay and service.  
The City Council makes payments for this group of employees to the South Yorkshire 
Pensions Authority, which administers pension arrangements on behalf of Sheffield 
City Council and the other local authorities in the South Yorkshire area.  The City 
Council bears any deficit or surplus on the scheme and does not charge this to the 
charity. 
 
1.6  Debtors and creditors receivable / payable within one year 
 
Debtors and creditors with no stated interest rate and receivable or payable within 
one year are recorded at transaction price. Any losses arising from impairment are 
recognised in expenditure. 
 
1.7  Financial instruments 
 
The charity only has financial assets and liabilities of a kind that qualify as basic 
financial instruments. Basic financial instruments are initially recognised at 
transaction value and subsequently measured at their settlement value. 

Page 383



RICHMOND PARK 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 
 
 

 14 
  

 
1.8  Going concern 
 
The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis as the 
trustees believe that no material uncertainties exist. The trustees have considered 
the level of funds held and the expected level of income and expenditure for 12 
months from authorising these financial statements. The budgeted income and 
expenditure is sufficient with the level of reserves for the charity to be able to 
continue as a going concern. 

Page 384



RICHMOND PARK
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED TO 31 MARCH 2022

2.  Donations and legacies 2021/22 2020/21
 £  £ 

Unrestricted:
Friends of Richmond Park 12,229         -             
Sheffield City Council - revenue grant 25,214         20,723        

37,443         20,723        

Restricted:
Public Health -              -             

37,443         20,723        

3.  Income from charitable activities 2021/22 2020/21

Unrestricted:  £  £ 
Rents 743              2,975          

4.  Analysis of expenditure on charitable activities 2021/22 2020/21
 £  £ 

Unrestricted:
Employees 5,466           3,251          
Ranger Service 1,540           -             
Grounds maintenance 8,511           8,032          
Repairs and maintenance 725              1,323          
Tree Works 1,590           1,005          
Playground refurbishment and maintenance 17,376         7,527          
Supplies & services 1,066           946             
Governance costs 1,912           1,614          

38,186         23,698        
Restricted:
Depreciation (45,711)       21,114        

(7,525)         44,812        

5.  Governance costs 2021/22 2020/21
 £  £ 

Managing and administration:
Independent examination fees 840              575             
Finance office costs 1,072           1,039          

1,912           1,614          

If expenditure is greater than income the variance is borne by Sheffield City Council and not brought forward into
the next financial year.

15Page 385



RICHMOND PARK
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED TO 31 MARCH 2022

6.  Staff costs and trustees' remuneration 2021/22 2020/21
Total Total

 £  £ 
Salaries 4,304           2,560          
Social security costs 344              205             
Pension 818              486             

5,466           3,251          

No employee received remuneration of over £60,000 during the year (2021 - None).

8. Staff numbers 2021/22 2020/21
Number Number

The average number of employees during the year was 1 1

9.  Land and buildings Assets under Freehold land

Construction and buildings Total

At valuation £ £
At 1 April 2021 and 31 March 2022 -              844,562       844,562      

Accumulated depreciation
At 1 April 2021 -              102,228       102,228      
Charge for the year                                                                                                                   -              (45,711)        (45,711)      
At 31 March 2022 -              56,517         56,517        

Net book value

At 31 March 2022 -              788,045       788,045      

At 31 March 2021 -              742,334       742,334      

10. Debtors
2021/22 2020/21

 £  £ 
Accrued income 18,526 18,526 
Amounts due from Sheffield City Council 840 575 

19,366 19,101 

Land and buildings are carried at valuation. The valuations were carried out in November 2016 by the Asset
Partnerships Services team of Kier who are MRICS qualified.

Trustees received no remuneration (2021 - £Nil) and were not reimbursed for any of their expenses during the
year.

16Page 386



RICHMOND PARK
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED TO 31 MARCH 2022

11.  Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
2021/22 2020/21

 £  £ 
Independent examination fees 840 575 

12.  Unrestricted funds
General 

Funds Total

 £  £ 
At 1 April 2021 -               -             
Income 38,186         38,186        
Expenditure (38,186)        (38,186)      
Balance at 31 March 2022 -               -             

Unrestricted funds - prior year
General 

Funds Total

 £  £ 
At 1 April 2020 -               -             
Income 23,698         23,698        
Expenditure (23,698)        (23,698)      
Balance at 31 March 2021 -               -             

13.  Restricted funds
Freehold land

and buildings Total

 £  £ 
Balance at 1 April 2021 760,860       760,860      
Expenditure (9,977)          (9,977)        
Income 55,688         55,688        
Balance at 31 March 2022 806,571       806,571      

Restricted funds - prior year
Freehold land 
and Buildings Total

 £  £ 
Balance at 1 April 2020 781,974       781,974      
Expenditure (21,114)        (21,114)      
Income -               -             
Balance at 31 March 2021 760,860       760,860      

17Page 387



RICHMOND PARK
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED TO 31 MARCH 2022

14. Analysis of net assets between funds
Unrestricted 

funds
Restricted 

funds Total funds

£ £ £

Fixed asset investments - 806,571 806,571 
Current assets 840 18,526 19,366 
Creditors due within one year (840) - (840)

- 825,097 825,097 

Analysis of net assets between funds - prior year 
Unrestricted 

funds
Restricted 

funds Total funds

£ £ £

Fixed asset investments - 763,449 763,449 
Current assets 575 18,526 19,101 
Creditors due within one year (575) - (575)

- 781,975 781,975 

15.  Ultimate Controlling Party

The ultimate controlling party is the sole trustee, Sheffield City Council.

16.  Related parties

The charity has a very close relationship with Sheffield City Council who is the sole trustee and provides the
balance of funding not provided elsewhere on an annual basis, to enable the charity to carry out its charitable
objectives. The amount of funding provided by Sheffield City Council during the year is £25,214 (2021: £20,723).
At the year end £840 was owed by Sheffield City Council (2021: £575).

18Page 388



Richmond Park Sheffield 
 

SHEFFIELD CITY COUNCIL 
TOWN HALL 

PINSTONE STREET 
SHEFFIELD 

S1 2HH 
 

Charity Number : 1174316 
 
Rogers Spencer  
Chartered Accountants 
Newstead House 
Pelham Road 
Nottingham 
NG5 1AP                                                           
 
 
Dear Sirs 
 
The following representations are made on the basis of enquiries of management and staff with relevant knowledge 
and experience such as we consider necessary in the connection with your examination on the charity’s financial 
statements for the year ended 31 March 2022.  These enquiries have included inspection of supporting 
documentation where appropriate and are sufficient to satisfy ourselves that we can make each of the following 
representations. All representations are made to the best of our knowledge and belief. 
 
General 
1 We have fulfilled our responsibilities as trustees as set out in the terms of your engagement letter, under the 

Charities Act 2011 for preparing financial statements in accordance with applicable law and United Kingdom 
Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), for being satisfied that 
they give a true and fair view and for making accurate representations to you.  
 

2 All the transactions undertaken by the charity have been properly reflected and recorded in the accounting 
records. 
 

3 All the accounting records have been made available to you for the purpose of your examination. We have 
provided you with unrestricted access to all appropriate persons within the charity, and with all other records 
and related information requested, including minutes of management and trustee meetings and 
correspondence with The Charity Commission. 

 
4 The financial statements are free of material misstatements, including omissions. 
 
5 The effect of uncorrected misstatements is immaterial both individually and in total. 
 
Internal control and fraud 
6 We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control 

systems to prevent and detect fraud and error.  We have disclosed to you the results of our risk assessment 
that the financial statements may be misstated as a result of fraud.  

  
7 We have disclosed to you all instances or known or suspected fraud affecting the entity involving 

management, employees who have a significant role in internal control or others that could have a material 
effect on the financial statements.  

 
8 We have also disclosed to you all information in relation to allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting 

the entity’s financial statements communicated by current or former employees, analysis, regulators or 
others. 

 
Assets and liabilities 
9 The charity has satisfactory title to all assets and there are no liens or encumbrances on the charity’s assets, 

except for those that are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. 
 

10 All actual liabilities, contingent liabilities and guarantees given to third parties have been recorded or 
disclosed as appropriate. 

 
11 We have no plans or intentions that may materially alter the carrying value and where relevant the fair value 

measurements or classification of assets and liabilities reflected in the financial statements. 
 

Page 389



Accounting estimates 
12 Significant assumptions used by us in making accounting estimates, including those measured at fair value, 

are reasonable. 
 
Loans and arrangements 
13 The charity has not granted any advances or credits to, or made guarantees on behalf of, trustees other than 

those disclosed in the financial statements. 
 
Legal claims 
14 We have disclosed to you all claims in connection with litigation that have been, or are expected to be, 

received and such matters, as appropriate, have been properly accounted for, and disclosed in, the financial 
statements. 

 
Law and regulations 
15 We have disclosed to you all known instances of non-compliance or suspected non-compliance with laws 

and regulations whose affects should be considered when preparing the financial statements. 
 
Related parties 
16 Related party relationships and transactions have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed in the 

financial statements. We have disclosed to you all relevant information concerning such relationships and 
transactions and are not aware of any other matters which require disclosure in order to comply with 
legislative and accounting standards requirements. 

 
Subsequent events 
17 All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements which require adjustment or disclosure have 

been properly accounted for and disclosed. 
 
Going concern 
18 We believe that the charity's financial statements should be prepared on a going concern basis on the 

grounds that current and future sources of funding or support will be more than adequate for the charity's 
needs.  We have considered a period of twelve months from the date of approval of the financial statements.   
We believe that no further disclosures relating to the charity's ability to continue as a going concern need to 
be made in the financial statements. 

 
Grants and donations 
19 All grants, donations and other income, the receipt of which is subject to specific terms or conditions, have 

been notified to you. There have been no breaches of terms or conditions in the application of such income. 
 
 
We acknowledge our legal responsibilities regarding disclosure of information to you as examiner and confirm that 
so far as we are aware, there is no relevant information needed by you in connection with preparing your 
independent examination report of which you are unaware. 
 
Each trustee has taken all steps that they ought to have taken as a trustee in order to make themselves aware of 
any relevant information and to establish that you are aware of that information. 
 
 
Yours faithfully 
 
 
 
.......................................................................................................................... 
Signed on behalf of the board of Sheffield City Council 
  
 
 
Date  
 

Page 390



 

  

 

  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 HIGH HAZELS PARK  
TRUSTEES’ REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 
 

REGISTERED CHARITY NUMBER 1183830  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Page 391



 

  

 

  

 HIGH HAZELS PARK 
 CONTENTS 
 
 
 
 
 
 Page 
  
 
Reference and administrative details           1  
 
Trustees’ report  2 - 5 
  
Independent examiner’s report  6 
 
Statement of financial activities  7 - 8 
 
Balance sheet  9 
 
Notes to the financial statements  10 - 17

Page 392



 

  

 

1  

HIGH HAZELS PARK  
REFERENCE AND ADMINISTRATIVE DETAILS 
 
CHARITY NO: 1183830   
   
     
TRUSTEES    
 
Sheffield City Council is the sole Trustee of the charity, acting through the Charity 
Trustee Sub Committee. 
 
Charity Sub-Committee Members: 
 
Cllr Bryan Lodge (Chair) 
Cllr Richard Williams (Deputy Chair) 
Cllr Douglas Johnson (Spokesperson) 
Cllr Julie Grocutt 
Cllr Mick Rooney 
 
 
PRINCIPAL ADDRESS 
Sheffield City Council 
Parks and Countryside 
Moorfoot 
Level 3 West wing 
Sheffield 
S1 4PL 
 
 
INDEPENDENT EXAMINER 
Melvin Bailey FCCA DChA 
for and on behalf of Rogers Spencer 
Chartered Accountants 
Newstead House 
Pelham Road 
Nottingham 
NG5 1AP 
            
 
 

Page 393



 

  

 

2  

HIGH HAZELS PARK 
TRUSTEES’ REPORT 
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 
 
The trustees present their report together with the financial statements of the charity for the 
year ended 31 March 2022.  The financial statements have been prepared in accordance 
with the accounting policies set out in note 1 to the accounts and comply with the charity’s 
trust deed, the Charities Act 2011 and the requirements of the Statement of Recommended 
Practice, ‘Accounting and Reporting by Charities’ Financial Reporting Standard applicable 
in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) effective on 1 January 2019  (Updated second 
edition – October 19). 
 
DESCRIPTION OF CHARITY’S TRUSTS AND OBJECTS  

High Hazels Park is situated in Darnall, Sheffield. The main walking entrance is on Senior 
Road, there is a car park and entrance at the end of Catley Road.  The park is next to 
Tinsley Park Golf Course and 70 Acre Hill Nature Reserve. Public toilets are in the golf club 
house.  There is a cafe, children's playground, adventure playground, sensory garden, 
cricket pitch, 5-a-side football pitch and tennis courts. 

The charity’s governing documents 
 
The objects of the charity are the provision and maintenance of a public park and recreation 
ground in Sheffield for the use of members of the public resorting thereto with the object of 
improving their conditions of life. 
 
STRUCTURE, GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT 
 
High Hazels Park is a charity and the sole Trustee is Sheffield City Council. The Charity 
Trustee Sub Committee is a standing sub committee of the Strategy and Resources 
Policy Committee. It has been established to take all decisions of the Council, including 
but not limited to disposal of and other dealings with charitable land.  
 
Management of the park is the responsibility of the Councils’ Parks and Countryside 
service. Management and administrative decisions which are not decisions of the Council 
as Trustee, may be made, in accordance with the Council constitution delegations, by the 
Executive Director of Operational Services, the Director of Parks, Leisure and Libraries, or 
the head of Parks and Countryside service. 
 
 
PUBLIC BENEFIT 
 
The Trustees have complied with the duty in Section 4 of the Charities Act 2011 to have 
due regard to public benefit guidance published by the Charity Commission. Details of how 
the charity has carried out its activities for the public benefit are given in the section below. 
  

Page 394



 

  

 

3  

HIGH HAZELS PARK  
TRUSTEES’ REPORT 
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 
 
ACTIVITIES AND ACHIEVEMENTS 

The Friends of High Hazels Park have continued to meet concentrating on the ornamental 
parts of the park, Formal and Sensory gardens, shrub beds, playground beds and 
ornamental orchards.  All areas remain popular. 

A running route around the park and tennis courts continued to be used by the local 
community.   

During the year the Netball and Basketball courts have been remarked out.  Large areas 
of paths throughout the park have deteriorated over the years but have now been 
retarmacked.   

The former number 2 Bowling Green area has been fenced off and secured.  This is 
providing space for additional community activities and is popular. 

 
EVENTS 

A Dog Training company is now operating from the former number 2 Bowling Green area.  

Regular tree planting and pruning events have taken place throughout the Park. 

 
PLANS FOR FUTURE PERIODS 
 
Parks and Countryside will work to continue to support the community workdays organised 
by the Friends of High Hazels Park which focus on enhancing the maintenance of the formal 
garden, playground beds and sensory garden.  
 
Parks & Countryside have opened up a consultation plan for the Community to comment 
on their future needs and desires.  There is a budget of £94,000. 
The following considerations have been highlighted by the Community to date: 

 Demolition of shelter - agreed. 
 Adult gym on the walking trail (2 or 3 stations of x2 pieces) or concentrated next 

to existing play area.  
 Wheels/scooter track development 
 Review toddler provision in main play area- possible enhancement/replacement 
 Widen existing play area refurbishment 
 Large swing frame upgrade 
 Addition of a basket swing 
 Removal of raised areas in play area 
 Removal of small shelter 
 Creation of wildflower areas within the park. 
 Further tree planting and Fruit tree planting within the park. 

 
 
 
 

Page 395



 

  

 

4  

FINANCIAL REVIEW AND FUNDING 
 
Restricted Funds - The restricted fund has net income of £13,319 (2021: net expenditure 
of £17,044) comprising of depreciation £10,699 (2021: £17,044).  
Depreciation of £31,875 was previously applied to land from 2016/2017 to 20/21 but this 
has now been reversed in 21/22 to comply with financial regulations. 
Additionally path and car park works were carried out in 2016/17 and since then have not 
been depreciated.  This has now been accelerated (£7,887) and applied over 20 years in 
21/22 to comply with financial regulations. 
 
Unrestricted Funds - Unrestricted funds had net income of £6 (2021: £0).  This was interest 
received on investments totalling £6 (2021: £0). This has been transferred to the Designated 
Fund that now totals £6,650 and is available to spend in accordance with the Charity’s 
Trusts & Objectives 
The income from charitable activities was £12,463 (2021: £10,594), with expenditure of 
£80,964 (2021: £80,270).  The deficit was funded by the grant from Sheffield City Council 
of £68,501 (2021: £69,676).   
 
At 31 March 2022 the charity had total funds of £650,399 (2021: £637,074). These funds 
are all tied up in fixed assets and investments. 
 
 
RESERVES POLICY 
 
As the charity is managed and funded by the Council, no specific unrestricted charity 
reserves are deemed to be necessary. 
 
Annual revenue expenditure is generally greater than income and the variance is born by 
the Council and not carried forward into the next financial year. 
 
This charity has specific monies invested in the Council’s internal investment fund.  
Interest is received half yearly on the monies invested.  These investments form the 
restricted funds and any interest is used in line with the restrictions on the funds. 
 
 
RISK MANAGEMENT    
 
The charity is dependent for its day-to-day management upon Sheffield City Council.  It is 
therefore considered expedient and cost effective for the charity to adopt the Council’s risk 
management policy and strategy, which it considers is a crucial part of the service planning 
process in highlighting key risks and how they affect the Council’s ability to deliver its service 
and how they will be managed.  The Council has incorporated a formal approach to risk 
management in its day-to-day operations and has developed a toolkit to allow managers to 
identify risk, which would prevent them from achieving their objectives and to provide 
information and guidance on how these risks can be managed.  The Council operates an 
Internal Insurance Account covering a variety of risks. 
  

Page 396



 

  

 

5  

HIGH HAZELS PARK  
TRUSTEES’ REPORT 
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 
 
Trustees' responsibilities statement  
 
The trustees are responsible for preparing the Trustees’ Report and the financial statements 
in accordance with applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United 
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice). 
 
The law applicable to charities in England & Wales requires the trustees to prepare financial 
statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of 
the charity and of the incoming resources and application of resources of the charity for that 
period.  In preparing these financial statements, the trustees are required to: 
 
 select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently; 
 observe the methods and principles in the Charities SORP; 
 make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 
 state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any 

material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; 
 prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate 

to presume that the charity will continue in operation. 
 
The trustees are responsible for keeping proper accounting records that disclose with 
reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the charity and enable them to 
ensure that the financial statements comply with the Charities Act 2011, the Charity 
(Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008 and the provisions of the trust deed.  They are 
also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charity and hence for taking reasonable 
steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities. 
 
TRUSTEES 
 
Sheffield City Council adopted a Committee system in May 2022. The current Trustees are 
listed on Pg 1.  
 
Approved by the Trustees and signed on their behalf by: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Cllr Bryan Lodge – Chair of the Charity Trustee Sub Committee. 
 

Page 397



 

  

 

6  

INDEPENDENT EXAMINER’S REPORT 
 
TO THE TRUSTEES OF Trustees of High Hazels Park 
 
I report to the trustees on my examination of the financial statements of the charity for the year ended 31 
March 2022. 
 
Responsibilities and basis of report 
 
As the trustees of the charity (and also its directors for the purposes of company law) you are responsible 
for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 
2006 (the 2006 Act). 
 
Having satisfied myself that the financial statements of the charity are not required to be audited under 
Part 16 of the 2006 Act and are eligible for independent examination,  I report in respect of my examination 
of the charity’s financial statements carried out under section 145 of the Charities Act 2011 (the 2011 Act). 
In carrying out my examination I have followed all the applicable Directions given by the Charity 
Commission under section 145(5)(b) of the 2011 Act. 
 
Independent examiner's statement 
 
I have completed my examination. I confirm that no matters have come to my attention in connection with 
the examination giving me cause to believe that in any material respect: 
 

1. accounting records were not kept in respect of the charity as required by section 386 of the 2006 
Act; or 

2. the financial statements do not accord with those records; or 
3. the financial statements do not comply with the accounting requirements of section 396 of the 

2006 Act other than any requirement that the accounts give a true and fair view which is not a 
matter considered as part of an independent examination; or 

4. the financial statements have not been prepared in accordance with the methods and principles 
of the Statement of Recommended Practice for accounting and reporting by charities applicable 
to charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard 
applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102). 
 

I have no concerns and have come across no other matters in connection with the examination to which 
attention should be drawn in this report in order to enable a proper understanding of the financial 
statements to be reached. 
 
 
 
 
 

 

........................................ 
Melvin Bailey FCCA DChA 
for and on behalf of Rogers Spencer 
Chartered Accountants 
Newstead House 
Pelham Road 
Nottingham 
NG5 1AP 
 
Dated:  

Page 398



HIGH HAZELS PARK
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
2021/22 2021/22 2021/22 2020/21

Note £ £ £ £

Income and endowments from:

Donations and legacies 2 68,501            -              68,501             69,676         

Charitable activities 3 12,463            -              12,463             10,594         

Investments 9 6                     -              6                       -               

Total 80,970            -              80,970             80,270         

   
Expenditure on:

Charitable activities 4 80,964            (13,319)       67,645             97,314         

Total 80,964            (13,319)       67,645             97,314         

Net income/(expenditure) 6                     13,319        13,325             (17,044)       

Reconciliation of funds:
Total funds brought forward 6,644              630,430      637,074           654,118       

Total funds carried forward 6,650              643,749      650,399           637,074       

7

Page 399



    

HIGH HAZELS PARK
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
2020/21 2020/21 2020/21 2019/20

Note £ £ £ £

Income and endowments from:

Donations and legacies 2 69,676            -              69,676             60,098         

Charitable activities 3 10,594            -              10,594             10,515         

Investments 9 -                  -              -                   35                

Total 80,270            -              80,270             70,648         

   
Expenditure on:

Charitable activities 4 80,270            17,044        97,314             87,657         

Total 80,270            17,044        97,314             87,657         

Net income/(expenditure) -                  (17,044)       (17,044)            (17,009)       

Reconciliation of funds:
Total funds brought forward 6,644              647,474      654,118           671,127       

Total funds carried forward 6,644              630,430      637,074           654,118       

  

The statement of financial activities includes all gains and losses recognised in the year. All income and
expenditure derives from continuing activites.

8

Page 400



HIGH HAZELS PARK
BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 MARCH 2022

 
Unrestricted Restricted Total Total

2021/22 2021/22 2021/22 2020/21
Note £ £ £ £

Fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets 8 -                 643,748     643,748     630,430       

Investments 9 6,650             -             6,650         6,644           

6,650             643,748     650,398     637,074       

  
Current assets
Debtors 10 630                630            575              

Liabilities
Creditors falling due within one year 11 (630)               -             (630)           (575)             

 
Net current assets -                 -             -             -               

Net assets 6,650 643,748 650,398 637,074 

The funds of the charity

Unrestricted income funds 14 -                 -             -             -               
  Designated funds 14 6,650 -             6,650         6,644           
Restricted income funds 12 -                 643,749 643,749     630,430       

6,650             643,749     650,399     637,074       

Sheffield City Council adopted a Committee system in May 2022. The current Trustees are listed on Pg 1.

Approved by the Trustees and signed on their behalf by:

 
Signed  ___________________________________               Date  _____________

Cllr Bryan Lodge – Chair of the Charity Trustee Sub Committee.

9Page 401



HIGH HAZELS PARK 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 
 
 

 10 
  

1.   Accounting Polices 
 
High Hazels Park is a registered charity in England. The address of the registered 
office is given in the charity information on page 1 of these financial statements.  The 
nature of the charity’s operations and principal activities are for the perpetual use by 
the public for exercise and recreation.  
 
The charity constitutes a public benefit entity as defined by FRS 102. The financial 
statements have been prepared in accordance with Accounting and Reporting by 
Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their 
accounts in accordance with the  Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK 
and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) effective on 1 January 2019  (Updated second 
edition – October 19), the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the United 
Kingdom and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102), the Charities Act 2011 and UK 
Generally Accepted Practice as it applies from 1 January 2015.  
 
The financial statements have been prepared to give a ‘true and fair’ view and have 
departed from the Charities (Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008 only to the 
extent required to provide a ‘true and fair view’. This departure has involved following 
the Accounting and Reporting Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice 
applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial 
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) issued 
on 16 July 2014 rather than the Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of 
Recommended Practice effective from 1 April 2005 which has since been withdrawn. 
 
The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis under the historical 
cost convention, modified to include certain items at fair value.  The financial 
statements are presented in sterling which is the functional currency of the charity 
and rounded to the nearest £. 
 
The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial 
statements are as follows: 

1.1  Fixed assets 

High Hazels Park is classified as a Community Asset.  The trustees policy is to value 
Community Assets at £Nil. 
 
The Council Dwellings have been valued at their deemed cost at the date of 
transition to SORP (FRS 102). 
 
Other Land and Buildings are carried at cost.  
 
These costs have been identified and capitalised in recent years but for earlier years, 
where no records are available, the original cost is treated as £nil. 
 
Expenditure on fixed assets is capitalised, provided that the fixed asset yields benefit 
to the charity and the services it provides are for a period of more than one year. 
 
Assets have been reviewed for any impairment loss in respect of consumption of 
economic benefit. 
 

Page 402



HIGH HAZELS PARK 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 
 
 

 11 
  

1.2 Depreciation  
 
Depreciation is provided on fixed assets at rates calculated to write off the cost of the 
assets over their expected useful lives as follows: 
 

 Land and previously revalued buildings are not depreciated. 
 Park buildings have been depreciated on a straight line basis over 40 years, 

commencing on the transfer from assets under construction.  
 Depreciation is not provided on land or assets under construction. 
 The Trustees perform annual impairment reviews in accordance with the 

requirements of FRS 102 to ensure that the carrying value is not greater than 
the recoverable amount. 

 
1.3  Investments 
 
Fund balances are invested internally with Sheffield City Council. Investments are 
held at market value. 
 
1.4  Fund accounting 
 
Unrestricted funds are available for use at the discretion of the trustees in furtherance 
of the general objectives of the charity and which have not been designated for other 
purposes. 
 
Designated funds comprise of unrestricted funds that have been set aside by the 
trustees for specific purposes. 
 
Restricted funds are funds which are to be used in accordance with specific 
restrictions imposed by the donors or which have been raised by the charity for 
particular purposes. The aim and use of each restricted fund is set out in the notes to 
the financial statements. 
 
1.5  Income     
 
Income from donations and grants, including capital grants, is included in income 
when it is probable that the income will be received, and is allocated to the 
appropriate fund. 
 
Investment income is included when receivable. 
 
Rental, events, and similar income is included when the event or function has taken 
place. 
 
The cost of running the park is funded by Sheffield City Council.  Annual revenue 
expenditure is generally greater than income and any variance is borne by the 
Council by way of a grant to the charity. 
 

Page 403



HIGH HAZELS PARK 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 
 
 

 12 
  

1.6  Expenditure 
 
Expenditure is included in the Statement of Financial Activities on an accruals basis, 
net of any VAT, which can be recovered as Sheffield City Council is the sole trustee 
and therefore has special status under s33 VAT Act 1994. 
 
The main exception to this treatment is payments for such items as gas and 
electricity are charged at the date of the meter reading rather than being apportioned 
between years.  This policy is applied consistently each year. 
 
Expenditure has been allocated to the activities to which it is directly attributable. 
 
Cost of raising funds 
 
The cost of generating any external funding, such as grant applications and events, 
is attributable to the time of Sheffield City Council officers who work on a range of 
projects including the charity.  As such it is not possible to accurately apportion the 
cost of this to the charity so no charge is included in the accounts. 
 
Charitable activities 
 
Charitable activities are set out within the charitable deeds and represent the costs 
associated with the running and maintenance of the park. 
 
Governance costs 
 
Independent examination costs and finance officer costs are charged to the charity.  
The Council currently absorbs the cost of other officers’ time.  This policy is kept 
under review. 
 
Staff costs 
 
The staff who work for the charity are employed by Sheffield City Council, and are 
subject to the terms and conditions of that organisation.  The costs of such staff are 
recharged to the charity.  Full disclosure of the relevant staff costs and numbers is 
provided in the notes to these financial statements. 
 
Pensions 
 
City Council employees may participate in the Local Government Superannuation 
Scheme, which provides members with defined benefits related to pay and service.  
The City Council makes payments for this group of employees to the South Yorkshire 
Pensions Authority, which administers pension arrangements on behalf of Sheffield 
City Council and the other local authorities in the South Yorkshire area.  The City 
Council bears any deficit or surplus on the scheme and does not charge this to the 
charity. 
 
1.7  Debtors and creditors receivable / payable within one year 
 
Debtors and creditors with no stated interest rate and receivable or payable within 
one year are recorded at transaction price. Any losses arising from impairment are 
recognised in expenditure. 
 

Page 404



HIGH HAZELS PARK 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 
 
 

 13 
  

1.8  Financial instruments 
 
The charity only has financial assets and liabilities of a kind that qualify as basic 
financial instruments. Basic financial instruments are initially recognised at 
transaction value and subsequently measured at their settlement value. 
 
1.9  Going concern 
 
The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis as the 
trustees believe that no material uncertainties exist. The trustees have considered 
the level of funds held and the expected level of income and expenditure for 12 
months from authorising these financial statements. The budgeted income and 
expenditure is sufficient with the level of reserves for the charity to be able to 
continue as a going concern. 

Page 405



HIGH HAZELS PARK
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

2.  Donations and Legacies  

Grants 2021/22 2020/21
 £  £ 

Unrestricted:
Sheffield City Council - revenue grant 68,501            69,676            

68,501            69,676            
Restricted:
Capital Grants and Contributions
  S106 -                  -                  
  Public Health -                  -                  

-                  -                  

68,501            69,676            

3.  Income from charitable activities
2021/22 2020/21

 £  £ 
Unrestricted:
Miscellaneous 603                 -                  
Rents 11,860            10,594            

12,463            10,594            

4.  Analysis of expenditure on charitable activities 2021/22 2020/21
 £  £ 

Unrestricted:
Employees 41,634            40,527            

Ranger service -                  -                  
Repairs and maintenance 6,907              8,396              
Grounds maintenance 15,307            14,706            
Tree work 8,460              4,160              
Playground refurbishment and maintenance 4,047              5,277              
Water and sewage -                  -                  
Telephones -                  720                 
Supplies and services 3,175              5,130              
Governance costs 1,434              1,354              

80,964            80,270            
Restricted:
Depreciation (13,319)           17,044            

(13,319)           17,044            

67,645            97,314            

5.  Governance costs 2021/22 2020/21
 £  £ 

Managing and administration:
Independent examination fees 630 575 
Finance office costs 804 779 

1,434 1,354 

If expenditure is greater than income the variance is borne by Sheffield City Council and not brought forward into the next
financial year.

14Page 406



HIGH HAZELS PARK
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

6.  Staff costs and trustees' remuneration 2021/22 2020/21
 £  £ 

Salaries 33,043 32,164 
Social security costs 8,591 8,363 

41,634 40,527 

No employee received remuneration of over £60,000 during the year (2022 - None).

7. Staff numbers 2021/22 2020/21
Number Number

The average number of employees during the year was 1 1

At valuation

8.  Land and buildings Freehold land

and buildings Total

At valuation £ £
At 1 April 2021 and 31 March 2022 - 713,316        713,316          

Accumulated depreciation

At 1 April 2021 - 82,887 82,887 
Charge for the year - (13,319)         (13,319)
At 31 March 2022 -                  69,568          69,568            

Net book value

At 31 March 2022 - 643,748        643,748          

At 31 March 2021 - 630,430        630,430          

9.  Investments
2021/22

At market value  £ 

At 1 April 2021 6,644              
Interest received 6                     
At 31 March 2022 6,650              

Market value is the same as historical cost.

The valuations were carried out in November 2016 by the Asset Partnerships Services team of Kier who are MRICS
qualified. The historical cost of assets is £60,650.

Trustees received no remuneration (2022 - £Nil) and were not reimbursed for any of their expenses during the year.

15Page 407



HIGH HAZELS PARK
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

10. Debtors
2021/22 2020/21

 £  £ 
Accrued income
Amounts due from Sheffield City Council 630 575 
Prepayments - - 

630 575

11.  Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
2021/22 2020/21

 £  £ 
Independent examination fees 630 575 
Deferred income - - 

630 575

12.  Restricted funds

Land & 
Buildings Total

 £  £ 
Balance at 1 April 2021 630,430 630,430 
Income 13,319 13,319 
Expenditure - - 
Balance at 31 March 2022 643,749 643,749 

Freehold Land and Buildings

Restricted funds - prior year Land & 
Buildings Total

 £  £ 

Balance at 1 April 2020 647,474 647,474 

Expenditure (17,044) (17,044)

Income - - 
Balance at 31 March 2021 630,430 630,430 

13.  Unrestricted funds
General Funds

Designated 
Funds Total

 £  £  £ 
Balance at 1 April 2021 - 6,644 6,644 
Income 80,970 80,970 
Expenditure (80,964) (80,964)
Transfers (6) 6 - 
Balance at 31 March 2022 - 6,650 6,650 

     Unrestricted funds - prior year
General Funds

Designated 
Funds Total

 £  £  £ 
Balance at 1 April 2020 - 6,644 6,644 
Income 80,270 80,270 
Expenditure (80,270) (80,270)
Transfers - - - 
Balance at 31 March 2021 - 6,644 6,644 

Designated funds represent amounts invested and accumulated interest set aside by the trustees for specific costs as
determined by the trustees. 

This fund comprises various grants and donations received to finance capital projects at High Hazels Park.

16Page 408



HIGH HAZELS PARK
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

14. Analysis of net assets between funds
Unrestricted 

funds
Restricted 

funds Total funds

£ £ £

Fixed asset investments 6,650 643,749 650,399 
Current assets 575 - 575 
Creditors due within one year (575) - (575)

6,650 643,749 650,399 

Analysis of net assets between funds - prior year 
Unrestricted 

funds
Restricted 

funds Total funds

£ £ £

Fixed asset investments 6,644 630,430 637,074 
Current assets 575 - 575 
Creditors due within one year (575) - (575)

6,644 630,430 637,074 

15.  Ultimate Controlling Party

The ultimate controlling party is the sole trustee, Sheffield City Council.

16.  Related parties

The charity has a very close relationship with Sheffield City Council who is the sole trustee and provides the balance of
funding not provided elsewhere on an annual basis, to enable the charity to carry out its charitable objectives. The amount
of funding provided by Sheffield City Council during the year is £68,501 (2021: £69,676). At the year end £630 (2021:
£575) was owed by Sheffield City Council.

17Page 409



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 410



High Hazels Park Sheffield 
 

SHEFFIELD CITY COUNCIL 
TOWN HALL 

PINSTONE STREET 
SHEFFIELD 

S1 2HH 
 

Charity Number : 1183830 
 
Rogers Spencer  
Chartered Accountants 
Newstead House 
Pelham Road 
Nottingham 
NG5 1AP                                                           
 
 
Dear Sirs 
 
The following representations are made on the basis of enquiries of management and staff with relevant knowledge 
and experience such as we consider necessary in the connection with your examination on the charity’s financial 
statements for the year ended 31 March 2022.  These enquiries have included inspection of supporting 
documentation where appropriate and are sufficient to satisfy ourselves that we can make each of the following 
representations. All representations are made to the best of our knowledge and belief. 
 
General 
1 We have fulfilled our responsibilities as trustees as set out in the terms of your engagement letter, under the 

Charities Act 2011 for preparing financial statements in accordance with applicable law and United Kingdom 
Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), for being satisfied that 
they give a true and fair view and for making accurate representations to you.  
 

2 All the transactions undertaken by the charity have been properly reflected and recorded in the accounting 
records. 
 

3 All the accounting records have been made available to you for the purpose of your examination. We have 
provided you with unrestricted access to all appropriate persons within the charity, and with all other records 
and related information requested, including minutes of management and trustee meetings and 
correspondence with The Charity Commission. 

 
4 The financial statements are free of material misstatements, including omissions. 
 
5 The effect of uncorrected misstatements is immaterial both individually and in total. 
 
Internal control and fraud 
6 We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control 

systems to prevent and detect fraud and error.  We have disclosed to you the results of our risk assessment 
that the financial statements may be misstated as a result of fraud.  

  
7 We have disclosed to you all instances or known or suspected fraud affecting the entity involving 

management, employees who have a significant role in internal control or others that could have a material 
effect on the financial statements.  

 
8 We have also disclosed to you all information in relation to allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting 

the entity’s financial statements communicated by current or former employees, analysis, regulators or 
others. 

 
Assets and liabilities 
9 The charity has satisfactory title to all assets and there are no liens or encumbrances on the charity’s assets, 

except for those that are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. 
 

10 All actual liabilities, contingent liabilities and guarantees given to third parties have been recorded or 
disclosed as appropriate. 

 
11 We have no plans or intentions that may materially alter the carrying value and where relevant the fair value 

measurements or classification of assets and liabilities reflected in the financial statements. 
 

Page 411



Accounting estimates 
12 Significant assumptions used by us in making accounting estimates, including those measured at fair value, 

are reasonable. 
 
Loans and arrangements 
13 The charity has not granted any advances or credits to, or made guarantees on behalf of, trustees other than 

those disclosed in the financial statements. 
 
Legal claims 
14 We have disclosed to you all claims in connection with litigation that have been, or are expected to be, 

received and such matters, as appropriate, have been properly accounted for, and disclosed in, the financial 
statements. 

 
Law and regulations 
15 We have disclosed to you all known instances of non-compliance or suspected non-compliance with laws 

and regulations whose affects should be considered when preparing the financial statements. 
 
Related parties 
16 Related party relationships and transactions have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed in the 

financial statements. We have disclosed to you all relevant information concerning such relationships and 
transactions and are not aware of any other matters which require disclosure in order to comply with 
legislative and accounting standards requirements. 

 
Subsequent events 
17 All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements which require adjustment or disclosure have 

been properly accounted for and disclosed. 
 
Going concern 
18 We believe that the charity's financial statements should be prepared on a going concern basis on the 

grounds that current and future sources of funding or support will be more than adequate for the charity's 
needs.  We have considered a period of twelve months from the date of approval of the financial statements.   
We believe that no further disclosures relating to the charity's ability to continue as a going concern need to 
be made in the financial statements. 

 
Grants and donations 
19 All grants, donations and other income, the receipt of which is subject to specific terms or conditions, have 

been notified to you. There have been no breaches of terms or conditions in the application of such income. 
 
 
We acknowledge our legal responsibilities regarding disclosure of information to you as examiner and confirm that 
so far as we are aware, there is no relevant information needed by you in connection with preparing your 
independent examination report of which you are unaware. 
 
Each trustee has taken all steps that they ought to have taken as a trustee in order to make themselves aware of 
any relevant information and to establish that you are aware of that information. 
 
 
Yours faithfully 
 
 
 
.......................................................................................................................... 
Signed on behalf of the board of Sheffield City Council 
  
 
 
Date  
 

Page 412



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

CHARITIES FOR THE MAINTENANCE OF CITY HALL GARDENS AND 
OTHER CHARITABLE PURPOSES IN THE CITY OF SHEFFIELD 

 
TRUSTEES’ REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 
 

REGISTERED CHARITY NUMBER 260357 

Page 413



CHARITIES FOR THE MAINTENANCE OF CITY HALL GARDENS AND OTHER 
CHARITABLE PURPOSES IN THE CITY OF SHEFFIELD 

 
 
 

CONTENTS 
 
 

Page 

Reference and administrative details   1 

Trustees’ report 2 - 4 

Independent examiner’s report 5 

Statement of financial activities                                                         6 – 7 

Balance Sheet                                                                                   8 

Notes to financial statements                                                            9 
 
 
 
 

Page 414



CHARITIES FOR THE MAINTENANCE OF CITY HALL GARDENS AND OTHER CHARITABLE 
PURPOSES IN THE CITY OF SHEFFIELD 

 

REFERENCE AND ADMINISTRATIVE DETAILS 

CHARITY NO: 260357 

TRUSTEES 
 
Sheffield City Council is the sole Trustee of the charity, acting through the Charity Trustee 
Sub Committee. 

 
 
Charity Sub-Committee Members: 
 
Cllr Bryan Lodge (Chair) 
Cllr Richard Williams (Deputy Chair) 
Cllr Douglas Johnson (Spokesperson) 
Cllr Julie Grocutt 
Cllr Mick Rooney 

 

PRINCIPAL ADDRESS 
 
Sheffield City Council 
P.O. Box 1283 
Town Hall 
Sheffield 
S1 1UJ 

 
 
INDEPENDENT EXAMINER 
Melvin Bailey FCCA DChA 
Rogers Spencer Limited 
Newstead House 
Pelham Road 
Nottingham 
NG5 1AP 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

1 
Page 415



CHARITIES FOR THE MAINTENANCE OF CITY HALL GARDENS AND OTHER CHARITABLE 
PURPOSES IN THE CITY OF SHEFFIELD 
TRUSTEES REPORT 
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 
 

 

 

 
The trustees present their report together with the financial statements of the charity for the year ended 
31 March 2022.  The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting 
policies set out in note 1 to the accounts and comply with the charity’s trust deed, the Charities Act 
2011 and the requirements of the Statement of Recommended Practice, ‘Accounting and Reporting by 
Charities’ Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) 
effective on 1 January 2019  (Updated second edition – October 19). 
 
DESCRIPTION OF CHARITY’S TRUSTS AND OBJECTIVES 
 
The governing document comprises conveyances dated 25 March 1937, 15 August 1938, 8 July 
1938, 29 July 1937, 4 August 1942 and 23 September 1942 concerning six properties, two near 
Grenoside and four in the Mayfield Valley near Fulwood, and a scheme dated 24 October 2001. The 
scheme also includes 2 Mayfield Road cottages that have recently been let through Council Dwellings 
Stock but the rent is payable to the fund. 
 
The income arising from the six properties, after costs involved in the repair, maintenance and other 
incidental expenses, is to be applied 50% in the upkeep of the City Hall Gardens (also known as 
Barkers Pool Gardens) or towards the upkeep of any other charitable Park or recreation ground held 
upon trust by Sheffield City Council. The remaining 50% will be transferred to the trustees of and 
applied in accordance with the objectives of ‘The Spirit of Sheffield Children’s Trust’. 
 
ORGANISATION 
 
Maintenance of City Hall Gardens is a charity and the sole Trustee is Sheffield City Council. The 
Charity Trustee Sub Committee is a standing sub committee of the Strategy and Resources Policy 
Committee. It has been established to take all decisions of the Council, including but not limited to 
disposal of and other dealings with charitable land.  
 
Management of the City Hall Gardens is the responsibility of the Councils’ Facilities Management  
service. Management and administrative decisions which are not decisions of the Council as Trustee, 
may be made, in accordance with the Council constitution delegations, by the Executive Director of 
Operational Services, the Director of Direct Services, or the head of Facilities Management service.  
 
 
PUBLIC BENEFIT 
 
The Trustees have complied with the duty in s.4 of the Charities Act 2011 to have due regard to public 
benefit guidance published by the Charity Commission. Details of how the charity has carried out its 
activities for the public benefit are given in the section below. 
 
ACTIVITIES AND ACHIEVEMENTS 
 
During the year a grant of £16,993 (2021: £15,370) has been identified to be made to The Spirit of 
Sheffield Children’s Charity. No fund-raising activities took place in year. 
 
FINANCIAL REVIEW AND FUNDING 
 
Total net income for the year was £16,061 (2021: £14,565). At 31 March 2022 the Charity had total 
funds of £1,742,183 (2021: £1,726,122) of which £1,558,252 (2021: £1,558,252) is represented by 
endowment funds and the balance of £183,931 (2021: 167,870) is tied up in restricted funds. 
 
 
 
 

2 

Page 416



CHARITIES FOR THE MAINTENANCE OF CITY HALL GARDENS AND OTHER CHARITABLE 
PURPOSES IN THE CITY OF SHEFFIELD 
TRUSTEES REPORT 
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 
 

 

 
RESERVES POLICY 
 
The charity generates funds to be given out by grants for specific purposes as laid out in the governing 
document. It is not considered necessary to hold any free reserves. 
 

RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
The charity is dependent for its day-to-day management upon Sheffield City Council. It is therefore 
considered expedient and cost effective for the charity to adopt the Council’s risk management policy and 
strategy, which it considers is a crucial part of the service planning process in highlighting key risks and 
how they affect the Council’s ability to deliver its service and how they will be managed. The Council 
has incorporated a formal approach to risk, which would prevent them from achieving their objectives and 
to provide information and guidance on how these risks can be managed. The Council operates an Internal 
Insurance Account covering a variety of risks. 
 
GOING CONCERN 
 
There are no material uncertainties in relation to going concern. Further details about the adoption of 
the going concern basis are given in the accounting policies note 1.9. 
 
TRUSTEES’ RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
The trustees are responsible for preparing the Trustees’ Report and the financial statements in accordance 
with applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted 
Accounting Practice). 
 
The law applicable to charities in England & Wales requires the trustees to prepare financial statements 
for each financial year, which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the charity and of the 
incoming resources and application of resources of the charity for that period. In preparing these financial 
statements, the trustees are required to: 
 

 Select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently; 
 Observe the methods and principles in the Charities SORP 2019: 
 Make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 
 State whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material 

departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; 
 Prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume 

that the charity will continue in operation. 
 
The trustees are responsible for keeping proper accounting records that disclose with reasonable accuracy 
at any time the financial position of the charity and enable them to ensure that the financial statements 
comply with the Charities Act 2011, the Charity (Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008 and the 
provisions of the trust deed. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charity and 
hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

3 
 

Page 417



CHARITIES FOR THE MAINTENANCE OF CITY HALL GARDENS AND OTHER CHARITABLE 
PURPOSES IN THE CITY OF SHEFFIELD 
TRUSTEES REPORT 
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 
 

 

 
 

 
 
TRUSTEES 
 
Sheffield City Council adopted a Committee system in May 2022.  
The current Trustees are listed on Pg 1.  
 
Approved by the Trustees and signed on their behalf by: 
 
 
 
 
 
Signed   ___________________________________               Date  _____________ 
 
 
Cllr Bryan Lodge – Chair of the Charity Trustee Sub Committee. 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4 
 

Page 418



INDEPENDENT EXAMINER’S REPORT TO THE TRUSTEES OF CHARITIES FOR THE 
MAINTENANCE OF CITY HALL GARDENS AND OTHER CHARITABLE PURPOSES IN THE 
CITY OF SHEFFIELD 

 

 
 
 
 

I report to the trustees on my examination of the financial statements of the charity for the year ended 31 March 2021. 
 
Responsibilities and basis of report 
 
As the trustees of the charity (and also its directors for the purposes of company law) you are responsible for the 
preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 (the 2006 Act). 
 
Having satisfied myself that the financial statements of the charity are not required to be audited under Part 16 of the 
2006 Act and are eligible for independent examination,  I report in respect of my examination of the charity’s financial 
statements carried out under section 145 of the Charities Act 2011 (the 2011 Act). In carrying out my examination I 
have followed all the applicable Directions given by the Charity Commission under section 145(5)(b) of the 2011 Act. 
 
Independent examiner's statement 
 
I have completed my examination. I confirm that no matters have come to my attention in connection with the 
examination giving me cause to believe that in any material respect: 
 

1. accounting records were not kept in respect of the charity as required by section 386 of the 2006 Act; or 
2. the financial statements do not accord with those records; or 
3. the financial statements do not comply with the accounting requirements of section 396 of the 2006 Act other 

than any requirement that the accounts give a true and fair view which is not a matter considered as part of 
an independent examination; or 

4. the financial statements have not been prepared in accordance with the methods and principles of the 
Statement of Recommended Practice for accounting and reporting by charities applicable to charities 
preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and 
Republic of Ireland (FRS 102). 
 

I have no concerns and have come across no other matters in connection with the examination to which attention 
should be drawn in this report in order to enable a proper understanding of the financial statements to be reached 

........................................ 
Melvin Bailey FCCA DChA 
for and on behalf of Rogers Spencer 
Chartered Accountants 
Newstead House 
Pelham Road 
Nottingham 
NG5 1AP 
 
Dated:  

5 
Page 419



CHARITIES FOR THE MAINTENANCE OF CITY HALL GARDENS AND OTHER CHARITABLE 
PURPOSES IN THE CITY OF SHEFFIELD
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

Restricted Endowment Total Total
2021/22 2021/22 2021/22 2020/21

Notes £ £ £ £

Income and endowments from:

Investments 2 34,407 - 34,407 34,162 

Total income 34,407 - 34,407 34,162 

Expenditure:

Raising funds 3 778 778 3,651 
Charitable activities 4 17,568 17,568 15,945 

Total resources expended 18,347 - 18,347 19,597 

Net gain on investment properties - - - - 

Net income 16,061 - 16,061 14,565 

Total funds at 1 April 2021 167,870 1,558,252 1,726,122 1,711,557 

Total funds at 31 March 2022 183,931 1,558,252 1,742,183 1,726,122 

6

Page 420



CHARITIES FOR THE MAINTENANCE OF CITY HALL GARDENS AND OTHER CHARITABLE 
PURPOSES IN THE CITY OF SHEFFIELD
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

Restricted Endowment Total Total
2020/21 2020/21 2020/21 2019/20

Notes £ £ £ £

Income and endowments from:

Investments 2 34,162 - 34,162 35,111 

Total income 34,162 - 34,162 35,111 

Expenditure:

Raising funds 3 3,651 3,651 4,509 
Charitable activities 4 15,945 15,945 15,386 

Total resources expended 19,597 - 19,597 19,895 

Net gain on investment properties - - - 32,500 

Net income 14,565 - 14,565 47,716 

Total funds at 1 April 2020 153,305 1,558,252 1,711,557 1,663,841 

Total funds at 31 March 2021 167,870 1,558,252 1,726,122 1,711,557 

The statement of financial activities includes all gains and losses recognised in the year.
All incoming resources and resources expended derive from continuing activities.

7

Page 421



CHARITIES FOR THE MAINTENANCE OF CITY HALL GARDENS AND OTHER CHARITABLE 
PURPOSES IN THE CITY OF SHEFFIELD
BALANCE SHEET
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

Restricted Endowment Total Total
2021/22 2021/22 2021/22 2020/21

Notes £ £ £ £

Fixed Assets

Land & Buildings 6 - 1,545,002 1,545,002 1,545,002 

Investments 7 216,870 13,250 230,120 197,296 

216,870 1,558,252 1,775,122 1,742,298 

Creditors: amounts falling due in

less than one year 8 (32,939) - (32,939) (16,175)

Net current liabilities (32,939) - (32,939) (16,175)

Net assets 183,931 1,558,252 1,742,183 1,726,122 

Funds

Restricted funds 9 183,931 - 183,931 167,870 

Endowment Funds 10 - 1,558,252 1,558,252 1,558,252 

183,931 1,558,252 1,742,183 1,726,122 

Sheffield City Council adopted a Committee system in May 2022. The current Trustees are listed on Pg 1.

Approved by the Trustees and signed on their behalf by:

 

Signed  ___________________________________               Date  _____________

Cllr Bryan Lodge – Chair of the Charity Trustee Sub Committee.

8
Page 422



CHARITIES FOR THE MAINTENANCE OF CITY HALL GARDENS AND 
OTHER CHARITABLE PURPOSES IN THE CITY OF SHEFFIELD 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 
 

 

 
1. Accounting Polices 

 

Charities for the maintenance of City Hall Gardens and other charitable purposes in the City of Sheffield 
is a registered charity in England. The address of the registered office is given in the charity information 
on page 1 of these financial statements. The nature of the charity's operations and principal activities 
are to make charitable donations to the Spirit of Sheffield Children's Trust and the City Hall Gardens 
Fund  for its upkeep. 
 
The charity constitutes a public benefit entity as defined by FRS 102. The financial statements have 
been prepared in accordance with Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of 
Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the  
Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) effective on 1 
January 2019  (Updated second edition – October 19), the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in 
the United Kingdom and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102), the Charities Act 2011 and UK Generally 
Accepted Practice as it applies from 1 January 2015. 
 
The financial statements have been prepared to give a 'true and fair' view and have departed from the 
Charities (Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008 only to the extent required to provide a 'true and 
fair view'. This departure has involved following the Accounting and Reporting Charities: Statement of 
Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the 
Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) issued in October 
2019 rather than the Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice 
effective from 1 April 2005 which has since been withdrawn. 
 
The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis under the historical cost convention, 
modified to include certain items at fair value. The financial statements are presented in sterling which 
is the functional currency of the charity and rounded to the nearest £. 
 
The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements are as follows: 
 

1.1 Fixed assets 
Expenditure on fixed assets is capitalised, provided that the fixed asset yields benefit to the charity and 
the services it provides are for a period of more than one year. 
 
Asset classification and valuation is determined according to the code established by the Royal Institute 
of Chartered Surveyors (RICS). 
 
Investment properties are valued at fair value and not depreciated in accordance with  FRS 102. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
9 

Page 423



CHARITIES FOR THE MAINTENANCE OF CITY HALL GARDENS AND 
OTHER CHARITABLE PURPOSES IN THE CITY OF SHEFFIELD 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 
 

 

 

1.2 Depreciation 
 
Depreciation is provided on fixed assets at rates calculated to write off the cost of the assets over their 
expected useful lives as follows: 
 
Land and previously revalued buildings are not depreciated. 
 
Park buildings have been depreciated on a straight line basis over 40 years, commencing on the 
transfer from assets under construction. 
 
Depreciation is not provided on land or assets under construction. 
 
The Trustees perform annual impairment reviews in accordance with the requirements of FRS 102 to 
ensure that the carrying value is not greater than the recoverable amount. 
 

1.3 Investments 
 
Fund balances are invested internally with Sheffield City Council. Investments are held at market value. 
 

1.4 Fund accounting 
 
Unrestricted funds are available for use at the discretion of the trustees in furtherance of the general 
objectives of the charity and which have not been designated for other purposes. 
 
Restricted funds are funds which are to be used in accordance with specific restrictions imposed by 
the donors or which have been raised by the charity for particular purposes. The aim and use of each 
restricted fund is set out in the notes to the financial statements. 
 
Endowment funds represent those assets which must be held permanently by the charity, principally 
investments. Income arising on the endowment fund can be used in accordance with the objects of the 
charity and is included as unrestricted income. Any capital gains or losses arising on the investments 
form part of the fund. 
 

1.5 Income 
 
Investment and other income is included when it can be reliably measured, and it is probable that the 
income will be received. 
 

1.6 Expenditure 
 
Expenditure is included in the Statement of Financial Activities on an accruals basis, net of any VAT, 
which can be recovered as Sheffield City Council is the sole trustee and therefore has special status 
under s33 VAT Act 1994. 
 
Expenditure has been allocated to the activities to which it is directly attributable. 
 
Grants payable are charged in the year when the offer is conveyed to the recipient except in those 
cases where the offer is conditional, such grants being recognised as expenditure when the 
conditions attached are fulfilled. Grants offered subject to conditions which have not been met at the 
yearend are noted as a commitment, but not accrued as expenditure. 
 

 

 

 

10
Page 424



CHARITIES FOR THE MAINTENANCE OF CITY HALL GARDENS AND 
OTHER CHARITABLE PURPOSES IN THE CITY OF SHEFFIELD 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 
 

 

Charitable activities 
 
Charitable activities are set out within the charitable deeds and represent the costs associated with the 
running and maintenance of the park. 
 
Governance costs 
 
Independent examination costs and finance officer costs are charged to the charity. The Council 
currently absorbs the cost of other officers’ time. This policy is kept under review. 
 

1.7 Debtors and creditors receivable / payable within one year 
 
Debtors and creditors with no stated interest rate and receivable or payable within one year are 
recorded at transaction price. Any losses arising from impairment are recognised in expenditure. 
 

1.8 Financial instruments 
 
The charity only has financial assets and liabilities of a kind that qualify as basic financial instruments. 
Basic financial instruments are initially recognised at transaction value and subsequently measured at 
their settlement value. 
 

1.9 Going concern 
 
The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis as the trustees believe that 
no material uncertainties exist. The trustees have considered the impact of COVID-19 on the 
charity’s activities. Whilst it is not practical to accurately assess the duration and extent of the 
disruption, the trustees are confident that they have plans in place to deal with any impacts that arise. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

11 Page 425



CHARITIES FOR THE MAINTENANCE OF CITY HALL GARDENS AND OTHER CHARITABLE 
PURPOSES IN THE CITY OF SHEFFIELD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

2021/22 2020/21
£ £

2.  Investments

Rent 34,190 34,162
Interest receivable 217 0

34,407 34,162

3.  Analysis of expenditure on raising funds

Repairs and maintenance 48 2,913
Officer Time/Admin 730 738

778 3,651

4. Charitable activities 

Grants payable 16,993 15,370
Independent examination fees - support costs 575 575

17,568 15,945

5. Employees

The average number of employees for the year was nil (2020: nil).

6.  Land and buildings
Investment 
Properties

At valuation

At 1 April 2021 1,545,002      
Revaluations -                    
At 31 March 2022 1,545,002          

Net book value

At 31 March 2022 1,545,002          

At 1 April 2021 1,545,002          

Restricted Endowment Total
2021/22 2021/22 2021/22

7.  Investments £ £ £

At market value

At 1 April 2021 184,046 13,250 197,296 
Additions 34,407 - 34,407 
Disposals (1,583) - (1,583)

At 31 March 2022 216,870 13,250 230,120 

2021/22 2020/21
8. Creditors: amounts falling due within one year £ £

Independent examination fees 575 805
Grant payable to The Spirit of Sheffield Children's Trust 32,364 15,370

32,939 16,175

The charity funds are invested in Sheffield City Council's Consolidated Loan Funds (interest paid half yearly).  The market value is the 
same as historical cost.

12
Page 426



CHARITIES FOR THE MAINTENANCE OF CITY HALL GARDENS AND OTHER CHARITABLE 
PURPOSES IN THE CITY OF SHEFFIELD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

9. Restricted funds City Hall
Gardens

Garden Fund Total
£ £

Balance at 1 April 2021 167,870         167,870             
Income 34,407           34,407               
Expenditure (18,347) 18,347-               

Balance at 31 March 2022 183,931         183,931             

City Hall Gardens Fund

Restricted funds - prior year City Hall
Gardens

Fund Total
£ £

Balance at 1 April 2020 153,305         153,305             
Income 34,162           34,162               
Expenditure (19,597) (19,597)

Balance at 31 March 2021 167,870         167,870             

10. Endowment funds £

Balance at 1 April 2021 1,558,252
Gain on revaluation 0

Balance at 31 March 2022 1,558,252

Endowment funds - prior year £

Balance at April 2020 and 31 March 2021 1,558,252

11. Analysis of net assets between funds Restricted
funds Endowment Total funds

£ £ £

Fixed asset investments 216,870 1,558,252 1,775,122 
Creditors due within one year (32,939) - (32,939)

183,931 1,558,252 1,742,183 

Analysis of net assets between funds - prior year Restricted
funds Endowment Total funds

£ £ £

Fixed asset investments 184,046 1,558,252 1,742,298 
Creditors due within one year (16,175) - (16,175)

167,871 1,558,252 1,726,123 

12. Payments to Trustees

The Trustees have not received any payments from the Charity during the year (2021: £Nil).

13. Related party transactions

There were no related party transactions during the year that require disclosure (2021: none).

14. Ultimate controlling party

The ultimate controlling party is the sole trustee, Sheffield City Council.

These are funds to be applied in the upkeep of the City Hall Gardens or of any other charitable Park or recreation ground held upon trust by 
Sheffield City Council.

This fund represents the amount the Charity has invested in the endowed land and buildings and the proceeds of sale of endowed land and 
buildings which are held as investments.

13
Page 427



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 428



Charities For The Maintenance Of The City Hall Gardens 
 

SHEFFIELD CITY COUNCIL 
TOWN HALL 

PINSTONE STREET 
SHEFFIELD 

S1 2HH 
 

Charity Number : 260357 
 
Rogers Spencer  
Chartered Accountants 
Newstead House 
Pelham Road 
Nottingham 
NG5 1AP                                                           
 
 
Dear Sirs 
 
The following representations are made on the basis of enquiries of management and staff with relevant knowledge 
and experience such as we consider necessary in the connection with your examination on the charity’s financial 
statements for the year ended 31 March 2022.  These enquiries have included inspection of supporting 
documentation where appropriate and are sufficient to satisfy ourselves that we can make each of the following 
representations. All representations are made to the best of our knowledge and belief. 
 
General 
1 We have fulfilled our responsibilities as trustees as set out in the terms of your engagement letter, under the 

Charities Act 2011 for preparing financial statements in accordance with applicable law and United Kingdom 
Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), for being satisfied that 
they give a true and fair view and for making accurate representations to you.  
 

2 All the transactions undertaken by the charity have been properly reflected and recorded in the accounting 
records. 
 

3 All the accounting records have been made available to you for the purpose of your examination. We have 
provided you with unrestricted access to all appropriate persons within the charity, and with all other records 
and related information requested, including minutes of management and trustee meetings and 
correspondence with The Charity Commission. 

 
4 The financial statements are free of material misstatements, including omissions. 
 
5 The effect of uncorrected misstatements is immaterial both individually and in total. 
 
Internal control and fraud 
6 We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control 

systems to prevent and detect fraud and error.  We have disclosed to you the results of our risk assessment 
that the financial statements may be misstated as a result of fraud.  

  
7 We have disclosed to you all instances or known or suspected fraud affecting the entity involving 

management, employees who have a significant role in internal control or others that could have a material 
effect on the financial statements.  

 
8 We have also disclosed to you all information in relation to allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting 

the entity’s financial statements communicated by current or former employees, analysis, regulators or 
others. 

 
Assets and liabilities 
9 The charity has satisfactory title to all assets and there are no liens or encumbrances on the charity’s assets, 

except for those that are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. 
 

10 All actual liabilities, contingent liabilities and guarantees given to third parties have been recorded or 
disclosed as appropriate. 

 
11 We have no plans or intentions that may materially alter the carrying value and where relevant the fair value 

measurements or classification of assets and liabilities reflected in the financial statements. 
 

Page 429



Accounting estimates 
12 Significant assumptions used by us in making accounting estimates, including those measured at fair value, 

are reasonable. 
 
Loans and arrangements 
13 The charity has not granted any advances or credits to, or made guarantees on behalf of, trustees other than 

those disclosed in the financial statements. 
 
Legal claims 
14 We have disclosed to you all claims in connection with litigation that have been, or are expected to be, 

received and such matters, as appropriate, have been properly accounted for, and disclosed in, the financial 
statements. 

 
Law and regulations 
15 We have disclosed to you all known instances of non-compliance or suspected non-compliance with laws 

and regulations whose affects should be considered when preparing the financial statements. 
 
Related parties 
16 Related party relationships and transactions have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed in the 

financial statements. We have disclosed to you all relevant information concerning such relationships and 
transactions and are not aware of any other matters which require disclosure in order to comply with 
legislative and accounting standards requirements. 

 
Subsequent events 
17 All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements which require adjustment or disclosure have 

been properly accounted for and disclosed. 
 
Going concern 
18 We believe that the charity's financial statements should be prepared on a going concern basis on the 

grounds that current and future sources of funding or support will be more than adequate for the charity's 
needs.  We have considered a period of twelve months from the date of approval of the financial statements.   
We believe that no further disclosures relating to the charity's ability to continue as a going concern need to 
be made in the financial statements. 

 
Grants and donations 
19 All grants, donations and other income, the receipt of which is subject to specific terms or conditions, have 

been notified to you. There have been no breaches of terms or conditions in the application of such income. 
 
 
We acknowledge our legal responsibilities regarding disclosure of information to you as examiner and confirm that 
so far as we are aware, there is no relevant information needed by you in connection with preparing your 
independent examination report of which you are unaware. 
 
Each trustee has taken all steps that they ought to have taken as a trustee in order to make themselves aware of 
any relevant information and to establish that you are aware of that information. 
 
 
Yours faithfully 
 
 
 
 
 
.......................................................................................................................... 
Signed on behalf of the board of Sheffield City Council 
  
 
 
Date  
 

Page 430


	Agenda
	4 Declarations of Interest
	5 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	7 Parks Tennis Procurement and Hillsborough Activity Hub
	APPENDIX 1 - Operating Specification
	1.	INTRODUCTION
	(2)	ACTIVITY HUB REQUIREMENTS
	(3)	BUILDING AND EXTERNAL DEVELOPMENT PERFORMANCE STANDARDS
	(4)	PRICING REQUIREMENTS
	(5)	PROGRAMMING REQUIREMENTS
	(6)	BOOKINGS POLICY AND SYSTEM
	(7)	CUSTOMER SERVICE
	(8)	MARKETING AND PUBLICITY
	(9)	STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT
	(10)	MAINTENANCE REQUIREMENTS
	(11)	STAFFING REQUIREMENTS
	(12)	HEALTH AND SAFETY
	(13)	MAJOR INCIDENTS
	(14)	PERFORMANCE REPORTING AND CONTRACT MANAGEMENT

	APPENDIX 2 - Performance Specification Hillsborough Hub
	1.0 Project Summary
	2.0 Climate Impact Assessment
	3.0 MUGA and Tennis Courts
	4.0 New Catering Facility
	5.0 Wider Recreational Facilities

	APPENDIX 3 - Courtside Design CAD visuals CLOSED
	APPENDIX 4 - Financial Summary - CLOSED
	APPENDIX 5 - Sheffield Parent Company Guarantee
	1	Interpretation
	1.1	Definitions:
	1.2	Clause headings shall not affect the interpretation of this guarantee.
	1.3	A person includes a natural person, corporate or unincorporated body (whether or not having separate legal personality).
	1.4	A reference to a company shall include any company, corporation or other body corporate, wherever and however incorporated or established.
	1.5	Unless the context otherwise requires, words in the singular shall include the plural and, in the plural, include the singular.
	1.6	A reference to writing or written includes fax and email.
	1.7	A reference to this guarantee or to any other agreement or document referred to in this guarantee is a reference to this guarantee or such other guarantee or document as varied, novated (in each case, other than in breach of the provisions of this guarantee) from time to time.
	1.8	References to clauses are to the clauses of this guarantee.
	1.9	Any words following the terms including, include, in particular, for example or any similar expression shall be construed as illustrative and shall not limit the sense of the words, description, definition, phrase or term preceding those terms.

	2	Guarantee and indemnity
	2.1	The Guarantor:
	2.1.1	irrevocably guarantees to the Authority and its successors, transferees and assignees the due and punctual performance of all of the Concessionaire's present and future obligations under and in connection with the Agreement if and when they become due and performable in accordance with the terms of the Agreement (Guaranteed Obligations);
	2.1.2	shall pay to the Authority from time to time on demand all monies (together with interest on such sum accrued before and after the date of demand until the date of payment) which have become payable by the Concessionaire to the Authority under the Agreement but which has not been paid at the time the demand is made; and
	2.1.3	shall, if the Concessionaire fails to perform in full and on time any of its obligations, duties and undertakings under the Agreement, immediately on demand perform or procure performance of the same at its own cost and expenses.

	2.2	The Guarantor, as principal obligor and as a separate and independent obligation and liability from its obligations and liabilities under clause 2.1.1 and clause 2.1.3 agrees to indemnify and keep indemnified the Authority in full and on demand from and against all and any losses, costs and expenses suffered or incurred by the Authority arising out of, or in connection with:
	2.2.1	any failure by the Concessionaire to perform or discharge the Guaranteed Obligations except where the Concessionaire's failure to perform or discharge the Guaranteed Obligations results from the Authority's failure to comply with its obligations under this guarantee or the Concessionaire contesting any payment or part of a payment in good faith; or
	2.2.2	any of the Guaranteed Obligations being or becoming totally or partially unenforceable by reason of illegality, capacity, lack or exceeding of powers, ineffectiveness of execution or any other matter,

	but the Guarantor's liability under this clause 2.2 shall be no greater than the Concessionaire's liability under the Agreement was (or would have been, had the relevant obligation been fully enforceable).

	3	Authority protections
	3.1	Continuing guarantee. This guarantee is and shall, at all times, be a continuing security until the Guaranteed Obligations have been satisfied or performed in full and is not revocable and is in addition to and not in substitution for and shall not merge with any other right, remedy, guarantee or security which the Authority may at any time hold for the performance of such obligations and may be enforced without first having recourse to any such security.
	3.2	Preservation of Guarantor's liability. The Guarantor's liability under this guarantee shall not be reduced, discharged or otherwise adversely affected by:
	3.2.1	any arrangement made between the Concessionaire and the Authority;
	3.2.2	any alteration in the obligations undertaken by the Concessionaire whether by way of any addendum or variation referred to in clause 4 or otherwise;
	3.2.3	any waiver or forbearance by the Authority whether as to payment, time, performance or otherwise;
	3.2.4	the taking, variation, renewal or release of, the enforcement or neglect to perfect or enforce any right, guarantee, remedy or security from or against the Concessionaire or any other person;
	3.2.5	any unenforceability, illegality or invalidity of any of the provisions of the Agreement or any of the Concessionaire's obligations under the Agreement, so that this guarantee shall be construed as if there were no such unenforceability, illegality or invalidity;
	3.2.6	any legal limitation, disability, incapacity or other circumstances relating to the Concessionaire, or any other person; or
	3.2.7	the dissolution, amalgamation, reconstruction, reorganisation, change in status, function, control or ownership, insolvency, liquidation or the appointment of an administrator or receiver of the Concessionaire or any other person.

	3.3	Immediate demand. The Guarantor waives any right it may have to require the Authority (or any trustee or agent on its behalf) to proceed against or enforce any other right or claim for payment against any person before claiming from the Guarantor under this guarantee.
	3.4	Deferral of rights. Until all amounts which may be or become payable under the Agreement or this guarantee have been irrevocably paid in full, the Guarantor shall not, as a result of this guarantee or any payment performance under this guarantee:
	3.4.1	be subrogated to any right or security of the Authority;
	3.4.2	claim or prove in competition with the Authority against the Concessionaire or any other person; and
	3.4.3	demand or accept repayment of any monies or claim any right of contribution, set-off or indemnity,

	any sums received by the Guarantor in breach of this clause 3.4 (Deferral of rights) shall be held by the Guarantor in trust for and shall be promptly paid to the Authority.
	3.5	Guarantee additional to all other security. This guarantee is in addition to and shall not affect nor be affected by or merge with any other judgment, security, right or remedy obtained or held by the Authority from time to time in respect of the discharge and performance of the Guaranteed Obligations by the Concessionaire.

	4	Addendum or variation to the Agreement
	5	Payment
	5.1	All sums payable by the Guarantor under this guarantee shall be paid in full to the Authority in pounds sterling:
	5.1.1	without any set-off, condition or counterclaim whatsoever; and
	5.1.2	free and clear of any deductions or withholdings whatsoever except as may be required by law or regulation which is binding on the Guarantor.

	5.2	If any deductions or withholding is required by any law or regulation to be made by the Guarantor, the amount of the payment due from the Guarantor shall be increased to an amount which (after making any deduction or withholding) leaves an amount equal to the payment which would have been due if no deduction or withholding had been required.
	5.3	The Guarantor shall promptly deliver or procure delivery to the Authority of all receipts issued to it evidencing each deduction or withholding which it has made.
	5.4	The Guarantor shall not and may not direct the application by the Authority of any sums received by the Authority from the Guarantor under any of the terms in this guarantee.
	5.5	The Guarantor shall pay interest on any sum due under this guarantee, calculated as follows:
	5.5.1	Rate. 4% a year above the Bank of England's base rate from time to time, but at 4% for any period when that base rate is below 0%.
	5.5.2	Period. From when the overdue sum became due, until it is repaid.

	5.6	The Authority shall not be entitled to recover any amount in respect of interest under both this guarantee and any arrangements entered into between the Concessionaire and the Authority in respect of any failure by the Concessionaire to make any payment in respect of the Guaranteed Obligations.

	6	Costs
	6.1	The Guarantor shall, on a full indemnity basis pay to the Authority on demand the amount of all costs and expenses (including legal and out-of-pocket expenses and any VAT on those costs and expenses) which the Authority incurs in connection with:
	6.1.1	the preservation, or exercise and enforcement, of any rights under or in connection with this guarantee or any attempt to do so; and
	6.1.2	any discharge or release of this guarantee.

	6.2	Each party shall pay its own costs in connection with the negotiation, preparation, execution and registration of this guarantee, and all documents ancillary to it.

	7	Conditional discharge
	7.1	Any release, discharge or settlement between the Guarantor and the Authority in relation to this guarantee shall be conditional on no right, security, disposition or payment to the Authority by the Guarantor, the Concessionaire or any other person being avoided, set aside or ordered to be refunded pursuant to any enactment or law relating to breach of duty by any person, bankruptcy, liquidation, administration, protection from creditors generally or insolvency for any other reason.
	7.2	If any such right, security, disposition or payment as referred to in clause 7.1 (Conditional discharge) is avoided, set aside or ordered to be refunded, the Authority shall be entitled subsequently to enforce this guarantee against the Guarantor as if such release, discharge or settlement had not occurred and any such security, disposition or payment has not been made.

	8	Representations and warranties
	8.1	The Guarantor represents and warrants to the Authority:
	8.1.1	that it is duly incorporated with limited liability and validly existing under the laws of England;
	8.1.2	that it has full power under its constitution or equivalent constitutional documents in the jurisdiction in which it is established to enter into this guarantee;
	8.1.3	that it has full power to perform the obligations expressed to be assumed by it or contemplated by this guarantee;
	8.1.4	that it has been duly authorised to enter into this guarantee;
	8.1.5	that it has taken all necessary corporate action to authorise the execution, delivery and performance of this guarantee;
	8.1.6	that this guarantee when executed and delivered will constitute a legally binding obligation on it enforceable in accordance with its terms;
	8.1.7	that all necessary consents and authorisations for the giving and implementation of this guarantee have been obtained;
	8.1.8	its entry into and performance of its obligations under this guarantee will not constitute any breach of or default under any contractual, government or public obligation binding on it; and
	8.1.9	it is not engaged in any litigation or arbitration proceedings that might affect its capacity or ability to perform its obligations under this guarantee and to the best of its knowledge no such legal or arbitration proceedings have been threatened or are pending against it.


	9	General
	9.1	Confidentiality
	9.1.1	Each party undertakes that it shall not at any time during this guarantee, and for a period of five years after termination or expiry of this guarantee, disclose to any person any confidential information concerning the business, affairs, customer, clients or suppliers or the other party, except as permitted by clause 9.1.2 (Permitted disclosure).
	9.1.2	Each party may disclose the other party's confidential information:
	(a)	to its employees, officers, representatives or advisers who need to know such information for the purposes of exercising the party's rights of carrying out its obligations under or in connection with this guarantee. Each party shall ensure that its employees, officers, representatives or advisers to whom it discloses the other party's confidential information comply with this clause 9.1 (Confidentiality); and
	(b)	as may be required by law, a court of competent jurisdiction or any governmental or regulatory authority.

	9.1.3	No party shall use any other party's confidential information for any purpose other than to exercise its rights and perform its obligations under or in connection with this guarantee.

	9.2	Announcements
	No party shall make, or permit any person to make, any public announcement concerning the existence, subject matter or terms of this guarantee, the wider transactions contemplated by it, or the relationship between the parties, without the prior written consent of the other party (such consent not to be unreasonably withheld or delayed), except as required by law, any governmental or regulatory authority (including, without limitation, any relevant securities exchange), or any court or other authority of competent jurisdiction.
	9.3	Assignment
	The Authority shall be entitled by notice in writing to the Guarantor to assign the benefit of this guarantee at any time to any person without the consent of the Guarantor being required and any such assignment shall not release the Guarantor from liability under this guarantee.
	9.4	Further assurance
	Each party shall and shall use all reasonable endeavours to procure that any necessary third party shall, promptly execute and deliver such documents and perform such acts as may be required for the purpose of giving full effect to this guarantee.
	9.5	Variation
	No variation of this guarantee shall be effective unless it is in writing and signed by the parties (or their authorised representatives).
	9.6	Notices
	9.6.1	Any notice given to a party under or in connection with this guarantee shall be in writing and shall be:
	(a)	delivered by hand or by pre-paid first-class post or other next working day delivery service at its registered office (if a company) or its principal place of business (in any other case; or
	(b)	sent by email to:



	[TBC] in relation to notices sent to the Authority.
	[TBC] in relation to notices sent to the Guarantor.
	9.6.2	Any notice shall be deemed to have been received:
	(a)	if delivered by hand, on signature of a delivery receipt;
	(b)	if sent by pre-paid first-class post or other next working day delivery service, at 9.00 am on the second Business Day after posting or at the time recorded by the delivery service; and
	(c)	if sent by email, at the time of transmission, or if this time falls outside Business Hours in the place of receipt, when Business Hours resume.

	9.6.3	This clause 9.6 (Notices) does not apply to the service of any proceedings or other documents in any legal action or, where applicable, any arbitration or other method of dispute resolution.
	9.7	Entire agreement
	9.7.1	This guarantee constitutes the entire agreement between the parties and supersedes and extinguishes all previous agreements, promises, assurances, warranties, representations and understandings between them, whether written or oral, relating to its subject matter.
	9.7.2	Each party agrees that it shall have no remedies in respect of any statement, representation, assurance or warranty (whether made innocently or negligently) that is not set out in this guarantee. Each party agrees that it shall have no claim for innocent or negligent misrepresentation or negligent misstatement based on any statement in this guarantee.

	9.8	Waiver
	No failure or delay by a party to exercise any right or remedy provided under this guarantee or by law shall constitute a waiver of that or any other right or remedy, nor shall it prevent or restrict the further exercise of that or any other right or remedy. No single or partial exercise of such right or remedy shall prevent or restrict the further exercise of that or any other right or remedy.
	9.9	Severance
	9.9.1	If any provision or part-provision of this guarantee is or becomes invalid, illegal or unenforceable, it shall be deemed deleted, but that shall not affect the validity and enforceability of the rest of this guarantee.
	9.9.2	If any provision or part-provision of this guarantee is deemed deleted under clause 9.9.1 (Deemed deletion) the parties shall negotiate in good faith to agree a replacement provision that, to the greatest extent possible, achieves the intended commercial result of the original provision.

	9.10	Third party rights
	9.10.1	Unless it expressly states otherwise, this guarantee does not give rise to any rights under the Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999 to enforce any term of this guarantee.
	9.10.2	The rights of the parties to rescind or vary this guarantee are not subject to the consent of any other person.

	9.11	Counterparts

	This guarantee may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which when executed and delivered shall constitute a duplicate original, but all the counterparts shall together constitute the one deed.
	10	Governing law
	11	Jurisdiction
	Each party irrevocably agrees, for the sole benefit of the Authority that, subject as provided below, the courts of England and Wales shall have exclusive jurisdiction over any dispute or claim (including non-contractual disputes or claims) arising out of or in connection with this guarantee or its subject matter or formation. Nothing in this clause shall limit the right of the Authority to take proceedings against the Guarantor in any other court of competent jurisdiction, nor shall the taking of proceedings in any one or more jurisdictions preclude the taking of proceedings in any other jurisdictions, whether concurrently or not, to the extent permitted by the law of such other jurisdiction.


	APPENDIX - 6 Grant Funding Agreement Hillsborough Hub
	1.	INTERPRETATION
	1.1	This Agreement shall be interpreted by reference to the Project Proposals contained at Schedule 1 of this document, both the Special Conditions and Definitions set out above form part of this Agreement.
	1.2	The expressions "the Council" and "the Grant Recipient" shall include their respective successors in title.
	1.3	Any reference to the title of an officer of the Council shall include any person holding such office from time to time by the same or any title substituted therefore or such other officer of the Council as the Council may from time to time appoint to carry out the duties of the officer referred to.
	1.4	Any powers, discretions, rights or obligations of the Council within this Agreement may be exercised or discharged by the Council or any duly authorised Committee or any duly authorised officer of the Council.
	1.5	Reference to any statute shall be deemed to refer to any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof and any reference to any rules or regulations made thereunder shall include reference to any rules or regulations from time to time in force.
	1.6	Words importing any gender shall include all genders.
	1.7	Words importing the singular shall be deemed to include the plural and vice versa.
	1.8	The clause headings and numbering shall not affect the construction of this Agreement.
	1.9	References to clauses, schedules and appendices are, unless otherwise provided, references to the clauses of and schedules and appendices to this Agreement.
	1.10	The Project Proposals, the Definitions, the Special Conditions and the Schedules form part of this Agreement and shall have the same force and effect as if expressly set out in the body of this Agreement and any reference to this Agreement shall include the Project Proposals, the Definitions, the Special Conditions and the Schedules and Appendices.
	1.11	Where the Grant Recipient is more than one person, each shall be jointly and severally bound by the terms of this Agreement.
	1.12	Any phrase introduced with the words “including”, “includes”, “in particular”, “for example” or similar shall be construed as illustrative and without limitation to the generality of the related general words.
	1.13	a reference to any Law includes a reference to that Law as amended, extended, consolidated or re-enacted from time to time.
	1.14	any obligation in this Agreement on a person not to do something includes an obligation not to agree or allow that thing to be done.

	2.	PURPOSE OF THE GRANT
	2.1	The Grant Recipient shall use the Grant only for the delivery of the Project and in in accordance with the terms and conditions set out in this Agreement. The Grant shall not be used for any other purpose without the prior written agreement of the Council.
	2.2	The Recipient shall not make any significant change to the Project without the Council’s prior written agreement.
	2.3	Throughout the Term, where the Grant Recipient intends to apply to a third party for other funding for the Project, it will notify the Council in advance of its intention to do so and, where such funding is obtained, it will provide to the Council with details of the amount and purpose of that funding. The Grant Recipient agrees and accepts that it shall not apply for duplicate funding in respect of any part of the Project or any related administration costs that the Council is funding in full under this Agreement.

	3.	PAYMENT OF THE GRANT
	3.1	Subject to the compliance by the Grant Recipient with its obligations hereunder and to the other terms of this Agreement, the Council (subject to the necessary funds being available when payment falls due) agrees to pay the Grant to the Grant Recipient in accordance with the following procedures and conditions:
	3.1.1	The Council shall (subject to the necessary funds being available when payment falls due) pay the Grant in accordance with the Payment Schedule, and the terms of this Agreement, which shall be deemed to apply from the Commencement Date for the Term.
	3.1.2	Payment of the Grant shall be made in line with the Payment Schedule attached to this Agreement.
	3.1.3	No Grant shall be paid unless and until the Council is satisfied that such payment will be used for proper expenditure in the delivery of the Project.
	3.1.4	The Council shall not pay more than the maximum Grant amount allocated to the Project.
	3.1.5	The amount of the Grant shall not be increased in the event of any overspend by the Grant Recipient in its delivery of the Project.
	3.1.6	The Grant Recipient agrees and accepts that payments of the Grant can only be made to the extent that the Council has available funds.
	3.1.7	The Grant Recipient shall promptly repay to the Council any money incorrectly paid to it either as a result of an administrative error or otherwise. This includes (without limitation) situation where either an incorrect sum of money has been paid or where Grant monies have been paid in error or before all conditions attaching to the Grant have been complied with by the Grant Recipient.
	3.1.8	The Grant will be paid into a verified bank or building society account in the name of the Grant Recipient in the UK. The Grant Recipient must provide bank account details in writing to the Council that must be verified for means of electronic payment.
	3.1.9	The Grant Recipient shall not transfer any part of the Grant to bank accounts which are not ordinary business accounts within the clearing bank system, without the prior written consent of the Council.
	3.1.10	A sum equivalent to 10% of the Grant will be deducted from the amount of the final Grant claim submitted by the Grant Recipient under this Agreement and retained by the Council until such time as the Council has received, and is satisfied with, the final financial statement as specified in Clause 7.4 and the Project has been completed in accordance with this Agreement, to the satisfaction of the Council.

	3.2	The Council accepts no liability whatsoever for any losses attributable to delays in payment of the Grant to the Grant Recipient, nor for any repayment, reduction, cancellation, termination or withdrawal of the Grant, or for any Clawback enforced under the terms of this Agreement.
	3.3	The Council may, at its sole discretion, extend the Term of this Agreement by amending the Completion Date to such later date as the Council determines in accordance with all relevant funding rules and guidance, in order to allow the Grant Recipient to completely defray the entire Grant. Such extension shall be notified to the Grant Recipient in writing, and the terms of this Agreement shall continue for such extended period. Any such extension shall not result in an increase to the Grant unless the Council notifies the Grant Recipient in writing at its sole discretion.

	4.	USE OF THE GRANT
	4.1	The Grant Recipient shall only use the Grant for the Allowable Expenditure and for the delivery of the Project.
	4.2	The Grant Recipient shall not use the Grant to:
	4.2.1	make any payment to members of its Governing Body;
	4.2.2	purchase buildings or land; or
	4.2.3	pay for any expenditure commitments of the Grant Recipient entered into before the Commencement Date,

	4.3	The Grant Recipient shall not spend any part of the Grant on the delivery of the Project after termination of this Agreement or expiry of the Term.
	4.4	Should any part of the Grant remain unspent at the expiry of the Term, the Grant recipient shall ensure that any unspent monies are returned to the Council unless agreed otherwise in writing with the Council.
	4.5	Any liabilities arising at the end of the Project including any redundancy liabilities for staff employed by the Grant Recipient to deliver the Project must be managed and paid for by the Grant recipient using the Grant (provided it constitutes Allowable Expenditure) or other resources of the Grant Recipient. There will be no additional funding available to the Council for this purpose.

	5.	THE GRANT RECIPIENT'S OBLIGATIONS
	5.1	carry out the Project and to procure the carrying out of the Works, and promptly to meet any outputs or milestones or completion dates;
	5.2	ensure that the Project to be funded by the Grant is completed by the Completion Date unless otherwise agreed in accordance with Clause 3.3 of this Agreement;
	5.3	comply with all Law, applicable Government rules and guidance, and any guidance issued by the Council;
	5.4	comply with the terms of the Section 106 Agreement as it relates to the Project;
	5.5	notify the Council promptly of any matter which may affect the Grant Recipient’s ability to continue to meet any of the terms of this Agreement;
	5.6	notify the Council’s Project Manager immediately if any of the events referred to in Clause 8.1 below shall take place;
	5.7	notwithstanding any other provisions of this Agreement, if the Government and/or the Council shall require repayment for any reason of the whole or any part of the Grant to that body or another body, to immediately make any such repayment to the relevant body as required upon demand;
	5.8	ensure that the delivery of the Project does not result in it being in receipt of an unlawful State Subsidy;
	5.9	not take any action or fail to take any action, or (insofar as it is reasonably within its power) permit anything to occur that will cause the Council to be in breach of Subsidy Control Law;
	5.10	maintain appropriate records of compliance with the relevant Subsidy Control Law and will take all reasonable steps to assist the Council or any other UK governmental, regional or other authority respond to any proceedings or investigations(s) into the Project by any relevant court or tribunal of relevant jurisdiction or regulatory body, including any body appointed to oversee the granting of State Subsidies in the United Kingdom;
	5.11	acknowledge and accept that the Grant is awarded on the basis [REASON]
	5.12	If the Council is of the reasonable opinion that variation and/or repayment of some or all of the Grant and/or payment of interest should be made because there has been an unlawful State Subsidy or it is required under Subsidy Control Law and/or if the Council is otherwise required to procure variation, repayment and/or payment of interest by the determination of a court or decision of the Secretary of State or a regulatory body or any body appointed to oversee the granting of State subsidies in the United Kingdom, the Council may vary or withhold any or all payments and/or require repayment of the Grant already paid, together with interest at an appropriate rate, within 20 Working Days of receipt of the Council’s invoice.
	5.13	ensure that an acceptable quality assurance standard is in place and adhered to by all personnel, agents, sub-contractors,  involved in delivery of the Project if requested by the Council;
	5.14	comply and ensure that contractors and sub-contractors involved in undertaking the Works comply with all applicable requirements of the Law;
	5.15	maintain, and ensure that any contractors and sub-contractors involved in undertaking the Works maintain, with a reputable insurance office adequate insurance against:
	5.15.1	any losses, damages, suits, actions, claims or demands arising from fault, negligence or otherwise in the performance of this Agreement and generally in the carrying out of the Project including, but not limited to, employers' liability, public liability and professional indemnity insurances; and
	5.15.2	theft, loss or damage to any asset purchased or improved with the Grant including but not limited to damage to or destruction of the Premises for its full replacement value; and
	5.15.3	any loss or damage occurring during the course of the Works including but not limited to insurance of the Works against fire and all other relevant risks;

	5.16	produce on written demand evidence of the policies of insurance referred to in Clause 5.15 above and the receipt for the last premium paid, and to give to the Council at least thirty (30) days notice in writing of the cancellation of any such policies;
	5.17	comply with all the publicity requirements in relation to the Project and any further rules or guidance specified by the Council and/or the Government regarding publicity of the contribution to the Project from the Council and/or the Government;
	5.18	operate an open and competitive procedure when recruiting members of staff that have all or part of their salaries paid for by funding under this Agreement;
	5.19	comply with all applicable Council and Government rules or guidance relating to procurement, and the Council’s requirements in relation to appointment of contractors and consultants as detailed in Clause 12 below;
	5.20	maintain accounts for the Project from the Commencement Date and throughout the Term which shall show and explain:
	5.20.1	the Grant Recipient’s transactions being processed through the company accounting system of the Grant Recipient;
	5.20.2	the Grant Recipient’s financial positions with accuracy at any time;
	5.20.3	records of the daily money received, interest earned and money spent;
	5.20.4	where money was spent by the Grant Recipient and what it was spent on;
	5.20.5	records of the Grant Recipient’s assets and liabilities.

	5.21	ensure that the Grant shall be shown in the Grant Recipient’s account as a restricted fund and shall not be included under general funds;
	5.22	keep full, complete and accurate original books, records and documentation, including the accounts referred to in Clause 5.20 above, relating to the Project for a period of fifteen (15) years from the Completion Date;
	5.23	permit any authorised officer or representative of the Council to review and make copies of any accounts, books, records and documentation kept by the Grant Recipient relating to the Grant and the Project pursuant to Clauses 5.17 and 5.18, upon reasonable request by the Council throughout the Term;
	5.24	comply and facilitate the Council’s compliance with all statutory requirements as regards, accounts, audit, or examination of accounts, annual reports and annual returns applicable to itself and the Council;
	5.25	indemnify and to keep the Council fully indemnified against all losses, costs, claims, expenses, demands and/or liabilities whatsoever which the Council may incur, receive or suffer as a result of:
	5.25.1	any act or omission by the Grant Recipient or its employees, agents, successors, assigns and/or contractors or sub-contractors in connection with or in consequence of the undertaking of any activities connected with the Project; or
	5.25.2	any breach of this Agreement by the Grant Recipient or by any such person;

	5.26	establish and maintain an asset register detailing any assets or items of equipment having a useful life of more than one year (“Capital Assets”) acquired, built or improved with the Grant (including but not limited to the Premises) having a net value of £2,500 or more, such register to show:
	5.26.1	the date of purchase;
	5.26.2	description of the Capital Asset;
	5.26.3	the price paid (identifying any VAT paid);
	5.26.4	location of any title deeds to the Capital Asset;
	5.26.5	any serial number or other distinguishing marks;
	5.26.6	where the Capital Asset is located or stored and subject to clause 5.27 where the Capital Asset is disposed of by way of sale, lease, charge, loan, gift or otherwise:
	(a)	the date of disposal;
	(b)	the details of any consideration for the disposal (identifying any VAT);
	(c)	any other information the Council may reasonably require


	5.27	not dispose of or agree to the disposal of any Capital Assets referred to in Clause 5.2 above (by way of sale, lease, charge, gift, loan or otherwise) without notifying the Council in writing of such intention and receiving the Council’s prior written consent (which may at the Council’s absolute discretion be conditional on the payment of Clawback to the Council of some or all of the Grant);
	5.28	work together with any other body as dictated by the nature of the Project or as reasonably requested by the Council in cooperation and good faith;
	5.29	ensure that appropriate contractual arrangements on an arm’s length basis and on market rates are entered into with any project or business receiving any funding from the Grant or other benefit funded by the Grant or any contractors appointed to carry out the Works or otherwise assist with the delivery of the Project;
	5.30	carry out the Works or procure that the Works are carried out in a good and workmanlike manner with sound and good materials and to the satisfaction of the Council, and in a manner which conforms with all applicable requirements of Law, including but not limited to planning permissions, building regulations, and legislation relating to listed buildings and ancient monuments;
	5.31	obtain any necessary permissions consents or approvals required for the Grant Recipient to lawfully undertake the Works including where appropriate consents required under planning, listed buildings and ancient monuments legislation and buildings regulations, and any landlord’s or mortgagees consents required prior to the commencement of the Works, and where applicable to ensure that the consent of any funding body funding any prior works to the Premises has been obtained;
	5.32	without prejudice to any other term of this Agreement, ensure that the Council is able to comply with the terms of the Section 106 Agreement by fulfilling all of the Council’s obligations under the Section 106 Agreement insofar as they apply to the Project as if they were set out fully in this Agreement as obligations and requirements on the Grant Recipient.

	6.	WARRANTIES
	6.1	The Grant Recipient warrants and represents to the Council as follows:
	6.1.1	that the information given in connection with this Agreement, the Project or the Council’s evaluation of the Grant Recipient or the Project is at the date of this Agreement true, complete and accurate in all respects and not misleading in any respect;
	6.1.2	that where at any time any information of any nature whatsoever is provided by the Grant Recipient to the Council regarding this Agreement, the Project or in response to a specific request by the Council relating to this Agreement or the Project it will at the time(s) when given be true, complete and accurate and not misleading in any respect;
	6.1.3	that it will promptly notify in writing the Council if, and to the extent that, any information provided by it to the Council becomes untrue, incomplete, or misleading in any respect;
	6.1.4	that it has the necessary power and authority to enter into this Agreement with the Council;
	6.1.5	all actions necessary on the part of the Grant Recipient to authorise the execution of and the performance of its obligations under this Agreement have been taken;
	6.1.6	the obligations expressed to be assumed by the Grant Recipient under this Agreement will be legal, valid, binding and enforceable to the extent permitted by Law and this Agreement will be in the proper form for enforcement in England;
	6.1.7	the execution, deliver and performance by it of this Agreement does not contravene any provision of:
	(a)	any Law either in force, or enacted but not yet in force and binding on the Grant Recipient;
	(b)	the memorandum and articles of association of the Grant Recipient;
	(c)	any order or decree of any court or arbitrator which is binding on the Grant Recipient;
	(d)	any obligation which is binding upon the Grant Recipient or upon any of its assets or revenues;

	6.1.8	no claim is presently being assessed and no litigation, arbitration, administrative or mediation proceedings are presently in progress or, to the best of the knowledge of the Grant Recipient, pending or threatened against it or any of its assets which will or might have a material adverse effect on the ability of the Grant Recipient to perform its obligations under this Agreement;
	6.1.9	it is not subject to any other obligation, compliance with which will or is likely to have a material adverse effect on the ability of the Grant Recipient to perform its obligations under this Agreement;
	6.1.10	no proceedings or other steps have been taken and not discharged (nor, to the best of the knowledge of the Grant Recipient, threatened) for its winding up, or dissolution or for the appointment of a receiver, administrative receiver, administrator, liquidator, trustee or similar officer or in relation to any of its assets or revenues;
	6.1.11	this Agreement will be in full force and effect and constitutes the valid, binding and enforceable obligations of the parties; and
	the Council relies upon such warranties and representations.

	6.2	All warranties, representations, undertaking, indemnities and other obligations made, given or undertaken by the Grant Recipient in this Agreement are cumulative and none shall be given a limited construction by reference to any other.
	6.3	The Grant Recipient warrants and represents that by entering into this Agreement it has not committed any Prohibited Act.

	7.	MONITORING AND REPORTING
	7.1	The Grant Recipient shall closely monitor the delivery and success of the Project throughout the Term to ensure that the aims and objectives of the Project are being met and that this Agreement is being adhered to.
	7.2	The Grant Recipient shall comply with any Project monitoring and reporting requirements as required by the Council. This may include a financial and operational report on its use of the Grant and delivery of the Project annually or as notified by the Council throughout the Term and in such formats as the Council may reasonably require.
	7.3	Subject to Clause 2.3, where the Grant Recipient has obtained funding from a third party for its delivery of part of the Project, the Grant Recipient shall include the amount of such funding in its financial reports together with details of what that funding has been used for.
	7.4	The Council shall have the sole discretion, in the event that in its reasonable opinion that sufficient progress has not been made by the Grant Recipient, to withhold payment of the Grant payments as set out in the Payment Schedule until such sufficient progress has been made.
	7.5	The Grant Recipient shall, if requested, submit to the Council such other information as is reasonably required by the Council in order to verify incurred costs and expenses.
	7.6	The Grant Recipient shall allow representatives of the Council, and any Government representatives, to visit the Premises on request in order to examine, inspect and photograph:
	7.6.1	the Works and all other operations carried out by the Grant Recipient and/or its contractors;
	7.6.2	the Grant Recipient’s records; and
	7.6.3	the Grant Recipient’s administrative and financial systems.

	7.7	The Grant Recipient shall provide all information reasonably required by the Council and/or the Government in order to monitor the Project and ensure compliance with this Agreement.
	7.8	The Grant Recipient shall on request provide to the Council with such information, explanation and documents as the Council may reasonably require in order to establish that the Grant has been used properly and in accordance with this Agreement.
	7.9	The Grant Recipient shall permit any person authorised by the Council such reasonable access to its employees, agents, premises, facilities and records, for the purpose of discussing, monitoring and evaluating the Grant Recipient’s fulfilment of the conditions of this Agreement and shall, if so required, provide appropriate oral or written explanations from them.
	7.10	The Grant Recipient shall permit any person authorised by the Council for the purpose to visit the Grant Recipient, the Premises and/or the Works every quarter (if required) to monitor the delivery of the Project. Where, in the reasonable opinion, the Council considers that additional visits are necessary to monitor the Project, it shall be entitled to authorise any person to make such visits on its behalf.
	7.11	If requested by the Councill, the Recipient shall provide to the Council with a final report on completion of the Term which shall complete whether the Project has been successfully and properly completed.

	8.	TERMINATION, WITHHOLDING, SUSPENDING AND REPAYMENT OF GRANT ANDREMEDIES AND CONSEQUENCES OF TERMINATION
	8.1	The Council may at its absolute discretion and without prejudice to its other rights and remedies terminate, reduce, withhold or suspend the whole of or part of the Grant, and/or rely on its right to Clawback the Grant in part or in full to the Council, and/or terminate this Agreement immediately upon service of written notice to that effect, in the event that:
	8.1.1	the Grant Recipient does not achieve the Project’s outputs to the reasonable satisfaction of the Council;
	8.1.2	the Grant Recipient does not otherwise deliver the Project in accordance with this Agreement;
	8.1.3	The Grant Recipient uses the Grant for purposes other than those for which it has been awarded;
	8.1.4	the delivery of the Project does not start within one month of the Commencement Date and the Grant Recipient has failed to provide the Council with a reasonable explanation for the delay;
	8.1.5	the Council considers that the Grant Recipient has not made satisfactory progress with the delivery of the Project;
	8.1.6	the Recipient, is in the reasonable opinion of the Council delivering the Project in a negligent manner;
	8.1.7	the Grant Recipient obtains duplicate funding from a third party for the Project;
	8.1.8	the Grant Recipient obtains funding from a third party which, in the reasonable opinion of the Council, undertakes activities that are likely to bring the reputation of the Project or the Council into disrepute or where the Grant Recipient has not sought the Council’s prior consent;
	8.1.9	the Grant Recipient provides the Council with any materially misleading or inaccurate information;
	8.1.10	the Grant Recipient commits or committed a Prohibited Act or fails to report a Prohibited Act to the Council;
	8.1.11	subject to Clause 10, the Grant Recipient undergoes a Change of Control which the Council, acting reasonably, considers:
	(a)	will be materially detrimental to the Project;
	(b)	the new body corporate cannot continue to receive the Grant because in the Council’s opinion (acting reasonably) they do not meet the Council’s criteria to receive the Grant or have the experience to successfully deliver the Project; or
	(c)	the new body corporate intends to make fundamental change(s) to the purpose for which the Grant was given;

	8.1.12	any member of the Governing Body, employee or volunteer of the Grant Recipient has (a) acted dishonestly or negligently at any time and directly or indirectly to the detriment of the Project or (b) taken any actions which, in the reasonable opinion of the Council, bring or are likely to bring the Council’s name or reputation into disrepute;
	8.1.13	the Grant Recipient becomes insolvent, or it is declared bankrupt, or it is placed into receivership, administration or liquidation, or a petition has been presented for its winding up, or it enters into any arrangement or composition for the benefit of its creditors, or it is unable to pay for its debts as they fall due;
	8.1.14	the Grant Recipient fails to comply with the terms and conditions set out in this Agreement and fails to rectify any such failure within 30 days of receiving written notice detailing the failure;
	8.1.15	the Council determines the Lease or [the Licence for Alterations] in respect of the Premises in accordance with its terms;
	8.1.16	The European Commission or the Court of Justice of the European Union requires any Grant paid to be recovered by reason of a breach of State Aid Law through its application under Article 10 of the Northern Ireland Protocol; or
	8.1.17	a court or tribunal or independent body or authority of competent jurisdiction require any Grant paid to be recovered;
	8.1.18	Clawback is enforced under Clause 16 below;
	8.1.19	the Grant Recipient ceasing to carry on its business or being or becoming unable to pay its debts within the meaning of Section 123 of the Insolvency Act 1986;
	8.1.20	possession is taken over any of the Grant Recipient’s property under the terms of a fixed or floating charge.


	9.	Termination for convenience
	9.1	The Council may terminate this Agreement in whole or in part and any Grant payments on giving the Grant Recipient 1 month’s written notice should it be required to do so by financial restraints or for any other reason.
	9.2	If the Council terminates the Agreement in accordance with Clause 9.1, the Grant Recipient shall return to the Council all unspent monies of the Grant that it has received within 30 days of the date of receipt of a written notice of termination from the Council unless agreed otherwise with the Council.

	10.	Change of Control
	10.1	The Grant Recipient shall notify the Council immediately in writing and as soon as the Grant Recipient is aware (or ought to reasonably be aware) that it is anticipating, undergoing, undergoes or has undergone a Change of Control, provided such notification does not contravene any Law.
	10.2	The Recipient shall ensure that any notification made pursuant to Clause 10.1 shall set out full details of the Change of Control including the circumstances suggesting and/or explaining the Change of Control.
	10.3	The Council may, at its sole discretion:
	10.3.1	agree to a Change of Control; or
	10.3.2	terminate the Agreement pursuant to Clause 8.1.11.

	10.4	The Council shall not be entitled to terminate where a written approval was granted prior to the Change of Control.

	11.	Exit Management
	12.	Limitation of Liability
	13.	VAT
	13.1	If VAT is held to be chargeable in respect of the Agreement, all payments shall be deemed to be inclusive of VAT and the Council shall not be obliged to pay any additional amount by way of VAT.
	13.2	All sums and other consideration payable to or provided by the Grant Recipient to the Council at any time shall be deemed to be exclusive of all VAT payable and where such sums become payable or due or other consideration is provided, the Grant Recipient shall at the same time or as the case may be on demand by HMRC in addition to such sums, or other consideration, pay to HMRC all the VAT payable upon the receipt of a valid VAT invoice.

	14.	Consequences of expiry or termination
	14.1	Notwithstanding anything contained elsewhere in this Agreement, the provisions of Clauses 1, 3.2, 5.6, 5.16, 5.20, 5.22, 7.5, 7.7, 8.1.18, 8.1.16, 14,  16, 18, 19, 24, 27, 31, 33, 35 and the Special Conditions shall survive the termination or expiry of this Agreement howsoever caused and shall continue thereafter in full force and effect together with any other provision hereof which is expressly or by implication intended to come into or continue in force on or after such termination.
	14.2	If this Agreement is terminated or expires then any rights or liabilities that arose under this Agreement before such termination or expiry shall not be affected.

	15.	CHANGE TO PROJECT AND REPROFILING
	15.1	Where the Grant Recipient becomes aware that the costs, outputs, or any other aspect of the Project have changed the Grant Recipient must notify the Council in writing.
	15.2	Where it becomes apparent that amendments to the Project are required to be made or a reprofile of Grant undertaken then a variation to contract letter may be issued by the Council. The Grant Recipient acknowledges that any action under this Clause may result in the reduction of the Grant under this Agreement.
	15.3	Such reprofiling of the Grant Recipient’s Grant amount as detailed in Clause 15.2 above shall not affect any of the other provisions of this Agreement.

	16.	CLAWBACK
	17.	APPOINTMENT OF CONSULTANTS AND CONTRACTORS
	17.1	The Grant Recipient must be able to demonstrate that for each and every purchase and contract for Works, the most economically advantageous tender is accepted.
	17.2	For the purposes of Clause 17.1 above the Grant Recipient shall ensure that a minimum of three competitive tenders are sought on each occasion.
	17.3	Where the Grant Recipient believes this is not possible and/or believes that an alternative way of procurement would achieve the requirements of Clause 17.1, the Grant Recipient shall:
	17.3.1	set out in writing the reasons why a minimum of three competitive tenders cannot be sought; and/or
	17.3.2	set out in writing their alternative proposals for best achieving the requirements of Clause 17.1; and
	17.3.3	provide such further information as requested by the Council within five (5) Working Days of such request being received from the Council.


	18.	SUBSIDY CONTROL REPAYMENT
	18.1	If the Council is of the reasonable opinion that variation and/or repayment of some or all of the Grant and/or payment of interest should be made because there has been an unlawful State Subsidy or it is required under Subsidy Control Law and/or if the Funder is otherwise required to procure variation, repayment and/or payment of interest by the determination of a court or decision of the Secretary of State or regulatory body or any body appointed to oversee the granting of State Subsidies in the United Kingdom, the Council may vary or withhold any or all of the payments and/or require repayment of Grant already paid, together with interest at an appropriate rate, within 20 Working Days of receipt of the Council’s invoice.

	19.	INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY
	19.1	The Council and the Grant Recipient agree that all rights, title and interest in or to any information, data, reports, documents, procedures, forecasts, technology, know-how and any other Intellectual Property whatsoever owned by either the Council or the Grant Recipient before the Commencement Date or developed by either Party during the Term, shall remain the property of that Party.
	19.2	Where the Council has provided the Grant Recipient with any of its Intellectual Property for use in connection with the Project (including without limitation its name and logo), the Grant Recipient shall, on expiry or termination of this Agreement, cease to use such Intellectual Property immediately and shall either return or destroy such Intellectual Property as requested by the Council.
	19.3	In the absence of prior written agreement by the Council to the contrary, all Intellectual Property created by the Grant Recipient:
	19.3.1	in using the Grant; or
	19.3.2	in delivering the Project and/or the Works,

	19.4	The Grant Recipient shall indemnify the Council against all claims, demands, actions, costs, expenses (including legal costs and disbursements on a solicitor and client basis), losses and damages arising from or incurred by reason of any infringement or alleged infringement (including the defence of such alleged infringement) of any Intellectual Property by the availability of the Services, except to the extent that they have been caused by or contributed to by the Council's acts or omissions.

	20.	NO PARTNERSHIP
	21.	VARIATIONS
	22.	ASSIGNMENT
	23.	COUNCIL'S STATUTORY ROLE
	24.	FAILURE TO ENFORCE IS NOT A WAIVER
	24.1	Notices to be given under this Agreement shall be given in writing and sent by letter sent by first class prepaid post or delivered by hand to the address of the Party to be served.
	24.2	Notices sent by first class post shall be deemed to have been served 48 hours after the time of posting and notices delivered by hand shall be deemed to have been served at the time of delivery.
	24.3	Proof of service of notices shall be by proof of posting by first class or by proof of actual delivery.

	25.	SEVERABILITY
	26.	CORRUPT GIFTS OR PAYMENTS AND THE BRIBERY ACT 2010
	26.1	The Grant Recipient shall not:
	26.1.1	offer or give, or agree to give, to any member, employee or representative of the Council any gift or consideration of any kind as an inducement or reward for doing, or refraining from doing, or for having done, or refrained from doing, any act in relation to the obtaining or execution of this or any other agreement with the Council, or for showing, or refraining from showing favour, or disfavour to any person in relation to this or any other agreement. The attention of the Grant Recipient is drawn, without limitation, to the criminal offence provisions of the Prevention of Corruption Acts 1889 to 1916;
	26.1.2	commit a Prohibited Act.

	26.2	The Grant Recipient warrants and undertakes to the Council that it will, throughout the duration of this Agreement, use all reasonable endeavours to have in place adequate procedures (as referred to in section 7(2) of the Bribery Act 2010) designed to prevent persons associated with the Grant Recipient from bribing any person with the intention of obtaining or retaining business for the Grant Recipient or with the intention of obtaining or retaining an advantage in the conduct of business for the Grant Recipient.
	26.3	The Grant Recipient shall notify the Council (in writing) if it becomes aware of any breach of this Clause 26, or has reason to believe that it or any person associated with it has received a request or demand for any undue financial or other advantage.

	27.	INTEREST
	28.	RIGHTS OF THIRD PARTIES
	29.	PROHIBITED ACTIVITIES
	30.	DATA PROTECTION
	30.1	The Grant Recipient shall comply with all relevant provisions of the Data Protection Legislation and do nothing which causes, or may cause, the Council to be in breach of its obligations under the Data Protection Legislation.
	30.2	The Grant Recipient shall:
	30.2.1	implement technical and organisational measures to protect any personal data (as defined under the Data Protection Legislation) it is processing against any unauthorised or unlawful processing and against any accidental loss, destruction, damage, alteration or disclosure and undertakes to maintain such measures during the course of this Agreement;
	30.2.2	take all reasonable steps to ensure the reliability of its staff having access to any such personal data;
	30.2.3	monitor and maintain the integrity of all personal data in full accordance with the Data Protection Legislation;
	30.2.4	notify the Council within 10 Working Days if it receives any complaint, enquiry or request from any person whatsoever relating to the Council’s or the Grant Recipient’s obligations (as applicable) under the Data Protection Legislation.


	31.	CONFIDENTIALITY
	31.1	Subject to Clause 32 (Freedom of Information), each Party shall during the term of this Agreement and thereafter keep secret and confidential all Intellectual Property or know-how or other business, technical or commercial information disclosed to it as a result of this Agreement and shall not disclose the same to any person save to the extent necessary to perform its obligations in accordance with the terms of this Agreement or save as expressly authorised in writing by the other Party.
	31.2	The obligation of confidentiality contained in this Clause shall not apply or shall cease to apply to any Intellectual Property, know-how or other business, technical or commercial information which:
	31.2.1	at the time of its disclosure by the disclosing party is already in the public domain or which subsequently enters the public domain other than by breach of the terms of this Agreement by the receiving party;
	31.2.2	is already known to the receiving party as evidenced by written records at the time of its disclosure by the disclosing party and was not otherwise acquired by the receiving party from the disclosing party under any obligations of confidence;
	31.2.3	is disclosed for the purpose of the examination and certification of the Council’s accounts; or pursuant to section 6(1) of the National Audit Act 1983 of the economy, efficiency, and effectiveness with which the Council has used its resources;
	31.2.4	is disclosed on a confidential basis to a Party’s insurer, legal adviser(s) or auditor(s); or
	31.2.5	is at any time after the date of this Agreement acquired by the receiving party from a third party having the right to disclose the same to the receiving party without breach of the obligations owed by that party to the disclosing party.


	32.	FREEDOM OF INFORMATION
	32.1	The Grant Recipient acknowledges that the Council is subject to the requirements of the Freedom of Information Act 2000 (FOIA) and the Environmental Information Regulations 2004 (EIRs).
	32.2	The Recipient shall:
	32.2.1	provide all necessary assistance and cooperation as reasonably requested by the Council to enable the Council to comply with its obligations under the FOIA and EIRs;
	32.2.2	transfer to the Council all requests for information relating to this Agreement that it receives as soon as practicable and in any event within two working days of receipt;
	32.2.3	provide the Council with a copy of all information belonging to the Council requested in the request for information which is in its possession or control in the form that the Council requires within five working days (or such other period as the Council may reasonably specify) of the Council’s request for such information; and
	32.2.4	not respond directly to a request for information unless authorised in writing to do so by the Council.

	32.3	The Grant Recipient acknowledges that the Council may be required under the FOIA and EIRs to disclose information without consulting or obtaining consent from the Grant Recipient. The Council shall take reasonable steps to notify the Grant Recipient of a request for information (in accordance with the Secretary of State’s section 45 Code of Practice on the Discharge of the Functions of Public Authorities under Part 1 of the FOIA) to the extent that it is permissible and reasonably practicable for it to do so but (notwithstanding any other provision in this Agreement) the Council shall be responsible for determining in its absolute discretion whether any information is exempt from disclosure in accordance with the FOIA and/or the EIRs.

	33.	ENTIRE AGREEMENT
	34.	COUNTERPART
	35.	GOVERNING LAW
	Schedule 1
	Schedule 2
	Schedule 3

	APPENDIX - 7 - Lease Agreement Hillsborough Hub
	1	Definitions
	2	Interpretation
	2.1	The expression “the Landlord” shall include the person for the time being entitled to the reversion immediately expectant on the determination of the Term while the expression “the Tenant” shall include the Tenant’s successors in title and assigns.
	2.2	A reference to this lease, except a reference to the date of this lease or to the grant of this lease, is a reference to this deed and any deed, licence, consent, approval or other instrument supplemental to it.
	2.3	The expressions landlord covenant and tenant covenant each has the meaning given to it by the Landlord and Tenant (Covenants) Act 1995.
	2.4	Unless the context otherwise requires, a reference to the Property is to the whole and any part of it.
	2.5	A reference to the term is to the Term.
	2.6	A reference to the end of the term is to the end of the term however it ends.
	2.7	Unless otherwise specified, a reference to legislation or a legislative provision is a reference to it as amended, extended or re-enacted from time to time and shall include all subordinate legislation made from time to time under them and all orders, notices, codes of practice and guidance made under them.
	2.8	A reference to laws in general is a reference to all local, national and directly applicable supra-national laws as amended, extended or re-enacted from time to time and shall include all subordinate laws made from time to time under them and all orders, notices, codes of practice and guidance made under them.
	2.9	Any obligation on the Tenant not to do something includes an obligation not to allow that thing to be done and an obligation to use best endeavours to prevent that thing being done by another person.
	2.10	Unless the context otherwise requires, any words following the term including, include, in particular, for example, or any similar expression shall be construed as illustrative and shall not limit the sense of the words, description, definition, phrase or terms preceding those terms.
	2.11	A person includes a natural person, corporate or unincorporated body (whether or not having separate legal personality).
	2.12	A reference to writing and written excludes fax and email.
	2.13	Unless the context requires, references to clauses and Schedules are to the clauses and Schedules of this lease and references to paragraphs are to paragraphs of the relevant Schedule.
	2.14	Clause, Schedule and paragraph headings shall not affect the interpretation of this lease.
	2.15	Unless the context otherwise requires, words in the singular shall include the plural and in the plural shall include the singular.
	2.16	Unless expressly provided otherwise, the obligations and liabilities of the parties under this lease are joint and several.
	2.17	In relation to any payment, a reference to a fair proportion is to a fair proportion of the total amount payable, determined conclusively (except as to questions of law) by the Landlord.
	2.18	Where there is any inconsistency between the terms of the Contract and this Lease the Contract shall prevail.

	3	Demise and rent
	3.1	The Landlord lets the Property to the Tenant for the Term.
	3.2	The grant is made together with the Rights, excepting and reserving to the Landlord the Reserved Rights, and subject to the Third Party Rights.
	3.3	The grant is made with the Tenant paying the following as rent to the Landlord:
	3.3.1	the Yearly Rent and all VAT in respect of it; and
	3.3.2	all other sums due under this lease.


	4	Tenant’s covenants
	4.1	To Pay Rent
	4.2	Signs
	4.3	User
	4.3.1	Not to use or permit or suffer the Property to be used otherwise than for the Authorised Use.
	4.3.2	Not to:
	(a)	organise or permit any gambling upon the Property;
	(b)	permit the sale or consumption of tobacco or tobacco related products; or
	(c)	use the Property for any illegal purposes nor for any purpose or in a manner that would or is likely to cause loss, damage, injury, nuisance or inconvenience to the Landlord or the owners or occupiers of any neighbouring property.

	4.3.3	The tennis courts on the Property will be available for public booking during the times set out in the Contract.

	4.4	Rates and taxes
	4.4.1	The Tenant shall pay all present and future rates, taxes and other impositions in accordance with the Contract in respect of the Property, its use and any works carried out there, except:
	(a)	any taxes payable by the Landlord in connection with any dealing with or disposition of the reversion to this lease; or
	(b)	any taxes (other than VAT) payable by the Landlord by reason of the receipt of any of the rents due under this lease.

	4.4.2	If any rates, taxes or other impositions and outgoings are payable in respect of the Property together with other property, the Tenant shall pay a fair proportion of the amount payable.

	4.5	Utilities
	4.6	Tenant’s covenant for repair
	4.6.1	The Tenant must:
	(a)	keep the Property in good and substantial repair and condition;
	(b)	ensure that any Conducting Media forming part of the Property is kept in good working order; and
	(c)	keep the Property clean, tidy and clear of rubbish.

	4.6.2	The Landlord may enter the Property to inspect its condition and may give the Tenant a notice of any breach of any of the tenant covenants in this lease relating to the condition of the Property. The Tenant shall carry out and complete any works needed to remedy that breach within the time reasonably required by the Landlord, in default of which the Landlord may enter the Property and carry out the works needed. The costs incurred by the Landlord in carrying out any works pursuant to this clause 4.6.2 (and any professional fees and any VAT in respect of those costs) shall be a debt due from the Tenant to the Landlord and payable on demand. Any action taken by the Landlord pursuant to this clause 4.6.2 shall be without prejudice to the Landlord's other rights, including those under clause 6.

	4.7	Insurance
	4.8	Alterations
	4.8.1	Subject as may be permitted under the Contract, the Tenant shall not make any alteration or addition to the Property and shall not make any opening in any boundary of the Property without the consent of the Landlord, such consent not to be unreasonably withheld.
	4.8.2	Subject to the terms of the Contract, the Tenant shall not install any electronic communications apparatus on the Property or on the outside of any building erected from time to time on the Property, other than such that is reasonably required for the provision of an electronic communications service to the Property that is required for the proper and reasonable use of the Property for the Authorised Use.
	4.8.3	Subject as may be permitted under the Contract, the Tenant shall not erect or place any temporary buildings or structures on the Property without the consent of the Landlord, such consent not to be unreasonably withheld.
	4.8.4	Subject as may be permitted under the Contract the Tenant shall not carry out any alteration to the Property which would, or may reasonably be expected to, have an adverse effect on the asset rating in any Energy Performance Certificate commissioned in respect of the Property.

	4.9	Third Party Rights
	4.9.1	The Tenant shall comply with all obligations on the Landlord relating to the Third Party Rights insofar as those obligations relate to the Property and shall not do anything (even if otherwise permitted by this lease) that may interfere with any Third Party Right.
	4.9.2	The Tenant shall allow the Landlord and any other person authorised by the terms of the Third Party Right to enter the Property in accordance with its terms.

	4.10	Compliance with laws
	4.10.1	The Tenant shall comply with all laws relating to:
	(a)	the Property and the occupation and use of the Property by the Tenant;
	(b)	the use of all Conducting Media and machinery and equipment at or serving the Property;
	(c)	any works carried out at the Property; and
	(d)	all materials kept at or disposed of from the Property.

	4.10.2	Within five working days after receipt of any notice, order, direction or other formal communication affecting the Property or the Landlord's interest in the Property (and whether or not served pursuant to any law), the Tenant shall:
	(a)	inform the Landlord and allow the Landlord to copy the relevant document; and
	(b)	take all steps necessary to comply with the communication and take any other action in connection with it as the Landlord may reasonably require.

	4.10.3	The Tenant shall not apply for any planning permission for the Property without the Landlord's consent.

	4.11	Alienation
	4.12	Assignments
	4.12.1	In the event that the Contract is novated, the Tenant shall assign this lease to the same party to which the Contract is novated to.

	4.13	Sharing occupation
	4.14	Charing
	4.14.1	The Tenant shall not charge the whole of this lease without the consent of the Landlord, such consent not to be unreasonably withheld.
	4.14.2	The Tenant shall not charge part only of this lease.

	4.15	Closure of the registered title of this Lease
	4.16	Costs
	4.16.1	The Tenant shall pay the costs and expenses of the Landlord including any solicitors’ or other professionals’ costs and expenses (incurred both during and after the end of the term) in connection with or in contemplation of any of the following:
	(a)	the enforcement of the tenant covenants of this lease;
	(b)	serving any notice in connection with this lease under section 146 or 147 of the Law of Property Act 1925 or taking any proceedings under either of those sections, notwithstanding that forfeiture is avoided otherwise than by relief granted by the court;
	(c)	serving any notice in connection with this lease under section 17 of the Landlord and Tenant (Covenants) Act 1995; or
	(d)	any consent or approval applied for under this lease, whether or not it is granted.

	4.16.2	Where the Tenant is obliged to pay or indemnify the Landlord against any solicitors’ or other professionals’ costs and expenses (whether under this or any other clause of this lease) that obligation extends to those costs and expenses assessed on a full indemnity basis provided that the Landlord shall take  reasonable steps to see that any solicitors or other professional costs and expenses are reasonable.

	4.17	Encroachments, obstructions and acquisition of rights
	4.17.1	Subject as may be permitted under the Contract, the Tenant shall not grant any right or licence over the Property to any person.
	4.17.2	If any person makes or attempts to make any encroachment over the Property or takes any action by which a right may be acquired over the Property, the Tenant shall:
	(a)	immediately give notice to the Landlord; and
	(b)	take all steps at the Landlord’s cost (including any proceedings) the Landlord reasonably requires to prevent or license the continuation of that encroachment or action.

	4.17.3	The Tenant shall not obstruct the flow of light or air to the Property nor obstruct any means of access to the Property.
	4.17.4	The Tenant shall not make any acknowledgement that the flow of light or air to the Property or that the means of access to the Property is enjoyed with the consent of any third party.
	4.17.5	If any person takes or threatens to take any action to obstruct the flow of light or air to the Property or obstruct the means of access to the Property the Tenant shall:
	(a)	immediately notify the Landlord; and
	(b)	take all steps at the Landlord’s cost (including proceedings) the Landlord reasonably requires to prevent or secure the removal of the obstruction.


	4.18	To Yield Up
	4.19	Common Items
	The Tenant shall pay the Landlord on demand a fair proportion of all costs payable by the Landlord for the maintenance, repair, lighting, cleaning and renewal of all Services, structures and other items on the Retained Land which are used or capable of being used by the Property in common with other land.

	5	Landlord’s covenant
	6	Provisos agreements and declarations
	6.1	Remedies
	6.2	Early Termination of the Term
	6.3	Re-entry and forfeiture
	6.3.1	The Landlord may re-enter the Property (or any part of the Property in the name of the whole) at any time after any breach of any condition of, or tenant covenant in, this lease.
	6.3.2	If the Landlord re-enters the Property (or any part of the Property in the name of the whole) pursuant to this clause, this lease shall immediately end but without prejudice to any right or remedy of the Landlord in respect of any breach of covenant by the Tenant or any guarantor.

	6.4	Provisions in relation to rights
	6.4.1	Save for the rights expressly granted nothing in this Lease shall by implication of law or otherwise operate to confer on the Tenant any easement, right or privilege whatsoever over or against the Retained Land or any other property of the Landlord which might in any way restrict or prejudicially affect the future rebuilding alteration or development of the Retained Land or such other property.
	6.4.2	The Rights are granted in common with the Landlord and any other person authorised by the Landlord.
	6.4.3	The Rights are granted subject to the Third Party Rights and the Tenant shall not exercise any of the Rights so as to interfere with any Third Party Right.
	6.4.4	The Tenant shall exercise the Rights only in connection with its use of the Property for the Authorised Use.
	6.4.5	The Tenant shall comply with all laws relating to its use of any part of the Retained Land pursuant to the Rights.
	6.4.6	The Reserved Rights may be exercised by the Landlord and by anyone else who is or becomes entitled to exercise them, and by anyone authorised by the Landlord. To the extent that the exercise of any Reserved Rights impacts upon the operation of the Property by the Tenant, this will be dealt with in accordance with the Contract.
	6.4.7	The provisions relating to VAT in the Contract shall apply to any payment due or payable under the terms of this Lease.

	6.5	Compensation on vacating
	6.6	Security of Tenure - Exclusion of sections 24 to 28 of the 1954 Act
	6.6.1	The parties confirm that before the Tenant became contractually bound to enter into the tenancy created by this Lease:
	(a)	the Landlord served a notice on the Tenant, as required by section 38A(3)(a) of the 1954 Act applying to the tenancy created by this Lease; and
	(b)	made a statutory declaration dated in accordance with the requirements of section 38A(3)(b) of the 1954 Act.

	6.6.2	The parties agree that the provisions of sections 24 to 28 of the 1954 Act are excluded in relation to the tenancy created by this Lease.

	6.7	Notices
	6.8	Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999
	6.9	Warranty on Use
	6.10	Governing law
	6.11	Jurisdiction
	6.12	Local Authority Landlord’s Capacity and Powers

	Schedule 1	Exceptions and reservations
	1	A right of way at all times, with or without vehicles, plant machinery and/ or equipment over and along the roadway shown coloured brown on the Plan for the purpose of gaining access to and egress from the Retained Land
	2	The right to the free and uninterrupted passage and running of Services to and from the Retained Land in and through the Conducting Media which now are or may at any time hereafter during the Term be in, upon, through, under or over the Property.
	3	The right to maintain in, on, through, under or over the Property at any time during the Term any easements or services for the benefit of the Retained Land, the right to connect into any Conducting Media on the Property and the right to install and construct Conducting Media at the Property to serve any part of the Retained Land.
	4	Rights of light, air, support and protection to the extent those rights are capable of being enjoyed at any time during the term.
	5	At any time during the term, the full and free right to develop any part of the Retained Land and any neighbouring or adjoining Property in which the Landlord acquires an interest during the term as the Landlord may think fit.
	6	The right to build on or into any boundary wall of the Property in connection with any of the Reservations.
	7	The right to re-route any Conducting Media at or serving the Property.
	8	The right at any time during the Term in accordance with the conditions for such entry included within the Contract or otherwise (if no such conditions apply) at reasonable times and after reasonable prior written notice (except in an emergency when no notice shall be required) to enter upon the Property to:
	8.1	inspect, maintain, relay, repair, replace or renew or execute any works whatever to or in connection with any of the Conducting Media easements or Services referred to in paragraphs 3 and 4 of this Schedule 1;
	8.2	to erect scaffolding at the Property and attach it to any building or structure on the Property in connection with any of the Reserved Rights;
	8.3	carry out any cleaning and or maintenance of the Landlord’s Retained Land; or
	8.4	exercise any of the rights granted or reserved to the Landlord by this Lease or the Contract,

	9	All liberties, privileges, easements, quasi-easements, rights and advantages whatsoever now held or enjoyed with or appertaining or reputed to appertain to any other part of the Retained Land provided always that those matters or any of them reserved pursuant to this paragraph do not materially interfere with the Tenant’s proper performance and exercise of its obligations and rights contained in the Contract.
	10	The right to deal in any manner whatsoever with the Retained Land and to erect, maintain, rebuild or alter or suffer to be erected, maintained, rebuilt or altered thereon any buildings whatsoever.
	11	The right of support and protection by and from the Property for adjoining buildings (whether now in existence or erected during the term) situated on the Retained Land.
	12	The mines and minerals under the Property and the airspace above the buildings on the Property.
	[DN: The Landlord reserves the right to revise these reservations on a site by site basis]

	Schedule 2	Rights granted to the Tenant
	1	The right of support and protection by and from the Retained Land for the Property and buildings (whether now in existence or erected during the term) situated on the Property.
	2	The right at any time during the Term in accordance with the conditions for such entry included within the Contract or otherwise (if no such conditions apply) at reasonable times and after reasonable prior written notice (except in an emergency when no notice shall be required) to enter upon the Retained Land to:
	2.1	carry out any cleaning and or maintenance of the Property; or
	2.2	exercise any of the rights granted or reserved to the tenant by this Lease or the Contract,



	APPENDIX 8 - Proposed Lease Terms CLOSED
	APPENDIX 9 - Consultation Insight
	Appendix 11 – Survey Results from the Hillsborough Park Activity Hub Consultation April 2022
	1: What type of involvement do you have with Hillsborough Park? Please select all that are relevant.
	2: How often do you visit Hillsborough Park?
	3: What are your main reasons for visiting the park? Please select all that apply.
	4: Focusing on the multi-use games area, how do you rate the following?
	5: How often to you use the Multi-Use Games Area?
	6: What do you use the Multi-Use Games Area [MUGA] for? Please select all that apply.
	7: Do you have any further comments about the existing Multi-Use Games Area? (e.g. usage, size, quality or anything else)
	8: Focusing on the tennis courts, how do you rate the following?
	9: How often do you book to use the tennis courts?
	10: What do you think about the current tennis provision?
	11: We are exploring the option of renovating the tennis courts and Multi-Use Games Area into a Multi-Activity Hub. What do you think of these proposed new facilities?
	12: From previous consultations regarding Hillsborough Park we have heard differing opinions around the need for additional indoor activity space in Hillsborough Park. Would you support a new indoor activity space for year-round use as part of the Activity Hub?
	13: If you are supportive of an indoor activity space, how interested would you be in using an indoor space for the following activities?
	14: Do you have any specific ideas for activities you would like to see (physical and/or social)? E.g. Netball/football league use, community hire space etc.
	15: Do you support the proposal of the Hillsborough Activity Hub project?
	16: Do you think you would make use of the Hillsborough Activity Hub?
	17: How would an Activity Hub like this impact on your usage of Hillsborough Park?
	18: Please share any further comments regarding this proposal. This can include: positive/negative comments, thoughts, concerns, ideas, or questions. Please review the FAQ before commenting.
	19: What is your age range?
	20: Ethnicity
	21: What is your sex?
	22: Do you have a disability or a long-term health condition?
	23: Are you an unpaid carer for a family member or someone else?


	APPENDIX 10 - QSR - Parks Tennis - CLOSED
	APPENDIX 11 - Report on Concession Agreement - Final - CLOSED
	APPENDIX 12 - Site Plans
	Appendix 13 - Performance Insight inc Demographics 2022

	8 Charity Accounts
	Graves Park Accounts 2022 - Draft 2
	Letter of Representation - Graves 2022
	Hillsborough Park Accounts 2022 - Draft 1
	Letter of Representation - Hillsborough Park 2022
	Norfolk Park Accounts 2022 - Draft 1
	Letter of Representation - Norfolk Park 2022
	Weston Park Accounts 2022 - Draft 1
	Letter of Representation - Weston Park 2022
	Firth Park Draft accounts 2
	Letter of Representation - Firth 2022
	Endcliffe Park Accounts 2022 - Draft 1
	Letter of Representation - Endcliffe 2022
	Richmond Accounts 2022 - Draft 1 (003)
	Letter of Representation - Richmond 2022
	High Hazels Accounts 2022 - Draft 1
	Letter of Representation - High Hazels 2022
	City Hall Gardens Accounts 2022 - Draft 1 (003)
	Letter of Representation - City Hall 2022


